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AFFIDAVIT OF DOUGLASS LAWRENCE \ 

I, Douglass Lawrence, being duly sworn, depose and say: 

1. I am a resident of the State of Kansas. I was a member of the Kansas legislature . 

until 1996 and I am currently employed as a lobbyist in Kansas. 

2. In September 2001, I began to work for Westar Energy, Inc. (“Westar”) as a . 

consultant. In November 2001, I was employed directly by Westar as its Vice President for 

Governmental Affairs. I held this position until the end of 2002. 

3. In the spring of 2002, I consulted with David Wittig, the then President and CEO 

of Westar, concerning a general plan to elevate Westar’s profile among Members of 

Congress who were active in the effort to enact new energy legislation. This general plan, 

oul’ined by one of Westar’s Washington, D.C. lobbyists, called for campaign contributions 

totaling approximately $56,500, of which $31,500 would be in the form of hard money 

contributions to federal candidates. 

4. David Wittig devised a formula to raise this amount of money through the thirteen 

most senior executives, including himself and Douglas Lake. Wittig assumed the greatest 

financial responsibility, followed by Douglas Lake, and then in decreasing amounts to the 

eleven remaining senior executives in the company, based on their respective pay grades. I 

then sent various inter-office memoranda reflecting the suggested contribution amounts and 

whtn the requested contributions would be needed. 

5. After Wittig provided the suggested contribution amounts, neither he (Wittig) nor 

Lake had any further contact with me with regard to who was actually contributing or how 



much they were contributing. My only contact with Mr. Wittig with regard to campaign 

contributions was with regard to his own personal contributions. 
I 

6.  I was responsible for collecting the campaign contribution checks from the 

thirteen designated contributors, although sometimes their duty was delegated to my assistant 

Katk; Volpert (now Kathy Lewis). 

7. I was among those designated to contribute a certain amount by David Wittig. I 

voluntarily contributed more than what David Wittig suggested. I contributed more because 

other executives were not contributing their suggested amounts.' I did not advise David 

Wittig about any of these matters and Wittig never made any inquiries about contributors. 

8. When checks were collected from the various executives by myself or Kathy 

I Volpert, she would put them in a Federal Express envelope and have them shipped to 

Richard Bornemann in Washington, D.C. We likely made three shipments by Federal 

Expic:*d between May and October 2002, although it is possible that there could have one or 

two additional rush shipments. 
I 

9. I was not reimbursed, directly or indirectly, for any campaign contribution which 

I made. My contributions were voluntary, and any end-of-the-year bonus I received was not 

in m y  fashion related to my contributions. 

10. I spent a tot@ of about 8 hours in 2002 in connection with the collection and 

processing of these checks. 

Subscribed and sworn to before 
me this 2 I "%lay of November, 2003. 
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By any measure, 2OO2'was a difficult year Cor Westar Energy The comphny recorded a loss 
of $793 4 million, 45 percent of book value, the share price dropped to a low olS8.50 from , 

$17.20 at its close December 31,2001, the Secunties and Exchange Commission, the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission, and the U 5 AttorneyS Office commenced investigations of various 

DEAR FELLOW 

S HARE H 0 LD E RS 
aspects of past business practices, relations wIh the Kansas Corporation Commssion were severely 
strained, and liquidity issues became a concern by mid-2002. In early 2003, we reduced our 
quarterly diwdend 37 percent, from 30 cents to 19 cents per share. 

A bnght spot throughout this difficult year was that we continued to provide outstanding electric 
utility semce to nearly 647,000 Kansas customers Indeed, we were awarded the Edison Electnc 
Institute's Emergency Response Award €or our recovery efforts from one o€ the worst ice storms 
in our history Our power plants performed at record levels for reliability, availability, and costs 
of production 

Additionally, in May and June of 2002. we issued $1.5 billion of new debt, proceeds of which 
retired maturing debt. These trksactions addressed the liquidity Eues 

As this letter is wntten, we believe you can be cautiously optimistic that at 2002's end a turn- 
around had begun In Deceniber 2002 and January 2003, a new senior management team was 

formed The appointment of a non-executive chairman marks a deliberate and significant change 
in our corporate governance. The nominating committee of the Board of Directors 1s proceeding 
to identify independent candidates for consideration as directors. 

In February 2003, we initiated a comprehensive debt rcduction and rcstructunng plan that calls . -' 

for us by the end of 2004 to reduce debt by more than $2 billion, exit all non-utility and non-core 
business activities, and return to our roots as a pure Kansas elea'nc utility. 

In carly 2003, we enhanced liquidity with the sale of about 40 percent of our interest in ONEOK 
lor $300 million Currently available cash combined wth the proceeds of this sale provlde us the 
ability 10 retiiz niarunng debt obligations through 2004 Importantly, our agreement with ONEOK 
calls h the registration of our reniainiiig Iioldings This should facilitate the sale of our remaiiiiiig 
holdings, ~uhleci 10 agiccd-upon rcsrriciioiis 

I 
I 
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Our ability io meet our debt-reducuon target depends upon our success in selling the balance 
of our interest in ONEOK, as well as our 88 percent interest in Protechon One. We have retained 
an investment-banking adviser to assist with the sale of Protection One. While we also intend to 
dlspose of our 100 percent interest in Protection One Europe (a separate company), its relatively 
smaller size makes it less critical to our ability to meet our debt-reduction goal. 

Our objective IS to obtaln enough cash from these asset sales, available free cash flow, and, if 
needed, an equity issuance to meet our debt-reduction target. 

Reducing the dividend was a necessary but very unwelcome step in our debt reduction and 
restructuring plan. In addition to increasing cash available to pay down debt, we attempted to 

achieve several other important goals. We wanted the dividend to be clearly sustainable and, at the 
completion of our restructuring plan, to be able to gmv at a rate consistent wth the underlying 
growth of our Kansas utihty business. We wanted our stock price to begin to reflect not only our 
impromng credit quality but also a stable base from which hture growth is a realstic expectation. 

We are fully cooperaung wlth the agencies involved in the various investigations noted at the 
begmning of thls letter. Beyond that, there IS little that it is appropriate for us to say about such 
matters. With respect to the U.S. Attomeyb Office and SEC matters, a Special Committee of the 
bard  of Directors was formed in October and, wth the assistance of outside counsel, supervised 
a thorough internal investigation that has been completed. W wdl discuss the investigation at our 
annual shareholder meetmg June 16. The FERC matter involves limited power trades with another 
utility as well as trades related to our system and our marketing operations. We have exammed 
the subject transactions and do not believe they violated any laws or regulations. 

As you might expect, class action lawsuits that reference these matters have been filed against 
Westar Energy and certain of its officers and former officers. We will defend against these lawsuits. 

Going forward, it is a new day at Westar Enew. W are committed to regaining the confidence of , 

our stakeholders. Indeed, there IS already tangible evidence of our progress. We understand that to 
regain your confidence we must make steady and sustainable progress in building the value of your 
investment. We are focused on that objective. 

Charles Q. Chandler IV 
Chairman of the Board President & Chief Execut~w Oflicer 

--. 
t&’ 
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The Westar Energy, Inc. 2002 Annual Report 

incorporates in its entirety the Annual Report on 

Form 10-K, as fded with the Securities.and 

Exchange Commission. 

The single document enclosed satisfies any request 

for the separate annual report and Form 1O-K: 

documents. 

Y 

818 South Kansas Avenue / EO. Box 750320 / Topeka, Kansas 66675 
Telephone. 1-800-52 7-2495 
Internet: sharsvcs@wr.com 
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Charles Q. Chandler IV (49) 
Chairman of the Board 
Elected 1999. Chairman 2002 
Chairman of the Board, President 
and Chief Executive Officer 
INTRUST Bank 
Wichita, Kansas 
Committees- A d [  and Finance, 
Corporate Public Policy 

Frank J. Becker (66) 
Elected 1992 
Presdent 
kcker  Investments, Inc. 
Lawmce,KanSas 
Comnuttees: Human Rcsourccs, 
Nominating 

Dr. Gene A Budig (63) 
Elected 1999 
Professor, Princeton Univemty 
Senior Advwr to Major k g u e  
Baseball 
And Scholar in Residence 

New Yo&. New York 
Commiuecs: Audit and Finance, 
Human Resources 
Also served from 1987 to 1998 

The college Board 

OFFICERS 
James S. Haines, Jr. (56) 
1 7 years of xnnce 
President and Chief Executive 
Officer 

William B. Moore (50) 
23 years oJ service 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Operating Ofker 

Mark A. Ruelle (4 I) 
J J years of servue 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

Richard A. Dixon (59) 
28 years of service 
Senior Vicc President, Operations 
Scratcg) 

RA Edwards (57) 
Elected 2001 
President and Chief Executive 
officer 
First National Bank of 
H u t c h i i  
Hutchinsun, Kansas 
Cummiuecs: Audit and Finance, 
NOmiMhg 

James S. Haines, Jr. (56) 
Elected 2002 
President and Chief Execuuve 
OfiiCtZ 
Westar Energy, lnc. 
Topeka, Kansas 
LawyD.lrick(46) ' 

Elected 2002 
Vice President, General Counsel 
and Corporate Secretary 
Weuar Energy, Inc. 
Topeka, Kansas 
John C. Nettels, Jr. (46) 
Elected 2000 
Partner 
Stinson Momson Hecker, Up 
Overland Park, Kansas 
Committees: Nominating 

Wertar Energy Board of Dimcmrs. 
frosn lecsuprler Q. chandler N, 
chrlrmaw R A  Edwardr; Dr. Gene A 
BudW John C. Nemls. Jr; James 5. 
Haines,)r;mdFrankJ.~. 
Not pchnod: Lay Rlrkk 

Douglas R Sterbenz (39) 
6 years of service 
Senior Vice President, Generation 
and Marketing 

Bruce A.Akin (38) 
J 6 years o~ servue 
Vice President, Business S e ~ c e s  

Greg A. Greenwood (37) 
10 years of service 
Treasurer 
Kelly 8. Harrison (44) 
22 years of service 
Vice President, Regulatory 

Anita Jo Hunt (40) 
14 yean of seivice 
Vice President. Risk Mnnagemeni 
Larry 0. lrick (46) 
4 yeat.\ \C17'1C( 

Vicc Picsidcnt Genci '11 Counscl 
and Corporarc Secrcr.ir! 

Peggy S. Loyd (45) 
25 years O J  servue 
Vice President, Corporate 
Compliance and lnternal Audit 

James J. Ludwig (45) 
12 years o/ semce 
Vice Presdent, Public Affairs 

Lee P. Wages (54) 
26 years of seryue 
Vice President, Controller 

Caroline A.Williams (46) 
28 years OJ senwe 
Vice President, Customer Care 
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Todd HUM. lineman-journeyman, 
left and M~hael kcharb .  agCm 
elecmc. replace a tnnzfonn~ 
as part of an equipment upgrade 

Westar Energy is proud of our relationship wth the communities we serve. Our 
employees' and retirees' commitment both at work and in their personal lives to our 
communities is an imporzanl part of this relationship. 2002 was filled wth examples 
of how their commitment benefits Westar Energy and all of our stakeholders 

to a line outside Hutchinson. . 

January 2002 ended wth a shiver. as Kansas was hit wth one of the the worst ice storms 
in Westar Energy's 79-year hutory 

DEDICATION 
EMPLOYEES MAKE A DIFFERENCE IN 2002 

Crews from 10 states joined Westar Energy crews 
to restore power to 116,000 customers over 4,000 
square miles. Employees took food to crews in the 
field, enabling them to return to work faster. In spiie 
of the widespread area and communication problems 
brought on by damaged fiber optic lines, power was 

returned to all customers wthin nine days The hard 
work of crews in the field and their support network 
.earned Wesrar .Energy an Emergency Response Award 
from thc Edison Electric Instiiutc 

John Mitchell. distribution system operator, 
monitors power distribution at the Wichita 
System Control Center 

2 0 0 2  W E S T A R  E N E R G Y  
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"1 am really proud of the way our team pulled together and got power restored to our 
customers." said Tom Sydow, director of operations in Salina. who served as one of the 
storm managers "Receimng the Emergency Response Award is a tribute to how wlling 
our employees are to go above and beyond expectations." 

''Jeffrey Energy Center had 

an exceptional yeor. This 

was possible bemuse of 

the dedication and efforts 

of our employees. Our 

employees truly make the 

difference." 

Technology and help from customers also played a role in restonng power efficiently 

'Customers using the 1-800-LIGHT-KS line to report outages probably tnmmed a 
day off our restoration time," Caroline Williams, via president, customer cam, said. 
The automated phone system answers up to 30,000 calls per hour and is networked 
to help map outage locations and send work orders directly to trucks in the field. 

Another important initiative that enabled Westar Energy to recover from the storm 
so quickly was our tree-tnmming program, for which the National Arbor Day 

u1 
Foundation again recognized us as a 

As spnng gave way to summer and t 
to our energy centers JefCrey Energy 
than 16 7 million megawatt hours 
of electricity, exceeding all prcwous 
generation records by more than 
1 million MWh 

"Jeffrey Energy Center had 
an exceptional year This was 

possible becausc of the dedication 
and efTorts of our employees 
Our employees truly make the 
differcnce." said Dave Ncufeld. 
executive director, J e k y  Energy 
Center 

k 

Jeffrey's 2002 performance 
combined with other system 
enhancements earned Jeffrey 
recognition as Powder River Basin 
Coal Plant of the Year for 2003, an 1 
Ixstowed on out Tecumsch Energy 
117 2002 
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T e c u m s e h E n c r g y C ~ ~  
named Small Phm d che Yerr 2W2 
by the Powder River b n  Coal 
Users Group 

iYktrvitres our volunteers 

toke on ore us diverse as 

the volunteers themselves. 

It IS great to see how 

engaged everyone IS in 

the community." 

Cynthm Mdoml, monager /I, 
community 4ffarn 

. 

I 

lnsrallation of new continuous emEion monitoring systems was completed at our 
coal-fired plants in 2002. The new systems operate mote effectively and allow more 
accurate measurement of plant emissions 

' 

Natural gas-fired plants such as the Hutchinson, Murray Gill and Gordon Evans energy 
centers were able to bum oil, saving the company money as gas pnces rose "The flexibility 
of the plants and oC our crews has been a real asset to the company," John Bndson, 
executive director, power plants, who oversees the three energy centers, said 

Westar Energy unveiled online senxes for our customes in 2002 A project team with 
employees from several departments pulled together to develop an easy-to-use online bill 
presentment and bill payment system Not content to stop there, the team expanded online 
'services to include reporting power outages, plaang orders to start or stop senwe, setting 
up payment agreemenu and other features. 

"Online senqces became reality in 2002 and have been very well received," Jan McGovern, 
representative, customer service interlace, who oversaw the project, said "Customers love 

Energy Centers I F o ~ d  Outage Rate sll Availabdq Factor 
Percent 

Abilene Energy Center 
Gordon Evans Energy Center 
Hutchinson Energy Center 
Jeffrey Energy Center' 
LaCygne Energy Center' 
Lawrence Energy Center 
Murray Gill Energy Center 
State Line Combined Cycle* 
Tecumseh Energy Center 
Wolf Creek Generating Station* 

I O  20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 

Avoilobihry \onor s die omount of u ~ ~ i p  0 plonr IS owrloblt! (or use in rchum lo rhe amount of lme ?he pronr could hove bcen o m b k  durmp 
o given urncfmme. [lie figure IS werglitd by ploni copociry Forced ouloge mrc IS die Percentage of rime diol o plont is nonfuncuonol L i e  to 
unexpcned cornporterit foihrrc or systcrnic pmMeins 

' Portio1 uwncrsliip by Werior E n c g  

2 0 0 ?  M E S T A R  F N E R C - !  
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doing business wth us on the Web. More than 32,500 customer bills 
paid online in 2002 That's in the first year of the program and beforr 
started advertfiing the Semce .I1 

Servmng customers isn't just a lob for many Westar Energy employees. 
Throughout the year Westar Energy employees and retirees and their 
spouses across our Servlce terntory roll up their sleeves to volunteer. 

Westar Energy's Green Team IS a group of employees, retirees and 
their family members who volunteer their talents and time for a 

variety of environmental projects across eastern Kansas. 

Team members often gather as early as dawn on a Saturday to 
spend the day planting native trees and grasses; building wetlands, 

Q n  
Dkiewmg blinds and bird rehabilitation enclosures; clearing and 
mmarking nature trails; or any of a host of other enwronmental projects 0 
Non public land. Frequently, the events are conducted in conjunction 
"%with schools or youth organuations. v 

'Each employee and retiree bnngs his or her unique background and talents 
to the team, making Green Team projects successful and a good fit in our 
different communities," Green Team coordinator Brad Loveless, senior manager, 
biology and conservation programs, said. "We take every opportunity to include 
children in our work. We're educating the ieaders of tomorrow on how to 
preserve our prairie, waters and wldhfe." 

In 2002, Westar EnergyO Community Partners program recorded more than 53,000 
hours of volunteer Semce by about 280 employees and retirees and their spouses. 

Volunteenng is perfonned through indimdual efforts and through organlzed projects, 
such as improvements made to the Helping Hands Humane Shelter by the Topeka 
Mkstar Energy Retirees' Club and team of employees and reurees wntenzing 
homes for national Make a Difference Day Customer Operaoons pmvides fri- 

professional service towestar Engdr 
647.000 c ~ s t o m e r s .  Anna Reid, customer 
m c e  specialtst, top. Rachelwhltc customer 
sewice representam. mkldk left. and 
Stacy Hdt supervisor. phone centw. answer 
cust~rner~' quesuons at  the Wichii Phone 
Center. Bottom Westar Energy meter 
readers, such as John Hansluw. who works 
in Topeka, get to know customers in &e 
neighborhoods they serve 

"Activlties our volunteers take on are as diverse as the volunteers themselves," 
Cynthla McCarvel, manager 11, community affairs, who oversees Community 
Partners and is liaison to the retirees' clubs, said "It is great to see how engaged 

' everyone is in the community Community Partners IS an extension of the 
creatiwty, compassion and can-do spint that employees and retirees have long I 

brought to their jobs " 

Thi ~ U & O U L  2002. Wcstai Energy cmployecs, past and pi sxnt continued to deiiianstratc 

thai o w  coinrnitinent to uui comipinity IS iiiore than bujincss - its personal 7 
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FINANCIAL MEASURES 

2002 2001 

FINANCIAL DATA (Dobars in Mdlrons) 

sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,771 

Earnings (losses) before interest and taxes: 
Utility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 247 
Monitored Semces . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (370) 

69 
(E41 

( 793) 

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total ... .. ...... .. .......... .. . 

Earning 00s) available for common stock . . . . . . . 
Assets. 

5,033 
639 Monitored Servlces . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 771 
6,443 Total . . . .. . . . . . #.. . . . . . . . . .. . 

Utility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Dan Ibnrade,conPd room openror, 
look into the bdkr that driver che 
turknes atTmmueh Energy Cemer. 

OPERATING DATA 

Electnc: 
Sales (thousands of Mwh).  

Retail utility semce . . . . . . . . . . 18,544 
Wholesale and interchange . . . 9,115 
Total .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,659 

Cusiomers(at year end) . . . . . . . . 647,000' 
1,129,000 Monitored S~MCCS cunomen (at year end) . . . .!. . 

a 

$1.717 

4,932 
1,884 

7.633 
ai7 

18,221 
7,547 

25,768 
640,000 

1.1 92,OOO 

COMMON STOCK DATA 

Earnings (loss) per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . ($11.06) 

Book value per share . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Common stock pnce range 

1 

Dnndends declared per common share . . . . . . . $1.20 

Market value per share (at year end) . . .  $990 
$1333 

$18.00 
$8.50 

Average common shares outstandig . . . . 71,731,580 

High . . . . .  . .  . . ... . . 
Low . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Divldend yield . . .. 12.1% 

($0.31 ) 
$1.20 

$25 60 
$17.20 

$25.88 
$15.62 

70,649,969 
7 .O% 

8 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM IO-K 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the fiscal year ended December 31,2002 

OR 
0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number 1-3523 

Westar Energy, Inc. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Kansas 
(State or other junsdiction of incorporation or organization) (1 R 5 Employer Identification Number) ' 

818 South Kansas Avenue, Topeka, Kansas 66612 (785) 575-6300 
(Address, including Zip code and telephone number, including area code, of regismant's pnncipal executive o k e s )  

Secunties registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act 
Common Stock, par value $5.00 per share 

(Title of each class) 
New York Stock Exchange 

(Name of each exchange on which registered) 

Secunties regstered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act 
Preferred Stock, 4-1/2% Series, $100 par value 

(Title of Class) 

Indicate by check mark whether the regmrant (1) has filed all repons required to be filed by Section 13 or 
15(d) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 dunng the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter penod 
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for 
the past 90 days. Yes No 0 
Indicate by check mark i f  duclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K IS not 
contained herein, and wl l  not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or 
information statements incorporated by reference in Part I11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this 
Form 10-K 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act) 
Yesm N o m  

The aggregate market valut of the voting common equit) hcld by non-aKiliatcs of thc registrant was approximately 
51,095 919 S35 ai Junc 28 2002 

Common Sioch. uai value $5 00 iier shalt. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Cenain matters discussed in thls Annual Report on Form 10-K are "foward- 
looking statements." The Pnvate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 has 
established that these statements qualify for safe harbors from liability Foward- 
looking statements may include words like we "believe." 'anticipa~e," 'target," 
"expect," upro forma," "estimate," "intend" or words of similar meaning Forward- 
looking statements descnbe our future plans, objectives, expectations or goals. 
Such statements address future events and conditions concerning capital 
expenditures, earnings; liquidity and capital resources; litigation; accounting 
matters, possible corporate restnrctunngs, mergers, acquisitions and dispositions; 
the sale of assets proposed in our Debt Reduction and Restructunng Plan filed 
wth the Kansas Corporation Commlsflon on February 6,2003, compliance wth 
debt and other restnctive covenants; interest and diwdends; Prote~ti~n One, Inc.5 
financlal condition and its impact on our consolidated results; possible future 
impairment charges, enwonmental matters; nuclear opeFtions; events tn fomgn 
markeu in which investments have been made; and the overall economy of our 
sennce area 
what happens in each case could vary matenally kom what we expect because of 
such things as: electnc utility deregulation or re-regulation; regulated and 
competitive markets; ongoing municipal, state and federal actimnes, economic 
conditions, changes in accounting requirements and other accounting matters; 
changmg weather, rate and other regulatory matters, including the impact of the 
November 8, 2002 and December 23, 2002 orders issued by the Kansas 
Corporation Commisnon requinng debt reduction; amendments or revisions to 
our Debt Reduction and Restructunng Plan filed wth the Kansas Corporation 
Commmion, the impact of changes and downturns in the energy industry and 
the market for trading wholesale electriaty, the sale of our interests in ONEOK, 
Inc , Protection One, Inc., and Protection One Europe; the federal grand jury' 
subpoena by the United States Attorney's Office requesting certain information; 
the Secunties and Exchange Commlssionk rewew of our consolidated finanml 
statements, the subpoena received from the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commssion seeking information on power trades wth Cleco Corporation and its 
affiliates and on other power marketing transactions; political, legdative and 
regulatory developments; regulatory, legdative and judicial actions; the impact of 
the purported shareholder and employee class action lawsuits filed against us; the 
impact of changes in interest rates generally and, specifically, changes in the 
London interbank offer rate (LIBOR) on the fair value of our swap transactions; 
changes m the 10-year Uruted States treasury rates and the corresponding impact 
on the fair value of our call option, homeland secunty considerations, ongoing 
impairment tests, coal, natural gas and oil pnces, and other circumstances 
affecting anticipated operations, sales and costs. 

These lis& are not all-inclusive because it IS not possible to predict all possible 
factors This report should be read in its entirety. No one section of the report 
deals wth all aspects of the subject matter. Any forward-looking statement speaks 
only as of the date such statement was made, and we do not undertake any 
obligation LO update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or 
circumstances after the date on which such statement was made except as 
required by applicable laws or regulations 

' 



e e 
2 0 0 2  W E S T A R  E N E R G Y  

PART I 

ITEM I. BUSINESS 

GENERAL 
Westar Energy, lnc.. a Kansas corporation incorporated in 1924, 
operates the largest electric utility in Kansas and owns interests in 
monitored secunty businesses and other investments. Unless the 
context o t h e m  indicates, all references in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K to "the company," "we: "us: "our" or similar words are to 
Westar Energy, Inc. and its consolidated subsidianes. The term 
"Westar Energy" refers to Westar Energy, Inc. alone and not together 
wth its consolidated subsdiaries We provide electnc generation, 
transmission and distnbution services to apprommately 647,000 
customers in Kansas. We also proade monttored secunty S ~ M C ~ S  to 
over 1 1 million customers in the Umted States and Europe ONEOK, 
Inc (ONEOK), in which we presently own an approximate 275% 
interest (we owned an a p p r o m t e  45% interest at December 31, 
2002; see "- Changes in ONEOK Ownership" below), provides 
natural gas transmssion and distribution services to approxmately 
1.9 million customers in Kansas, Oklahoma and Texas Our 
corporate headquarters are located at 818 South Kansas Avenue, 
Topeka, Kansas 66612 

Westar Energy and Kansas Gas and Electnc Company (KGE), a 
wholly owned subsidiary, provlde rate regulated electnc S ~ M C ~ .  KGE 
owns 47% of Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporation (WCNOC), 
the operating company for Wolf Creek Generating Station (Wolf 
Creek), our nuclear powered generating facility. 
Westar Industnes, Inc. (Westar Industnes), our wholly owned 
subsidiary. owns our interests in Protection One, Inc. (Protection 
One), Protection One Europe, ONEOK and our other non-utility 
businesses. Protection One, a publicly traded, approximately 88%- 
owned subsidiary, and Protection One Europe provide monitored 
secunty semces. Protecuon One Europe refers collectively to 
Protection One International, Inc , a wholly owned subsidlary of 
Westar Industnes, and its subsidiaries, including a French subsidwry 
in which it owns an approxlmte 99.8% !nterest 

SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS 

Overview 
A number of significant developments have impacted us and our 
business operations sinceJanuary 2002 

w Mk hired a new chef executive officer and senior management team 
D We filed a new Debt Reduction and Restructunng Plan (the Debt 

Reduction Plan) wth the Kansas Corporation Commission (KCC) 
that reflects our declsion to return to being exclusively a Kansas 
electnc utility, replacing an earlier plan that contemplated the 
separation of Westar lndustnes 

E We began implementing the Debt Reduction Plan by (a) selling a 
portion of our ONEOK preferred stock, exchangng the remaining 
preferred stock for a new class of ONEOK preferred stock and 
modifying our related agreements wth ONEOK, (11) reducing our 
l m  quartei 2003 dividcncl 37% io KO 19 per share, and ( c )  
exploring alternatives loi thc disposition o l  nur iiiici csis i n  

Protcction One and Protectloll One Europc 
~l In Ma) and ]unc 2002, we iclinanccd cippioximrucly $1 3 Ixllion or 

outnanding ClCl~l  

A Special Committee of our board of directors, the Secunties and 
Exchange Cornmuston (SEC), the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commssion (FERC) and a federal grand jury initlated investigauons 
into vanous matters. 

m We recorded impairment charges related to our monitored secunty 
businesses of apprommately 8864.9 million, net of UIX benefit and 
minority interests, of which $67 1 .O million was relaied to goodwlll 
and $193.9 million was related to customer accoum. 

rn We repurchased a portion of our 6.25% senior unsecured notes 
that have a final maturity of August 15,2018 and are putable and 
callable on August 15, 2003 (the putabldcallable notes). As a 
result, we recognized a loss related to the fair value of a call option 
associated wth the putabldcallable notes for 2002 of $23.7 million, , , 
net of a $15.7 million taxbenefit. 
We reduced our utility work force by apprommately 400 employees 
through a voluntary separation pmgmm. 
We restored service from a severe ice storm in late January 2002 
and incumd $19.3 million for restoration costs, a portion of which 
was capitalized. 
ONEOK gave us notice of temination effective December 2003 of 
a shared services agreement pursuant to which we .provide 
customer S~MCX firnctions to each other, including meter reading, 
customer billing and call center operations. We expect termination 
of thE agttement wll increase our annual costs to prowde these 
S ~ M C ~ S  by apprommately $1 1 million to $ 13 million. 

New Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management T i  
James 5. Haines, Jr., joined us in December.2002 as our chief executive 
officer and president and a member of the board of directors He 
replaced David C. Wittig, who resigned on November 22,2002 from 
all of h s  positions with us and our affiliates Mr Wittig had beennon 
administrative leave wthout pay mce November 7,2002 as a result 
of his indictment by a federal grand JUV in Topeka, Kansas, for 
actions annng from hs personal dealings I 

Mr. Haines added new members to our senior management team, 
including William €3. Moore as executive wce president and chief 
operating officer, and Mark A Ruelle as executive w e  president and 
chief finanaal officer. All of these officers were previously employed 
wth us and have a strong backgmund in the electnc utility business. 
Douglas T Lake, our,execurwe vice president and chief straiegic 
officer, resigned as a member of the board of directors and was placed 
on unpaid leave from all of his other positions w t h  us and our 
affiliates on December 6,2002. 

See Note 35 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
"Potential Labilities to Davld C Wittig and Douglas T. Lake: for 
information about our potentd liabilities to Mr. Wittig and Mr. Lake. 

KCC Orders and Debt Reduction and Restructuring Plan 
On February 6,2003, we filed the Debt Reduction Plan wth the KCC 
outlining our plans for paying down debt and restmctunng the 
company The Debt Reduction Plan caUs for the sale of our non-utility 
assets, including our interests in Proiection One, Protection One 
Europe and ONEOK As pan of the Debt Reduction Plan, the first 
quarter 2003 ditdend on our common stock was reduced 37% to 
80 19 pci share In addition, the Debt Rcduction Plan coiiiciiipiates 
{hc potential IssLi,lnce of additional WCWI- E ~ 1 - g )  cqully Ill1ccdctl IO 

luri!ici rcducc dcbi lollowing the disposiiion of ,111 inatciial iion- 
uiiliiy asseis On Fchniary 10, 2003 ilic l<CC issuccl an mdci i n  

\vhidi i i  sintccl tIi.11 ihc Dchi Rccluciioii I'lm cippc.~rz io innkc ;1 good- 
I I  
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faith effort to address the concerns expressed in the KCC" pnor 
orders and that the KCC needed additional time to review the Debt 
Reduction Plan pnor to addressing other issues The KCC also stayed 
the requirement of a December 23,2002 order that we form a utihty- 
only subsidiary for our former KPL electnc utility divlsion (KPL) no 
later than August 1,2003. 

The Debt Reduction Plan replaced a prevrous financial plan to which 
we devoted extensive efforts throughout 2002 to obtain KCC 
approval. This plan contemplated the sale of Westar lndustnes 
common stock in a rights offering. We refer you to our Annual Report 
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, ' 2001 and 
subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q for funher infonnation 
on this finand plan and related KCC orders The KCC rejected this 
plan on November 8,2002 and I S S U ~  an order that directed us to file 
a new finanaal plan, to rwerse specified intercompany transactions, 
to d u c e  debt by $100 milhon annually in each of the next two years 
from internally generated cash now, and to restructure our 
organlzational structure so that KPL would be placed in a separate 
subsdiary with the amount of debt held by the utility not exceeding 
$1.47 billion The order iurther established standstill protections 
requinng that we seek KCC approval before we enter into certain 
transactions with a non-utihty affliate Followng our filing of a 
mouon for reconsiderauon and clarification of this order, the KCC 
issued an order on December 23,2002 directing that no later than 
August 1,2003, KPL be held within a separate utility-only subsidmy 
and that the consolidated debt for all of our utility businesses not 
exceed $1.67 billion. 
The standstill provisions of the December 23, 2002 KCC order 
potentially could have had a material impact on btection One. 
These standsnll p m i o n s  are descnbed in Note 3 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Finand Statements, "Rate Matters and Regulation" 
On March 11,2003, the KCC s u e d  an order permitting us to make 
the payment due to Protection One in 2003 under a tax shanng 
agreement and to conmue malung loans to Protection One under a 
revolving credit facility, In addition, the order permitted us to 
reunbme Protecuon One approximately $4.4 million for information 
technology and avration services, subject to certain conditions. 
The KCC staff and other parties to the KCC docket considenng the 
Debt Reduction' Plan have filed comments on the Debt Reduction 
Plan. The KCC has not yet established a procedural schedule for 
consldenng the Debt Reduction Plan and the related comments. We 
are unable to predict what acuon the KCC w11 take wth respect to 
the Debt Reduction Plan. 
The KCC Orders dated November 8, 2002, December 23, 2002, 
February 10,2003 and March 11,2003 and the Debt Reduction Plan 
are exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All of such &bits 
are moprated by reference h e m  All of the documents concemng 
these matters, including the KCC Orders, can also be reviewed at the 
website of the KCC at wwwkcc.state ks w (the webslte information 
is not incorporated herein or othewse made a pan of this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K) We refer you to these documents for further 
information concerning these matters 

Changes in ONEOK Ownership 
On February 5, 2003. ONEOK repurchased fioin Mlestnr Indusmes 
9,038755 shares of Its Seiies A Convemble Prefeiied Siock. which wcrc 

convertible into 18,077,511 shares of common stock v& received 
$300 million as a result of this sale, which was prewously approved 
by the KCC. Uk anticipate umg all or a portion of the net proceeds to 
repurchase or p m d e  for the repayment of all of the putabldcallable 
notes and a portion of our 6.875% senior u&red notes. 

Westar lndustnes also exchanged its remaining sham of Series A 
Convertible Preferred Stock for 21,815,386 new shares of ONEOKS 
Series D ,Convertible Preferred Stock. ONEOK has agreed to fde a 
shelf regstration statement covering the Series D Convertible 
Preferred and common stock held by Westar lndustnes. Future sales 
wdl be subject to vanous conditions including the effecuveness of 
such regwation, the required Viwr  or expiration of a 18eday lock- 
up penod ending on July 22,2003, and future market conditions. As 
of March 14, 2003, Westar lndustnes holds an approximate 
27.5% ownership interest in ONEOK, assuming conversion of the 
Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock. 

In 2002 and pnor periods, we accounted for our ONEOK common 
stock investment under the equity method of accounting. During 
2003. we wll account for our ONEOK common stock investment as 
an available-for-sale secunty under Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No 11 5, "Accounting for Certain 
lnvestments in Debt and Equity Secunties: and nprk to market its 
fair value through other comprehensive income. Wk will begin 
accounting for our ONEOK Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock 
investment under this method if and when a public market for these 
securities develops 

Sale of Protection One and Protection One Europe 
On January 13, 2003, we announced that our board of directors 
authonzed management to explore altemanves for dqosmg of our 
investments UI Protection One and Protection One Europe. The Debt 
Reduction Plan provrdes for the sale of our interests in Protection One 
Europe with a targeted closing of mid-2003 and the sale of our 
intent in Protection One with a targeted closing by late 2003 or early 
2004. As a result, these operations were classified as dEonunued 
operations during the first quarter of 2003 pursuant to the provisions 
of SFAS No. 144, uAccountmng for the Impairment and Disposal of 
Long-Lved Assets" 
As discontinued operations, we will be required to determine the fair 
value of our investment, which will be the net amount we expect to 
realize lrorn the sale of the investment. The investment m e t  be 
reported at the lesser of our recorded bass or the estimated fair value. 
If the fair value 1s less than our recorded bass, we wdl be required to 
record an expense equal to the amount, which could be mated, by 
which our basis exceeds the estimated fair value. 
We solicited and received indications of value for Protection One 
Europe from potential buyers These indications of value are wthm a 
range we would be wlling to accept They indicated the recorded 
goodwll for Protection One Europe had no value. Accordingly, we 
recorded a $36 million impairment charge in the fourth quarter of 
2002 LO reflect the impairment of all remaining goodwll at Protection 
One Europe We are wlhng to accept offers in the indicated range due 
to our ability io use the tax loss on this sale to offset the taxes that 
would otherwise be due from oui salc of oiher investments \Vc wll 
recognize a $58 million tax bench in the Iirst quarter 01 2003 when 
Pioiection One I:umpe is classified as a disconiinucd operation 

. 
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Ongoing Investigations 

On September 17,2002, we were served with a federal grand jury 
subpoena by the United States AttomeyS Office in Topeka, Kansas, 
requesting information concerning the use of aircraft and our annual 
shareholder meetings Since that date, the United States Attorneys 
Office has sewed additional subpwnas on us and certain of our 
employees requesting further infomation concerning the use of 
aircraft; executive compensation arrangements with Mr Wittig, Mr. 
Lake and other former and present officers; the proposed rights 
oflenng of Wear  lndustries stock; and the company in general Wk 
are providing information in response to these requFts and are fully 
cooperating in the investigatton We have not beem informed that we 
are a target of the investigation We are unable to predict the ultimate 
outcome of the investigation or its impact on us. 

On November 1, 2002, the SEC notified us that it would be 

Grand Jury Subpoena 

, 

Securities and Exchange Commission Inquiry 

conducting an inquiry into the mattes involved in the restatement of 
our first and second quarter 2002 finanaal statements. Our counsel has 
communicated wth the SEC about these matters and other matters 
wthin the scope of the grand jury investigation. Wk are unable to 
predict the ultimate outcome of the inquiry or its impact on us. 

Our board of directors appointed a Special Committee of directors to 
investigate management matters and mattes that are the subject of 
the grand jury investigation and SEC inquiry The Special Committee 
retained counsel and other advisors. The Special Committee 
investigation has been completed and has not resulted in adjustments 
to our consolidated finanaal statements. 

Special Committee Investigation 

FERC Subpoena 
On December 16,2002, we received a subpoena from FERC seeking 
details on power trades wth Cleco Corporation (Cleco) and its 
affiliates, documents concerning power transactions between our 
system and our marketing operations and information on power 
trades in which we or other trading companies acted as mtemedianes 
We have prowded information to FERC in response to the subpoena 
We believe that our participation in these transactions did not wolate 
FERC rules and regulations. However, we are unable to predict the 
ultimate outcome of the investigation See Note 19 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Finanaal Statements, “Ongoing lnvestigations - 
FERC Subpoena,” for additional information 

Call Option 
In August 1998, we entered into a call option wth an investment 
bank related to the lssuance of $400 milhon of our putabldcallable 

I notes This call option is required to be settled by August 2003 
through either a cash payment or a remarketing or refinancing of the 
putabldcallable notes The ultimate value of the call option wll be 
based on the difference between the 10-year United States treasury 
rate on August 12, 2003 and 5 44% lf the 10-year United States 
treasury rate on August 12,2003 is less than 5 44%. we wll have a 
liability to thc investment bank at that time At Dccember 31,2002, 
our potential liability undci the call option was $62 2 million Based, 
011 thc 10-ycai forward tieilsury rate 0 1 1  March 14. 2003 of 3 9196, 
wc would Ix obligated 10 iiiakc ;I C.I+ paymeill (371 approximately 
$69 1 tnillioii 113 setilc ihc call opiion 11 we did no1 rcinarl\ct ot 

refinance the notes. The amount of our liability will increase or 
decrease approximately $5 million for every LO-bans point change in 
the 10-year forward treasury rate. If settled through a remarketing or 
refinancmg, any lubility related to the call option will be amortized 
as a credit to interest expense over the term of the new debt. The 
investment bank wll price the notes to yield a market premium 
adequate to allow the investment bank to retain proceeds equal to the 
fair value of the call option at settlement’ 
At the time of issuance of the notes in 1998, we were not required by 
generally accepted accounting pnnciples (GAAP) to account 
separately for the call option. However, when we began retiring these 
notes as a part of our overall debt reduction strategy, the portion of 
the call option associated with the retired notes became a free- 
standing option required to be treated as a denvauve instrument 
under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities: as amended by SFAS Nos. 137 and 138 (collec- - 

tively, SFAS No. 133). In addition, under SFAS No. 133, we are 
required to mark to market changes in the anticipated amount of the 
liability related to the portion of the $400 million in notes that have 
been retired so that our balance sheet reflects the current fair value of 
the free standing portion of the call option. For 2002, we recognized 
a loss of $10.1 million, net of $6.7 million tax benefit, dated to the 
fair value of the call option associated wth the putabldcallable notes 
at the time the notes were retired. This loss is included in our 
consolidated statements of income as part of the gain on 
extinguishment of debt line item of other income. For 2002, we also 
recorded an additional non-cash charge of 813.6 million, net of 
$9.0 million tax benefit, to mflect mark to market changes in the h w  
value of the call option m a t e d  wth the retired notes. Ths charge 
IS reflected in the other line item of other income in our consolidated 
statements of income. In total, the loss recorded related to the fair 
value of the call option for the .year ended December 31,2002 was 
$23.7 million, net of $15.7 million tax benefit. 

. 

. 

We intend to repurchase or prowde for the repayment of the 
putabldcallable notes on or pnor to June 15,2003 Any repurchase 
of these notes will require us to mark to market addinonal amounts of 
the call option. From January 1,2003 through March 14,2003, we 
purchased $35.3 million face value of our putabldcallable notes. We 
cannot predict changes in the market value of the call option and 
therefore cannot estmte amounts of future mark-to-market nonash 
charges associated with the call option or the impact on our eamings. 

lmpairment Charges 
Eflective January 1,2002, we adopted SFAS No 142, “Accounting for 
G o o d d  and Other Intangible Assets: and SFAS No. 144, “Accounmg 
for the lmpairment and Disposal of Long-Lved Assets.” As a result of 
implementing the new standards, we recorded a charge for the first 
quarter of 2002 of apprommately $749.3 million (net of tax benefit 
and minority interests), of which $555.4 million was related to 
goodwll and $193.9 million was related to customer accounts. 
In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2002 we recorded a $79.7 million 
impairment charge, net of tax benefit and minonty interests, to reflect 
the additional impairment of all remaining goodwll of Protection 
One’s North Ameiica segment We also recorded a $36 million 
iinpatniient charge to d k t  the impaimen[ of all remaining goodwill 
ai Pi otectioii One Europc Thew accounting standards. the relatcd 
chaiges and mhcr rclarcd iiifoiination riic dtxussed iii Note 23 of the 
No1c.s 10 Consolidatcd Financial S~atciiiciiu. liiipairiiient Chargcs 
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Work Force Reductions 
Dunng 2002, we reduced our utility work force by approximately 
400 employees through a voluntary separation program We 
recorded a net charge of approximately $2 1.7 million in 2002 related 
to this program We have replaced and may continue to replace some 
of these employees For additional information, see Note 29 of the 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, W r k  Force Reductions." 

Ice Storm 
In late January 2002, a severe ice storm swept through our utility 
semce area causing extensive damage and loss of power to numemus 
customers Through December 31,2002, we incumd $19.3 million 
for restoration COS, a portion of which was capitalized We have 
deferred and recorded as a regulatory asset on our December 31, 
2002 consolidated balance sheet restoration costs of approximately 
$1 5.0 million W have received an accounting authonty order from 
the KCC that allows us to accumulate and defer for potential futurr 
recovery all operating and carrying costs related to stom restoration. 

ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATIONS 

General 

We supply electric energy at nitail to approximately 647,000 
customers in Kansas including the communities of Wichita, Topeka, 
Lawrence, Manhattan,' Salina and Hutchinson. We classify our 
customers as residential. commercial and industrial as defined in our 
tanffs We also supply electric energy at wholesale to the electric 
dstnbution systems of 62 Kansas cities and four rural electnc 
cooperatives We have contracts for the sale, purchase or exchange of 
wholesale electncity wth other utilities. In addition, we have power 
marketing operations that purchase and sell electricity in areas 
outside our histoncal s e ~ c e  terntory 
Our electnc sales for the three years ended December 31 were as 
follows 

2002 2m zoo0 

Residential . 
Commemal . 
lndustnal 

Total 
Network Integration (a) 
Other (b) 

power MarketmqWholesale 
Total retail 

and Interchange 
Total 

On Thousands] 
I 442,106 I 419,492 I 452,674 
385,375 380,277 367,367 
242,847 244,392 252,243 

1,070,328 1,044,161 1,072,284 
60,132 - - 
46.693 50.669 49.629 

1.1 77.1 53 1,094,830 1,121,913 

245,746 212,347 237.609 
11.422.899 ~ 11.307.177 S 1.359.522 

"''Networh integration: Rejlects a nrw network transmlsslon tanJ that tequires us 
to pay to the Southwesr Pcnvcr Pool (SPP) all expenses associated w t h  transporting 
powerjtom ourgcncrating slations The SPP Ihcn pays usfor transmitting power to 
the point of delivery into our tcml dstnbution system These rrceiptsfrom the SPP 
ate rrflectd in  tcwtiiucs under the nefivurk integralion clamficution For jut [her 
information sec .- Network Integration Transmission Service ,, below 

'"Otkcr Includec public 5ttec t utiif Iiiph\wy fighlinp and miscellaricoir\ dcttric 
t cvctluc\ 

The following tables show changes in electnc sales volumes, as 
measured by thousands of megawatt hours (MWh) of electncity we 
generate, for the three years ended December 31. No sales volumes 
are shown for network integration or power marketing because these 
actiwties are not related to electnciiy we generate 

2002 2001 %change 
CnKnrSandsOf M w  

Reudentd 6,170 5,755 72 
Commeraal . .. . . 6.817 6,742 1 1  
Industrial . 5,451 5.61 7 (3 0) 
other . . .  106 107 (0 9) 

Totalretail . . . 18,544 18.22 1 18 
Wholesale and Interchange 9,115 7,547 20 8 

T W I  . . . . 27,659 25,768 73 

Resldentd . . . 
Commemal . . .. 
lndustrlal ... ... 
other.. .. . 

Totalretal . 
WhdesaleandlnteKhange 

Totai. . . . .. 

. ... . 
. . . .  

. .  
. .  

fnwMa&ofm) 
5.755 6,222 (7 5) 
6,742 6,485 40 
5,617 5,820 (3 5) 

1 07 108 (0 9) 
18,221 18,635 (2 2) 
7,547 6,892 95 
25,768 25.527 09 

Generation Capacity 
Wre have 5,929 megawatts (MW) of generating capacity See "Item 2.- 
Properties" for additional information on our generating units. The 
capaaty by fuel type 1s summanzed below. 

Fuel 7Lpe 7" lotalcapwty -o! 
cod..  . 3,331 56 2 

548 92 
33 2 

Nudear . 

D d f w l .  83 1.4 
Wlnd 1 

Naturalgasoroil . . . . . 1,966 

- 
~~~ ~ 

Total 5.929 loo 0 

Our aggregate 2002 peak system net load of 4,469 MW occurred on 
July 26, 2002. Our net generating capacity combined wth  firm 
capacity purchases and sales provided a capacity margtn of 
approximately 24% above system peak xsponsibility at the urne of 
the peak Our all-time peak system net load of 4,528 MW occurred 
on September 11, 2000. We do not anticipate needing additional 
generating capacity through 2005 

W have a p e d  to provide generating capacity to other utilities for 
certam periods as set forth below 

u b i i  Capacity(MW) Periodtndii 
Oklahoma Munctpal Power Authority 60 December 2013 
MidwestEnergy,Inc. . 50 May2008 
Midwest Energy, Inc 125 May 2010 
Emplre Datnc( ElechK Company 162 May 2010 

May 2027 McPherson Board of Public UtilitiesJMcPherson) 

@'We ptovde bnsc capacity to McPhctson McPhrison ptovidrt ptaking capacity io 
ut Dtrnng 2002, \vi ptovided apprixiniafely 75 M W  IO miif rmivcd apptontnatcly 
181 MWJtom McPlienon Tlil niiioittil or hci\t rupurily ptotidd tu MrPlirtson I\ 
hid on ujurrd pttccn[agc of hli Phi t \ant citinunl p-d? \ysit*tii loctrl 

(a) 
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Fossil Fuel Generation 

Based on the quantity of heat produced dunng the generation of 
electncity (MMBtu), the 2002 actual fuel mix was 81% coal, 14% 
nuclear and 5% gas. oil or diesel fuel. We expect a similar fuel mix in 
2003 Our fuel mlx fluctuates wth the operation of the nuclear- 
powered Wolf Creek as discussed below under II- Nuclear 
Generation,” fuel costs, plant availability, customer demand and the 
cost and availability of wholesale market power. 

Jeffrey Energy Center: The three coal-fired units at Jeffrey Energy 
Center (JEC) have an aggregate capacity of 1,855 MW (our 84% 
share). We have a long-term coal supply contract with Amax Coal 
West, Inc., a subsidiary of RAG Amenca Coal Company, to supply 
coal to JEC from mines located in the Powder River Basin in 
Wyoming. The contract expires December 31,2020. The contract 
contains a schedule of minimum annual MMBtu delivery quantities 
The contract also contains a mechanism for repncing quantities 
received above the minimum annual delivery quantity The pnce for 
these additional quantities is recalculated every five years, wth 2003 
being the first year affected, to prowde a fwed pnce at current market 
pnces. Current market prices are higher than those that have been in 
effect since inception of the contract, which will increase the cost of 
coal we receive dunng 2003 over the cost of coal received in 2002 
Based on our 2003 budget of JEC coal we plan to bum dunng 2003, 
we anticipate our delivered cost of coal wll increase approxmnately 
$4.0 million. 
The coal supplied dunng 2002 was surface mined and had an average 
Btu content of approxlmately 8,423 Btu per pound and an average 
sulfur content of 0.46 IWMBtu (see u- Envlmnmental Matters”) 
The average delivered cost of coal burned at JEC dunng 2002 was 
approxlmately $1 12 per MMBtu, or $18.87 per ton 
Coal 1s transported fm Wyommgunder a long-tern rail transpottauon 
contract wth  the Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) and Union 
Pacific railroads, wth a term continuing through December 31,2013 

LaCygne Generating Station: The two coal-fired units at LaCygne 
Generating Station (LaCygne) have an aggregate generating capaclty 
of 681 M W  (KGE5 50% share). LaCygne 1 uses a blended fuel mix 
containing approxlmately 85% Powder kver Basin coal and 15% 
Kansas/Missoun coal. LaCygne 2 uses Powder kver Bastn coal. The 
operator of LaCygne, Kansas City Power and hght Company (KCPU, 
adminlsters the coal and coal transportation contracts A portion of 
the LaCygne 1 and LaCygne 2 Powder River Basin coal IS supplied 
through fwed pnce contracts through 2005 and 1s transported under 
KCPL5 Omnibus Rail Tmnsportation Agreement wth the BNSF and 
Kansas City Southern Railroad through December 31,2010. Dunng 
2003, any coal not supplied under the terms of these contractswll be 
obtained through spot market purchases. The LaCygne 1 Kansas/ 
Missoun coal is purchased from time to time from local Kansas and 
Mlssoun producers 
The Powder Rver Basin coal supplied dunng 2002 had an average 
Btu content of approximdy 8,584 Btu per pound and an average 
sulfur content of 0 i s  IbdMMBtu During 2002, the average 
deliwrcd cost 01 all c0.11 burned ai LaCygnc I was approximaiely 
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Lawrence and Tecumseh Energy Centers: The coal-fired units 
located at the Lawrence and Tecumseh Energy Centers have an 
aggregate generating capacity of 795 MW In 2002, we obtained coal 
from Wyoming, which had an average Btu content of approximately 
8,777 Btu per pound and an average sulfur content of 0.41 Ibs/ 
MMBtu. Dunng 2002, the average delivered cost of all coal burned in 
the hvrence units was approximately 81.09 per MMBtu, or $19.1 1 
per ton. The average deliwred cost of all coal burned in the Tecumseh 
units was approxlmately 8 1.10 per MMBtu, or $19.28 per ton. 

The coal is transported from Wyommg by the BNSF railroad under a 
contract ending in December 2004. Mk have v o m i n g  coal under 
contract to support the anticipated operauon of these units through 
the end of 2004. We may also purchase coal on the spot market. 
General: We have entered mto all of our coal contracts in the ordinary 
course of business and do not believe we are substantlally dependent 
upon these contracts. We believe there are other suppliers with 
plennful sources of coal available at spot market pnces to replace, if 
necessary, fuel supplied pursuant to these contracts and that we 
would be able to make transportation arrangements for such coal. In 
the event that we were required to replace our coal agreements, we 
would not anticipate a substantial dsruption of our business, 
although the cost of purchasing coal could increase. Since the 
majonty of our coal needs are met through long-term contracts as 
dscus!xd above, we do not antiapate bemg materially impacted by 
price changes in the coal spot market. 
We have entered into all of our coal transportation contracts in the 
ordinary course of business. Several rail camers are capable of semng 
the coal mmes from where our coal onptes,  but several of our 
generating stations can be served by only one rail carner. In the event 
the rad carner to one of our generating stations fails to pmwde relnble 
s e ~ c e ,  we could expenence a short-term dwuption of our business. 
However, due to the obligation of the rail camen to pmvlde semce 
under the Interstate Commerce Act, we do not anticipate any 
substantial long-term disruption of our business, although the cost of 
transporting coal could increase. 

We use natural gas as a pnmary fuel in our Gordon Evans, Murray 
Gill, Neosho, Abilene and Hutchinson Energy Centers, in the gas 
turbine units at our Tecumseh generating station and in the 
combined cycle units at the State Line facility Natural gas is also used 
as a supplemental fuel in the coal-fired units at the Lamnce and 
Tecumseh generating stations. Natural gas for all facilities is 
purchased in the short-term spot market, which supplies the system 
w t h  a flexlble natural gas supply as necessary to meet operational 
needs Dunng 2002, we purchased 8,885,567 MMBtu of natural gas 
on t h e q o t  market for a total cost of $34 2 million Natural gas 
accounted for approxlmately 3% of our total fuel burned dunng 2002 

Dunng the third quarter of 2001, we entered into hedging 
relationships to manage commodity pnce nsk associated wth future 
natural gas purchases in order to protect us and our customers from 
adverse pnce fluctuations in the natural gas market. The hedged 
penod ends in July 2004 Thereafter, if gas pnces are-higher than the 
amount we aie aldc LO recover through our retail mes, we may be 
csposed to thc incieascsd gas cos1 and our cxposuir could be inatend 
W e  may bc ~ A c  io rcducc oui cxposure clue io OLII ability to usc o h  
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could be denied in whole or in pan For additional information on 
our exposure to commodity pnce nsks, see "ltem 7A Quantitative 
and Qualitative Disc1osures About Market Rsk" 

Natural gas transportation for Abilene and Hutchinson Energy 
Centers IS maintained wth Kansas Gas Senwe Company, a divlslon 
of ONEOK, under a contract that expires April 30,2004, which we 
anticlpate renewmg in the future We meet a portion of our natural 
gas transportation requirements for Gordon Evans, Murray Gill, 
Neosho, Lawrence and Tecumseh Energy Centers through firm 
natural gas transportation capacity agreements wth Southern Star 
Central Pipeline. All of the natural gas transportation rrquirements 
for the State Line facility are met through a firm natural gas 
iransporcation agreement with Southern Star Central Pipeline The 
firm transportation agreements that serve Gordon Evans, Murray 
Gill, Lawrence and Tecumseh Energy Centers extend through Apnl 1, 

,2010 The agreement for the Neosho and State h e  faalities extends 
through June 1,2016. f 

Most of our natural gas generating facilities have the capability to 
swtch to oil once the facilities have been started wth gas We use oil 
as an alternate fuel when economical or when interruptions to natural 
gas supply make it necessary. Over the past few years, we have been 
able to sell more power at wholesale dunng the wlnter months when 
oil is typically more economical than natural gas Oil accounted for 
approximately 2% of our total fuel burned dunng 2002. 
Oil IS also used as a start-up fuel at some of our generating stations 
and as a pnmary fuel in the Hutchinson No 4 combustion turbine 
and m the diesel generators. 011 is obtained by spot market purchases 
and year-long contracts. We maintain quantities in inventory to meet 
fuel swltching needs to facilitate economic dlspatch of power, Cor 
emergency requirements and to protect against reduced availability of 
natural gas for limited periods or when the pnmary fuel becomes 
uneconomical to bum. 

Our contracts to supply fuel for pur coal-fired and natural gas-fired 
generating units, wth the exception of JEC, do not p m d e  full fuel 
requirements at the vanous stations. Supplemental fuel is procured 
on the spot market to promde operational flexlbility and to take 
advantage of economic opportunities when the pnce is favorable Vk 
use finanqal instruments to hedge a portion of our anticipated fossil 
fuel needs in an attempt to offset the volatility of the spot market. Due 
to the volatility of these markets, we are unable to determine what the 
value of these financial instruments wd1 be when the agreements 
are actually settled. See "ltem 7A Quantitative and Qualitative 
Dsclosures About Market Rsk" for further information 
The table below provides information relating to the weighted 
average cost of fuel that we have used, which includes the commodity 
cost, transportation cost to our hallties and any other associated costs 

Per Million Btu 

Oil 

Other Fuel Matters 

, 

2002 2001 2000 

Nudear $ 0 4 0  s 044 $ 044  
Coal 1 05 1 08 1 05 
Gas 3 84 3 79 3 44 
011 2 58 3 65 3 23 

Per MWh Generation 5 1 1  86 5 1 2  42 $12 37 

Purchased Power I 

At times, we purchase power to meet the energy needs of our 
wholesale customers and to meet the requirements of our retail native 
load customers (end-use customers wthin our service temtory). 
Factors that could cause us to purchase power for retail native load 
customers include generating plant outages, extreme weather 
conditions, growth, and other facton m a t e d  with supplying full 
requirements electriclty If we were unable LO generate an adequate 
supply of electncity for our native load customers, we would 
purchase power in the wholesale market to the extent it is available or 
economically feasible to do so and/or implement curtailment or 
intemption procedures as allowed for in our tank  and terms and 
conditions of service. 

Nuclear Generation 

The owners of Wolf Creek have on hand or under contract 100% of 
, their u m u m  and uranium conversion needs for 2003 and'76% of 
the uranium and uranium convemon required for olieration of Wolf 
Creek through March 2008. The balance IS expected to be obtained 
through spot market and contract purchases. 
The owners have under contract 100% of Wolf Creekb uranium 
ennchment needs for 2003'and 8096 of the uranium enrichment 
required to operate Wolf Creek through March 2008. The balance of 
Mlf Creekk enrichment needs IS expected to be obtained through 
spot market and contract purchases 
All uranium, uranium conversion and uranium ennchment 
arrangements have been entered into in the ordinary course of 
business, and Wolf Creek is not substantially dependent upon these 
agreements Despite contraction and consolidation in the supply 
sector for these commodities and semces, Wolf Creeks management 
believes there are other supplies available to replace, if necessary, 
these contracts In the event these contracts were required to be 
replaced, Wolf Creekk management does not anticipate a substantial 
disruption of Wolf Creeks operations 
Nuclear fuel 1s amortwd to cost of sales based on the quantity of heat 
produced for the generation of electnaty 

Under the Nuclear Wste Policy Act of 1982, the Department of 
Energy (DOE) is responsible for the pennanent d a p k l  of spent 
nuclear fuel Wolf Creek pays the DOE a quarterly fee of one-tenth of 
a cent for each kdowatt-hour of net nuclear generation produced for 
the future dsposal of spent nuclear fuel. These dsposal costs are 
charged to cost of sales 
A permanent disposal site will not be available for the nuclear 
industry until 2010 or later. Under current DO€ policy, once a 
permanent me is available: the DOE wll1 accept spent nuclear fuel 
on a pnority basis. The ownen of the oldest spent fuel wdl be g~ven 
the highest pnority As a result, disposal S ~ M C ~ S  for Wlf  Creek wll 
not be available pnor to 2016 Wolf Creek has on-site temporary 
stoiage for spent nuclear fuel In early 2000, Wolf Creek coinpleted 
replacement of spent fuel storage racks to increase ILS on-site storage 
capaa:y for all syeni he1 expected 10 be gcncratcd by \%lI Creek 
ihiough the end of its licensed life in 2025 

Fuel Supply 

Radioactive Waste Disposal 
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On February 14, 2002: the Secretary of Energy submitted to the 
President a recommendation for approval of' the Yucca Mountain site 
in Nevada for the development of a nuclear waste repository for the 
drsposal of spent nuclear fue1,and high level nuclear waste from the 
nation's defense actimties In July 2002, the President signed 
a resolution approwng the Yucca Mountain site after receiving the 
approval of this me from the U.S. Senate and House of Representawes 
This action allows the DOE to apply to the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission (NRC) to license the project. The DOE expects that th\s 
facility will open in 2010. However, the opening of the Yucca 
Mountain site could be delayed due to litigation and other issues 
related to the site as a permanent repository for spent nuclear fuel. 

The Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Amendments Act of 1985 
mandated that the vanous states, mdiwdually or through interstate 
compacts, develop alternative low-level radioactive waste disposal 
facilities. The states of Kansas, Nebraska, Arkansas, Louisiana and 
Oklahoma formed the Central Interstate Low-Level Radioactive 
Waste Compact (Compact) and selected a site in Nebraska to locate a 
dlsposal facility. WCNOC and the owners of the other five nuclear 
units in the Compact have prowded most of the preconstruction 
hnancing for this project. Our net investment in the Compact is 
approximately $7 4 million. This amount constitutes about 7.6% of 
all preconstruction financing prowded to the Compact 
On December 18, 1998, the Nebraska agencies responsible for 
considenng the developer's license application denied the 
application The license applicant has sought a hearing on the license 
denial, but a U.S. h t n c t  Court has indefinitely delayed proceedings 
related to the heanng. In December 1998, most of the utilities that 
had provided the project's preconstruction financing (including 
WCNOC) filed a federal court lawsuit contending Nebraska offic~ls 
acted in bad faith while handling the license application Shortly 
thereafter, the Central Interstate Low-Level Radioactive Waste 
Commission (Commssion), which is responsible for causing a new 
disposal facility to be developed within the Compact regon, and 
US Ecology, the license applicant, filed similar claims against 
Nebraska. The U S Distnct Court has since dismissed the utilities' 
and US Ecologyk claims against Nebraska and its officials, but on 

, September 30,2002, the court entered a 8 15 1.4 million judgment, 
about one-thd of whch constitutes prejudgment interest, in favor 
of the Commission and against Nebraska, finding that Nebraska had 
acted in bad faith in handling the license application In late 2002, 
Nebraska appealed that declsion to the 8th Circuit U S Court of 
Appeals, where the case is pending 

In May 1999, the Neb&ka Leplature passed a bill wthdrawng 
Nebraska from the Compact. In August 1999, the Nebraska Governor 
gave olTicial notice of the wthdrawal to the other member states. 
Withdrawal wll not be effective for five years and w11 not, of' itself, 
nullify the site license proceeding 
Wolf Creek disposes of all classes of its low-level radioactive waste at 
existing thrd-party rrpositones Should disposal capability become 
unavailable, Wolf Creek is able to store its low-level radioactive waste 
in an on-site facility Wolf Creek believes that a iemporaiy loss of low- 
level radioaciive wasic disposal capJhdq will not affect con!iiiued 
operairon of the power p1.iiit 

Outages 
Wolf Creek has an 18-month refuelmg and maintenance schedule 
that permits operations dunng every third calendar year without 
interruption for a refueling outage. Wolf Creek was shut down for 36 
days for its 12th scheduled refueling and mamtenance outage, which 
began on March 23,2002 and ended on April 27,2002. During the 
outage, electnc demand was met primarily by our fossil-fueled 
generating units and by purchased power. Wolf Creek operated the 
entire year of 2001 without any refueling outages. Wolf Creek is 
scheduled to be taken off-line in October 2003 for irs 13th refuelrng 
and mamtenance outage. 
An extended shutdown of Wolf Creek could have a substantial 
adverse effect on our business, r inc ia l  condition and m l t s  of 
operations because of higher replacement power and other costs. 
Although not expected, the NRC could impose an unscheduled plant 
shutdown due to secunty or other concerns. 

Security 
We have increased the level of security measures at our generation 
facility sites and various ofices, due in part to nationwde concerns 
about homeland secunty These measures include, but are not hmted 
to, increased secunty personnel; use of armed guard services, 
patrolling of company property, restricting access to our properties 
and implementing emergency training and response procedures. 
Wolf Creek's management has increased both voluntary and federally 
mandated security measurn at Wolf Creek. The NRC has required 
nuclear power plants to be operated at the highest level of security 
since September 11 , 2001. The measures implemented at Wolf 
Creek include, but are not limited to, increased guard semce, no 
unscheduled public visits and emergency training and response 
procedures. 
The NRC has issued orders to all nuclear plants that make our current 
voluntary secunty measures mandatory The orders also impose 
new secunty requirements at U.S. nuclear power plants. VWf Cmzk 
hak complied wth and intends to continue to comply with these 
requirements. 

Competition and Deregulation * 

Electnc utilities have historically operated in a rate-regulated 
enwronment FERC, the Federal regulatory agency having 
jurisdiction over our wholesale rates and transmisson semices. and 
other Utilihes have initiated steps that are expected to result in a more 
competitive enwronment for utility S ~ M C ~ S  in the wholesale market. 
The Kansas Legislature and the KCC took no actlon on deregulauon in 
2002 or 2001 and no action IS expected to be taken in the near future 

Increased competition for retail electncity sales may in the future 
reduce our earnings, which could impact our ability to pay dimdads 
and could have a m a t e d  adverse impact on our operations and our 
financial condition. Our rates range from approximately 19% to 
25% below the national average for retail customers based on a 
companson to a U S. average obtained from Edlson Electnc h h t u t e  
for Winter 2002 Because -of these rates, we espect to retain a 
substantral pari of our current volume of sales in a compciiiivc 
cnvmnmciii Howevei , a inaterid non-cash chaige 10 earnings i m \  
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Lx required should we discontinuc accounting under SFAS No 71, 
-Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." See. 
Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, "Summary 
of Significant Accounting Policies for additional information 
The 1992 Energy,PohcyAct began deregulating the electnaty market 
for generation. The Energy Policy Act permitted FERC to order 
electnc utilities to allow, third patties to use their transmission 
systems to sell electnc power to wholesale customers In 1992, we 
agreed to open access of our transmission system for wholesale 
transactions. FERC also requires us to provide transmission selvlces 
to others under t e r n  comparable to those we pmnde ourselves In 
December 1999, FERC lssued an order (FERC Order No. 2000) 
encouraging formation of regional transmission organizations 
(RfOs). RTOs are designed to control the wholesale tmnsmlssion 
sernces of the utilities in their regom, thereby facilitating open and 
more cornpetme markets in bulk power. 

' We and all other electnc utilities wth intrastate transmwion faalities 
operate under FERC regulated open access tanffs that offer all 
wholesale buyers and sellers of electricity the same transmission 
s e ~ c e s ,  at the same rates, that the utilities prmde themselves We 
are a member of the SPP, a regonal division of the North Amencan 
Electnc Reliability Council. After FERC rejected several attempts by 
the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) to gain K O  status, the SPP and the 
Midwest independent System Operator (MISO) agreed in October 
2001 to consolidate and form an RTO. On May 30, 2002, FERC 
approved the planned merger. On November 4,2002, MISO and SPP 
filed a r e d  consolidated open-access transmission tanff as required 
by the merger agreement. On March 19, 2003, the SPPk board of 
directors voted to temunate the pmposed merger w~th MISO, although 
both organizations have not precluded a future consolidation We 
anticipate that FERC Order No 2000 and our continued partiapation 
in the SPP wll not have a matenal effect on our operations. 

Network Integration Transmission Service 
Effective January 1, 2002, we began taking Network Integration 
Transmission Semce under the SPP's Open Access Transmission 
Tanfl. Tha pmndes a cost-effective way for us to partinpate m a 
broader market of generation resources wth  the posbihty of lower 
transmission costs. This t a d  prowdes for a zonal rate structure, 
whereby transmmion customers pay a pro rata share, in the form of a 
reservation charge, for the use of the facilities for each transmmon 
owner that serves them. As a result, the SPP has operational control 
over our t rammion system, although we still own our transmssion 
assets and maintain responsibility for dispatching, maintenance and 
storm restoration 
Currently, all revenues collected wthin a zone are allocated back to 
the transmisson owner serving the zone Since we are a transmission 
prowder for our zone and are currently the only transmsion customer 
taking service from that zone, we are currently being assessed 100% 
of the zonal costs and receiwng all of the costs back as revenue, less 
semcing fees In 2002, these network integration transmission costs 
were approximately $65 9 million. and the associated revenues were 

apprthirnately 860 1 million, for a net expense of approximately 
$5.8 million The revenues received are reflected in electnc operating 
revenues, and the related charges are expensed. 

Regulation and Rates 
As a Kansas electnc utility, we are sublect to the junsdiction of the 
KCC, which has general regulatory authonty over our rates, 
extensions and abandonments of servlce and facilities, valuation of 
property, the classification of accounts, the issuance of some secunties 
and vanom other matters. We are also subject to the jurisdiction of 
FERC, which has authority over wholesale sales of electriaty, the 
transmwmn of electnc power and the issuance of some securities. 
We are subject to the junsdiction of the NRC for nuclear plant 
operations and safety. We are exempt as a public utility holding 
company pursuant to the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 
1935 from all provisions of that Act, except Section 9(a)(2), which 
relates to the acqusition of the secunties of other utilities. 

Fuel and purchased power costs are recovered in retail rates at a fixed 
level. Therefore,'to recover fuel and purchased power costs in excess 
of the costs included in retail rates, we would have to make a rate 
filing with the KCC, which could be denied In whole or in part. Any 
increase in fuel and purchased power costs over the costs recovered 
through rates would reduce our eammgs if not o k t  by sales or other 
cost reductions. For additional information regarding commodity 
pnce nsks, see "Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures 
About Market Risk" 
On November 27,2000, Westar Energy and KGE filed applicauons 
with the KCC for an mcrease in retail rates. On July 25, 2001, the 
KCC ordered an annul reducuon in our combined electric rates of 
$22.7 million, conssting of a $41 2 million reduction in KGES rates 
and an $18.5 million increase in W t a r  Energy's rates. 
On August 9,2001, Westar Energy and KGE filed petitions with the 
KCC requesting reconsideration of the July 25, 2001 order. The 
petitions specifically asked for reconsideration of changes in 
depreciation, reductions in rate base related to deferred income taxes 
associated wtth the KGE acqulsition premium and a deferred gam on 
the sale and leaseback of I K y p e  2, wholesale revenue imputation 
and several other wes On September 5,2001, the KCC lssued an 
order in response to our motions for reconsideration that mcreased 
Westar Energyk rates by an additional $70 million The $41.2 million 
rate reduction in KGES rates remained unchanged. On November 9, 
2001 ,'we filed an appeal of the KCC demons with the Kansas Court 
of Appeals in an action captioned "Western Resources, Inc and 
Kansas Gas and Electnc Company vs. The State Corporation 
Commission of the State of Kansas" On March 8,2002, the Court of 
Appeals upheld the KCC orders On April 8,2002, we filed a petition 
for rewew of the decision of the Court of Appeals wth the Kansas 
Supreme Court. Our petition for rewew was derued on June 12,2002. 

Additional information wth respect to rate matten and regulation is 
set forth in Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Finanaal Statements, 
"Rare Matters and Regulation" 
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Environmental Matters 

We currently hold all federal and state envlronmental approvals 
required for the operation of all of our generating units We believe 
we are currently in substantial compliance with all air quality 
regulations (including those pertaming to particulate matter, sulfur 
dioxlde (W) and nitrogen oxide (NOx)) promulpted by the State of 
Kansas and the Enwronmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
The JEC and LaCygne 2 units have met: (1) the federal SO1 standards 
through the use of low-sulfur coak (2) the federal particulate matter 
standards through the use of electrostatic precipitators; and (3) the 
federal NOx standards through boiler design and operating 
procedures. The JEC units are also equipped wlth flue gas scrubbers 
pmidmg additional SOz and PartkUhte matter emission reduction 
capability when needed to meet permit limits. 
The Kansas Department or Health and Enwronment regulatiok 
applicable to our other generating facilities prohibit the emisson of 
more than 3.0 pounds of W per MMBtu of heat input. Wk meet 
these standards through the use of low-sulfur coal and by all coal- 
burning facilities being equipped with flue gas scrubbers and/or 
electrostatic precipitators. 

Because of the stmng demand for generation in 2002, we consumed 
more SV allowances than were allocated to us by the EPA. We made 
up the shorthll by utilizing allowances we had previously procured in 
the open market. In anticipation of another strong year in generation, 
we will be actively pursuing the purchase of additional SOz allowances 
for 2003, which could approximate $3 0 rmllion in additional costs. 

We must complx and are currently in compliance, wth the 
provrslons of The Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 that require a 
two-phase reduction in some emissions. We have installed 
continuous monitonng and nporting equipment to meet the acid 
rain requirements. We have not had to make any matenal capital 
expenditures to meet Phase 11 SOz and NOx requirements. 
All of our generating hcihties are m substantial compliance wth [he 
Best Practicable T&ology and Best Avahble Technology regulations 
s u e d  by the EPA pursuant to the Clean Wter Act of 1977. 

The EPA IS conducting an enforcement initiative at a number of coal- 
fired power plants in an effort to deterrmne whether modifications at 
those facilities were subject to New Source Rewew requirements or 
New Source Performance Standards under the Clean I\lr Act. The 
EPA has requested information from us under Section 114(a) of the 
Clean Air Act (Section 114). A Section 114 information request 
requires us to prowde responses to specific EPA questions regarding 
certain projects and maintenance activlties that the EPA believes may 
have vlolated &e New Source Performance Standard and New Soum 
Remew requirements of the Clean Air Act. The EPA contends that 
power plants are required to update emission controls at the time of 
major maintenance or capital activity We believe that maintenance 
and capital activlties performed at our power plants are generally 
mutinc in nature and arc typical for the industry We are complymg 
with this idl~rmation request. but cannot predict the outcome of this 

General 

EPA New Source Review 

iiwestigation ai this tinit' Should ihc EPA determiiw KI tal- \c * JCI 1011,  

the resulting additional costs io comply could be matenal. W would 
expect to seek recovery through rates of any settlement amounts. 

The EPA has initiated civil enforcement actions against other 
unaffiliated utilities as part of its initiative Settlement agreements 
entered into in connection wth some of these actions have provided 
for expenditures to be made over extended time periods. 
Additional information with respect io Enwronmental Matters IS 

discussed in Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements, 'Commitments and, Contingencies," and such infor- 
mation is incorporated herein by reference. 

MONITORED SERVICES OPERATIONS 

General 
W pmwde propeny monitoring services through Protection One 
and htection One Europe to approximately 1.1 million customers 
in the United States and approximately r55,OOO customers in 
contmental Europe. Revenues are generated pnmarily from recumng 
monthly paymenrs for morutonng andmaintainmg the alarm systems 
that are installed in customers' homes and businesses. Servlces are 
pmwded to residential (both sngle-family and multifamily residences), 
commercial and wholesale customers. Currently, the United states 
customers are pnmarily in the residenual market and the European 
customers are primarily in the commeml market. 

Propsed Dispositions 
The Debt Reduction Plan contemplates the sale of our interests u1 
htecuon One Europe wth a targeted closing of mid-2003 and the 
sale of our interest in protection One with a targeted closing by late 
2003 or early 2009. Consistent with the Debt Reduction Plan, our 
board of &rectors has authorized management to explore alternatives 
for dsposing of OUT investments in Protection One and Protection 
One Europe and we have retained financial advisors to assist with the 
possible sales. A speaal committee composed of independent 
directors of Protection One5 board of directon has been formed and 
the committee has also retained a financlal adwsor. As a result of these 
decmons, these operations wem classified as dlsconunued operations 
during the first quarter of 2003 under the provisions of SFAS No 144 

As dscontinued operations. we will be required to determine the far 
value of our investment, which will be the net amount we expect to 
realue from the sale of the investment. The investment must be 
reported at the lesser of our recorded bass or the estimated fair value 
If the fair value is less than our recorded bass we wll be required to 
record an expense equal to the amount, which could be matenal, by 
which our bass excee& the estimaied fair value. 
We solicited and received indications of value for Protection One 
Europe from potential buyers These indications of value are within a 
range we would be willing to accept. They indicated the recorded 
goodwll for Protection One Europe had no value Accordingly, we 
recorded a $36 million impmnent charge in the fourth quarter of 
ZOO2 to reflect the impairment of all remaining goodwli at protection 
One Europe We are willing to accept offers in the indicated range due 
to our ability to use the tax' lass on this sale to oflsct [he taxes thai 
would otherwise lx Juc oui salc of mhci mcsit1mis Wc will 
recognix rl $58 ini1\im I...\ bcllcrl~ i n  i ~ i c  ~ i i s t  qua ter of 2003 wilcn 
Fimcaion Onc 1.uiope 15 cl.isdicr1 as J discmiinued opci-aiioii 



2 0 0 2  W L S T A R  E N E R G Y  

Operations 
Monitored services operations consist principally of alarm 
monitoring, customer service functions and branch operations 
Secunty alarm systems include many difTerent types of devices 
installed at customers' premises designed to detect or react to vanous 
occurrences or conditions, such as intrusion or the presence of fire or 
smoke. Existing alarm monitoring customer contracts generally have 
initial terms rangmg from two to 10 years in duration and provide for 
automatic renewals for a fuced period (typically one year) unless one 
of the parties elects to cancel the contract at the end of its tern. Smce 
2002, most new single family residential customers have been 
entering into contracts with initd terms of three years, and, for most 
new commercial customers, the iniual term is five years. 
htecuon One prowdes monitonng servlces from four monitonng 
facilities in the United States. Protection One Europe prowdes 
monitoring services from facilities in Pans and Vitrolles, France. See 
"Item 2 Properties" for further infomution. 
In 2001 and 2002, Protection One completed the installation of a 
common technology platform referred to as MAS", or Monitored 
Automation Systems, that combines the customer sewice, 
momtoring, billing and collection functions into a mgle system The 
conversion to MASQ has enabled Protection One to consolidate 
monitoring faahties, resulting in operational efficiencies and cost 
savings. Apprommately 98.5% of Protection One5 North Amenca 
residential and commercial customer base is served by MAS@. 

Branch Operations 
Protection One maintains approximately 60 S~MCX branches in the 
Umted States from which it provides field repair, customer care, 
alarm response and sales services and seven satellite locauons from 
which it provides field repair s e ~ c e s .  Protection One Europe 
maintains approximately 31 sales branch offices in continental 
Europe, pnmanly in France. 

Customer Acquisition Strategy 
Protection Oneb current customer acquisition strategy for the United 
States rehes pnmanly on internally generated sales and a strategc 
alliance wth  BellSouth Telecommunications. The internal sales 
program generated 45,642 accounts in 2002 and 41,856 accounts in 
2001. Protection One5 multifamily business markets its servlces and 
products pnmarily to developen, owners and managers of apartment 
complexes and other multifamily dwellings. 
Protection One Europe's customer acquisition strategy relies 
pnmanly on internally generated sales. Protection One Europe uses 
an internal sales force of approxlmately 300 employees, who operate 

I out of 31 branch locations in France, Germany and Belgium 
htection One EuropeS salary structure for its internal sales force 1s 
heady reliant on commissions but contains a portion of f ied  
salanes. In addition, Protection One Europe owns a telemarketing 
company, known as Eumcontact, which prowdes qualified leads to 
the sales network 

I 

I Competition 
The secunty alarm industry is highly competitive. In North America, 
only four alarm companies offer S ~ M C ~ S  across the United States, 
wh the remainder being either large regonal or small, pnvately held 
alarm companies Based on total annual revenues in 2001, Protection 
One believes the top four alarm companies in North Amenca are: 

rn ADT Secunty h c e s  (ADT), a subsidiary of T p  Intemauonal, Ltd., 
ProkcLionOne, 
Bnnkb Home Secunty Inc., a subsidmy of The Plttston Company, . 

Honeyell Secunty, a d i m o n  of Honeywell, Inc. 

In continental Europe, a large number of small competitors and a few 
large regional competitors have recently been taking steps toward 
establdhg a continental presence. The large regional competitors 
include the followng companies: 

I 

and 

CIPE, a subsidiary of ADT Security Services and Tyco International, 
Ltd., which is the largest security company in France, 
Chubb, a United Kingdom-based company that is also a leading 
security company UI France, 
Secuntas, based in Sweden, which has its prinapal operations in the 
guarding industry but IS expanding opemt~ons in monitored security, 
Group 4 Fakk, a Danish secunty company that has significant 
operations in Scandinavia and has recently expanded into 
Germany and the Netherlands, and 
Rentolal Initial, based in the Netherlands, wluch has operations in 
France and the United Kingdom 

Competition in the security alann industry is based primarily on 
market wsibility, pnce, reputation for quahty of s e ~ c e s  and systems, 
S ~ M C ~ S  offered and the ability to identify and soliat prospective 
customers as they move mto homes and businesses. protection One 
and Protection One Europe believe that they compete effectively with 
other national, reg~onal and local secunty alarm companies due to 
their ability to offer integrated alarm system installation, monitoring, 
repair and enhanced sennces; their reputation for relmble equipment 
and S~MC~S;  and their prominent presence in the areas surrounding 
their branch offices. 

Compet~tm exm in the market that have greater finanaal fesoums 
than Protection One or Protection One Europe, giving competitors 
the ability to offer higher pnces to purchase customer accounts than 
Pmtection One or Proternon One Europe might be able or wlling to 
offer The effect of such competition may be to reduce the purchase 
opportunities available. 

Regulatory Matters 
A number of local governmental authonties have adopted or are 
considenng vanow measures aimed at reducing the number of false 
alarms Such measures include- 

permitting of indimdual alarm systems and the revocation of such 
permits following a specified number of false alarms, 
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imposing fines on alarm customers lor false alarms, 
imposing limitations on the number of times the police wll 
respond to alarms at a particular location after a specified number 
of false alarms, 

rn requinng further venfication of an alarm signal before the police 
will respond, and 

I )  subjecting alarm monitoring companies to fines or penalties for 
transmitting false alarms. 

Monitored servlces operations are subject to a variety of other laws, 
re@ations and licensing requirements of both domestic and foreign 
federal, state and local authorities. In certain junsdictions, Protection 
One and Protection One Europe are required to obtain licenses or 
permits to comply with standards governing employee selecuon and 
trairung and to meet certain standards in the conduct of thew bushes. 

The alarm industry is also subject to requirements imposed by 
vanous insurance, approval, listing and standards organizations. 
Depending upon the type of customer served, the type of security 
semce provided and the requirements of the applicable local 
governmental jurisdiction, adherence to the requirements and 
standards of such organnations IS mandatory in some instances and 
voluntary in others 

Protection Ones advertising and sales practices are regulated in the 
United States by both the Federal Trade Commission and state 
consumer protection laws. In addition, certain administrative 
requirements and laws of the jurisdictions m wluch Protection One 
and Protection One Europe operate also regulate such practices. Such 
laws and regulations include restrictions on the manner in which the 
sale of security alarm systems 1s promoted and the obligation to 
pmvide purchasers of its alann systems wth certain rescission rights. 
The alarm monitonng buslness utilms wred and wireless telephones 
and radio frequenaes to transmit alarm slgnals. The cost of telephone 
lines and the type of equipment, which may be used in telephone line 
transmission, are currently regulated by both federal and state 
governments. The Federal Communications Commission and state 
public utilities commssions regulate the operation and utilizauon of 
radio frequenaes. In addition, the laws of certain foreign junsdictions 
in which Protection One Europe operates regulate the telephone 
communications wth the local authorities. 

Risk Management 
The nature of providing monitored services potentially exposes 
Pmtection One and Pmtection One Europe to greater nsks or liability 
for employee acts or omissions, or system failure, than may be 
inherent in other businesses Substantially all alarm monitoring 
agreements, and other agreements, pursuant lo which products and 
sennces are sold, contain provisions limiting liability to customers in 
an attempt to reduce ths nsk. 
Protection One and Protection One Europe cany insurance of vanous 
types, including general liability and errors and omissions insurance 

in amounts considered adequate and customary for the industry and 
busmness. Loss experience, and the loss experiences at other semTity 
services companies, may afiea the availability and cost of such 
insuranoe. Some ulsurance policres, and the laws of some states and 
countries, may limit or prohibit insurance coverage for punitive or 
certain other types of damages or liability arising from g~oss ne&ence. 

SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Financial informauon with respect to business segments is set forth in 
Note 32 of the Notes to Consolidated F m h l  Statements, 'Segments 
of Busmess." 

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 

Geographic information is set forth in Note 32 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, 5egments of Business." 

EMPLOYEES 

of Febmary 28,2003, we had approximately 5,500 employees, 
including 1,900 utility employees and 3,600 employees of hrotection 
One and htection One Europe. Our current contract with the 
International Brotherhood of Electncal Wrken  extends through 
June 30, 2003. The contract covered approximately 1,100 utility 
employees as of February 28, 2003. We are currently dixussing 
modifications to our existing contract wth union representauves 
and expect these discussions to result in an agreement. We antiapate 
that formal bargaining will begin in April 2003 if these discussions 
are unsuccessful. 

ACCESS TO COMPANY INFORMATION 

We electronically file our Annual Reports on Fom 10-K, Quarterly 
Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K with the 
SEC. The public may read and copy any of the repons that are filed 
with the SEC at the SECb Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, 
NW, Washmgton, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain infomation 
on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 
1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov 
that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other 
informauon regarding lssuers that file electronically 
We make available, free of charge, through our website and by 
responding to requests addressed to our investor dahons deparunent, 
our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q 
and Current Reports on Form 8-K These reports are available as soon 
as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed 
wth or fumlshed to the SEC Our webnte address is www.wr.com. 
The donnation contained on our webslte is not part of t h ~ ~  document. 

I 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

ELECTRIC UTILITY FACILITIES 
unit 

Namellomtbn NO. installed Fwl 0 
Abilene Energy Center Ab~lene, Kansas 

Gordon Evans Energy Center Cohch, Kansas 

unit Yew mrrcipal G@Q 

Combusm Turhne i 1 1973 GaS 71 0 

SteamTurbm 1 1961 Gas-011 1510 
2 1967 Ga-Oil 3830 

Combustion Tuhnes 1 2000 Gas-Oil 80.0 
2 2000 Gas--011 80.0 
3 2001 Ga-011 1540 

Died Generator 1 1969 Dlesel 30 

Steam Tuhnes 1 1950 Gas 17 0 
2 1950 Gas 18 0 
3 1951 Cas 31 0 
4 1965 Gas 1750 

Combusm Turinnes 1 1974 GaS 52 0 
2 1974 GaS 540 
3 1974 Cas 540 
4 1975 olesel 770 

Dtesel Generator , 1 1983 Died 30  

SteamTwbnes 1'" 1978 Coal 6170 
2'" 1980 Coal 6130 
3@) 1983 Coal 625.0 

Wind Turbines l W  1999 0 6  
2' 1999 - 0 6  

LaCygne Stam (50%) lacygne, Kansas 
Steam Turbines l 4  1973 Coal 344.0 

2" 1977 Coal 337.0 

Lawrence Energy Center Lawrence, Kansas 

Hutchinson Energy Center Hutchison, Kansas 

Jeffrey Energy Center (84%) St Maw, Kansas 

Steam Turbines 3 1954 Coal 57 0 
4 1960 Coal 122 0 
5 1971 Coal 388 0 

Murray Gill Energy Center Wuhm, Kansas 
Steam Turbines 1 1952 G ~ s - ~ I I  430 

2 1954 caS--oll 74.0 
3 1956 caS-0II 112.0 
4 1959 C~S-OII 1070 

Neosho Energy Center Parsons, Kansas 

State h e  (40%) Joplm. Miwun 

Steam Thne 3 1954 G ~ s - O ~  690 

Combined Cycle 2-lU 2001 G ~ s  600 
2-2' 2001 GW 600 
2-34 2001 GaS BOO 

Tecumseh Energy Center Tecumseh, Kansas 
Steam Turbines 7 1957 Coal 85 0 

8 1962 Coal 143 0 
Combuston Turbines 1 1972 Gas 20 0 

2 1972 Gas 21 0 

W& Creek Generating Station (47%) 
Burlington, Kansas 
Nuclear 1' 1985 Uranium 5480 

5,929 2 Total - 

We own approximately 6.600 miles ol transmission lines, 
approximately 27,000 miles oZ overhead dianbution lines and 
approxlmately 3,000 miles of undergmund dstnbution lines. 

Substantially all of our utility properties are encumberrd by first 
pnonty mortgages pursuant to which bonds have been usued and are 
ou tstanding 

MONITORED SERVICES FACILITIES 

Location 

Longwood. flonda 
Portland, MaMe 
Topeka, Kansas 
Wichrta, Kansas 
Wichita, Kansas 

53,750 Lease MulJamily monitoring faalltyl 
adminmatwe headquarters 

1 1,020 Lease Monitonng faciliihdminismve funcbon~ 
9,OOO lease Monitonng faalityhcal bran& 

17,703 lease Rnanaalladministratwe headquarters 
50,OOO Own Monltoring faalii/admintstraWe functm 

140,OOO Own Backup monltonng center/ 
admintstratwe funcbons 

~~ 

Pmtedon One Europe: 
Europe 

Pans, France 3,498 Lease RnanaaVadminntratwe offices/ 

V i &  France 27,000 lease ' Adminlstratnrehnonitonng fwlQ 
~usseMorf,Germany 7,800 Lease AdrninwatwhareW 
Brussels, Belgium 14,400 lease Administratlvefwarehouse 

monltmng faalny 

Protection One maintains its executive ofices at 818 South Kansas 
Avenue, Topeka, Kansas, 66612. Protection One and Protection One 
Europe operate pnmarily from the above facilities, although 
ProtechOn One a h  leases office space for approximately 60 service 
branch offices and seven satellite branches in the United States and 
Protection One Europe leases offices for approxlmately 31 sales 
branch offices in continental Europe. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Information on our legal proceedings is set forth in Notes 3-18, 19 
and 35 of the Notes to Consolidated Financd Statements, "Rate 
Matten and Regulauon: "Legal Proceedings: "Ongoing Investigation$ 
and 'Potential Labilities to Dawd C. Wittig and Douglas T. Lake: 

- respectively, which are incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERSTO AVOTE 
OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

No matter was submitted to a vote of our secunty holders through the 
solicitation of proxies or otheMnse dunng the fourth quarter of 2002. v 

I 

I 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY 
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MAmERS 

STOCKTRADING 

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and 
traded under the ticker symbol WR. As of March 14, 2003, there 
were 33,334 common shareholders of record. For information 
regarding quarterly common stock pnce ranges for 2002 and 200 1, 
see Note 33 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
"Quarterly Results (Unaudited)P 

DIVIDENDS 

Holders of our common stock are entitled to divldends when and as 
declared by our board of directors. However, prior to the payment of 
common diwdends, dividends must first be paid to the holders of 
preferred stock based on the futed divldend rate for each senes. and 
our obligations wth respect to mandatorily redeemable preferred 
securities issued by subsidiary trusts must be met. 
Quarterly dimdends on common stock and preferred stock normally 
are paid on or about the first business day of January, April, July and 
October to shareholders of record as of or about the ninth day of the 
preceding month. O u r  board of dimctors mews our common stock 
dividend policy from tune to time. Among the factors the board of 
directors considers in determining our dividend policy are earnings, 
cash flows, capitalmtion ratios. regulation, including the KCCS order 
requinng us to reduce our outstanding debt, competition and 

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

financial loan covenants. In February 2003, we declared a Tint- 
quarter 2003 divldend of $0.19 per share. Our Articles of 
incorporation restnct the payment of diwdends or the making of 
other dlstributions on our common stock while any preferred shares 
remain outstanding unless certain capitalization ratios and other 
conditions are met. We provlde further information on these 
restrictions in Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements, "Common Stock, Prefemd Stock and Other Mandatorily 
Redeemable Secunties." We do not expect these restrictions to have an 
impact on our ability to pay divldends on our common stock at the 
current rate. 
See "Managementb Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources - 
Future Cash Requirements,"Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, "Rate Matters and Regulation" and Note 20, 
'Common Stock, Prefemd Stock and Other Mandatorily Redeemable 
Securities: included herein for additional information on dividends. 

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE 
UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS 

The information called for by the item relating to "Securities 
Authorized lor lssuance Under Equity Compensation Plans" wll be 
set forth under that heading in the Proxy Statement relating to the 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 16. 2003. which 
w11 be filed wth the Securities and Exchange Commission no later 
than April 30,2003, and which s incorporated herein by reference. 
See also "Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners 
and Management." 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2oozu 2001 zoo0 1 9 9 P  ' le 
- 

On ThaMdss 
Income Statement Dam 

Sales . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,771,118 5 1,7 16,866 5 1,890,590 5 1,856.M 5 1,654,979 

Earnings (loss) available for common stock . . . . . . . . . (793,400) (21,771) ' 135,352 13,167 32,OF 
Net imme (loss) from conbnuing operanons before accounbng change . . .. (166,042) ( 38,532 ) 14 1,027 14,296 35,649 

For the Year Ended December 31, 20@ m1 2000 1- loss" 
Cn -s) 

Balance Sheet O W .  
Totalassets . * . . .  . .. . $6,443,099 17,633,152 $7,801,720 57,964,827 $7,929,776 
Long-term debt, net, and other mandatorily redeemable secunties . . . . . 3,272,828 . 3,219,188 3,458,422 3,103,066 3,283,064 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 

In Managementk D~scussion and Analysi, we dscuss the general 
financial condition, significant annual changes and the operating 
results for us and our subsidianes. We explain. 

what factors impact our business, 
m what our earnings and costs were in 2002,2001 and 2000, 

why these earnings and costs differ from year to year, 
rn how our eammgs and costs affect our overall financial condition, 

what our capital expenditures were for 2002, 
rn what we expect our capital expenditures to be for the years 2003 

rn how we plan to pay for these future capital expenditures, 
critical accounting policies, and 
any other items that particularly affect our finanual condition or 

As you read Managementk Discussion and Analps, please refer to 
our consolidated financial statements and the accompanyng notes, 
which show our operating results. 

through 2005, 

earnings. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ITEMS 

Overview 
A number of significant developments have impacted us and our 
buslness operations since January 2002' - . 

We hired a new chief, executive officer and senior management 
team 

rn We filed a new Debt Reduction and Restructunng Plan (the Debt 
Reduction Plan) wth the Kansas Corporauon Commisqon (KCC) 
that reflects our demon to return to being exclunvely a Kansas 
electric utility, replacing an earlier plan that contemplated the 
separation of Westar Industnes, lnc (Westar Industries). 
We began implementing the Debt Reduction Plan by (a) sellmg a 
portion of our ONEOK, Inc (ONEOK) prefened stock, exchanging 
the remaining prefemd stock for a new class of ONEOK preferred 
stock and modifying our related agreements wth ONEOK, (b) 
reducing our first quarter 2003 diwdend 37% to $0 19 per share, 
and (c) explonng alternatives for the d-iuon of our interests m 
A.otection One, Inc. (Protection One) and Protection One Europe. 

m In May and June 2002, we refinanced approxlmately 3 1.3 billion of 
outstanding debt. 
A Special Committee of our board of directors, the Secunties 
and Exchange Commsion (SEC), the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Comrmssion (FERC) and a federal grand jury imtiated investigauons 
into vanous mattes 
We recorded impairment charges related to our monitored secunty 
businesses of approxlmately $864 9 million, net of tax benefit and 
minonty interests, of which 8671 0 million was related to goodwll 
and !6 193 9 million was related to customer accounts 

m We repurchased a ponioii of our 6 25% senior unsccured notes 
that have a final matunty of August 15. 2018 and are putable and 
callable on August 15,2003 (the putabldcallable notes) As a resuli. 
we recognized a loss related LO the fair value of a call option 

associated wth the putabldcallable notes for 2002 of $23.7 million, 
net of a $ 15 7 million tax benefit. 
We reduced our utility work force by approximately 400 employees 
through a voluntary separation program. 
We restored sennce from a severe ice storm in late Januav 2002 
and incurred $19.3 million for restoption costs, a portion of which 
was capitahzed. 

m ONEOK gave us notice of termination effective December 2003 of 
a shared services agreement pursuant to which we prowde 
customer sewice functions to each other, including meter d i n g ,  
customer billing and call center operations. We expect tennination 
of thii agreement wll increase our annual costs to pnwide these 
semces by approximately 3 1 1 mdlion to $13 million. 

New Chief Executive Ofilcer and Senior ManagementTeam 
James S. Hams, Jr., joined us m December 2002 as our chief execunve 
officer and presdent and a member of the board of directon. He 
replaced David C. Wittig, who resigned on November 22,2002 from 
all of )us pitions wth us and our affiliates. Mr. Wittig had been on 
admmismtive leave without pay mce Noyember 7,2002 as a result 
of his indictment by a federal grand jury in Topeka, Kansas, for 
actions ansing from h s  penonal dealmgs. 
Mr. Hams added new members to our senior management team, 
includmg William B. Moore as executive vice presldent and chef 
operating oflicer, and Mark A Ruelle as executive wce president and 
chlef financial oficer. All of these oficers were previously employed 
wth us and have a strong background in the electnc utility +ness. 
Douglas T. Lake, our executive vice president and chief strategic 
officer, resigned as a member of the board of directors and was placed 
on unpaid leave from all of his other positions with us and our 
affilutes on December 6,2002 
See Note 35 of the Notes to Consolidated Fiknaal Statements, 
"Potential Lubiliues to David C. Wittig and Douglas T. Lake," for 
information about our potentla1 liabilities to Mr. Wittig and Mr. Lake 

KCC Orders and Debt Reduction and Restructuring Plan 
On February 6,2003, we filed the Debt Reducuon Plan with the KCC 
outlining our plans for paying down debt and restructuring the 
company The Debt Reduction Plan calk for the sale of our non-utility 
assets, including our interests in Protection One, Protection One 
Europe and ONEOK. As part of the Debt Reduction Plan, the fust 
quarter 2003 dividend on our common stock was reduced 37% to 
$0 19 per share. In addition, the Debt Reducnon Plan contemplates 
the potential issuance of additional Wstar Energy equity, if needed to 
further reduce debt followng the disposition of all ma ted  non- 
utility assets On February 10, 2003, the KCC issued an order in 
which it stated that the Debt Reduction Plan appears to make a good- 
faith effort to address the concerns expressed in the KCCS prior 
orders and that the KCC needed additional time to m e w  the Debt 
Reduction Plan pnor to addressing other sues. The KCC also stayed 
the requirement of a December 23,2002 order that we form a utility- 

' only subsidiary for our former KPL electnc utility divlsion (KPL) no 
later than August 1,2003 
The Debt Reduction Plan replaced a prewous financial plan to which 
we devoted extensive efforts throughout 2002 to obtain KCC 
approval This plan conteinplaiecl the sale of Westar lndustries 
common stock in a nghts oftcnng We refer you 10 our Annual Repon 
on Fonn 30-K lor the year,ended Decemki 31,2001 and subsequent 
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Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for further information on this 
financial plan and related KCC orders The KCC rejected ths plan on 
November 8,2002 and issued an order that directed us to file a new 
financial plan, to reverse specified intercompany transactions, to 
reduce debt by $100 million annually in each of the next two yean 
from internally generated cash flow, and to restructure our 
organizational structure so that KPL would be placed in a separate 
subsidmy with the amount of debt held by the utility not exceeding 
$1.47 billion. The order further estabkhed standstill protections 
requiring that we seek KCC approval before we enter uno certain 
transactions with a non-utility affiliate. Followng our filing of a 
motion for, reconsideration and clanfication of this order, the KCC 
w e d  an order on December 23,2002 directing that no later than 
August 1 , 2003, KPL be held wthm a separate utility-only subsldrary 
and that the consolidated debt for all of our utility businesses not 
exceed $: 1.67 billion. 
The standstill provisiohs of the December 23, 2002 KCC order 
potentially could have had a matenal impact on Protection One. 
These standstill provisions are dexnbed in Note 3 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial ,Statements, "Rate Mattes and Regulation" 
On March 11,2003, the KCC issued an order permitting us to make 
the payment due to Protection One in 2003 under a tax shanng 
agreement and to conanue making loans to Protection One under a 
revolving credit facility. In addition, the order permitted us to 
reimburse Pmtection One apprommately $4.4 million for infomation 
technology and antion S ~ M C ~ S ,  subject to certain conditions. 
The KCC staff and other parties to the KCC docket considenng the 
,Debt Reduction Plan have filed comments on the Debt Reduction 
Plan. The KCC has not yet establlshed a procedural schedule for 
considering the Debt Reduction Plan and the related comments Wk 
are unable to predict what action the KCC vrnll take wth respect to 
the Debt Redumon Plan. 
The KCC Orders dated November 8, 2002, December 23, 2002, 
February 10,2003 and March 11 , 2003 and the Debt Reduction Plan 
are exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All of such exhibits 
are incorporated by reference h e m .  All of the documents concermng 
these matters, including the KCC Orders, can also be rewewed at the 
website of the KCC at www.kcc.state.ks.us (the webslte information 
IS not incorporated herein or otherwise made a part of thts Annual 
Report on Form 10-K). W refer you to these documents Cor funher 
infomution concerning these matters. 

Changes in ONEOK Ownership 
On February 5,2003, ONEOK repurchased from W & r  Industries 
9,038,755 shares of its series A Converuble Preferred Stock, wtuch 
were convemble into 18,07731 1 shares of c o e o n  stock We recewed 
$300 rmllion as a result of sale, which was pmously approved by 
the KCC. anhcipate Using all or a portion of the net p d  to 
repurchase or pmde  for the repayment of all of the putabldcallable 
notes and a portion of our 6 875% senior unsecured notes. 
Westar lndustnes also exchanged its remaining shares of Series A 
Convertible Preferred Stock for 2 1,815,386 new shares of ONEOKS 
Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock ONEOK has agreed to file a shelf 
regstration statement covenng the Senes D Convertible Preferred 
and common stock held by Westai lndustnes Futuie sales ~ 1 1  be 
subject to various conditions including the effectiveness oC such 
registration, the required waiver or expiration of a 180-day loch-up 
per~od~ending on July 22 2003, and h u r e  rnarkr1 condiiions As 

of March 14,2003, Westar lndustries holds an approxrmate 27.5% 
ownership interest in ONEOK, assuming conversion of the Senes D 
Convertible Preferred Stock. 

In 2002 and prior penods, we accounted Cor our ONEOK common 
stock investment under the equity method of accounting. Dunng 
2003, we will account for our ONEOK common stock investment as 
an available-for-sale security under Statement of Financial Accounturg 
Standards (SFAS) No. 1 15, "Accounting for Cenain Investments in 
Debt and Equity Securities," and mark to market its fair value through 
other comprehensive income. We will begin accounting for out 
ONEOK Series D Convertible Prrferred Stock investment under this ' 
method if and when a public market for these securiues develops. 

Sale of Protection One and Protection One Europe 
On January 13, 2003, we announced that our board of directors 
authotized management to explorr alternatives for disposing of our - 
investments in Protection One and Protection One Eumpe. The Debt 
Reduction Plan provides for the sale of our mterests in Protection One 
Europe with a targeted closing of mid-2003 and the sale of our 
interest in Protection One wth a targeted closing by late 2003 or early 
2004. As a result, these operauons were classfied as dEontinued 
operations during the first quarter of 2003 pursuant to the provlslons 
of, SFAS No. 144, uAccouniing for the Impairment and D~~posal of 
Long-lived Assets." 

As discontinued operations, we wll be required to determine the fair 
value of our investment, which wll be the net amount we expect to 
realize from the sale of the investment. The investment must be 
reported at the lesser of our recorded basis or the estimated fair value. 
If the fair value 1s less than our recorded basis, we will be required to 
record an expense equal to the amount, which could be matenal, by 
which our basis exceeds the estimated fair value 
We solicited and received indications of value for Protection One 
Europe from potentlal buyers These indications of value are within a 
range we would be w l h g  to accept. They indicated the recorded 
goodwll for Protection One Europe had'no valw Accordmglx we 
recorded a $36 million' impairment charge in the fourth quarter of 
2002 to reflect the impairment of all remaining goodwill at Protection 
One Europe. Mk are willing to accept offers in the indicated range 
due to our ability to use the tax loss on this sale to o k t  the taxes that 
would otheMise be due from our sale of other investments. W' wlll 
recogwe a $58 million tax benefit in the first quarter of 2003 when 
Protection One Europe is classified as a dlscontinuecl operation. 

Ongoing Investigations 

On September 17, 2002, we were sewed with a, federal grand jury 
subpoena by the United States Attomeyk Office in Topeka, Kansas, 
requesting information concerning the use of aircraft and our annual 
shareholder meetings Since that date, the United States Attomeyk 
Office has served additional subpoenas on us and certain of our 
employees requesting further information concerning the use of 
aircraft, executive compensation arrangements wth Mr Wittig, Mr. 
Lake and other former and present officers, the proposed rights 
ofTenng of Westar lndustnes stock, and the company in general We 
are prowding information in response to thesc requests and arc fdly 
cooperating in the investigation We h a k  not been informed h a t  wc 
arc a targei of the investigmon We alp unable to prcdict the ulciinm 
ouicome of the investigxlon or lis imp:rci on US 

' 

Grand Jury Subpoena 
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Securities and Exchange Commission Inquiry 
On November 1. 2002, the SEC notified us that it would be 
conducting an inquiry into the matters involved in the mtatement of 
our first and second quarter 2002 financial statements. Our counsel 
has communicated wth  the SEC about these matters and other 
matters w t h n  the scope of Lhe grand jury investigation. We are unable 
to predict the ultimate outcome of theinquiry or its impact on us 

Our board ofadirectors appointed a Speaal Committee of directors to 
investigate management matters and matters that are the subject of 
the grand jury investigation and SEC inquiry. The Special Committee 
retained counsel and other advisors. The Special Committee 
investigation has been completed and has not resulted in adjustments 
to our consolidated financd statements 

Special Committee Investigation 

FERC Subpoena 
On December 16.2002, we received a subpoena from FERC seelung 
details on power trades w t h  Cleco Corporation (Cleco) and its 
affiliates, documents concerning power transactions between our 
system and our marketing operations and information on power trades 
in which we or other trading companies acted as intermediaries 
We have p m d e d  information to FTRC in response to the subpoena. 
We believe that our participation in these transactions did not violate 
FERC rules and regulations However, we are unable to predict the 
ultimate outcome of the investigation. See Note 19 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, "Ongoing Investigations - FERC 
Subpoena," for additional information 

Call Option 
In August 1998. we entered into a call option wth an investment 
bank related to the issuance of $400 million of our putabldcallable 
notes Thrs call option is required to be settled by August 2003 
through either a cash payment or a remarketing or refinancing of the 
putabldcallable notes. The ultimate value of the call option wll be 
based on the dilference between the 10-year United States treasury 
rate on August 12, 2003 and 5 44%. If the 10-year United States 
treasury rate on August 12,2003 IS less than 5 44%- we will have a 
llabihty to the investment bank at that time. At December 31,2002, 
our potential liability under the call option was $62 2 million. Based 
on the 10-year forward treasury rate on March 14,2003 of 3.91%. 
we would be obligated to make a cash payment of approxlmately 
$69.1 million to settle the call option if we did not remarket or 
refinance the notes. The amount of our liability wll increase or 
decrease appronmately $5 million for every 10-basis point change in 
the 10-year forward treasury rate If settled through a remarketing or 
refinancing, any liability related to the call option will be amortlzed 
as a credit to interest expense over the term of the new debt. The 
investment bank will pnce the notes to peld a market premium 
adequate to allow the investment bank to retain proceeds equal to the 
fair value of the call option at settlement 
At the time of issuance of the notes in 1998. we wvere not required by 
generally accepted accounting pniiciples (GAAP) to account 
separately for the call option Howewr, when ww began retinng thew 
imes as a part of 0111 cwerall debt icduciion sti&itegy, the portion of 

the call option associated'with the retired notes became a free- 
standing option required to be treated as a denvative instrument 
under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Denvauve lnstmments and 
Hedgng Activities: as amended by SFAS Nos. 137 and 138 (collec- 
tively, SFAS No. 133). In addition, under SFAS No. 133, we are 
required to mark to market changes m the anticipated amount of the 
liability related to the portion of the $400 milllon in notes that have 
been retired so that our balance sheet reflects the current fair value of 
the free standing portion of the call option. For 2002, we recognized 
a loss of $10.1 rmllion, net of $6.7 rmllion tax benefit, related LO the 
fair value of the call option associated wth the putabldcallable notes 
at the time the notes were retired. T ~ I S  loss 1s included in our 
consolidated statements of income as part of the gain on 
extinguishment of debt lme item of other mcome. For 2002, we also 
recorded an additional non-cash charge of $13.6 million, net of $9.0 
million tax benefit, to reflect mark to market changes in the fair value 
of the call option associated with the retired notes This charge is 
reflected in the other line item of other income in our consolidated 
statements of income. In total, the loss recorded related to the fair 
value of the call option for the year ended December 31,2002 was 
$23.7 million, net of $15.7 million tax benefit. 
We intend to repurchase or provide for the repayment of the 
putabldcallable notes on or pnor to June 15,2003. Any repurchase 
of these notes wll require us to mark to market additional amounts 
of the call option. From January 1,2003 through March 14, 2003, 
we purchased $35.3 million face value of our putabldcallable notes. 
wk cannot predm changes in the market value of the call option 
and therefore cannot estimate amounts of future mark-to-market 
non-cash c h a ~ e s  associated with the call option or the impact on 
our earnings. 

I m pai rment Charges 
Elfective January 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142, "Accounting 
for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," and SFAS No. 144, 
"Accounung for the Impairment and D i s p l  of Long-lived Assets." 
As a result of implementing the new standards, we recorded a charge 
for the first quarter of 2002 of approximately $749.3 million (net of 
tax benefit and minority interests), of which $555.4 million was 
related to goodwill and $193.9 million was related to customer 
accounts. 
In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2002 we recorded a $79 7 million 
impairment c h q e ,  net of tax benefit and minonty interrsts, to reflect 
the additional impairment of all remaining goodwll of Protection 
One's North Amenca segment We also recorded a $36 million 
impairment charge to reflect the impairment of all remaining 
goodwll at Protection One Europe. These accounting standards, 
the related charges and other related information are discussed 
in Note 23 of the Notes to consolidated Financial Statements, 
"Impairment Charges." 

Work Force Reductions 
Dunng 2002, we reduced our utility work force by approximately 
400 employees through a voluntary separauon program We recorded 
a net charge of approximately $21 7 million in 2002 related to this 
program We hawc replaccd and m a y  conunue LO icplace sonie ui 



2 0 0 1  W E S T A R  E N E R G Y  

these employees. For additional information, see Note 29 of the 
Notes to Consolidated Fmncial Statements, "Mrk Force ReductionsP 

Ice'sbtm 
in late Januaxy 2002, a severe ice storm swept through our utility 
seMce area causing extensive damage and loss of power to numerous 
customers. M u &  Decemlxr 31,2002, we incurred $19.3 million 
for restoration costs, a portion of whch was capitalized. We have 
deferred and recorded as a regulatory asset on our December 31, 
2002 consolidated balance sheet nstoration costs of approximately 
$15.0 million. Wk have received an accounting authority order from 
the KCC hat allows us to accumulate and defer for potential h~re 
recovery all operating and carrylng costs related to storm restoration. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Our discussion and analysis of results of operations and fimnaal 
condition are based upon our consolidated financial statements, 
which have been prepared in accordance wlth GAAI! The preparation 
of consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
rrvenues and expemes, and related ddosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an on-going bans, 
including those related to bad debts, inventones, depreciation, 
revenue recognition, investments, customer accounts, goodwill, 
intangible assets, income taxes, pensions, post-retirement and post- 
employment benefits, decommssioning of Wolf Creek Generating 
Station (Wolf Creek), envrronmental issues, contingencies and 
litigation. We base our estimates on histoncal expenence and on 
various other assumptions that are beliwed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making 
judgments about the canying values of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily appamtt from other sources. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates under different assurnpuons or condmons. 
Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financml Statements, "Summary 
of Significant Accounting Policies,m prowdes a summary of the 
ngmficant accounting policies and methods used in the pnparation 
of our consolidated flnanclal statements. The followng is a brief 
desaiption of the more sipticant accounting policies and methods 
used by us. 

Regulatory Accounting 
Wk currently apply accounting standards for our regulated utility 
operations that recogme the economic effects of rate regulation in 
accordance with SFAS No. 71, "Accounting lor the Effects of Certain 
Types of Regulation,w and, accordingly. have recorded regulatory 
assets and liabilities when required by a regulatory order or based on 
regulatory precedent. 
Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have been deferred 
because they are probable of future recovery in customer rates. 
Regulatory liabilities represent obligations to make refunds to 
customers for prewous collections for costs that a x  not likely to be 
incurred in the future We have recorded these regulatory assets and 
liabilities in accordance wth SFAS N o  71 If  we weix required to 
terminale application of SFAS No 71 for all of our regulaied 

operations, we would have to record the amounts of all regulatory 
assets and liabilities m our consolidated statements of income at that 
time. As of December 31,2002, this would reduce our earnings by 
approximately $35 1.9 million, net of applicable income taxes. 
SFAS No 71 applies to ow electric utility business segmenc. W do 
not anticipate the disconnnuation of SFAS No. 71 in the foreseeable 
future. See "- Other Information - Electric Utility - Stranded 
Costsw for additional discussion of the application of SFAS No. 71. 

Depreciation 
Utility plant is depreciated on the straight-he method at the lesser of 
rates set by the KCC or rates based on the estimated remainingusefd 
lives of the assets, which are based on an average annual composite 
bass using p u p  rates that approximated 2.66% during 2002, 
3.03% during 2001 and 2.99% during 2000. 

In its rate order of July 25,2001, the KCC extended the estimated 
service life for c e m  of our generating assets, including Wolf Cmk 
and the LaCygne 2 generating station, for regulatory rate making 
purposes. The estimated retirement date for Wolf Creek was 
extended from 2025 to 2045, although our operating license for 
Wolf Creek expires m2025, and the estimated retirement date for 
LaCygne 2 was extended to 2032, although the tenn of our lease for 
LaCygne 2 expi= in 2016. On April 1,2002, we adopted the new 
depreciation rates as prescribed in the KCC order. We continue to 
depmiate-Unolf Creek over the tenn of our operating hcense, and we 
continue to depreciate LaCygne 2 over the term of our lease. We have 
created a regulatory asset for the amount that our depreciation 
expense exceeds our regulatory depreclation expense. 

On an annual basis, our depreciation expense will be reduced by 
approximately $300 million as a result of these extensions. If our 
generating license for Wolf Creek 1s not renewed or the term of our 
lease for LaCygne 2 1s not extended, we wll need to seek relief fmm 
the KCC to recover the remaining cost of these assets. 

Pension Benefit Plans 
The reported costs of our pension benefit plans, which include our 
portion of Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporationk costs, are 
impacted by the factors llsted below 

Penon costs are impacted by eamgs on plan assets, plan amend- ' 
ments, contributions made to the plan and employee demopphics 
(including age, compensanon levels and employment periods). 
Penslon costs may be slgnificantly affected b>l changes in actuarial 
assumptions, including anticipated rates of ntum on plan assets 
and discount rates used in determining the projected benefit 
obligation and penson costs. 
Our 2002 discount rate assumption ranged from 6.50% to 6.75%. 
Our discount rate was 7.25% in 2001 and ranged from 7.25% to 
7 75% in 2000. When our ducount rate assumption decreases, our 
expense increases 
Our expected race OJ return assumption ranged from 9.0% to 
9.25%- which 1s consistent wth long-term results of the plans. The 
return assumption was the same Tor 2002,2001 and 2000. 
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The followng chart reflects the annual impact of a 0 5% decrease in 
certain assumptions. If the dlscount rate increased by 0.5%. the 
impact would be a similar amount in the opposite direction 

Dacountrate . .. . 05%- $228 $16.9 $1.5 
Rateofreturnonplanassets . 05%deaease - - 2 4  

We recoded pension expense of $5.8 mlllion in 2002 and pension 
income of $40 mllion in 2001. The $9.8 million increase IS due 
pnmanly to lower return on plan assets and an early retirement 
wndow that was offered in 2001 and 2002. In 2003 we expect to 
record apprommately $1.8 million of pemon income. , 

Pension plan assets are pnmarily made up of equity and fixed income 
investments. The market value of the plan assets has been affected by 
declines in equity markets. At December 3 1,2002, the fair value of 
petmon plan assets was $382.3 million. Actual return on plan assets 
declined by approximately $2.1 million dunng 2001 and by 
approximately $58.5 million dunng 2002. Absent a substantial 
recovery in the equity markets, pension costs, cash funding 
requirements and the additional pension liability could substanually 
increase in future years. 
See Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financials Statements, 
uEmployee Benefit Plans," for additional information 

Revenue Recognition 

Energy sales are recognned as delivered and include an estimate for 
energy delivered but unbilled at the end of each year Power 
marketing actiwties are accounted for under the mark-to-market 
method of accounting. Under this method, changes in the portfolro 
value are recognned as gains or losses in the period of change. The 
net mark-to-market change is included in energy sales in our 
consoli+ted statements of mcome. The refllltmg unreallted gains 
and losses are recorded as energy trading assets and liabilities on our 
consolidated balance sheets. 
We pnmaxily use quoted market pnces to value our power markeung 
and energy trading contracts. When market pnces are not readily 
available or determinable, we use alternative approaches, such as 
model pncing. The market pnces used to value these transactions 
reflect our best esumate of fair values considenng vanom factors, 
including closlng exchange and over-the-counter quotations, time 
value and volatility factors underlying the commitments. Results 
actually achieved from these actiwties could vary matenally from 
mended results and could unfavorably affect our financial results 

Monitored S ~ M C ~ S  revenues are recognized when security servlces 
are provided System installation revenues, sales revenues on 
equipment upgrades and direct and incremental costs of installations 
and sales are deferred for residential customers wth monitoring 
service contracts For cominercial customers, revenue recognition is 

Energy Sales 

Monitored Services Revenues 

dependent upon each specific customer contract In instances when 
the company passes title to a system unaccompanied by a service 
agreement or the company passes title at a pnce that it believes is 
unaffected by an accompanylng but undelivered service, the 
company recognues revenues and costs in the period incumd. In 
cases where the company retains title to the sysem or it pnces the 
system lower than it otherww would because of an accompanying 
service agreement, the company defers and amortizes revenues and 
direct CWU. 

Deferred system and upgrade installation venues are recognd 
over the expected life of the customer utilinng an accelerated method 
for residential and commercial customers and a straight-line method 
for Protection One5 Multifamily customers. Deferred costs in excess 
of defened revenue are recognized over the initial contract term, 
utilizing a straight-line method, typically two to three years for 
residential systems, five years for commercial systems and five to ten 
years for Multifamly systems. To the extent deferred costs sule less 
than deferred revenues, such costs are recognized over the estimated 
life of the customer relationship. 
Deferred revenues also result from customers who are .billed for 
monitonng and extended service protection in advance of the period 
in which such services are provided, on a monthly, quarterly or 
annual basis. Revenues from monitonng acnvities are recognized in 
the penod such sennces aqrowded. 

Cumulative Effects of Accounting Changes 
Accounting for Goodwill and for the Impairment 
and Disposal of Long-Lied Assets 

Effective Januav 1,2002, we adopted SFAS No 142 and SFAS No. 
144. SFAS No. 142 established new standards for accounting for 
goodwill. SFAS No. 142 continues to require the recognition of 
goodwill as an asset, but discontinued amortization of goodwill. In 
addition, annual impairment tests must be performed using a fair- 
value based approach as opposed to an undiscounted cash flow 
approach required under pnor standards. 
SFAS No. 144 established a new approach to determining whether 
our customer account asset is impaired. The approach no longer 
permits us to evaluate our customw account asset for impairment 
based on the net undcounted cash flow stream obtained over the 
remaining llfe of goodwill associated with the customer accounts 
being evaluated. Rather, the cash flow stream used under SFAS No. 
144 is limited to future estimated undlscounted cash flows from 
assets in the asset group, which include customer accounts, the 
pnmary asset of the reprung unit, plus an estimated amount for the 
sale of the remaining assets within the asset group (including 
goodwll). If the undiscounted cash flow stream from the asset group 
is less than the combined book value of the asset p u p ,  then we are 
required to mark the customer account asset down to fair value, by 
way of recording an impairment, to the v e n t  fair value is less than 
our book value. To the extent net book value IS less than fair value, no 
impairment would be recorded 
To implement the new standards, an independent appraisal firm was 
engaged to help management estimate the fail values of Protection 
One's and Protection One Europe's goodwll and customer accounts 

' 
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Based on this analyss, we recorded a charge in the first quarter of 2002 
of appronmately 8749.3 million (net of tax benefit and minority 
interests), of which $555.6 million was related to goodwll and 
$193.9 million was related to customer accounts. 

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 
Effective January 1, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 133. We use 
derivative instruments (pnmarily swaps, options and futures) to 
manage interest rate exposure and the commodity pnce risk inherent 
in some of our fossil fuel and electricity purchases and sales. Under 
SFAS No. 133, all derivative instruments, including our energy 
trading contracts, are recorded on our consolidated balance sheet as 
either an asset or liability measured at fair value. Changes in a 
derivative3 fair value must be recognued currently in earnings unless 
specific hedge accounnng criteria are met, in which case changes are 
reflected in other comprehensive income. Cash flows from derivative 
instruments are presented in net cash flows from operating activities. 
Derivative instruments used to manage commodity pnce nsk 
inherent in fossll fuel and electricity purchases and sales am classified 
as energy trading contracts on our Consolidated balance sheets. 
Energy tradmg contracts representing unreahzed gain positions are 
reported as assets; energy trading contracts representing unreald 
loss positions are reported as liabilities. 
Pnor to January 1,2001, gains and losses'on our denvatives used for 
managing commodity pnce risk were defemd until settlement. These 
denvatives were not designated as hedges under SFAS No. 133. 
Accordingly, on January 1,2001, we recognized an unreahzed gam of 
$18.7 million, net of $12.3 million of tax. nls gain IS presented on 
our consolidated statement of income in 2001 as a cumulauve effect 
of a change in accounting pnnciple. 
After January 1, 2001, changes in fair value of all derivative 
instruments used for managing commodity pnce risk that are not 
designated as hedges are recognized in revenue as dwssed above 
under "- Revenue Recogniuon - Energy %ledn Accounnng for denv- 
atives under SFAS No. 133 wd1 increase volatility of our future 
earnings. 

In the fourth quarter of 2000, we adopted Staff Accounting Bulletin 
(SAB) No. 101, "Revenue Recognition,n which had a retroactive 
effective date of January 1, 2000 The impact of this accounting 
change generally required deferral of certain monitored secunty 
services sales for installation revenues and direct sales-related 
expenses. Deferral of these revenues and costs IS generally necessary 
when installation revenues have been received and a monitoring 
contract to provide future Senwe IS obtained. 
The cumulative effect of ths  change in accounting pnnciple was 
a charge to income in 2000 of approximately $3.8 million, net of 
$1 1 niillion tax benefit, and is related to changes in revenue 
recognition at Protection One Europe prior to the adoption of SAB 
No 101, Protection One Europe recognized installation revenues and 
related expenses upon completion of the installation 

Revenue Recognition 

Accounting Changes 

In October 2002, the Finanml Accounting Standards Board (FASB), 
t h r w g h ~ ~ l r m e s T ~ F o n x ( E ~ i s s u e d l s s u e N o . 0 2 - 0 3 .  
which rescinded Issue No. 98-10, "Accounting for Contracts 
Involved in Energy Trading and Rsk Management Activities." As a 
result, all new contracts that would oLher\Nlse have been accounted 
for under issue No. 98-10 and that do not fall within the scope of 
SFAS No. 133 can no longer be nyrked-to-market and recorded in 
earnings as of October 25,2002. W are not affetted by this change in 
accounting principle and are not required to reclassib any of our 
contracts. EITF Issue No. 02-03 also requires that energy tmdmg 
contracts and derivatives, whether settled financially or physically, be 
reported in the mcome statement on a net basis effectwe Januaty 1, 
2003. Wk began to classiEy our energy trading contracts on a net basis 
during the third quarter of 2002. 

On July 1,2002, we began reporting mark-to-market pins and losses 
on energy trading contracts on a net basis, whether realized or 
unrealid, in our consolidated income statements. Prior to July 1, 
2002, we ported gains on these contracts in sales and losses m cost 
of sales in our consolidated income statements. The changes are 
reflected in our consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2002. Prior periods shown in our consolidated 
financial statements have been reclassified to reflect the effect of this 
change and to be comparable as requid by GAAF! As a result of the 
net presentation, we expect significant reductions in our energy 
menus  and expenses from t h ~  rrported in prior periods, which 
wll not affect gross profit or net income. A summary of the effects of 
ths change for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000 
is as follows: 

ChanneE to income Statements 

Accounting for Energy Trading Contracts 

-~ ~ 

Year Ended December 31, ZOIlo 

on-ndr) 

Energy des . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,798,971 $ 1,422,899 
Energy cost of sales . . . . . . . . . . . .  754,700 378.628 
Energygrwsprofit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,044,271 $1 ,W,27 1 

Y ~ w  EndEd D#ankr 31,2001 

annThaaanQ) 
Energysales .................... 11,706,311 S 1,307,177 
Energycostofsaks . . . . . . . . . . . . .  793,210 394,076 
EnergygrowprofR . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 913,101 $ 913,101 

Year Ended December 31,2000 

onnlmJ5andr) 

Energysales . . . . . . .  . 11,829,133 5 1,359,522 
Energy cost of sales 850,018 380,407 
Energy gross profa 5 979,115 I 979,115 
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OPERATING RESULTS 

Westar Energy Consolidated 
2002 compared to 200 I 

W reponed a -loss oC !! 1 1.06 per share in 2002 compared to a loss of 
$0.31 per share in 2001. 'his greater loss per share was due pnmarily 
to the 2002 impairment charges related to monitored Senices 
goodwll and customer accounts. A decline in monitored senqces 
revenues also contnbuted to the loss. lmproved results from utility 
operations and declines in cost of sales and operating expenses 
and increases in other income from monitored semces partially 
offset these items. For additional information. see the segment 
dlscusnons below. 

2001 compared to 2000 
We reported a loss of $0.31 per share in 2001 compared to earnings 
of $1.96 per share in 2000. This decrease resulted from decreased 
electriclty sales caused by milder weather, the decrease in electnc 
rates in accordance wth the July 25, 2001 KCC rate order, hgher 
operating losses UI our monitored s e ~ c e s  segment, and the fourth 
quarter charge related to a work force reduction Additionally, 
investment earnings and extraordinary gains on the rrtirernent of 
debt were lower in 2001 than in 2000. 

Segments of Business 
Our business is segmented based on differences in products and 
services, production procemes and management responsbility Wk 
have identified three reportable segments- Electric Utllity, Monitored 
Services and Other. 

Electnc Utihty cons~~ts  of our integrated electric utility operations, 
including the generation, transmission and dstnbution of power to 
our rem1 customers in Kansas and to wholesale customers, and our 
power marketing actiwties. 

rn Momtored Services, including the net effect of minonty interests, IS 

composed of our secunty alann monitoring businesses in the 
United States and Europe. 

rn Other. includes our approximate 45% ownership interest in 
ONEOK at December 31,2002, (which was reduced to a 27.5% 
interest on February 5, 2003), and other investments in the 
aggregate not material to our business or results of operations 

We manage our business segments' performance based on their 
eamgs  (losses) before interest and taxes (EBIT) because EBlT is the 
pnmary measuremenL used by our management to evaluate segment 
performance. Our bunness managers have direct control over the 
items that avect the EBlT of their segments and we therefore believe 
EBIT is an appropriate measure of segment performance. EBIT dues 
not represent cash flow from operations as defined by GAAP, should 
not be construed as an alternative to operating income and is 
indicative neither of operating performance nor cash flows available 
to fund our cash needs hems excluded from EBlT are significant 
components in understanding and assessing our financial perfor- 
mance. Interest expense, income, taxes, discontinued operations, 

cumulative eflects of accounting changes and preferred diwdends are 
iiems that are excluded from the calculation of EBIT. Our 
computation of EBlT may not be comparable to other similarly titled 
measures of other companies We provide a reconaliation of EBIT to 
GAAP income measuments in Note 32 of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financlal Statements, "Segments of Business." 

1 -  

Electric Utility 
We supply electric energy at retail to approximately 647,000 
customers in Kansas including the communines of Wichita, Topeka, 
Lawrence, Manhattan, Salina and Hutchinson. We classifj our 
customers as residentd, commercial and industrial as defined in our 
tanffs. We also supply electric energy at wholesale to the electnc 
distnbution systems of 62 Kansas aties and four rural electnc 
cooperatives Wk have contracts for the sale, purchase or exchange of 
wholesale electriclty with other utilities. In addition, we have power 
marketing operations that purchase and sell electncity in ateas 
outside our hmorical m c e  territov. 
Regulated electnc uuhty sales are significantly impacted by such 
things as regulation (including rate regulation), customer 
conservauon efforts, wholesale demand, the overall economy of our 
S ~ M C ~  area, the weather and competitive foFces. Our wholesale sales 
are impacted by demand outside our semce tenitory, the cost of hgi 
and purchased power, pnce volatility and available generation 
 pac city. 
Our electric sales for the three years ended December 31 were as 
follows: 

Residential 
Commemal 
lndustnal 

. .  
. .. . 

. .  

onlhousm4 
$ 442.106 I 419,492 $ 452,674 

385,375 380,277 367,367 
242.847 244.392 252.243 

Total .. . .. ... 1,070,328p 1,044,161 1,072,284 

Oth# . ' 46,693 50.669 49,629 
Totalretail . . .. 1,177,153 1,094,830 1,121.91 3 

Power MarketingrWhdesale 
andlnterchange .. .. 245,746 212,347 . 237,609 
Total . . . $1,422,899 $1,307,177 $1,359,522 

Nennrorkintegratma . . . 60,132 - - 

"Network Integration: Rc~ects a new network trammion tan8 that rrqutm us 
co p y  ro rhe Southwcsr Power Pod 6PF9 all expenses asmated with tramprung 
pwrrjrorn ourgenerating stations. The SPP then pays usjor tmnsmitnng p e r  to 
the point oJdelivery into our retail dsmbution system These recapfrom the SPP 
arz rejlccrcd in ~cvcnucs undrr the network integration classification ForJurlhcr 
information, see -- Other InJormahon - Elcctnc Ut~lity - Network Integranon 
Trummissim Service" kfw. 

"'Other: includes public street and highway lighting and miscellaneous clecclnc 
rcvenucs. 

' 
I 

The followng tables show changes in electnc sales volumes, as 
measured by thousands of megawatt hours (MWh) of electnaty we 
generate, for the three years ended December 31. No sales volumes 

30 
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are shown for network integration or power marketing because these 
activities are not related to electnaty we generate. 

2001 2001 %change 

(TtKnaandsdMwhl 
Resid- ...... .. . 6,170 ' 5,755 7.2 
commerdal . . . . . . . . .  6,817 6,742 11 
lndustnal ...... . . .  5,451 5,617 (3 0) 
other . . . .  106 107 (0 9) 

Total letall . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18.544 18,22 1 18  
Wholesale and Interchange . . 9,115 7,547 20 8 

Total ......... . . . . . . .  27,659 25,768 7 3  

2001 2000 %change 
(Thousands of M W  

Resldentlal . . . . . .  5,755 6.222 (7 5) 

lndustnal. . . . .  . . . . .  5,617 5,820 (3 5) 
other . . . . . . . . .  1 07 108 (09) , 

TOtaretail . . . . .  . 18,221 18,635 (2 2) 
Wholesale and Interchange . 7.547 6,892 9 5  

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 25,768 25,527 0 9  

commerual . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,742 6,485 4.0 

Details concerning EBIT and assets attnbutable to our electric utility 
segment are summakd in the tables below: 
For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000 

on Thousands) 

Depreaattonandamorttzatm . . . .  $ 171,749 $ 185,156 I 175,839 
Earninas ~lones) before interest and  tax^ . 246.993 207,057 331,330 

~~ 

December 31. 2002 2001 2000 

On Thoudsl 

ldentdiable assets . . .  $5,033,329 $4,932.447 $4,961,240 

2002 compared to 2001: Energy sales increased $115.7 million, or 
9%. due primarily to the $60 1 million in new network integration 
tariff revenues (see y- Other Information - Electric Utility - 
Network Integration Tiansmssion Sennce"), a $33.4 million increase 
in power marketing, wholesale and interchange revenues and a 
$27.7 mllion increase in residential and commercial electric sales 
revenues. Power marketing, wholesale and interchange revenues 
increased pnmanly as a result of incmsed sales volumes, o k t  by 
lower wholesale pnces. Favorable weather conditions and a slight 
increase in the number of utility customers contnbuted to the increase 
in residential and commercial electnc sales revenues, which were 
offset by lower retail rates and decreased industrial revenues related 
to weak economic conditions. 
Cost of sales decreased $15.4 million, or 4%, due pnmarily to a 
$14.6 million decrease in purchased power expense. Purchased 
power expense decreased due pnmarily to the increased availability 
of our generating units and lower pnces. 
Gross profit increased $131 2 million, or 14%, for the reasons 
discussed above This increase in gross profit also reflects the impact 
of the adoption of SFAS No 133 on January 1, 2001 This new 

standard required that we report a $31.0 million gain in 2001 on 
certain denvative contracts (derivatives) as a cumulative ellect of a 
change in accounting pnnaple rather than mclude the gain in gross 
profit All gains and losses after January 1,2001 on our derivatives 
that are not designated as hedges are reflected in gross profit. Had we 
included the $31.0 million gain in rwenues in 2001, gross profit 

1 would have increased $100.1 milhon rather than $131.2 million. 

Operating expenses increased $69.0 million, or 10%. due primarily 
to the charges associated wth the network integration transmission 
tanff, resefve for potential lmbilities to Mr. Wittig and Mr. Lake, 
employee severance costs related to the 'work force reduction and the 
compensation expense associated with an exchange of previously 
granted restncted share units as discussed in Note 15 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Finanaal Statements, 'Employee Benefit Plans - Stock 
Based Compensation Plansr These increases were partially offset by a 
$13.4 million decrease in depreciation expense related to the change 
in depreciation rates as discussed above in Critical h u n t i n g  
Poliaes - Depreciation." In addition, our maintenance expense 
declined $22.6 million, or 19%. due primarily to the lower forced 
outage rates of our generating units. 
Due to the above factors, income from utility operations inaeased 
$62 2 million, or 29%. A decrease in other expense of $22.3 million 
was due pnmarily to recordi@ a non-cash mark-to-market charge on 
the call option of the putabldcallable notes as discussed in y- 
hquidity and Capital Resoums" below. EBIT increased $39.9 million 
as a result. 
2001 compared to 2000 Energy sales decreased $52.3 million, or 
4%. Residential sales declined 7% and power marketing, wholesale 
and interchange sales declined 11 %. Rcsidentral sales decreased due 
to weather conditions and our rate d e c k ,  while power marketing, 
wholesale and interchange sales decreased because of lower pnces 
and more power available in the market. Cost of sales increased 
$13 7 million, or 4%. which was due pnnapally to an increase in our 
natural gas fuel expenses redung from the purchase of fuel for new 
genewting units that began operating during 2001. 

As a result of the decline in sales and the increase in cost of sales, gross 
profit decrrased $66.0 million, or 7%. Thls decline in gross profit also 
reflects the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1, 
2001. This new standard required that we report a $31.0 million gain 
on certain derivatives as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting 
pnnciple rather than include the gain in gross profit. Had we been 
permitted to classify this accounting change as an increase to 
wenues, gross profit would have declmed by $35.0 million rather 
than $66.0 million. 

' Operating expens-& incread $45.7 million due pnmanly to mcoding 
approximately $8 7 million of costs assocmted wlth the temiinated 
Public S ~ M C ~  Company of New Mexico merger transaction, 
approximately $14.3 million In employee-severance costs related to 
the 2001 work force reductions, an increase in our pension and 
benefit expenses and an increase in general maintenance expenses 



1 0 0 2  W E S T A R  E N E R G Y  

Monitored Services 
Protection One and Protection One Europe compnse our monitored 
services business segment. The results discussed below reflect 
monitored semces on a stand-alone bass  These results take into 
consideration Protection Oneh minonty interest of approximately 
12%atDecember31,2002,13%atDecember31,2001,and 15%at 
December 31, 2000. As discussed above, our monitored servlces 
operations wdl be reported as dlscontinued operations as required by 
of SFAS No. 144 dunng the filst quarter of 2003 
Details concerning EBIT and assets attnbutable to our monitored 
sewices segment aie as follows: 
for the years ended December 31, 2m 2W1 2000 

(br llmmdsl 
sales . .  . . . .. $347,957 I 408,330 I 529,584 
Deprecnwn and amor\uabon . . . . . ga,i 11 225,133 245,297 
lassesbeforeinterestandtaxes . . . . 369,848 77,074 5,678 

b'lhouswds) 

ldentifiableassets . . . .. . 1638,936 si ,w,7a6 $2,175,706 

2002 compared to 200 I : Sales decreased $60.4 million due pnmanly 
to a dechne UI the average customer base and the renewal of existing 
customers for extended contract pen& wth a lower monthly rate. 
The m o n i t d  S ~ M C ~ S  segment experienced a net declme of 62,656 
customers in 2002, which 1s attnbutable primanly to customer 
attntion. Although net customers decreased for the year, Protection 
One had a favorable decline in attntion in 2002 compared to 2001 
due to the reasons discussed in "- Other lnfomtion - Monitored 
Servlces - Attntion" below 
Protection One expects that the decline in its customer base will 
continue until the efforts it IS making to generate new accounts and 
reduce attntion become more successful than they have been to date. 
Until it 1s able to reverse this trend, net losses of customer accounts 
will matenally and adversely affect its busmess, finanaal condition 
and results of operations. For 2003, Protection One5 focus IS on 
improving returns on invested capital by reahzing economies of scale 
from increasing customer density in the largest urban markets m the 
United States It plans to accomplish thE by improving customer 
retention. See u- Other Information - Monitored Servlces - 
Attntion" below for addiuonal information 
Cost of sales decreased $1 1.9 million due pnmanly to a reduction of 
telecommunication costs and consolidation of Protection One's 
monitonng functions Operating expenses increased $3 10.4 million 
due pnmanly to the 2002 impairment charges. Partially offsetting the 
increase in operating expenses was a decline in depreciation and 
amortuation expense, which reflects a reduction in customer account 
amortuation related to the impairment chaqp and elimination of 
goodwll amortltation due to the implementation of SFAS No. 142. 
Also partially offsetting the increase in operating expenses were 
reductions in professional fees and outsde Semces because of the 
completion of system integration projects and lower legal costs. a 
decrease in wage expense because of consolidation efforts, and a 
decline in bad debt expense and collection costs 
As a result of the decline in gross profit and the increasc in operating 
expenses. loss before interest and taxes increased $292 8 million 

Monitored services' total assets decreased apprommately $1.2 billion 
primanly as a result of the impairment of goodwll and customer 
account assets. 
2001 compared to 2000: Sales decreased $121.3 million due 
pnmanly to a decline in. the monitod seMces segments average 
customer base and the disposition of certain operations. The 
monitored S ~ M C ~ S  segment expenenced a net decline of 272,549- 
customers in 2001. This decrease in customers is attnbutable 
pnmarily to customer attntron and a decrease of 63,875 customers 
due to the dispoation of operations. Addiuonally, the number of 
Protection One customers declined by 62,443 customers due to the 
convemon of accounts to a common billing and monitoring system. 
This new system reports number of customer accounts on the basis oC 
one customer for every location p m d e d  semce even if protection 
One has separate contracts to plmride multiple semces at a given 
location. Prevlous systems utihzed a number of ddfemt bdling and 
monitoring software programs, some of which would count each 
separate contracted service as a separate account regardless of 
location 
Loss before interest and taxes increased $71 4 rmllion due pnmarily 
to the decrease in sales. Cost of sales decreased $41.7 million due 
pnmanly to the discontinuation of Protecnon One5 patrol sennas in 
May 2001, consolidation of Protection One customer monitonng 
faalities, a reduction of Protection Ones telecommunications 
expense, consolidation of monitonng and customer service functions 
and the decline in customer accounts caused by dispositions of 
operations and attntion See "- Other Infomtion - Monitored 
Services -Attrition" below for additional information. 

Other I 

Other includes an approximate 45% interest in ONEOK at December 
31,2002, and other investments in the aggregate not matenal to our 
business or resulp of operations. Details concerning EBIT 
attributable to ths  segment are as follows 
For the years ended December 31, ro(Iz 2001 I moo 

(h Thaaasldg 
sales . . . ... $ 252 $ 1,359 $ 1,484 
Depredatlonandamorbzatm . .. 58 364 2,116 
Earnings (losses) before interest and taxes 68,491 23,936 169,211 

OnThoUsanQ) 
ldentifnble assets . . .. .... $770,834 $816.919 $664.774 

~~ 

2002 compared to 2001: Sales shown above are fmm a paging 
semces business that was sold in the first quarter of 2002. EBIT 
increased appronmately 844.6 million pnmarily as a result of greater 
investment earrungs, which increased $32.8 million as a result of the 
receipt of a one-time payment of apprommately $14.2 million related 
to a prtd recovery of an investment and the 811.1 million write 
down in 2001 of the cost basis to the fair value of certain secuntles 
held for investment. We also had a $16 3 million decline on the loss 
on the extinguishment of debt 
200 I compared to 2000: EBIT decreased approximately $145 3 million 
due to vanous cvenls afleciing investment earnings in 2001 and 2000 
Investment earnings in 2001 inchided 541 8 inillion of ONEOK 
investment income and ;I $5 3 million gain related to the sale of an 

J 
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investment These earnings were reduced by an $1 1.1 million wnte 
down in 2001 of the cost bass to the fair value of certain secunties 
held for investment and other investments. Investment earnings 
in 2000 included $45.3 million of ONEOK investment income, a 
$91.1 million gain from the sale of our investment in a gas com- 
pression-company, a,$9.6-millioE gin-related -- .- - - -. to -, an . . investment and a 
$24.9 million gain from the sale of investments in pa&ig Com~riieS. . 

WESTAR ENERGY CONSOLIDATED 

The following dscuson addresses changes in other items affecting 
net income for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000. 

Interest Expense 

Interest expense increased $8.5 million due pnmanly to higher interest 
rates. In 2002, we relinanced short-term debt wth long-tern debt 
issued at interest rates higher than the interest rate on the short-term 
debt. The m t e d  average interest fate on debt outstandmg mcreased 
to 6.34% at December 31,2002 from 3.43% at December 31,2001. 

Interest expense decreased $20.7 million due to lower interest rates 
and lower outstanding debt at Protection One The weighted average 
interest me on our $500 million revolwng credit faality that was 
retmd wth proceeds from the May 10,2002 and June 6,2002 debt 
refinancings declined to 3.43% at December 31,2001 from 8 11% at 
December 3 1,2000. 

Income Taxes 

Income taxes decreased $89 3 million in 2002 compared to 2001. 
This was due primanly to the increased loss before income taxes and 
flow through tax benefits associated with our secunty busmness. Our 
overall effective tax rate changed from a 64.0% benefit in 2001 to a 
48.7% benefit in 2002. The change in out effective tax rate was due 
primanly to decreased earnings before income taxes and flow through 
tax benefits associated with our security b n e s s ,  including minority 
interest share of tax benefits and goodwill impairment. Other flow 
through tax bendts from dividends received, low mcome housing tax 
credits, the amortmtion of prior years' investment tax mdits, tax 
reserve adjustment and the tax benefits from corporate owned life 
insurance contributed to this change m the effective tax rate. 

Income taxes decreased $140.7 milhon UI ZOO1 compared to 2000. 
Rnrs was due pnmanly to hamg a loss before income taxes in 2001 
Our overall effecnve tax rate changed from a 33.9% expense in 2000 to 
a 64.0% benefit in 2001. The change in our effective tax rate was due 
pnmanly to having a loss before income taxes in 2001. The tax 
benefit from havlng a loss, combined wth flow through net tax 
benefits from diwdends received, low income housing tax credits, the 
amortization of pnor years' investment tax credits, the amortization 
of non-deductible goodwll, the effect of state income taxes and the 
tax benefits from corporate owned life insurance created this swng in 
the effective tax rate 

2002 compared to 200 I I 

2001 compared to 2000 

2002 compared to 200 I 

2001 compared to 2000 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Overview 
We believe we will have suffiaent cash to fund hture operations of 
our business, debt reductions, including the annual $100 million 
debt reductions in 2003 and 2004 ordered by the KCC, and the 

- payment-.of-dividends, from -a gpmbination of-cash on hand, cash 
flow, proceeds from the sales of our non-utility and noncofe assets 
and available borrowings under our revolving credit facility 
Uncertainues affecting our ability to meet these requirements include, 
among others, the factors affecung sales described above, economic 
conditions, including the impact of inflation on operating expenses,' 
regulatory actions, including the KCC orders received in the last 
quarter of 2002 and first quarter of 2003, our ability to implement 
the Debt Reduction Plan, compliance with future environmental 
regulations and the impact of our monitored seMces' operations and 
financial condition. 
As of December 31,2002, our total outstandmg long-term debt was 
appmxhtely $3.4 billion, of whch approximately $3.0 billion was the 
obligauon of our utility operations. In addtion, as of December 31, 
2002, our long-tern Itabilities lncluded $214.5 million related to 
outstanding mandatorily redeemable preferred secunties. Ths large 
amount of indebtedness could have a negative impact on, among 
other things, our abhty to obtain additional financing m the future 
for working capital, capital expenditures and general corporate 
purposes and our ability to wthstand a downturn in our business or 
the economy in general. 
At December 3 1,2002, current matunties of long-term debt U I ~  
$148.8 million from 2001 due primarily to the upcoming matunties 
of the Kansas Gas and Elecmc Company (KGE) 7.6% first mortgage 
bonds that are due December 15,2003 and the putabldcallable notes 
due on August 15,2003. We have irtwocably deposited with the 
bond trustee funds suifiaent to prowde for the futuh pnnapal and 
intenst payments on these 7.6% first mortgage bonds. 

Capital Resources 
We had $123 million in cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 
2002. We wnader cash equivalents to be highly liquid i n e n t s  
mth a maturity of three months or less when purchased. At 
December 31, 2002, we also had $159 million of restricted cash 
classified as a current asset and $35.8 million of restricted cash 
classified as a long-term asset. The following table details our 
restricted cash as of December 31,2002: 

Fundsintrustfordebtrepayments . . . 
Protection One worker3 compensation 
Prepaid capacity and transmmion agreement 
Collateralized letters of aedd ... . 
Collateralized surety bonds .. 
Cash held in exrow as required by certain letters 

of credit and various other deposits 
Total 

. 

(In 'Ihwaand21 
$145,260 I -  . 2,615 - 
' 2,110 30,161 - 3,400 - 2,199 

9.02 1 - 
5 1 59.006 $35.760 
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We had $149 million of available borrawngs under our revolwng 
credit facility at December 3 1,2002 

The Debt Reduction Plan prowdes for a systematic dlsposal of our 
non-utility and non-core assets and, if necessary, a sale of our equity 
The proceeds of these transactions wll be used to reduce debt. We 
may reduce debt pursuant to terms smed in the debt agreements or 
through open market purchases or tender offers. We may engage a 
financlal advlsor to assuit in completing debt repurchases in the most 
cost-effective manner 
We have regwered debt secunties for sale wth the SEC. As of 
December 31,2002, these included $400 million of unsecurrd senior 
notes, $500 million of our first mortgage bonds, and $50 million of 
KGE first mortgage bonds. Any lssuance of debt would require that 
we seek KCC approval. 
The Westar Energy mortgage prohibits additional first mortgage 
bonds from being issued (except in connection wth certain 
re fundings) unless Westar Energyb unconsolidated net earnings 
available for inteest, depreciation and property retirement (which as 
defined, does not include earnings or losses attnbutable to the 
ownership of securities of subsdianes), for a penod of 12 consecutive 
months wthm 15 months preceding the issuance, are not less than 
the greater of twce the annual interest charges on, and 10% of 
the pnnapal amount of, all first mortgage bonds outstandmg after 
giwng effect to the proposed ssuance. In addition, the issuance of 
bonds 1s subject to limitations based upon the amount of bondable 
property additions. As of December 31, 2002, $70.4 million 
pnncipal amount of additional first mortgage bonds could be w e d  
under the most restnctive provlsions in the mortgage, except in 
connection wth refundings. 
KGES mortgage prohihts additional first mortgage bonds from bemg 
lssued (except m connection wth certain refundmgs) unless KGES 
net earnings before mcome taxes and before promon for ntirement 
and depreaation of property for a penod of 12 consecutive months 
wthin 15 months preceding the issuance are not less than either two 
and one-half times the annual interest charges on, or 10% of the 
pnncipal amount of, all KGE first mortgage bonds outstandmg after 
giwng effect to the proposed Issuance. In addition, the issuance 
of bonds IS subject to limitauons based upon the amount of bond- 
able property additions. As of December 31, 2002, approximately 
$302 5 million pnncipd amount of additional KGE first mortgage 
bonds could be issued under the most restnctive prowions in 
the mortgage 
We may from time to time issue equity secunties in private 
transactions and public offenngs. We have approximately 11.2 milhon 
shares of common stock regstered for sale wth the SEC. 

Cash Flows from (used in) Operating Activities 
Our pnmary sources of operating cash flows are the operations of our 
electric utility and monitored semces businesses and diwdends from 
our ONEOK investment. Cash flows from operating actiwues increased 

$154 4 million to $372.7 million in 2002, from $218 3 million in 
2001. This increase is mostly attnbutable to an approximate $131 2 
million increase in utility gross maqp for 2002 compared to 2001. 

Cash flows from operating actiwties decreased 3252 5 million to 
$218.3 million in 2001, from $470 8 million in 2000. This decrease 
1s mostly attributable to changes in our working capital. Operating 
cash flows in 2001 also decreased due to the continued declines in 
Protection Ones and Protection One EuropeS customer bases, which 
reduced our recurnng monthly cash flow stream Operating cash 
flows also decreased in 2001 as we purchased additional coal to 
restock our inventory from the levels that exlsted in December 2000 

Cash Flows from (used in) Investing Activities 
In general, cash used for investing purposes relates to the growth and 
maintenance of the operations of our electnc utility and monitored 
services businesses. The utility business is capital intensive and 
requires agnificant investment in plant on an annual basis. W spent 
$126.8 million in 2002, $227.0 million in 2001 and $285.4 million 
in 2000 on net additions to utility property, plant and equipment, 
whch included $52 2 million in 2001 and $87.7 million in 2000 for 
new generation facilities. We did not construct any new generation 
facihties in 2002. The monitored services business also requires 
sigdcant capital related to the generation of customer accounts. 
Investment in customer accounts amounted to $43.4 million in 
2002, $23.1 mllion in 2001 and $45.7 million in 2000. 
Investing cash flows were also impacted significantly by disposrtions 
of monitored services businesses and the sale of marketable 
securities. These actiwties pmded cash of $16.8 mdlion in 2002, 
$50.8 million in 2001 and $218 6 million in 2000. 

Cash Flows from (used in) Financing Activities 
We used $203.6 million of net cash flows in 2002 for financing 
activities compared to net cash flows from finanmg activities of 
$22 million in 2001, pnmarily due to the debt refinancings 
completed dunng 2002 In 2001 * an mcrease in short-term debt was 
the pnnapal source of cash flows from fmnang activities. Cash from 
finanang activities was used to fund the retirement of long-term debt, 
deposts to the trustee to p m d e  for repayment of an obligation, the 
acqulsinon of ueas~ry stock, and the payment of diwdmds on our 
common stock. In 2000, we reduced our indicated annual dividend 
from $2.14 per share to $1.20 per share. ThE reduction, and 
continued reinvestment of dividends by our shareholders through 
the dividend reinvestment program, resulted in a significant 
reduction in our net cash diwdend requirements. 

Future Cash Requirements , 

The November 8, 2002 KCC order requires us to reduce debt by 
$100 million annually in each of the next two years from internally 
generated cash flow. While we beheve we can generate this level of 
internally generated cash flow, if we fail to meet this requirement, the 
KCC may, among other things, require us to reduce or eliminate our 
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dividend or ssue equity Secunties In the Debt Reduction Plan, we 
aniicipate meeting the 5 100 million debt reduction goal. 

We have a potential obligation to make a cash payment dated to 
the call option associated Hnth our putabldcallable notes. See u- 
Summary of Significant Items - Call Option" above for additional 
information. 
Our business requires significant capital mvestments Through 2005, 
we expect we wll need cash mostly for ongoing utihty construction 
and maintenance programs designed to maintain and improve 
facilities providing electric semce We do not anticipate needing 
additional genetating capacity thmugh ' .  2005. ' 

Capital expenditures for 2002 and anticipated capital expenditures 
for 2003 through 2005 are as foUows 

(In Thousands) 

.. . $126,763 $51,998 $178,761 
150,600 35,560 186,160 

2002 . . . . . . . . 
2003 .. . . .. 
2004 . . 175,600 36,580 212,180 
200s . .. 160,400 40,580 200,980 

These estimates are prepared for planning purposes and will be 
rewed from time to time as discussed in Note 2 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, "Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policie~.~ Actual expenditures wU ddfer h m  our estimates. 
Matunties of long-term debt as of December 3 1 , 2002 are as follows: 

~~ 

Year Mnupal Amount 

On Timmdsl 
2003~ . . .  $ 316,736 
2004" .. 302,132 
200s . . 858,964 
2006 1 10,676 
2007 755,855 
Thereafter 1,030,696 

. $3,375,059 

"Includes $135 million in debt for whuh funds have been irrevocably deposited with 

*'In addl n, we are requlrrd to rrduce utiltty debt by at least $100 million annually 
the bond trustee to pmvufefor repayment ofthe obligaaon 

in cad ofthe n u t  two years as orderrd by Lhc KCC 
~~ 

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 
In the COUR of our business actiwties, we enter into a variety of 
contractual obligations and cornmema1 commitments Some of these 
result in direct obligations that are reflected in our consolidated 
balance sheets whle others are commitments, some firm and some 
based on uncertainties, that are not reflected in our underlying 
consolidated financial statements The obligations listed below do not 
include amounts for on-going needs for which no contractual 

obhgations d as of December 3 1 , 2002, and repmsent only amounts 
that we were contractually obligated to meet as of December 31 , 2002. 

The following table summanzes the projected future cash payments 
for our contractual obligations existing at December 31,2002: 

Contractual Cash Obligations . 

OnlkJUsam 
C o n t r a c t U a l o b I i ~  
long-termdebt 

l e a d '  .. ... $3,347.703 5310,642 $1,148,982 S 857.383 $1,030,696 
Capitalkases . . 30,633 5,581 10,849 10,186 4,017 
Restrictedcash 

exdudingapltal 

depositedwlth 
the trustee for 
defeasad  (135,000) (135.W 1 - - - 

Adl-d 
long-termdebt 3,243,336 181,223 1,159,831 867,569 1,034,713 ' 

Operating leases 692,605 61,484 103,052 140,922 387,147 i 

Fowllfud . 2,076,427 177,203 298,281 243,705 1,357,238 
Nudearfuel . . 84,641 18.651 9,746 13,960 42.284 
Call opbon on 

putablekallable . 
notes ' . . 62,200 62,200 - - - 

UmdttKmal 
purchase 
obllgatlons . 32,225 24,475 7.739 11 - 

Total contractual 
obligatums, 
tndudfng dj~sted 
bng-termdebt $6,191,434 $525,236 $1,578,649 $1,266,167 $2,821,382 

w5ee Note 12 o/&e Notes to Consoldated hnanaal Statements, Tong-Term Debt." 

@See .- Futurr Cash Requirrmenrs" abovefor a dcxnption offunds lhat have &en 

"We have an obligation IO reduce debt by $100 mifflon annually in 2003 and 2004 

for individuaf long-term debt matunties. 

iryevMoMy deposited with the bond trusteelor repayment ojdebt 

Long-term debt: Our long-term debt exsung as of December 31, 
2002 1s debt that has a final matunty of January 1, 2003 or later 
(includmg current matuntles of long-term debt) See Note 12 of the 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, uLong-Tem Debt," for 
detailed information. 
Capital leases: We maintain capita1 leases in the ordinary course of 
our business actiwties. These leases primarily include those for 
vehicles and equipment. See Note 25 of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, for additional information. 
Operating leases: We maintain oFrating leases in the ordinary 
course of our buslness activities. These leases rnclude chose for otlice 
space, operating facilities, office equipment and operating equipment. 
These leases have various terms and expiration dates from 1 to 16 
years See Note 25 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
"leases," for additional infoxmation. ' 
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Fossil fuel: To supply a portion of the fossil fuel requirements for our 
generating plants, we have entered into vanous commitments to 
obtain and deliver coal and for natural gas transportation. Some of 
these contracts contain provisions for price escalation and minimum 
purchase commitments. For additional information, see Note 17 of 
the Notes to Consolidated Finanaal Statements, "Commitments and 
Contingenaes - Fuel Commitments." 

Nuclear fuel: To supply a portion of the fuel requirements for 
Wolf Creek, we have entered into various commitments to obtain 
nuclear fuel consuting of uranium concentrates, conversion and 
enrichment. See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financlal 
Statements, 'Commitments and Contingencies - Fuel Commit- 
ments," for morr details. 
Call option on putabldcallable notes: For information concerning 
a potenaal liability under the call option related to the lssuance of 
$400 mllion of our putabldcallable notes, see Note 14 of the Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements, 'Call Opnon." 
Unconditional purchase obligations We use purchase obligations as 
pan of our ongoing utility operations and construction program 
Protection One5 unconditional purchase obligations represent its 
contmct tariff for telecommunication services. See Note 17 of the 
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements, "Commitments and 
Contingenaes - Purchase Orders and Contracts: for additional 
information. 

The followmg table summarizes our commercial commitments by 
date of expiration d u n g  at December 3 1,2002: 

Commercial Commitments 

Ltnesofcredit . 
outrtandiiletters 

ofcredit . 
Guarantees . . . 
Total c o m m d  

commdments . 

$ 1,000 $ - Sl.OO0 S - I -  

9,859 8,509 150 - 1,200 
1,344 162 352 393 437 

112,203 $8,671 $1,502 $393 $1,637 

Lines of credit: Certain banks pmwde us a revohng credit facility 
on a committed basis totaling $150 mdlion. As of December 31, 
2002, borromgs on the revolving credit facility were 3 1 .O million, 
leamg $149 million remaimng under this facility In addition, we 
have a commitment to Protection One for a line of credit of up to 
$228.4 million. As of March 14,2003, Protection One had b o m d  
$215.5 mdlion under this facility, resulting in an undrawn commit- 
ment of $12.9 million. Ttus commitment is e l i m t e d  in consolidaaon 
and is therefore not mcluded UL the table above. 
Outstanding letters of credit: We obtain letters of credit in the 
ordmary course of our operating actiwties for energy trading, worker5 
compensation, an aircraft lease and surety bonds. As of December 3 1, 
2002, we had outstanding letters of credit of $1.2 million related to 
our power marketing and trading actiwties and $8 7 million related 
to other operating actiwties 
Guarantees: In 1998, we lssued a hnancial guarantee of an obligation 
of Onsite Energy Corporation under which our maxmum liability 

was $1 3 million This guarantee was released in the first quarter 
of 2003. 

Debt Covenants 
Our debt finanang agreements require, among other rrstrictions, that 
we satisfy certain financial covenants. These debt instruments contain 
restnctions based on EBITDA. The definition of EBITDA varies 
among the various indentures. EBITDA is generally derived by 
adding to income (loss) before income taxes, the sum of interest 
expense and depreciation and amortization expense. However, under 
the varying defimtions of the indentures, additional adjustments are 
required A violation of these restrictions would result in an event of 
default that would allow the lenden to declare all amounts outstand- 
ing immedlately due and payable. We a n  In compliance with these 
covenants The most restrictive of these covenants in Westar Energyk 
debt instruments are as follows: 

Consolidated Leverage Ratio: Consohdated total debt to earning 
before interest, taxes, depreclatlon and amortiation (EBITDA) for 
the most recent four consecutive quartets must be less than 6.00 to 
1.00 at December 31,2002 and 5.75 to 1 .OOeach quarter thereafter 
until June 2005. At December 31,2002, our ratio was 5.13. 
Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio: EBITDA to co&hdated 
merest expense for the most recent four consecutive quarters must 
be greater than 2 M  to lrxl At December 31,2002, our mowas 2.54. 
Consolidated Debt toTotal Capital Ratio: Consolidated total debt 
to consolidated total capital for the most recent quarter must be less 
than 0.65 to 1.00. At December 31,2002, our ratio was 0.618. 

The indentures governing Protection One's public indebtedness 
require it to SatisFy cenm finanal covenants in order to b o r n  
additional funds. At December 31, 2002, Protection One was in 
compliance wlth the covenants under its debt instruments. The most 
restnctive of these covenants in Protection One5 debt instruments a= 
as follows: ' 
Total Debt to EBITDA Ratio: Total debt to annuallzed EBITJIA for 
the most recent quarter must be less than 6 0 to 1 .O. For the quarter 
ended December 3 1,2002, the rauo was 4.0 to 1 .O. 

m EBITDA to Interest Expense Ratio: EBITDA to intemt expense 
for the most recent quarter must be water than 2.25 to 1 .O. For the 
quaner ended December 31,2002, the ratio was 3.1 to 1.0. 
Senior Debt to EBITDA Ratio: Senior debt to annualized EBITDA 
for the most recent quarter must be less than 4.0 to 1.0. For the 
quarter ended December 31,2002, the rat10 was 2.9 to 1.0. 

The indentures contain other covenants that impose operational 
restrictions on Protection One that are not as burdensome to 
Protection One as those lmed above, and none are based on credit 
ratings A violation of the indenture covenants would result in an 
event of default that would allow the lenders to declare all amounts 
outstandmg immediately due and payable. 
Followng a change of control of Protection One, its revolwng credit 
facility prowded by Westar Industnes becomes due in full. The 
holders of Protection One5 senior subordinated discount notes and 
convertible notes have an optional redemption at apprommately 
101% of par, and holders of Protection One5 senior notes and senior 
subordinated notes have an optional redemption'at 101% of par if a 
change in control is coupled wth two ratings downgrades 

' 

I 
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Sale of Accounts Receivable 
On July 28,2000, Wstar Energy and KGE entered into an agreement 
under which we transfer an undivlded percentage ownership interest 
in a revolving p l  of our accountS receivable anung from the sale of 
electricity to a multi-seller conduit administered by an independent 
financial institution through the use of a specla1 purpose entity (SPE). 
We account for h i s  transfer as a sale in accordance with SFAS No. 140, 
yAccounting for Transfers and Senncing of Financial Assets and 
Exanguishment of Liabhties.” The agreement was amended on July 25, 
2002 and is annually renewable upon agreement by all parties. The 
amendment to the agreement extended the term until July 23,2003 
and limited the amount of the accounts receivable we had a right to 
sell dunngcertain periods to $125 million. 
Under the terms of the agreement, Westar Energy and KGE may 
transfer accounts nceivable to the bankruptcy-remote SPE, and the 
conduit must purchase from the SPE an undivlded ownership 
mterest of up to $125 million in those receivables. The SPE has been 
structured to be legally separate from us, but it is wholly owned and 
consolidated. The percentage ownership interest in receivables 
purchased by the conduit may increase or decrease over time, 
depending on the charactensucs of the SPEb receivables, including 
delinquency rates and debtor concentrations. 
Under the terms of the agreement, the conduit pays the SPE the hce 
amount of the undnrided interest at the time of purchase. Subsequent 
to the initial purchase, additional interests are sold and collections 
applied by the SPE to the conduit, resulting in an adjustment to the 
outstanding conduit interest. 
We recod adrmnistrative expense on the undivided interest owned 
by the conduit, whch was $2.9 million for the year ended 2002, 
$5.4 million for the year ended 2001 and $3.7 million for the year 
ended 2000. These expenses are included in other income (expense) 
in OUT consolidated statements of income. 
The outstanding balance of SPE receivables was $48.2 million at 
December 31,2002 and $43 3 million at December 31,2001, which 
is net of an undivided interest of $1 10.0 million and $100.0 million, 
respectively, in receivables sold by the SPE to the conduit. Our I 

retained interest in the SPES receivables is reported at fair value and IS 

subordinate to, and provids credit enhancement for, the ConduitS 
ownership interest in the SPES mceivables Our retained interest 1s 
available to the conduit to pay any fees or expenses due to the 
conduit and to absorb all credit losses incurred on any of the SPEb 
receivables. The retained interest is included in accounts receivable, 
net, in our consolidated balance sheets. 
A termination event wll be triggered under the terms of the 
agreement if W t a r  Eneqyb credit rating ceases to be at least BB- by 
Standard & Pools Ratings Group (WP) or if the ssuer credit ranng for 
\nksrar Energy ceases to be at least Ba3 by Moody’s Investors Semce 
(Mood@). If a termination event were to occur, the administrauve 
agent would be requmd to gwe notice to us at least five b m e s  days 
pnor to a tennination of the facility TIUS notice prowsion’aUows for the 
adminluranve agent to waive the termination event by not gwng notice 
or, in the event notice is gtven, allows us to repay the facility 

Refinancings 
On May 10,2002, we completed offenngs for $365 million of our 
first mortgtge bonds and $400 million of our unsecured senior notes, 
both of which WU be due on May 1,2007. The fim mortgage bonds 
bear interest at an annual rate of 7 7/8% and the unsecured senior 
notes bear interest at an annual rate of 9 Y4%. Interest on the b s t  
mortgage bonds and unsecured senior notes is payable semi-annually 
on May 1 and November 1 ofeach year. The net proads froin these 
offenngs were used to repay outstanding mdebtednes of $547 &on 
under our existmg secud bank term loan, provide for the repayment 
of $100 million of our 7.25% first mortgage bonds due August 15, 
ZOO2 together with accrued merest, reduce the outstandmgbahce 
on our existing secured revolving credn faclity and pay fees and 
expenses of the transactions In conjunction wth our May 10,2002 
financng, we amended our secured revolving credit facility to reduce 
the total commitment under the facility to $400 million from 
$500 million and to release $100 million of our fitst mortgage bonds 
from collateral. 
On June 6, 2002, we entered into a secured credit agreement 
prowding lor a $585 million term loan and a $150 million revolvmg 
credit faplity, each maturing on June 6, 2005, pmded  that if we 
have not refinanced or prowded for the payment of our putabld 
callable notes due August 15,2003, or our 6.875% semor unsecured 
notes due August 1,2004, at least 60 days pnor to either of the 
respective due dates, the maturity date IS the date 60 dayspnor to either 
of the respective due dates. All loans under the d i t  agreement are 
secured by KGES first mortgage bonds. The proceeds of the tern loan 
were used to retire an existing $400 million revolving credit facility 
with an outstanding principal balance of $380 million, to provide 
for the repayment at matunty of $135 mUon principal amount of 
KGE first mortgage bonds due December 15, 2003 together with 
accrued interest, to repurchase approxmately $45 million of our 
outstanding unsecured notes and to pay customary fees and expenses 
of the transactions. 

Interest Rate Swap 
Effective October 4, 2001, we entefed mto a $500 million interest 
rate swap agreement with a term of two years. At that time, the effect 
of the swap agreement was to fix the annual interest me on the tern 
loan at 6.18%. In June 2002, we refinanced the term loan assoaated 
with this swap, which increased the effective rate of the swap to 
6.43%. At December 31,2002, the variable rate in effkct for the tern 
loan was 4.40%. Changes in the fair value of this cash flow hedge are 
due to fluctuamns in the vanable mterest rate. 

Capital Structure 
Our consolidated capital structure at December 31,2002 and 2001 
was as follows: 

’ 

Shareholden’ equtty . . . 22% 36% 
Preferredstodc . . . . 1  1 
Western R~SOUKK obligated mandatorily redeemable 

company subordinated debentures 5 4 
Long-term debt, net 72 59 

Total 100% 100% 

preferred securtties of subsldtary trusts, holding solely 
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Dividend Policy 
Our board of directors reviews our common stock diwdend policy 
from time to time Among the factors the board of directors considers 
in determining diwdend policy are earnings, cash flows, capital- 
nation ratios, regulation, including the KCCS order requiring us to 
reduce our outstanding debt, competition and financlal loan 
covenants. In February 2003, we declared a first-quarter 2003 
dividend of $0.19 per share. Our Articles of Incorporation restnct the 
payment of dividends or the mahg of other dlstnbuuons on our 
common stock while any preferred shares remain outstandmg unless 
certain capitalization ratios and other condltions are met. See Note 20 
of the Notes to Consolidated Finanml Statements, 'Common Stock, 
Preferred Stock and Other Mandatorily Redeemable Securities: for a 
descxiption of these provisions We do not expect these restrictions to 
have an impact on our ability to pay diwdends on our common stock 
at the current rate. 

Debt Repurchase Plans 
Protection One max from time to tlme, purchase its debt and equity 
securiues in the open market or through negotiated transactions. We 
may also purchase our debt. The timing, t e r n  of such purchases and 
amount of debt actually purchased will be determined based on KCC 
orders, market conditions and other factors. 

Equity Issuance Plans 
We may, from time to ume, issue equity securiues. 

Credit Ratings 
sbrp, Moody5 and Fitch Investors Setvice (Fitch) are independent 
credit-rating agencies that rate our debt secunties. These ratings 
lndicate the agenaes' assessment of our ability to pay interest and 
pnncipal on our secunties 
On April 2, 2002, Moody% downgraded its ratings on Protection 
Ones outstanchg secunties wth the outlook remaimng negative. On 
Apnl 29, 2002, Moody's confirmed out ratings wth a negative 
outlook. OnJanuary 29,2003, Fit& revised our and KGES hung 
Watch status from evolvmg to negative, but on March 11 , 2003, Fit& 
affirmed its mmgs for us and KGE and removed the ratings from 
Rating Watch Neganve. F o l l ~ ~ n g  the filing of the Debt Reduction 
Plan with the KCC, SdTP af€imed its m t q p  for us and KGE and 
removed all ratings from Creditwatch Negative, changmg such 
deslgnation to Creditwatch Developing on February 6,2003. 

As of March 14,2003, raw wth these agencies are as follows: 
wertar Pmtectbn Pmtection 
Energy westar KGE one One 

'z Unseaued Bond Unsecured Subordinated 
mna Debt Ratinm Debt UnrecwedDebt 

Energy Mortgage Senior seniw 

~~ 

S&P . . BBB- BB- BB+ B ccc+ 
F~ . .... BB+ BE- BB+ ccc+ ccc- 
MoodvS . . . Bal Ba2 Bal Caal C a d  

~ 

In general, declines in our credit ratings make debt finanmg more 
costly and more difficult to obtain on t e r n  that are economically 
favorable to us Westar Energy and KGE do not have any credit rating 
conditions in any of the agreements under which our debt has been 
issued, except for conditions in the agreements governing the sale of 
our accounts receivable discussed above 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Electric Util i  

On October 14,2002, we announced an agreement wth Midwest 
Energy, Inc. (Midwest Energy) for the sale to Midwest Energy of a 
portion of our transmssion and dlstribution assets and rights to 
pm.de s e m  to customers in an area of central Kansas. The sale will 
affect about l0,OOO customeF, or about 1.5% of our total customers, 
over 895 square mls. The area, which mcludes 42 towns, is on the 
west edge of our service terntory and is largely surrounded by 
Midwest EnergyS mung temtory The proposed sale is contingent 
upon approval by the KCC and FERC. KCC hearings have been 
scheduled to begin on May 20,2003 We can give no assurance as to 
when or if t h ~  transaction will occur. From time to time we may 
consider similar transactions. , 

Potential Sale of Utility Assets 

City of Wichita Franchise 
KGES franchise wth the City of Wichta to provide mail electric 
service is effective through December 1, 2003. We are currently 
negotiating with the City of Wichita for a long-term franchise 
agreement. There can be no assurance that we can successfully 
renegouate the franchise with terms slmilar, or as favorable, as those 
ln the current fmchise. Under Kansas law, KGE will continue to have 
the right to serve the customers m Wchm following the expination of 
the franchise. Customers wrthin the Wichita metropolitan area 
account for approxlmately 21% of our total energy sales volumes. 

Effective January 1, 2002, we began taking Network Integration 
Transmssion S ~ M C ~  under the SPPS Open Access Transmission 
Tariff. This pmmdes a cost-effective way for us to participate in a 
broader market of generation resources with the possibility of lower 
transmsmm costs. T ~ I S  tariff prowdes for a zonal rate structure, 
whereby transmisson customers pay a pm rata share, in the form of a 
resewation charge, for the use of the faalities for each transrmssion 
owner that serves them. As a result, the SPP has operational conml 
over our transmission system, although we still own our transmission 
assets and maintam responsiblity for dvtchw, maintemnce and 
storm restoration. 

Network Integration Transmission Service 

Currentls all ~wenues collected wthm a zone ~IZ allocated back to 
the t m b o n  m e r  serving the zone. Since we axe a tmmmss~ . 'on 
provider for our zone and are currently the only transmission 
customer talangservice from that zone, we are cumtly b e i n g d  
100% of the zonalcosts andmeivmgall of the costs.back asrwenue, 
less sexicing fees. In 2002, these network integration uansmrssion 
costs were approximately $65.9 million, and the associated reymues 
were appmmmately $60.1 million, for a net expense of app- 
$5 8 million. The revenues received am reflected in electnc operatmg 
revenues, and the related charges are expensed. 

Stranded costs for a utility business are commitments or investments 
in, and canylng costs on, property, plant and equipment, and other 
regulatory assets that exceed the amount that can be recovered in a 
competitive market We currently apply accounting standards that 
recognize the economic eliects of rate regulation and record regulatory 

Stranded Costs 
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assets and liabilities related to our electric utility operations If we 
determine that we no longer meet the cntena of SFAS No. 7 1 , we m a y  
have a matenal non-cash charge to earnings Reasons for dscontinuing 
SFAS No 7 1 accounting treatment include increasing competition that 
restncts our ability to charge prices needed to recover costs already 
incurred or a significant change by regulators from a cost-based rate 
ngulation to another form of rate regulation. Wk penodically review 
SFAS No. 71 cnteria and believe our net regulatory assets, including 
those related to generation, are probable of future recovery. If we 
dtxontinue SFAS No 71 accounting treatment based upon competihve 
or other events, such as successful municipalmtion by areas we serve. 
the value of our net regulatory assets and our utility plant mvvestments, 
particularly wblf Creek, may be ngnificantly impacted 
Regulatory changes could adversely impact our ability to recover our 
investment in these asas. As of December 3 1 , 2002, we have recoded 
regulatory assets that are currently subject to recovery m future rates 
of approximately $360.3 million Of thts amount, $198 9 million IS a 
receivable for mcome tax benefits previously passed on to customers 
The remainder of the regulatory assets are items that may gwe rise to 
stranded costs, including debt issuance costs, deferred employee 
benefit costs, deferred plant costs and coal contract settlement costs 

In a competitive enwronment, we may not be able to fully recover our 
entire investment in Wlf Creek. KGE presently owns 47% of Wolf 
Creek We may also have stranded costs from an inability to recover 
our enwonmental remediation costs and long-term fuel contract 
costs in a competitive enwronment. If we determine that we have 
stranded costs and we cannot recover our mvestment in these assets, 
our future net utility income wll be lower than our histoncal net 
utility income has been unless we compensate for the loss of such 
income with other measures. 

€PA New Source Review 
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is conducting an 
enforcement ntiative at a number of coal-fired power plants in an 
effort to determine whether modifications at those facilities were 
subject to New Source .Review requirements or New Source 
Performance Standards under the Clean Air Act The EPA has 
requested information from us under Section 114(a) of the Clean tzlr 
Act (Section 114). A Section 114 information request requires us to 
prowde responses to specific EPA quesnons regarding certain projects 
and maintenance acuviues that the EPA believes may have violated 
the New Source Performance Standard and New Source Remew 
requirements of the Clean h r  Act. The EPA contends that power 
plants are required to update emssion controls at the time of major 
maintenance or capital activlty We believe that maintenance and 
capital activities performed at our power plants are generally routme 
in nature and are typical for the industry. We are complymg wth ths  
information request, but cannot predict the outcome of this 
investigation at thE time. Should the EPA determine to take action, 
the resulting additional costs to comply could be matenal WE would 
expect to seek recovery through rates of any settlement amounts. 
The EPA has Initiated civll enforcement actions against other 
unaffiliated utilities as part of 11s initiative Settlement agreements 
entered into in connection w t h  some of these actlons have provided 
for expenditures to be made over cxtended time penods 

Superfund Sites 
In December 1999, we were identified as one of more than 1,000 
potentially responsible parties at an EPA Superfund site in Kansas 
City, Kansas (Kansas City site). Based upon prevlous expenence and 
the limited nature of our busin- transactions wth the previous 
owners of the ate, our obligation, if any, at the Kansas City site is not 
expected to have a matenal impact on our financial position or results 
of operations. 

, Nuclear Decommissioning 
Decommissioning is a nuclear industry term for the permanent 
shutdown of a nuclear power plant and the removal of radioacave 
components in accordance with Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
(NRC) requirements. The NRC will terminate a plants license and 
release the property for unrestricted use when a company has 
reduced the residual radioactivity of a nuclear plant to a level 
mandated by the NRC. The NRC requires companies unth nuclear 
plants to prepare formal financlal plans to fund decommissioning. 
These plans are designed so that funds required for decommissioning 
wdl be accumulated prior to the termination of the license of the 
related nuclear power plant. 
We a m e  decommissiomng costs over the expected life of the Wolf 
Creek generating Facility. The accrual is based:on estimated 
unrecovered decommissiomng costs, whch consider inflation Over 
the remaining esumated life of the generating facility and are net of 
expected earnings on amounts recovered from customers and 
deposited in an external trust fund. 
The KCC mews our decommBioning fund financial plans in two 
phases Phase one is the approval of the decommaoning study, the 
current year dollar amount and the future year dollar amount. Phase 
two is the filing of a "funding schedule" by the owner of the nuclear 
facility detailing its plans of how to fund the future year dollar 
amount for the pro rata share of the plant. 
On February 25, 2002, we filed an application wth the KCC to 
modify the funding schedule to reflect an assumed life of Wolf Creek 
through 2045 (see Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements, "Rate Matters and Regulation?. This modification was 
granted on March 8,2002. The fillng reflects the current estimate in 
1999 dollars of $221 million, but a future estunate in 2045 through 
2054 of $1.28 billion. An updated decommissioning and 
dismantlement cost estimate was filed with the KCC on August 30, 
2002 Costs outlined by this study were developed to decommtssion 
WoIf Creek followng a shutdown. The analyses relied upon the site- 
specific, technical dormation developed in 1999, updated to reflea 
current plant conditions and opahng assumptions. Based on this 
study, our share of Wolf Creeks decommssioning costs, under the 
immedmte dismantlement method, is estimated to be approximately 
$220 million in 2002 dollars. These costs include decontamination, 
dismantling and site restoration and are not da ted ,  escalated, or 
ducounted over the period of expenditure We anticipate a KCC 
order on the August 2002 decommissioning study in the second 
quarter of 2003. The actual decommlssioning costs may vary from 
the estimates because of changes in technology and changes In c o s  
for labor, matenals and equipment 
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We wdl file a funding schedule to reflect the KCCs order on the 
August 2002 decommissioning study by the end of the second 
quarter of 2003 and antiapate a KCC order on the funding schedule 
in the third quarter of 2003. 

Decommissioning costs are currently being charged to operating 
expense in accordance wth the July 25, 2001 KCC rate order as 
modified by the KCC’s approval of the March 8, 2002 funding 
schedule. Electnc rates charged to customers prowde for recovery of 
these decommissioning costs over the life of Wolf Creek as 
determined by the KCC through 2045. The NRC requires that funds 
to meet its decommwioning funding assurance requirement be in 
our decommissioning fund b>l the time our license expires in 2025 
\Ak believe that the KCC approved fundmg level will be sufficient to 
meet the NRC minimum financial assurance requirement However, 
our results of operations would be materially adversely affected if we 
are not a l l d  to recover the full amount of the funding requirement 
Amounts expensed approximated $3.85 d l i o n  111 2002 and will 
remain unchanged through 2044, subject to the August 2002 
decommmomg cost m e w  and revlsed funding schedule to be 
filed rn the second quarter of 2003. These amounts are deposited m 
an external trust fund. The average after-tax expected return on mt 
assets is 5.56%. 

Our investment in the decommssioning fund IS recorded at fair 
value, including reinvested earmng. It appmmmated $63.5 million 
at December 3 1 , 2002 and $66.6 million at December 31 , 2001. The 
balance in the tmst fund decreased from 2001 to 2002 due to the 
decline in the market value of equity secunties held in the trust. Tiust 
fund earnings accumulate in the fund balance and increase the 
recorded demmmtjsomng liability 

Asset Retirement Obligations 
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset 
Retirement Obligations.” SFAS NO 143 provides accounting require- 
ments for the recogmuon and measurement of liabilities associated 
unth the retirement of tangble long-lived assets. Under the standard, 
these llabilrties will be recognized at fair value as incurred and 
c a p b e d  and depreciated over the appropriate penod as pan of 
the cost of the related tangble long-lived assets. The adopuon of 
SFAS No. 143 wdl not impact income. Any mcome effects are offset 
by a regulatory asset created pursuant to SFAS No. 71. Retimment 
obligations associated wlth long-lived assets included within the 
scope of SFAS No. 143 are those for which a legal obhgation exists 
under enacted laws, statutes, wntten or oral contracts, including 
obligations ansing urider the doctnne of pmmlssory estoppel. 
W adopted SFAS No. 143 on January 1 , 2003, whch required us to 
recognize and esumate the liability for our 47% share of the estimated 
cost to decommission Wolf Creek. SFAS No 143 iequires the 
recognition of the present value of the asset retirement obligation 
we mcurred at the time Wolf Creek was placed into senwe in 1985. 
On January 1,2003, we recorded an asset mtirement obligation of 
$74 7 million In addition, we increased our property and equipment 
balance, net of accumulated depreciation, by $10 7 million These 
amounts were estimated based on the calculatlon guidelines of SFAS 
No 143 We also established a regulatory asset Cor $64 0 million, 

which represents the accretion of the liability since 1985 and the 
increased depreclation expense associated wth the increase in plant 

Monitored Services 

Effecuve January 1,2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142 and SFM No. 144. 
SFAS No 142 establishes new standards for accountmg for goodd. 
SFAS No. 142 continues to require the recognition of goodwill as an 
asset, but dscontinues amortuation of goodwll. In addition, annual 
impairment tests must be performed using a fair-value based 
approach as opposed to an undiscounted cash flow approach 
required under prior standads. The completlon of the impairment 
tests, based upon a valuation performed by an mdependent appraisal 
firm, as of January 1, 2002, indicated that the carrying values of 
goodw11 at Fbtecuon One and Pmtection One Europe had been 
impaired and impairment charges were recorded as discussed below. 
Another impairment test of Protection One5 goodwill and customer 
accounts was completed as of July 1, 2002 (the date selected for 
Protection One’s annual impairment test), wth the independent 
appraisal firm pmdmg the valuation of the estimated fair value of 
Protection One5 reporung units, and no impairment was indicated. 
Protection One5 stock price declined after regulatory orden were 
w e d  (see Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
”Rate Matters and Regulauon”), including the K C a  December 23, 
2002, order. As a result, Protection One retained the independent 
apprad firm to perfom an additional valuauon of Protection On& 
reporting units so it could perform an impairment test as of 
December 31, 2002, whch resulted in the additional impairment 
charge discussed below. 
SFAS No. 144 established a new approach to dete-g whether 
our customer account asset IS impaired. The approach no longer 
pexmits us to evaluate our customer account asset for impairment 
based on the net undsounted cash flow stream obmned over the 
remaining life of goodwll associated with the customer accounts 
being evaluated. Rather, the cash flow stream used under SFAS 
No 144 is limited to future ,estimated undiscounted cash flows from 
assets in the asset group, which include customer accounts, the 
pnmary asset of the reporting unit, plus an estimated amount for the 
sale of the remaining assets within the asset group (including 
goodvvll). If the undiscounted cash flow stream from the asset p u p  
E less than the combined book value of the asset group, then we axt 
required to mark the customer account asset down to fair value, by 
recodmg an impairment, to the extent fair value is less than our book 
value. To the extent net book value IS less than fkir value, no impair- 
ment would be recorded. 
The new rule substantially reduces the net undlscounted cash flows 
for customer account impairment evaluation purposes as compared 
to the previous accounting rules. The undiscounted cash flow stream 
has been reduced from the 16 year remaining life of the goodwill to 
the mne year remaining life of customer accounts for impairment 
evaluation purposes. Using these new guidelines, we determined that 
there was an indication of impairment of the canylng value of the 
customer accounts and an impairment charge was recorded as 
discussed below 

Impairment Charges 
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To implement the new standards, an independent appmd firm was 
engaged to help management estimate the fair values of Protection 
One5 and Protection One EuropeS goodwll and customer accounts. 
Based on this a n a l p ,  we recorded a charge in the first quarter of 
2002 of approximately $749.3 million (net of tax benefit and 
minority interests), of whch $555.4 million was related to g d w l l  
and $193.9 million was related to customer accounts 

The impairment chase for goodwill recorded in the first quarter of 
2002 is reflected in our consolidated statement of income as a 
cumulative effect of a change in accounting pnnciple. The impairment 
charge for customef accounts is reflected in our consolidated statement 
of income as an operanng expense. These impairment charges reduce 
the recorded value of these assets to their eshmated fiir values at 
January 1,2002. 

protection One completed an additional imprrnent test of goodwill 
as of December 31, 2002. We recorded an impairment charge of 
$79.7 million, net of tax benefit and minority interests, in the fourth 
quarter of 2002 to reflect the impaiment of all remairung goodwill of 
Protection One5 North America segment, which 1s reflected in our 
consolidated statement of income as an operatmg expense. 

We solicited and received indications of value for Protection One 
Europe from potential buyers. These indications of value are wthm a 
range we would be willing to accept. They mdicated the recorded 
goodwill of Protection One Europe had no value. Accordingly, we 
recorded a $36 million impairment charge in the fourth quarter of 
2002 to reflect the impairment of all remaining goodwill at Protection 
One Europe, which is reflected in our consolidated statement of 
mcome as an operatmg expense. We are wdling to accept offers m the 
indicated range due to our ability to use the tax loss on this sale to 
offset the taxes that would othemse be due fiom our sale of other 
investments. W will recognize a $58 mdlion tax benefit in the hrst 
quarter of 2003 when Protection One Europe 1s classified as a 
disconmued opemtion. 
These charges for the year ended December 31,2002 are detailed as 
follows: 

lmpaimnt lmpainnent 
of of Custonw 

toodmi AaOum T d  

(In- 

Protection One . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $719,885 $339,974 $1,059,859 
Protection One Europe ... . . . .  116,154 - 116,154 
Total pretax impairment . . . . .  $836,039 $339,974 1,176,013 

Immetaxllenefii ..... .... ( 203,958) 
Minonty in- . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (107,172) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 864,883 Netcharge - 
The investment at cost in customer accounts at December 31,2002 
was 8 1.1 billion and at December 3 1, 2001 was apprommately 
$1.4 bilhon. Accumulated amortization of the investment in customer 
accounts at December 31,2002 was $678 9 mdhon and at December 31, 
2001 was $614.5 million We recorded approlamately $83 3 million 
of customer account amortltation expense dunng the year ended 

December 31,2002, $148 0 million dunng the same penod of 2001 
and $158.7 million dunng the year ended December 31, 2000. 
Customer account amottlzatlon expense is reduced primarily as a 
result of the impaiment charge that reduced our customer account 
balance. The table below reflects the estimated aggregate customer 
account amortizauon expense for 2003 and each of the four succeed- 
ing fiscal years. 

_ _  -~ ~ 

OnTtmMmkI 
Estimatedamortizatmexpense .I. $83,389 $83,282 $66,998 $66,641 $60,320 

We are requid to perfom impairment t s t s  for long-lived assets 
prospectively for our monitored services segment as long as it 
continues to incur recumng losses or for other matters that may 
negatively impact its businesses. Goodwill will be required to be 
tested upon certain triggering events, which include recumng 
operating losses, adverse business conditions, adverse regulatory 

impact value. Given the potenhally negative impkations from the 
KCCS December 23, 2002 order, and the subsequent decline in 
Protection One5 stock price, Protection One tested its goodwill for 
impairment at December 3 1 , 2002, which resulted in the additional 
impaument charge d n d  above. If future impairment tests for 
either goodwill or customer accounts d c a t e  fair value is less than 
book value, we will be required to recogrue additional impairment 
charges on these ajsets m the future. Any such impairment chaqs  
could be ma~rial. 

' 

rulings, declines in market values and other matters that negatively 
! 

Change in Estimate of Customer Life 
During the first quarter of 2002, Prbtection One evaluated the 
estimated life and amortization rates for customer accounts, based on 
the results of a lifmg study performed by a third party appraisal firm 
in the first quarter of 2002. The report showed Protection one5 
North Amenca customer pool can expect a declining rwenue stream 
over the next 30 years wth an esnmated avemge remainmg life of 
9 years. Protecuon Ones Mulnfamily pool can expect a dechng 
revenue stream over the next 30 yean with an estimated average 
remaming life of 10 years. Taking into account the results of the lifhg 
study and the inherent expected d e c l i g  revenue streams for the 
North America and Multifamily customer pools, in particular the first 
five years, Protection One adjusted the rate of amortization on 
customer accounts for its North Amenca and Multifamily customer 
pools to better match the rate and period of amortuation expense 
wth the expected deche in revenues. In the first quarter of 2002, 
Protection One changed its amortization rate for its North America 
p l  to a 10-year 135% declining balance method from a 10-year 
130% decbng balance method. For the Multifamily pool, Protection 
One will contmue to amortize on a straight-line basis utdizing a shorter 
nine year life. htection One accounted for these amortizanon changes 
prospecuvely begmning January 1, 2002, as a change in estimate. 
These changes in estimates increased amortlzanon expense for the. 
year ended December 3 1 , 2002 by approximately $0.8 million, net of 
$0.5 million tax. 
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Attrition 
Customer attrition has a direct impact on the results of our monitored 
semces operations since it affects its revenues, amortlzation expense 
and cash flow. Attntion is defined as a ratio, the numerator of which IS 
the gross number of lost customer accounts for a p e n  penod, net of 
the adjustments described below, and the denominator of which is 
the average number of accounts for a given penod. In some instances, 
estimates are used to derive attrition data. Adjustments are made to 
lost accounts pnmarily for the net change, either pontive or negative, 
in the wholesale base and for accounts that are covered under a 
purchase price holdback and are “put” back to the seller. The gross 
accounts lost during a period are reduced by the amount of the 
guarantee provided for in the purchase agreements wth sellers. In 
some cases, the amount of the purchase holdback may be less than 
actual attrition expenence. Adjustments to lost accounts for purchase 
holdback is expected to be lower 111 the future because Protection 
One is purchasng fewer accounts in the types of transactlorn that 
create holdback and it has extinguished a substantial portion of its 
purchase holdback reserve. The gross accounts lost dunng a period 
are not reduced by “move in” accounts, which are accounts where a 
new customer moves into the premws equipped wth a Protection 
One security system and vacated by a pnor customer, or “competitive 
takeover” accounts, which are accounts where the owner of a premw 
monitored by a competitor requests that we prowde monitoring 

Actual attrition expenence shows that the relationship penod wth 
any indivldual customer can vary significantly Customers’ service 
can be dwontinued for a variety of reasons, including relocation, 
non-payment, customers’ perception of value and competition. A 
portion of the acquired customer base can be expected to dlscontinue 
senwe every year. Any significant change in the pattern of hEtoncal 
attntim expenence would have a material effect on our results of 
operations from monitored seMces. 
Attntion is monitored each quarter based on an annualized and 
trailing twelve-month bass. Thls method utilizes the average 
customer account base for the applicable penod in measunng 
attrition. Therefore, in periods of customer account p w t h ,  customer 
attntion may be understated and m periods of customer account 
declme, customer attntion may be overstated. 
Customer attnnon for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 
2000 IS summanzed below 

servlces. 

Customer Account Ataitkn 

December 31,2002 December 31, ZOOl Qecembef 31,2000 

~~ 

Protecttonone: ~ 11.9% 112% 185% 15.5% 152% 142% 
ProtedionOneEurope 152% 135% 10.3% 10.2% 114% 121% 

Our monitored servlces segment had a net decrease of 62,656 
customers from December 31,2001 to December 31,2002 Attntion 
decreased at Protection One in 2002 compared to 2001 for a vanety 
of reasons, including 
B An aggressive campaign dubbed “Save Our Subscnbers,” designed 

B An emphasE on customer servlce and attntion reduction by branch 
to retain existing cusiomers 

and monitonng center personnel 

D Legal action taken against competitors who illegally solicit our 

Related Party Transactions 
Below, we describe significant transactions between us and westar 
lndustnes and some of our other subsidianes and related parues. 
We have disclosed these significant transactions even if they have 
been eliminated in the preparation of our consolidated results and 
financlal p t i o n .  

We and ONEOK have shared services agreements in which we 
provlde and bill one another for facilities, utility field work, 
mformation technology, customer support, meter reading and bill 
processing. Payments for these servlces are based on various hourly 
charges, negotmted fees and out-of-pocket expenses. 

customers. 

ONEOK Shared Services Agreement 

hllmusands) 

ChargestoONEOK . . . . . . 18.357 1 8,202 1 8,463 

Net remable from ONEOK, 
ChaqesfromONEOK . . . . . . . . . 3,324 3,279 3.420 

wtrtandina at December 31 1.457 1.424 1.205 

ONEOK gave us notice of tekination effective December 2003 ,of 
this shared services agreement We expect termination of this 
agreement will increase our annual costs to provide these services ?JY 
approxnnately 9 1 1 rmllion to $13 mdlion. 

W ppvide admstrauve S ~ M C ~ S  to Protection One pursuant to 
semces agreements, including accounting, tax, audit, human 
resources, legal, purchng, facilities and technology seryices Fees 
for these services are based upon various hourly charges, negotiated 
fees and out-of-pocket expenses Pptection One lncurred charges of 
$3.9 million in 2002, $8.1 mllion in 2001 and $7.3 million in 2000. 
These intemompany charges have been eliminated in consolidation. 
%tar Energy and Protection One have entered into an amended 
servlce agreement that stipulates that if Wetar Energy sells its interest 
in Protection One, Westar Energy and Protection One will negotme, 
in good-faith, the terms and conditio? for continuation of the 
services during an agreed-upon transition period. Ths agreement is 
subject to KCC approval, which has nor yet been menred. 

Transactions Between Westar Industries and Subsidiaries 
Protection One Credit Focility 

%tar hdustnes is the lender under Protection one5 senior ctedic 
facility The m o r  credit faality was amended to increase the capacity 
hmn $155 rmlhon to 3280 mdlion dunng the year ended December 31, 
2002 On August 26, 2002, the senior credit faality was further 
amended to extend the maturity date to January 5,2004. On Maxh 11, 
2003, the KCC Mted  the amount of the m&t facikty to $228.4 million, 
authonzed us to fund the facility and extend the term of the facility to - 
January 5 ,  2005 and required the facility to be paid in full and 
terminated upon the disposition of all or pan of our investment in 
Protection One We are in discussions wth Protection One about the 
extension of the facility and we intend to renew the facility through 
January 5 ,  2005. should such renewal be necessary to provlde 
-Protection One wth continued liquidity For further information, see 
Note 34 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
“Subsequent Evenis” 

Protection One Shared Services Agreement 
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As of December 31, 2002, $215 5 million was drawn under the 
faality The remaining availability under ths faclity as of December 3 1, 
2002 was $64.5 million At March 14, 2003, Protection One had 
outstandmgbomwingsof $215.5 million and $12.9 million of remain- 
ing capacity Amounts outstanding, accrued interest and facility fees 
have been eliminated in our consolidated financial statements. 

Purchases of Securities 
Westar Industries, Protection One and we have purchased our and 
Protection One debt secunties and preferred stock in the open 
market. These repurchases have been accounted for as retirements on 
a consolidated bass. The table below Summarizes these transactions 
for the years ended December 31 , 2002,2001 and 2000. 
December 31. 2002 2001 2000 

~~~~ ~~ 

Westar Energy 
Bonds 

Face value . . . . . . . . . . .  S333.082 130.140 S - 
Gainonpurchase . . .  
Loa on mark to market 

Tax (beneftt) expense 
atretmrnenP . . 

Total (loa) gain, net of tax . 
mi 

13,514 1,395 - 
- - 16,835 

. . (1,321) 555 - 
s (2.0001 s 840 s - 

..r- a Mandatonlyredeemabk 
preferred Secumes: a Facevalue . . . . .  s 5,495 s - s -  

'3r Totalgain,netoftax . . S 1,072 I - s -  

- - Camonpurchase . 1,780 
FI Taxexpense .... ... 708 

v a Preferredstod<' 
$ps Facevalue . . . . . . . . .  $ 2,500 S 921 $ - 

389 - 
155 - 

Total gain, net of tax ... .. S 597 $ 234 $ - 

- 

Camonpurchase. . 991 
Taxexpenre -.: . . . .  394 

Protection One 
Bonds 

F a c e v a l ~ e ~ ~  . . . .  Sl19,SlO $90,204 S 200,489 

Tax expense ....... 6,941 12,016 26,514 
Camonpurchase . . . . . .  19,832 34,332 75,755 

lbtalgain,netoftax . . . . .  $ 12,891 $22,316 S 49,241 

"Repmenu tkjair value ojo call optwn asmated with our putuble/callable notes 
Csce Note 14 ojthe lbtes to Consolidated Finanad Statements, 'Call Option3. 

@Zn 2001, $37.9 rnillwn of these bonds were purchased by Westar lndustncs and 
$27.6 millm ojthae were transjemd to Pmtechon One in wlhnngeJor cash 

@In 2000, $1 70.0 million oj these bonds were purchased by Westar lndustnes and 
$103.9 millton ojthcse wen transled to Protection One in exchangelor cash p"d 
tk settlement ojcertain intercompany payables and receivables 

See Note 26 of the Notes to Consolidated Fmanclal Statements, "Gain 
on Debt Retirements: for information about a change in accounting 
treatment that requires that gains and losses ansing from the 
purchases and sales of these secunties be recorded as other income 
rather than as an extraordinary item See Note 34 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, "Subsequent Events - Purchase 
of Stock from Protection One" and "Subsequent Events - Purchases 
of Debt Secunties,n for infomation regarding purchases of securities 
that have occurred dunng 2003 

Tax Sharing Agreement 
We have a tax shanng agreement with Protection One. Ths pm rata 
tax shanng agreement allows Protection One to be reimbursed for 
current tax benefits utilized in our consolidated tax return. We and 
Protection One are eligible to file on a consolidated basis for tax 
purposes so long as we maintain an 80% ownership interest in 
Protection One. Wk reimbursed Protection One $13.5 million for tax 
year 2001 and $7.4 million for tax year 2000. March 11,2003, 
the KCC issued an order that allows us to make a cash payment to 
Protection One of appmmately $20 million for tax year 2002. 

Protection One entered into an agreement pursuant to which it paid a 
quarteriy fee to Wsar  Industries for financial advimy services equal 
to 0.125% of its consolidated total assets at the end of each quarter. 
This agreement was approved by the independent members of 
Protection One's board of directors Protection :One incurred 
approximately $3.6 million of such fees during the year ended 
December 31, 2002. These amounts have been eliminated in our 
consolidated financial statements. Thls agreement was terminated 
effective September 30,2002. 

During 2001 and 2002, we extended loans to our olficers for the 
purpose of purchasmg shares of our common stock. The officers are 
personally hble for the Rpayment af the loans, which arr unsecured 
and bear merest, payable quarterly, at a vanable rate equal to our * 

short-term borrowing rate. The loans mature on December 4,2004. 
The aggregate balance outstanding at December 31, 2002 was 
approximately $1.8 million, which IS classified as a reduction to 
shareholders' equity in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets For the year ended December 31 , 2002, we recorded appmx- 
imately $97,000 in interest income on these loans No additional 
loans will be made as a result of federal legislation that became 
eflective July 30,2002. 

We perform KGES cash management function, including cash 
receipts and disbursements. An intercompany account is used to 
record net receipts and disbursements between us and KGE. KGES 
net amount payable from affiliates appmramated $24.1 million at 
December 31, 2002, and the net amount receivable from affdmtes 
approxlmated $17.3 million at December 31, 2001. These inter- 
company charges have been elimnated in consolidation. 
We provide all employees utilized by' KGE We allocate certain 
operating expenses to KGE. These expenses are allocated, depending 
on the nature of the expense, based on allocation studies, net 
investment, number of customers, andlor other appropriate factors. 
We believe such allocation pmcedures are reasonable. 

Dunng the fourth quarter of 2001, KGE entered into an option 
agreement to sell an office buildmg located in downtown Wichta, 
Kansas, to Protection One for appmxrnately $0.5 million The sales 
pnce was detemiined by management bascd on three independent 
appraisers' findings This transaction was completed during June 
2002 We recoLgnized a loss of $2 6 inillion on this transaction and we 

Financial Advisory Services 

Loans to Officers 

Transactions Between Westar Energy and KGE 

Transactions with Protection One 
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expected to realm annual operating cost savlngs of approxlmately 
$0.9 million. The cost sawngs wll be treated as a regulatory llabrlity 
in accordance with a March 26,2002, KCC order. For the year ended 
December 31,2002, we recorded $0.5 million in cost samngs as a 
regulatory lnbibv 

On February 29,2000, W t a r  Industries purchased the European 
operations of Protection One, and certain investments held by a 
subsidiary of Protection One, for an aggregate purchase pnce of 
$244 milliin. Westar Industries paid approxlmately $183 million in 
cash and t r a d e d  Protecuon One debt secunties with a market 
value of appmximately $61 million to Protection One Cash proceeds 
from the t m c t i o n  were used to reduce the outstanding balance 
owed to W t a r  Industries on Protection One’s revolvlng credit 
facility. No gain or loss was recorded on this intercompany 
transacuon and the net book value of the assets was unaffected. 

Protection One Europe 

Hedging Activity 
We use financial and physical instruments to hedge a portion of our 
anticipated f d  fuel needs. At the time we enter into these 
tramacuons, we are unable to determine what the value wll be when 
the agreements are actually settled. 
In an effort to mitigate fuel commodity price market nsk, we use 
hedging arrangements to reduce our exposure to increased coal, 
natural gas and oil pnces. Our future exposure to changes in f-1 
fuel pnces will be dependent upon the market prices and the extent 
and effectiveness of any hedging arrangements into which we enter. 

See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
“ F m n a l  Instruments, Energy Trading and Risk Management - 
Mvative Insauments and Hedge Atxountmg- Hedpg Activlues: 
for detailed information regarding hedging relationships and an 
interest rate swap we entered into during the h r d  quarter of 200 1. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE 
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Market Price Risks 
Our hedging and trading activities involve risks, including 
Commodity price risk, equity pnce risk, interest rate risk and mdit 
risk Commodity price nsk 1s the nsk that changes in commodity 
prices may irnpact the price at which we are able to buy and sell 
electncity and purchase fuels for our generating units. These 
commodities have experienced pnce volatility in the past and can be 
expected to do so in the future. This volatility may increase or 
decrease futurr ea-. 
Equity pnce risk is the risk we may be exposed to based on changes 
m the market value of our equity secunties. 
Interest rate nsk is the risk of loss associated wth movements in 
market merest rates. h n n g  2002, we used an interest rate swap to 
manage our exposure to variable mterest rates. The swap converted 
$500 mllion of vanable rate debt to a futed rate In the future, we may 

continue to use swaps or other financial instruments to manage 
interest rate nsk. 
Credit nsk 1s the nsk of loss resulting from non-perfonnana by a 
counterparty of its contractual obligations. We have exposure to 
credit nsk and counterparty dehult through our retail,. power 
marketing and trading activities. We maintain credit policies 
intended to reduce overall credit nsk and actively monitor these 
policies to reflect changes and scope of operations. We employ ~ 

additional credit risk control mechanisms when apprbpriate, such as 
letters of d i t ,  parental guarantees and,standardized master netting 
agreements from counterparties that allow for some of the offsetting 
of positive and negative exposures. Credit exposure is monitored 
and, when necessary, the activlty wth a specific counterparty is 
limited until credit enhancement 1s provlded. Results actually 
achieved from hedging and trading activities’could vary matenally 
from intended results and could matenally affect our financial results 
dependmg on the success of our credit nsk management efforts. 

- 

Commodity Price Exposure 
We engage in both financial and physical trading to manage our 
commdity pnce risk. We trade electnaty, coal, natural gas and oil 

use a vanety of 6nanaal mstruments, including forward conmcts, 
options and swaps and trade energy commodity contracts daily we 
also use hedgng techniques to manage overall fuel expenditures. W 
procure physical product under fixed pnce agreements and spot 
market transactions. I 

Wk are mvolved in tmd i i  actiwties primarily to reduce risk from 
market fluctuations, capitalue on our market knowledge and enhance 
system reliability Net open positions mt, or are established, due to 
the ongnation of new transactions and our assessment of, and 
response to, changmg market condiuons. To the extent we have open 
positions, we are exposed to the nsk that c h a w  market prices 
could have a material, adverse impact on our financial position or 
results of operations 
We manage and measure the market price nsk exposure of our 
trading portfolio using a variancdcovariance value-at-risk (Van 
model. VaR measures the predicted worst-case loss at a specific 
confidence level over a specified period of time. In addition to NR, 
we employ additional risk control processes such as st- testing, 
daily 10s limits, and commodity p t i o n  limits. W expect to use the 
same VhR model and control processes in 2003. 
The use of the \FaR method requim a number of key assumptions, 
including the selection of a confidence level for losses and the 
estimated holding period. We express VaR as a potential dollar loss 
based on a 95% confidence level usmg a one-day holding period. The 
calculation mcludes denvative commodity instruments used for both 
trading and risk management purposes. The VaR amounts for 2002 
and 2001 were as follows: 

(InThousands) ’ 

$5,314 High ’ $1,857 
LOW 150 170 

782 2.422 Averaqe 
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We have considered a number of nsks and costs assocrated wth the 
future contractual commitments included In our energy pOrtfOh0. 
These nsks include credit risks assoclated wth the financial 
condltlon of counterparties. product location (basis) differentmls and 
other risks. Declines in the credit-worthiness of our counterparties 
could have a matenal adverse impacc on our overall exposure to 
credit xisk. We maintain credit policies with regard to our counter- 
parties that, in managements view, reduce overall &edit risk. There 

manapnent tools we employ. will eliminate the risk of loss. 

and 80% of the uranium enrichment required for operation of wolf 
Creek through March 2008. The balance is expected to be obtained 
through spot market and conmct purchases, which means we will be 
exposed to the price nsk associated with these components. 
Ad&tioml commodity pfie expofllre are the 
quantity and awhbility of fuel and the quantity 
of 
for generation vary dmmtialb from year to year bgsed on the 

nuclear refueling. Our custom'  electricity usage could ais0 vary 

that affect 
for 

customels coIIsume. Quantities of fd fuel 
Can be no assurance that the emP1oPent Of VaR Or Other risk individual helk av&bility, prim, &\ive&ility, unit outages and 

Wk are also exposed to commodity pnce changes outside of trading dramatically year to yeat based on the weather or other factors. 
activities. We &e denvatives for non-trading purposes and a mix of 
vanous fuel types primarily to reduce exposure relative to the 
volatility of market and commodity prices. The wholesale power 
market is extremely volatile in price and supply. This Volatility 
impacts our costs of power purchased and our partkipanon in power 
trades. If we were unable to generate an adequate supply of electriaty 
for our native load customers, we would purchase power in the 
wholesale market to the extent it IS available or economically feasible 
to do so and/or implement curtailment or interruption procedures as 
allowed for UI our tan& and terms and conditions of semce. To the 

ik extent open posiuons exist in our power marketing portfolio, we are 
exposed to changing market prices that may adversely impact our 

CX' financial position and results of operations The increased expenses 
a or loss of revenues associated wth t h ~ ~  could be matenal and adverse '' to our consolidated results of operations and financial condiuon. 
P-I 

From 2001 to 2002, we experienced a 10% decrease in the average 
pnce per MWh of electncity purchased for utility operations. 
Purchased power market volatility could be greater than the average 

Rn pnce decrease indicates. If we were to have a 10% increase UI our 
f i ~  purchased power price from 2002 to 2003, gwen the amount of 

power purchased for utility operations dunng 2002, we would have 
exposure of appmnmately $3.5 million of operating income Due to 
the volatihty of the power market, past pnces cannot be used to predict 
future pnces 
We use a mw of vanous fossll fuel .types, including coal, natural gas 
and oil, to operate our system. which helps lessen our risk associated 
with any one fuel, type A significant portion of our coal requirements 
are under long-term contract, which removes most of the pnce risk 
associated with this commodity type. Dunng 2002, we experienced 
an approximate 2% increase. or $0 056 per MMBtu, in our average 
cost for natural gas purchased for utility operations. We decreased 
our gas usage by 1.9 million MMBtu compared to the amount burned 
in 2001. Due to the volatility of natural gas prices, we have begun to 
increasingly utilue our ability to swltch to lower cost fuel types as the 
market allows. We expect that exposure to natural gas pnce changes 
w11 not be matenal in 2003 due to our natural gas hedge that has 
fNed the price of our gas through July 2004 

3 
- 

We use uranium to fuel our nuclear generating station and have on 
hand or under contract 100% of Wolf Creekb uranium. uranium 
conversion and uranium ennchment needs for 2003 We have on 
hand or under contract 76% of the uranium and uranium conversion 

lnterest Rate Exposure 
We had approximately $523.4 million of vanable rate debt and 
current maturities of fixed rate debt as of December 31,2002. A 
100 basis point change in each debt series' benchmark rate, used to 
set the rate for such series would impact net i n m e  on an annualized 
basis by approximately $2.5 million after tax 
Under SFAS No. 133, we are required to mark to market changes in 
the anticipated amount of the liability related to the portion of the 
$400 million in notes that have been retired so that our consoMated 
balance sheet reflects the current fair value of the free standing 
portion of the call option as discussed m Note 14 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, "Call Option.? The amount of our 
lnbility wdl increase or decrease appmximately $5 million for every 
10-bass point change in the 10-year forward treasury rate. Related 
to the call option, for the year ended December 31, 2002, we 
recorded a non-cash mark-to-market charge of $23.7 million, net of 
$15.7 million tax benefit, to reflect the fair value of the call option 
associated with the retired notes. We intend to repurchase or p d d e  
for the repayment of all 'or a pomon of these notes on or prior to 
June 15.2003. Any repurchase of these notes will requi- us to mark 
to market additional amounts of the call option. W cannot predicr 
changes in the market value of the call option and therefore cannot 
estimate amounts of future mark-to-market non-cash. charges 
associated with the call option or the impact on our earnings. 

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates 
We have fomgn operations with functional currencies other than the 
US. dollar. As of December 31,2002, the unrealized loss on currency 
translation was approximately $2.5 million pretax. A 10% change in 
the currency exchange rates would not have a material effect on other 
comprehensive income. 

Equity Price Risk 
During 2002, we were not sukantlally exposed to equity price risk 
As discussed in Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements, "Changes in ONEOK Ownership: we sold a substantial 
portion of our equity mvestment in ONEOK. During 2003, w will 
account for our ONEOK common stock investment as an available- 
for-sale security under SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain 
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities" and mark to market its 
fair value through other comprehenswe income. 

45 
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I, 111, W, and V 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Westar EnergyB Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Westar Energy, 
Inc. and subdaries (the Company) as of December 3 1 , 2002 and 200 1 , and the 
related consolidated statements of income (loss), comprehensive income (loss), 
shareholders* equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2002. These financml statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
finanaal statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of Amenca Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to ob- reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit d u d e s  e x a m i w  an a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dlsdosures in the f m u a l  
statements. An audit also includes assesnng the accounting prinaples used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financlal statement presentauon. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
b a s  for our opmion 
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respecu, the finand m u o n  of the Company as of December 31,2002 
and 2001, and the results of its operations hnd its cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 3 1 , 2002, in conformity wth accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Note 23 to the financlal statements, on January 1, 2002, the 
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, 
Accounnngfor Goodwtll and Other Zntungd.de Assets and Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accountingfor Che Impairment or Ilsposd #Long- 
Lived Assets. AsdEussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, on January 1,2001 
the Company adopted Statement of Finanml Accounting Standards No. 133, 
Accounhng for Denvative Instruments and Hedpng Activities, as amended. As 
dscussed in Note 2 to the finanaal statements, on January 1 , 2000, the Company 
adopted Staff Accountlng Bulletin 101 , Revenue Recognltum 

Topeka, Kansas 
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DELOITE & TOUCHE LLP 

Kansas City Missouri 
Apnl 1 1 , 2003 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

As of December 31. 2002 * 2001 

(Dollars m Thousands) 
ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Restncted cash . . . . . .  . . . .  . . . . .  
Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. Inventones and supplies . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  
Energy tradingcontracts . . . .  . . . . . . .  

Prepaid expenses and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

S 123,006 3 96,388 
159,006 15,495 
94,747 96,824 

152,392 145,000 
44,175; 71,421 - 23,284 
45,069 55,557 - 22.938 

. . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . .  

. . .  . . . . . .  
... . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  
.. 
.. 

. . . .  

. . .  
. .  

. . .  
. . . . . .  

.. 

. . . . . . .  
. . . . .  

. . . . . . . .  
. . . . . .  
. . . . . . .  

Assets of discontinued operations . . . . . . . . .  : . . . .  
Total Cumnt Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

PROPERTII, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET . . . . . . . .  
OTHER ASSETS 

Restncted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investment in ONEOK . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Customer accounts, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Goodwll, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  
Regulatory assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  
Energy tradlng contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other (NOTE 2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total O t h e r h t s  . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  

~~ ~~ 

618395 526.907 
3,995,371 4,070,988 

35,760 
703,315 
370,057 
41,847 

360,347 
17,179 

292.028 

38,515 
695,744 
786.839 
879,926 
358,025 

15,247 
260961 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. .  . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . .  

. . . . .  . . . . . . . .  
. . . . .  

... . . . . . .  
1,029,333 3,035,257 

$6,443,099 87,633,152 

. . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ’ 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Current matunties of long-term debt 
Short-term debt . . . . . .  
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrued liabilities . . . . . . .  . . . . .  
Accrued mcome taxes . . . . . . . . .  
Deferredsecuntyrevenues . . .  . . . .  
Energy trading contracts . . . .  . .  
Deferred taxlmbility . . .  . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Lwbiliues of dlscontinued operations . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . .  
. .  

. . .  
.. 

.... 

$ 167.895 
2,763 222,300 

’ 95,936 122,968 
216,357 2 16.0 17 

17,221 35.048 
44,562 46.5 19 
43,370 67,859 
2,998 - 

24.571 64,770 
1364 

804,713 904,541 

$ 316,736 

- 

. . .  

. . .  

. . .  

. .  

. .  

. . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . .  . . . .  
. . . .  . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  
. .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Current Labilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 

Long-term debt, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred lncome taxes and investment tax credits 

Deferred gain from sale-leaseback . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Energy trading contracts . . .  . . . . . . . .  

Western Resources obligated mandatonly redeemable preferred sun t i e s  
of subsdury trusts, holdpg solely company subordinated debentures . . 

. . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  Minonty interests 

3,058,323 2,999,188 

214,505 220,000 
011,879 1,020,993 
55,894 166,850 

162,638 174,466 
0,341 16,500 

340,684 286,553 
4,660,264 4.884.550 

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  
Total Long-Tenn Lmbilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 17) 
SHAREHOLDERS’ E Q U I :  

Cumulative preferred stock. par value $100 per share; authonzed 600.000 shares; 
issued 248,576 shares, outstanding 214.363 shares and 239,364 shares, respectively . . . .  

Common stock, par value 85 per share; authorized 150,000.000 shares, 
issued 72,840,217 shares and 86,205,417 shares, respectively . 

Paid-in capital 
Unearned compensation 
Loans to officers 
Retained earnings (accumulated dehcit) 
Treasury stock at cost. 1,333,264 and 15.097.987 shares, respectively 
Accuinulated ocher comprehensive loss. net 

Total Shareiolders Equity 
TOTAL LIABILITIES A N D  SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

. .  

. .  

. .  23,936 21,436 

364,201 43 1,027 
825,744 1,196,763 
(14,742) ( 2 1.920) 
(1,832 1 1.973) 

(185,961 ) 606.502 
(18,704 ) (364,901) 
(12,020) (25.373) 
978,122 1,844,061 

$6,443,099 S 7.633.1 52 

Thc accompanying notes arc an intepal pa? L OJ thesc consolidated financial statements 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS) 

2002 2001 2000 Year Ended December 3 1. 
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Sharz Amounts) 

SALES: 
Energy . . .  . . . . . . . . .  
Monitored S ~ M C ~ S  . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

Total Sales . . . . .  . . . . . . .  . .  .. 

$1,422,899 $1.307.177 $1,359,522 
348.219 409.689 53 1 . O M  

~~~~~ 

1.771.1 18 1.7 16.866 1.890.590 

COST OF SALES 
. . . . . . . .  . . .  Energy . . . .  . . . . . .  

Monitored SeMces . . . . . . . . . . .  
TotalCostofSales . . .  . . .  . . .  

. .  .. . .  
. . .  

GROSS PROFIT . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

.. Operating and maintenance . . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  
Depreciation and amoruzation . . . . . .  . . . .  . . . . .  
Selling. general and adminlstratlve . . . . .  . . . . .  
Loss on drspositions of momtored semces operations 
Merger costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
Loss on impairment of customer accounts . . . . .  . . . . .  
Loss on impairment of goodwll . . . . . . .  . .  . . . . . .  

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS . . . . . . .  

Investment earnings . . . . . . . .  . . . .  . . . .  
Gain on exnngurshment of debt 
Impairment of investments . . . . . . .  
Mmonty interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
. Total Other Income (Expense) 

Interest expense on long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest expense on short-term debt and other . . .  . . . . . .  

Total Interest Expense . . . .  .. * 

EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES . .  . .  . .  

. . . . . . .  

. . .  TotalOperatingExpenses. . . .  
... 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
. .  

. . . . .  .. . . .  
. . . . . . . . .  

..... 
. . . . . .  . . . . .  

INTEREST EXPENSE: 

.... 

. . . . . . . . . . .  Income tax expense (benefit) 
NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

. . . . . . . . . . .  BEFORE ACCOUNTING CHANGE . . . . . . . . . . .  

378,620 
12a.194 

394,076 
140.307 

380.407 
182.01 3 

506,822 534.383 .- 562.420 
~ - ~- ~ 

1,264,296 1.182.483 1.328.170 

380,050 349,231 337.329 
269,918 410,653 423,252 
36 1,053 - 332.790 34 1,428 

13,056 - 8,693 - 
338,104 - - 
139.987 - - 

- - 

1.489.1 12 1.114.423 1.102.009 
(224.816) 68.060 226.161 

77,856 53.937 193,712 
18,292 . 35,727 75,755 - (11,075) - 

110334 11,621 8,625 
(35,930) (4,351 1 (9,390) 
170,452 85,859 268,702 

229,529 
39,754 

220,172 
40.623 

218,338 
63.149 

~ ~ ~~~ 

269,283 260.795 281.407 
~ - -  - ~ -  ~~ 

(323,647) ( 106,876) 213,376 
(157,605 ) (68.344) 72.349 

d 141.027 ( 166,042 ) (38.532 1 
Dlscanunued operations. net of t8x of $823,840 and $226, respectively . . . . .  
Cumulative effects of accounting changes. net of tax 

Continuing operations, net of tax of $72,335, $12,347, and $1,097 wpectively 
Ihscontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total cumulative effects of accounting changes, net of tax . . . . .  
NET INCOME (LOW . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Preferred dividends. net of gain on reacquired prefemd stock . . . . . . . . . .  
EARNINGS (LOSS) AVAllABLE FOR COMMON STOCK . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  Average common shares outstanding : 71,731,580 70,649,969 . 68,962,245 

(621,434) 
(2,203 1 

18,694 (3,810) - - 
(623,717 1 18.694 (3.8101 
(793,001) ( 20.876) 136,481 

399 895 1.129 
S (793,400) S (21.771) $ 135.352 

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER AVERAGE 
COMMON SHARE OUTSTANDING (SEE NOTE 2): 

Basic earnings (losses) available from continuing 
operations before accounting changes . 

Discontinued operatiom, net of tax 
Accounting changes, net of tax 
Basic earnings (losses) available , . 
Diluted earnings (losses) available from continuing 

Discontinued operat~ons, net of tax 
Accounting changes, net of tax 
Diluted earnings (losses) available 

operations before accounting changes 

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE 

s $ (2.32) 3 (056) n 3  203 
(0.04) (0  02) (0  01) 
(8.70) 0 27 ( 0  061 

3 (11.06) 3 (031) $ 196 

. .  
S (2.32) S ( 0 5 6 )  ' B  2 0 1  

( 0.04) (0 02) (0 01) 

3 (11.06) B (031) 6 195 
Ii 1.20 A 1 2 0  B 1 4 3 5  

(8.70) 0 27 (0 05) 40 

The accompanying notes ate an integt af pat i of thcsc consofidatedfinancial stalemen& 
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WESTAR ENERGF INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMQREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

Year Ended December 3 1. 2002 2001 2000 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . .  . .  

Unreahzed holding gains (losses) on marketable 

Rec~asufication adjustment for losses (gains) 
mcluded in net income . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Unrealized holding gains (10sses) on cash flow hedges 

kch&ification adjustment for losses 

QTHER COMPREHENSWE INCOME (LOSS), BEFORETAX: 

secunties ansing dunng the penod . . . . . .  

. .  

ansing dunng the penod . .. .,. . 

included in net income . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . . . .  
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . . . .  

of other comprehensive income . . . . . .  

Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax . 
Income tax benefit (expense) dated to items 

Other comprehensive gain (loss), net of tax . . PJ 
a a COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) . . . . .  

$ -  

- 
19,465 

1,992 

$( 793,001 ) S(20.876) $136.481 

$ (592) 

- 3,336 

(31,735) 

21,457 2,551 

(1,3411 * 
1,964 

22,080 

' (8,727) 

13.353 
$( 779.6481 

2,744 

(29.184) 

( 6,712 1 
2,568 

(30,584) 

13,615 
( 16.969 1 

$( 37,845 1 - 
'Ihe accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial statements. 

$ 43,174 

( 114,948) 

- 
- 

:? , 
;I- ,f'c 

(7 1,774) 

- 
- 

(6,364) 
(78,138) 

3 1,946 
(46.192) 

3 

$ 90.289 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
~~ 

Year Ended December 3 1. 2002 2001 2000 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

pmwded by operating actiwties: 
lkcontinuedoperations . . . . .  
Cumulative effect of accounting change 
Depmation and amortmtion . . .  . . . .  
Amortuation of deferred gain from sale-leaseback 

. -  

. . .  
Amonuarion of non-cash stock compensation 

and deferred customer acquisition costs 
Net changes in energy trading assets and liabilities . . 
Gain on extingulshment of debt . . . .  
Net changes m fair value of call option . 
Equity in earnings from investments .... 
Loss on dlspontions of monitored S ~ M C ~ S  operations 
Loss on impairment of customer accounts 
Loss on impairment of goadwll . . . .  . . .  
lmpaiment on investments . . . . .  
(Gain) loss on sale of marketable secunties 
Lossonsaleofproperty . . .  . . .  
Minonty interests . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain onsale of investments . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  
Accreuon of discount note interest . . .  . . .  
Net defemd taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred merger costs . . . .  .. .. 

Changes in workmg capital items, net of acquisitions and dispositions 
Restnctedcash. . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  . .  
Accounts receivable, net . . .  . .  
lnventones and supplies . . . . . .  . . .  
Prepad expenses and other . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts payable . . . . . . . .  . .  
Accrued and other current liabilities . . .  
Accrued income taxes . . . . . . .  . .  
Deferredsecuntyrevenues . - . . . . . .  

. .  
.. 

. .  

. .  

.. 

. .  

. . .  

.. 

Changes m other &ts and Ilabilities 

Additions to property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from sale of property 
Customer account acqumtions . . . . . . . . . .  . .  . . . . . . .  
Secunty alarm monitoring acqumtions, net of cash acquired 
~eedsfromsaleofmarkerablesecunues . .  
Proceeds from drsposltions of monitored serv~ces 

Proceeds from other investments, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . .  
Cash flows from operating actiwnes . - . .  . .  

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. 

. . . . . .  

operations and sale of customer accounts . . . . .  

Cash flows used in investing activities . . . . . . . . .  . .  
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES., 

Short-term debt, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  : . . .  
Roceeds of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . .  .. .. 
Retirements of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Funds in trust for debt repayments . . . . . . . . . .  
Retirement of Western Resources obligated mandatonly redeemable 

Issuance of officer loans, net of payments . 
Issuance of common stock, net 
Cash dimdends paid 
Preferred srock redemption 
Acquisition of treasury stock 
Reiuuance of treasury stock 

' 

preferred secunties of subsidiary trusts, holding solely 
. . .  company subordinated debentures . . .  

Cakh flows from (used in) financing actinties 
FORZICN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH A N D  CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Beginning of penod 
End of penod 

S (793,001) 

' 3,242 
623,717 
269,918 
(1 1,028) 

32,749 
20,229 

(10,292) 
22,609 
(9,670 1 - 

338,104 
139,987 - - 

1,424 
( 110,234 1 

(414 1 
(1 14,387 - 

(0.511 1 
(4,828) 
(7.392) 
15,338 

(27,032 
(12,403) 
( 17,827 

(574) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

S (20,876) 

1,038 
( 18.694) 
4 10,653 
( 11,828) 

19,703 
10,683 
(35,727) 

(4,72 1 
13,056 

- 

- - 
1 1,075 
1,861 

(11,621) 

(2.247) 
( 17,920) 
8,693 

(4.579) 
31,045 
(45,530) 
(18,698) 
( 23,980 ) 
(21,312) 
(18,511) 
(9,631 1 

- 
-. 

S 136,481 

736 
3,810 

423,252 
( 1 1,828) 

27.592 
( 7 -29 1) 
(75,755) 

( 1 1,220) 
- 

. -  

(3,944) 
87,557 
12,364 
(12,882) 
22,136 

( 114) 
13,231 
(2,629) 

4 1,823 ( 23,634) 7,507 
372,747 218,298 470,772 

(135,370) (235,047) (307i429) 
1,205 - - 

(43.391) , ( 23,084 ) (33,960) 

- 2,829 218,609 
- ( 11,748) - 

16,758 47,974 - I 

16,320 52,223 47,832 
' (144,478) (155,105) ( 86,696) 

(219,S37) 
1,376,912 

(1,135,175 1 
(135,000) 

(3,715 1 
(212 1 

19,539 
(86,703 ) 
(1,547 1 

( 19,544 1 
1.367 

187,300 
27,420 

(130,409) - 

- 
(1,973) 
19,384 

(85,547) 
( 545 1 
( 866 1 
7.23 1 

(670,421) 
606,450 

' (244,949) - 

- - 
3 1,622 

( 1 15,533) 

(9.187) 
- 

' 2 1.898 
(203,615) 2 1,995 ( 380.1 20) 

1,964 2,568 (6,364) 
26,618 87.756 ( 2.408) 

96,388 8.632 11,040 
$ 123,006 S 96,386 S 8.632 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
~~ 

-~ 

Cumulative Retained Acarmuhtcd 

Preference Common Paibin Unearned Loansto (Accumulated Treasury Compmhensive 
Preferred and E-inP otbcr 

Stock Stock Capital Compensation Officers Deficit) Stock lncome(LQbt) Total 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

3 

9679,880 $ (15,791) $ 37,788 $1,889,188 BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,1999 $ 24,858 $341,508 3 826,640 $ ( 5,695) $ - 
Net income . . . . . . . . .  
Divtdends on preferred stock . 
Issroaroeofcommonstock . . . . .  
Dwidends on common stock . 
Unrealid 10s on 

marketable securities . . . . .  
Currency translauon adjustment . 
Tax benefit . . . . . . . . . .  
Acqusiuon of treasury stock ... 
issuance of treasury stock . . . . .  
Grant of rrstricted stock . . . .  
Amortization of restricted stock . 
BALANCE, DECEMBER 3 I, 2000 
Net income (loss) . . . . . . .  
Dividendsonpreferredstock . . 
Issuance of common stuck . . . .  
Diwdends on common stock . 

Issuanceofoffcerloans . . . .  
Unrealued gam on 

marketable securities ...... 
Unrealwed loss on 

Minimum penslon 

Cunency KransIation adjustment 
Tmbenefit (expense> . . . . . .  
Aqumtion of treasury stock . . 
Cancellation of restncted stock . . 
Grant of restncted stock . . . . . .  
Amortuation of restncted stock . 
BALANCE, DECEMBER 3 I, 200 I 
Net income (loss) ............ 
Dnndends on preferred stuck ... 
Issuance of common stock . 
Retirement of common stock 
Dwidends on common stock ... 
Retirement of preferred stock ... 
Issuance of officer loans and 

interest, net of payments . . 
Reclass loans of fomer 

ofkezstootherassets . . . . .  
Unrealized gains on ’ 

cash flow hedges 
Mimmum pension 

IiabiIity adjustment . . 
Currency translation adjustment 
Tax expense 
Acquuition of treasury stock 
lssuance of treasury stock 
Grant of restncted stock 
Amortization of restncted stock 
Forfeited restncted stock 
BALANCE, DECEMBER 3 I , 2002 

Retirement of preferred stock ... 

cash flow hedges .. 

liability adjustment ....... 

Issuance of treasury stock . . .  

$7 14,454 
( 20,876) 
(1,129) 

(84,474 1 
- 

389 

- B (8.404) $24,858 - $ 350.41 2 $ 868,166 - 0 1 ,93 1,420 
( 20,876) 
(1.129) 
20.058 

(84,474) 
(545) 

( 1.973 1 

- 
80,615 

- 
(358,805) 

2,744 2 ,744 

( 29,184 1 (29,184) 

(6,712) 
2,568 

13,615 - 
- 

(6,712) 
2,568 

13,460 
(866) 

7,633 - 
14,570 
15,791 - 

- 
(15,791) 
11 937 

- 
1 1,937 

I 

4 
(1,341) (1,341) 

- - - - ( 394 1 - (8,727) (9.121) 
- - - (19,508) - ( 19,508 ) 

- - - - - - 
- - - 1,964 1,964 - - - - 

- - - 
2 - - ( 5 9 )  1,670 - 1.613 

- 8,647 
- 6.403 

- - 
- - - - 7,872 (7,872 ) - - - - - - 8,64 7 - - - 

- - - 6,403 - - - 
S21,436 S364.201 I 825,744 S(lt .7421 S(1.832) S(385.961) S (18.704) S(12.020) A 978,122 

Tlic acconipanwig  noics cite a n  inregid poi t of these consohdntcd {inoncinl S ~ O I C I ~ I F ~ ~ S  
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

h 
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I. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Westar Energy, lnc., a knsas corporation incorporated in 1924, 
operates the largest electnc utility in Kansas and owns interests m 
monitored security businesses and other investments Unless the 
context othe- indicates, all references in this Annual Report on 
Fom 10-K to 'the compang "we: "us: uourn or similar words are to 
Westar Energy, Inc. and its consolidated subsidianes. The term 
Westar Energy" refers to Westar Energy, Inc. alone and not together 
with its consolidated subsidiaries. W pmvlde electric generation, 
transmission and distribution services to approximately 647,000 
customers in Kansas. W also provide monitomd secunty servlces to 
over 1.1 million .mornen m the United States and Europe ONEOK, 
Inc (ONEOK), m which we owned an approximate 45% interest at 
December 31,2002, (reduced to an approximate 27.5% interest at 
March 14,2003) provides natural gas transrmssion and dmribution 
servlces to approximately 1.9 million customers in Kansas, 
Oklahoma and Texas. Our corporate headquarta are located at 818 
South Kansas Avenue, Topeka, Kansas 66612. 

Mirestar Energy and Kansas Gas and Electnc Company (KGE), a 
wholly owned subsidiary, provide rate regulated electnc service. KGE 
owns 47% of Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporation (WCNOC), 
the operating company for 'Wolf Creek Generating Station (Wolf 
Creek) our nuclear powered generating facility 
Westar Industnes, Inc. Westar Industnes), our wholly owned 
subsidiary, owns our interests in Protecuon One Inc. (Protection 
One), Protection One Europe, ONEOK and our other non-utility 
businesses. Protection One, a publicly traded, appmmmateIy 88%- 
owned subsidiary, and Protection One Eumpe prowde monitored 
secunty services. Protection One Europe refers collectively to 
Protection One International, Inc., a wholly owned subgdiary of 
westar Industries, and its subsidiaries, including a French suhdiary 
in whch it owns an approximate 99.8% merest. 

2. SUMMAW OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation 
We prepare our consolidated jinancial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP). Our consolidated financial statements include all 
operating divisions and majority owned subsidiaries for wh~ch we 
mamtain controlling interests. Common stock investments that are 
not majority owned are accounted for using the equity method when 
our investment allows us the ability to exert upficant influence. 
Undivided interests in jointly-owned generation facilities are con- 
solidated on a pro rata basis. All material intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been ehinated in consolidation 
Use of Management's Estimates 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabihues, revenues and expenses, and 
related dwlosurr of conmgent assets and liabiliues at the date of our 
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses dunng the reponing penod We .evaluate our 

estimates on an on-going &IS, including those related to bad debts, 
inventones, depreclation, revenue recognition, investments, customer 
accounts, goodwll, intangible assets, income taxes, pensions and 
other post retirement and post-employment benefits, decommrssion- 
ing of Wlf Creek, envlronmental issues. contingencies and litigation. 
Actual results may differ from those estimates under different 
assumptions or conditions. 

Regulatory Accounting ' 

We currently apply accounting standards for our regulated utility 
operations that recognize the economic efkcts of rate regulation in 
accordance with Statement of Finand Accounting Standards (SFAS) 
No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulationmn 
and, accordmglyy, have recorded regulatory assets and lmbilities when 
required by a regulatory order or based on regulatory preceden~ 
Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have been deferred 
because they are probable of future recovery in customer rates. 
Regulatory liabilities represent obligations to make refunds to 
customers for previous collections for costs that are not hkely to be 
incurred in the future. We have recorded these regulatory assets and 
liabilities in accordance wth SFAS No. 71. if we were required to 
terminate application of SFAS No. 71 for all of our regulated 
operations, we would have to record the amounts of all regulatory 
assets and liabilities in our consolidated statements of income at that 
time. Our earnings would be reduced by the net amount calculated 
from the table below, net of applicable mcome taxes. Regulatory 
assets and liabilities reflected in our consolidated balance sheets are as 
follows: 
As of December 31. 

~ ~~ 

Recoverabkincometaxes. . .. ..... . 
Debtasuanceasts . .. .. . .  
Deferred employee benefit costs . . .  
Deferred plant asts . . . . . .  . 
2002 Ice storm costs .. .. .. . a .  

other regulatory assets.. . . . .  
Total regulatory assets . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total regulatory Iiabilms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2002 2001 

OnThousanrb) 

5 198,866 $221,373 
75,838 58,054 
25.555 32,687 
29,037 29,499 
14,963 - 
16,088 16,412 

$360,347 $358,025 

S 8,445 $ 6,037 

D Recoverable income taxes: Recoverable income taxes represent 
amounts due from customers for accelerated tax benefits that have 
been pavlously flowed through to customers and are expected to be 
recovered in the future as the accelerated tax benefits reverse. T ~ I S  
item WU be recovered over the kfe of the utility plant. 

m Debt issuance costs: Debt reacqusition expenses aie amortized 
over the remainmg term of the reacquired debt or, if refinanced, the 
term of the new debt. Debt rssuance costs are amomzed and will be 
recovered over the term of the associated debt. 

D Deferred employee benefit cos& Deferred employee benefit costs 
represent post-retmment and post-employment expenses in excess 
of amounts paid that are to be recovered over a period of five years 
as authonzed by the Kansas Corporation Commisuon (KCC). 

8 Deferred plant costs: Deferred plant costs relate to the Wolf Creek 
nuclear generating facility for  further information, see u- 

Depreaation:' discussed below 
ZOO2 ice storm costs:Restoration costs associated wth an ice storm 
that occurred in January 2002 See Note 30 for additional 
information regarding the ice storm 

, 
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A return IS allowed on coal contract settlement costs (included in 
"Other regulatory assets" in the table above) and on the 2002 ice 
storm costs. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
We consider highly liquid investments wth' a maturity of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash 
Restricted cash cons~~ts of cash inwocably deposited in trust for debt 
repayments, cash collateralKing Protection Ones workers' compen- 
sation obliganons, a prepaid capacity and transmmon agreement, 
letters of credit, surety bonds and escrow arrangements as required 
by certain letters of credit, and various other deposits. 

Inventories and Supplies 
Inventories and supplies for our utility buslness are stated at average 
cost. Inventones for our monitored S ~ M C ~ S  segment, compnsed of 
alarm systems v d  parts, are stated at the lower of average cost or 
market. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment 15 stated at cost. For utility plant, cost 
includes contracted senrices, direct labor and materials, indirect 
charges for engineering and supemion, and an allowance for funds 
used during construction (AFUDCI. AFUDC represents the cost of 
borrowed funds used to finance construction projects. The AFUDC 
rate was 5 95% in 2002,9.01% in 2001 and 7.39% in 2000. The cost 
of additions to utility plant and replacement units of property is 
capitalized. Interest capitalized into construction in progress was 
$2.2 million in 2002, $8 7 million in 2001 and $9.4 million in 2000. 

Maintenance costs and replacement of mmor items of property are 
charged to expense as incurred Incremental costs incurred dunng 
scheduled Wolf Creek refuelmg and mamtenance outages are deferred 
and amortized monthly over the unit's operating cycle, normally 
about 18 months For ut~I~ty plant, when mts of depreciable pmperty 
are retired, the ongnal cost and removal cost, less salvage value, are 
charged to accumulated depreclauon 

Depreciation 
Utility plant IS depreclated on the straight-line method at the lesser of 
rates set by the KCC or rates based on the estimated remaming useful 
lives of the assets, which are based on an average annual composite 
basu using group rates that approximated 2.66% during 2002, 
3 03% dunng 2001 and 2.99% dunng 2000. 

In its rate order of July 25,2001, the KCC extended the estimated 
service life for certain of our generatmg assets, including Wolf Creek 
and the LaCygne 2 generating station, for replatory rate malung 
purposes. The estimated retirement date for Wolf Creek was 
extended from 2025 to 2045, although our operaung license for Wolf 
Creek expires in 2025, and the estimated retirement date for LaCygne 
2 was extended to 2032, although the term of our lease for hCygne 2 
expires in 2016 On Apnl 1,2002, we adopted the new depreciation 
rates as prescribed in the KCC order We continue to depreciate Wolf 
Creek over the tern of our operating license, and we continue to 
depreciate LaCygne 2 over the term of our lease We have created a 
regulatory asset, included under "Deferred plant costs" in the above 
table, for the amount that our depreciation expense exceeds our 
regulatory depreciaiion expense 

On an annual bass, our deprecwion expense will beteduced by 
approximately $30.0 million as a result of these extensions. If our 
generatmg license for Wolf Creek 1s not renewed or the term of our 
lease for LaCygne 2 IS not extended, we will need to seek relief from 
the KCC to recover the remairung cost of these assets. 

Non-utility property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the 
estimated useful lives of the related assets. W periodically evaluate 
our depreciation rates considering the past and expected future 
expenence in the operation of our facilihes. 

Depreciable lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows: 

utili 
......................... Fosal fuel generating faalitm 61068 

Nudear fuel generating faality 42 to 65 
Transmmion faalibes . . ........................ 28to67 
Dtstnbuttonfmlitm ............................... 191057 
other . . . . . . . .  ... ................... stoss 

............................... 40 Buildings . . 
Installed systems .......................... 10 
Furniture, futtures and equipment 5t0 10 
leasehold improvements St010 
vehldes. . . .  ........................ 5 
Data processinq and telecomrnurucatms ' 1to7 

....................... 

NOMniTi 

..................... 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

....................... 
~~ ~ ~ 

Nuclear Fuel 
Our share of the cost of nuclear fuel in process of refinement, 
conversion, enrichment and fabrication is recorded as an asset in 
property, plant and equipment on our consolidated balanke sheets at 
original cost and is amortized to cost of sales based upon the quantity 
of heat produced (MMBtu) for the generation of electricity 
The accumulated amortization of nuclear fuel in the reactor was 
$252 mllion at December 31,2002 and $35.6 million at December 31, 
2001. Spent fuel charged to cost of sales was $17.8 million in 2002, 
$22.1 million in 2001 and $19.6 million in 2000. 

Customer Accounts 
Customer accounts are stated at cost and are amortized over the 
estimated customer life. The cost includes amounts paid to dealers 
and the estimated fair value of accounts acquired in business 
acquisitions. Internal costs incurred in support of acquiring customer 
accounts are expensed as incurred. 
Protection Ones and Protection One Europek amortization rates 
consider the average estimated remaining life and histoncal and 
projected atmtion rates. The amortization method for each customer 
pool is as f o u ~ :  
Pod Method 

North Amenca 
Acquired Wesnnghouse customers . . Eight-year 120% dedining balance 
Other customers . . . . . . .  Tenyear 135% dedining balance 

Europe . . . . . .  Tekyear 125%dedlningbalance 
Multifamily . . . . . .  Nine-yearstraight-line 

In accordance w~th SFAS No. 121 , "Accounting for the Impairment of 
Long-lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of: 
long-lived assets held and used by Protection One and Protecuon 
One Europe are evaluated for recoverability on a penodic basis or as 
circumstances warrant An impairment would be recopzed when 
the undiscounted expected future operatpg cash flows by customer 
pool denved from customer accounts is less than the canylng value of 
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capitahzed customer accounts and related g d w l l .  See Note 23 for 
information regarding SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impair- 
ment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets: which replaces SFAS 
No. 121 as of January 1,2002. 

Due to the customer attrition expenenced in 2002,2001 and 2000, 
the decline in market value of Protection One5 publicly traded equity 
and debt securities and recurring losses, Protection One and protection 
One Europe performed impairment tests on their customer account 
assets and goodwll in 2002, 2001 and 2000 These tests indicated 
that future estimated undscounted cash flows exceeded the sum 
of the recorded balances for customer accounts and goodwll. See 
Note 23 for a discussion of the impairment recorded on these assets 
during 2002 pursuant to the adoption of new accounting pnnaples. 

Goodwill 
Goodwill rrprrsents the excess of the purchase pnce over the fair 
value of net assets acquired by Protection One and eotection One 
Europe. Protection One and Protection One Europe changed their 
estimated goodwll life from 40 years to 20 years as of January 1, 
2000. For 2001 and 2000, remaining goodwll, net of accumulated 
amortltation, was amonlzed Over its remaining useful life based on a 
20-year life 
For 2001 and 2000, the canylng value of goodwll was included in 
the evaluations of recoverability of customer accounts No reduction 
in the carrylng value was necessary at December 31 , 2001 or 2000 
Effective as of January 1. 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142, 
"Accounting for Goodwll and Other Intangble Assets" and no longer 
amoruze goodwll. We are subject to the annual goodwll impzunnent 
test. See Note 23 for information regarding the effect of adopting 
SFAS No. 142. 

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance 
The followng amounts related to corporate-owned life insurance 
policies (COLI) are recorded in other long-term assets on our 
consolidated balance sheets at December 3 1 : 

Cash wrrender value of policiesw 
Bommgs against pdictes . 

cou, net . .  

(In Mill~ans) 

$8240 $7728 
(776 3 1 (723 61 

S 477 S 492 

@)Cash sumndct value oJpoIicies as piesenled represents the value ojthe policies as 
of the end of the iawctivr policy years and not as oJDecembrr 31,2002 and 2001 

lncome IS recorded for increases in cash surrender value and net 
death proceeds Interest incurred on amounts borrowed is offset 
apinst policy income. Income recognued from death proceeds IS 

hghly variable from penod to penod Death benefits recognized as 
other income approxlmated $3.6 million in 2002, $2.7 million in 
2001 and $0 8 million in 2000 

Minority Interests 

Minonty interests represent the minonty shareholders' proportionate 
share of the shareholders' equity and net losses of Protection One and 
Protection One Europe 

Revenue Recognition 

Energy sales are recognized as delivered and include an estimate for 
energy delivered but unbilled at the end of each year. Power 
marketing activities are accounted for under the mark-to-market 
method of accounting. Under ths  method, changes in the portfolio 
value are recognized as gains or losses in the period of change. The 
net mark-to-market change is included in energy sales in our 
consolidated statements of mcome. The resulting unrealized gams 
and losses are recorded as enew trading assets and liabilities on our 
consohdated balance sheets. 
We pnmarily use quoted market prices to value OUT power marketing 
and energy trading contracts. When market prices are not readily 
available or detenninable, we use alternative approaches, such as 
model pncing. The market prices used to value these transactions 
reflect our best estimate of fair values consldering vanous factors, 
including closing exchange and over-the-counter quotations, time 
value and volatility factors underlymg the commtments. Results 
actually achieved from these activities could vary materially from 
intended results and could udavorably affect our financial results. 

Momtored XMCS revenues are recognized when secunty sefvlces 
are provided. System installation revenues, sales revenues on 
equipment upgrades and direct and inmenta l  costs of installations 
and sales are deferred for residential customers with momtonng 
semce contracts. For commercial customers, revenue recognibon is 
dependent upon each specific customer contract. In mtances when 
the company passes.title to a system UnaccomPQlued by a sewice 
agreement or the company passes title at a price that it believes is 
unaffected by an accompanying but undelivered sennce, the 
company recognws revenues and costs in the period incurred. h 
cases where the company retam utle to the system or it prices the 
system lower than it otherwise would because of an accompanying 
XMCX agreement, the company defers and amortues revenues and 
direct costs. 

Deferred system and upgrade installation revenues are recognd 
over the expected life of the customer utilizing an accelerated method 
for residentla1 and cornmerrial customers and a straight-line method 
for Protection One5 Multifamily customers. Defend costs in excess 
of deferred revenue are recogwed over the initial contract term, 
utilizing a straight-line method, typically two to three years for 
residential systems, five years for commercial systems and five to ten 
years for Multifamily systems. To the extent deferred costs are less 
than deferred revenues, such costs are recognized over the estimated 
life of the customer relationship. 
Deferred revenues also result from customers who are billed for 
monitoring and extended service protection in advance of the penod 
in which such semces are pnmded, on a monthly, qUir€dy or 
annual bass Revenues from monitonng acovities are recogwed in 
the penod such semces are provided 
lncome Taes 
Our consolidated financial statements use the liability method to 
reflect income taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are r ecoped  
for temporary differences in amounts recorded for financial reporting 
purposes and their respective tax bascs We amortize deferred 
investment tax credits over the iives of the related properties 

Energy Sales 

Monitored Services Revenues 

* 
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Foreign Currency Translation 
The assets and liabilities of our foreign operations are translated into 
U.S. dollars at current exchange rates, and revenues and expenses are 
translated at average exchange rates. 

Cumulative Effects of Accounting Changes 

Effective January 1,2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142. See Note 23 for 
the cumulative effect of t h  adoption. 

Accounting for Goodwill 

Accounting for Derivative Instruments 
and HedgingActivities 

Effective January 1,2001, we adopted SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Actiwtie$ as amended by SFAS 
Nos. 137 and 138 (collectively, SFAS No 133). We use denvative 
instruments (primarily swaps, options and futures) to manage 
interest rate exposure and the commodity price nsk inherent in some 
of our fossil fuel and electnclty purchases and sales. Under SFAS No. 
133, all derivative instruments, including our energy trading 
contracts, are recorded on our consolidated balance sheets as either 
an asset or habllity measured at fair value Changes in a denvatweb 

"fair value must be recognmd cumntly ~II ea- unless spec& 
Ohedge accounting cntena are met, in which case changes are reflected 
win other comprehensive income. Cash flows from denvative 
ainstruments are presented EI net cash flows from operating activities. 
nil 

1  derivative instruments used to manage commodity price risk 
T inherent in fossil fuel and electriaty purchases and sales are classiied 
V as energy trading contracts on our consolidated balance sheets. 
a Energy trading contracts representing unrealmzd gain positions are 
I$r reported as assets; energy trading contracts representing unrealued 
eJ loss positions are reported as liabilities 

Pnor to January 1,2001, gains and losses on our denvatives used for 
managing commodity pnce nsk were deferred until settlement. 
These denvatives were not dmgnated as hedges under SFAS No. 
133. Accordingly on January 1,2001, we recognued an unrealized' 
gain of $18.7 million, net of $12.3 million of tax. This gain IS 
presented on our consolidated statement of income for 2001 as a 
cumulative effect of a change in accounting prinaple. 
After Januaxy 1,2001, changes m fair value of all denvative instru- 
ments used for managing commodity price nsk that are not designated 
as hedges are recognued in revenue as dscussed above under "- 
Revenue Recognition - Energy Sales." Accounting for derivatives 
under SFAS No. 133 wll mcrease volatility of our future eamngs. 

In the fourth quarter of 2000, we adopted Staff Accounting Bulleun 
(SAB) No. 101, "Revenue Recognition," which had a retroactive 
eflective date of January 1, 2000 The impact of this accounting 
change generally required deferral of certain monitored secunty 
Sewices sales for installation revenues and direct sales-related 
expenses Deferral of these revenues and costs IS generally necessary 
when installation revenues have been received and a monitonng 
contract to provlde future selvlce is obtained 
The cumulative effect of this change in accounting pnnciple was a 
charge to income in 2000 of approximately $3 8 million, net of 
53 1 million tax benefit, and is related to changes in revenue recogni- 
tion at Protection One Europe Pnor to the adoption of SAB No 101, 
Prmeaion One Europe i ecogiiized installaiion revenues and related 
expenses upon completion of thc iiistallatioii 

Revenue Recognition 

Accounting Changes 

In December 2002, Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
lssued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - 
Transition and Dlsclosure,n which amends SFAS No. 123, 
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation." SFAS No. 148 provides 
alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair 
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee 
compensation In addition, it amends the disclosure requirements 
of SFAS No 123 to require p r o h e n t  disclosures in both annual and 
intenm financial statements about the method of accounting 
for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the 
method used on reported results. T ~ I S  statement requires that 
companies follow the prescribed format and provide the additional 
disclosures in their annual reports for fiscal years ending after 
December 15, 2002. We apply the recogninon and measurement 
pnnciples of APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees,n as allowed by SFAS Nos. 123 and 148, and related 
interpretations in accounting for our stock-based compensation 
plans, as described in Note 15. We have adopted the disclosure 
requirements of SFAS No. 148. 

For purposes of the pro forma dsclosuxts required by SFAS No. 148, 
the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over 
the options' vesting penod. Under SFAS No. 123, compensation 
expense would have been 80.8 million in 2002 and 8 1.1 million in 
2000 We would have recorded income of $0.5 million in 2001 
under SFAS No. 123. Information related to the pro fonna impact on 
our eamngs and earnings per share follows. 

Stock Based Compensation 

2002 2001 2000 

(Dollan n lhousands, kept Per Share Amamts) 
Earnings (loss) available for 

Oeduct Total stock opbon expense 
ammonstodr,areponed . . $(793,400) $(21,771) $135,352 

determined under fair value method 
for all awards, net of related tax effects 759 (512) 1,078 

Earnings floss) available for 

Weighted average shares 

Earnings per share 

mmonstock,proforma . .. . S(794,159) $(21,259) $134,274 

usedfordilubon . . . . . . 71,731,580 70,649,969 69,591,261 

Bawc - a reported . . . S(ll06) S(0.31) $1 96 
S(ll07) S(0.30) $1.95 Baslc-profforma .... . 

D i I ~ k d - a @  . S(1106) S(031) $1 95 
Diluted-~fforma . . . . S(1107) S(030) S 1.93 

Accounting for Energy Trking Contracts 
In October 2002, the FASB, through the Emerging Issues Task Fom 
(Elm, issued h u e  No .02-03, which rescinded Issue No. 98-10. 
"Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk 
Management Activltied' a result, all new contracts that would 
othenmse have been accounted for under Issue No. 98-10 and that 
do not fall within the scope of SFAS No. 133 can no longer be 
marked-to-market and recorded in earnings as of October 25,2002 
W e  are not affected by this change in accounting pnnaple and are not 
required to reclassify any of our contracts ElTF Issue No 02-03 also 
requires that energy t i  ading contracts and denvatives, whether settled 
financially or physically, be reported in the income staremen1 on a net 
baas effective January 1, 2003 We began to classify our energy 
trading contracis on a net basis dunng the third quarter of 2002 
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On July 1,2002, we began reporting mark-to-market gains and losses 
on energy trading contracts on a net basis,' whether reahzed,or 
unreaked, rn our consolidated income statements. Pnor to July 1, 
2002, we reported gains on these contracts in sales and losses m cost 
of sales in our consolidated income statements. See Note 6 for 
addiuonal information on the effects of the accounting change. . 

Effective July 1,2002, we adopted SFAS No. 145, "Rescission of FASB 
Statements No. 4,44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 
13, and Technical Comctions: which prohibits treating gains and 
losses associated 4th extingwhments resulting from a company5 
risk management strategy as extraodina~~. See Note 26 for additional 
information on t h ~ ~  pronouncement. 
During the last three years, Protection One and our debt securities 
were repurchased m the open market and gains were recogwed on 
the retirement of these debt secunties. We recogmzed $12.0 d o n ,  
net of $6.3 million tax, m 2002; $23.2 mkon, net of $12.6 rndhon 
tax, in 2001; and $49.2 mdlion, net of $26 5 milhon tax, in 2000. 

In November 2002, FASB issued Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, 
"GwantorS Accounung a n d D d w r e  Requirements for Guarantees, 
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,m which 
pmdes  guidance for accounti% for guarantees. For any guarantee 
entered into after November 2002, a guarantor is required to 
recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a Inbility for the h r  value 
of the obligation undertaka in m i n g  the guarantee. Any future 
guarantee that we enter into will be accounted for as a liabdity 
In 1998, we issued a f m n d  guarantee of an obligation of Onsite 
Energy Corporation under which our maximum llability was 
$13 million. This guarantee was released in the first quarter of 2003. 

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, "Consolidation of 
Variable Interest Entities - an Interpretation of ARB No. 51.? This 
interpretation provides guidance related to identifymg variable 
interest entities (previously known generally as special purpose 
enut~es or SPES) and detemuung whether such enuties should be 
consolidated. Certain disclosures are required when FIN No. 46 
becomes effective if it is reasonably possible that a company will 
consolidate or disclose mformauon about a vanable interest entity 
when it imtially applies FIN No. 46. This interpretation must be 
applied imrnedlately to variable interest entmes created or obtained 
after January 31,2003. For those vanable merest entities created or 
obmned on or before Januav 31,2003, we must apply the provisions 
of FIN No. 46 in the third quarter of 2003. We are currently 
evaluating the effect of FIN No. 46. 

Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt 

Accounting for Guarantees 

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities 

Dilutive Shares 
Basic earnings per share applicable to common stock are based on the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding and vested 
dunng the penod reported. Muted earnings per share include the 
effect of potential issuances of common shares resulting from the 
assumed vesting of all outstanding mtncted share units (RSU) and 
exetcse of all outstanding stock options issued pursuant to the terns 
of our stokk-based comgnsation-plans. The d;lutive e k  of stock- 
based compensation and stock options IS computed using the 
treasury stock method. The number of'potenual diluuve secunties 
was 676,329 shares for 2002,963,749 shares for 2001 and 629,016 
shares for 2000. The potentdy diluuve secunties for 2002 and 2001 
were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share, 
since to do so would have been ant~dilutive. 
Diluted earnings per share amounts shown m the accompanying 
financial statements reflect the inclusion of non-vested restricted 
share awards and the effect of stock options outstanding. ']The 
f o l l m g  represents a reconchuon of the weighted average number 
of common sham outstanding for basic and dilutive purposes. 
Year Ended December 31, 

Denominator for Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Sham 
Denominator for basic earnings per share - 
Effect of dilubve securities 

Denominator for diluted earnings per share - 

To(1p 1001 zoo0 

weghtedaveragesharesw . . . . . . . . . . . 71,731,580 70,649,969 68,962,245 

Restnctedshareawards . .. .. . - - 629,016 

weighted average shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71,731,580 .70,649,%9 69,591,261 

""The amounts In the table b e  do not include sham owned by Westar lndwries or 
Protection One. 

Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
Cash paid for merest and income taxes for each of the three yean 
ended December 31, are as follows: 

2002 ZOM mw 
on- Cash Paid For 

InterestOnfinandngactMbes, 
net of amount caintalized . . . . . . . . . . $274,859 $256,764 $261,720 

Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 741 6,162 29,682 
Non-Cash fmndng Transactions 

Issuance'of stock to subsidiary (Note 20) . 86,870 364,035 - 
Reclassifications 
Certain amounts m pnor yean have been reclassified to conform with 
classifications used UI the cumnt year presentanon. 
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3. RATE MATTERS AND REGULATION 

KCC Rate Proceedings 
On November 27,2000, Westar Energy and KGE filed applications 
with the KCC for an increase in retail rates. On July 25,2001, the 
KCC ordered an annual reducuon in our combined electnc rates of 
$22.7 million, consting of a $41.2 million reduction in KGES rates 
and an $18.5 million increase in Westar Energy3 rates. 
On August 9,2001, Wstar Energy and KGE filed pentions with the 
KCC requesting reconsideration of the July 25, 2001 order. The 
petitions spedically asked for reconsidemtion of changes in depre- 
ciation, reductions in rate base related to deferred intome taxes 
associated with the KGE acqusition premium and a deferred gain on 
the sale and leaseback of hCygne 2, wholesale cevenue imputation 
and several other issues. On September 5,2001, the KCC w e d  an 
order in response to our motions for reconsidemuon that increased 
wlestar h e w  mtes by an addihod$7.0 d o n .  The $41.2 mihon 
rate reduction in KGES rates remained unchanged. On November 9, 
2001 , we filed an appeal of the KCC decisions wth the Kansas Court 
of Appeals m an actlon optioned "Vktem Resources, Inc. and Kansas 
Gas and Electric Company w. The State Corporation Comrmssion of 
the State of Kansas" On March 8,2002, the Court of Appeals upheld 
the KCC orden. On April 8,2002, we filed a peauon for mew of the 
decislon of the Court of Appeals with the Kansas Supreme Court. Our 
petition for review was denied on June 12,2002. 

KCC Orders and Debt Reduction and Restructuring Plan 

On November 8, 2002, the KCC issued an order addressing our 
proposed financial plan presented to the KCC on November 6,2001 
and subsequently amended on January 29,2002. The order mnta~ned 
the following find- and directions: 

The order directed us to reverse cemn transactions, includmg 
reversing certain intercompany accounting entries so certain 
capital contnbuuons by us to Westar Industnes are reflected as an 
intercompany payable owed by Westar Industries to us, and 
rwersing all transactions in 2002 recorded as equity investments 
by us in Westar Industries so such transactions are reflected as 
intercompany payables owed by westar Industries to us. 
The order directed us to submit a plan wthin 90 days for 
r e s t r u c t u ~  our organmtional structure so that our KPL electnc 
utility business operatlng as a divlsion of us is placed in a separate 
subsidiary. The plan required us to include the process for 
restructuring, an analysis of whether the restructuring is consistent 
with our present debt rndentures and loan agreements, and if not, 
the necessary amendments to proceed wth the restructuring. The 
restructunng plan was required to be accompanied ~ an updated 
cost allocation manual to track costs and investments attnbutable 
to our regulated electric utility and non-regulated actiwties 
Followmg approval of the restructuring plan and the updated cost 
allocation manual, we will be required to provide the KCC with 
separate quarterly financial statements for us and our electric utility 
operations We filed a plan wth the KCC on February 6, 2003 as 
discussed below in 'I- February 6, 2003 Debt Reduction and 
Restructunng Plan" 

m The order directed us to provlde a wntten explanation if the amounl 
of debt secured by utility assets that we transfer to the new utihty 
subsidiary exceeds B 1 5 billion 

November 8,2002 KCC Order 

The order directed us to reduce out consolidated debt, to consider 
certain actions for reducing our consolidated debt, and to pnwide 
expert testimony supporting any decison to reject a suggested 
action. For the two years beginning on the date we submit our 
restructunng plan, we are required to reduce utility debt by at least 
$100 million annually. The suggested actions include payments of 
$100 mdlion each year from intemally generated cash flow, the 
lssuance of common stock, the sale of ONEOK stock, a reduction 
in, or e l imt ion  of, our diwdend, and the sale of protection One. 
The order initiated an investigation into the appropnate type, . 

' 

W 

quanuty, structure and regulauon of the non-utility businesses with 
which our uulity businesses may be affiliated. 
The order establrshed standstill protections requiring that we seek 
KCC approval before we take certain actions, including making any 
loan to, mvestment m or transfer of cash u1 excess of $lOO,OOO to a 
non-uaty affilute, entering into any agreement with a non-utdity 
affiliate where the value of goods or setvias exchanged exceeds 
$lOO,OOO, investing by us or an affiliate of more than $lOO,OOO in 
an existing or new non-utihty busmess, transfemng any nonash 
assets or rntellectual property to any non-utility affiliate, issuing any 
debt, or selling any ONEOK stock without complying wth the 
requirements of a July 9,2002 KCC order. In addition, we must 
charge interest to non-utility affillates at the incremental cost of 
their debt on outstanding balances of any existmg or future inter- 
affiliate loans, receivables or other cash advances due us. These 
restrictions apply both to us and our KGE subsibry 

On November 25,2002, we filed a motion for reconslderanon and 
clanfication of some prov~~~ons of the order. In response, the KCC 
w e d  an order on December 23,2002 as dwussed below 

On December 23, 2002, the KCC w e d  an order modifylng the 
requirements of the November 8,2002 order mcerrung creation of 
a utility-only subsidiary and filing of a financial plan. The order 
directed that no later than August 1, 2003, our KPL utility dimion 
must be held within a utility-only subsidiary. The consolidated debt 
for all of our utility businesses, the KPL utility dimion and KGE, shall 
not exceed $1.67 bdhon. 

December 23,2002 KCC Order 

February 6,2003 Debt Reduction and Restructuring Plan 
On February 6,2003, we filed a Debt Reduction and Restrucntnng 
Plan (the Debt Reduction Plan) with the KCC outlining our plans for 
paying down debt and restructuring the company The Debt 
Reduction Plan detailed items that have almady been accomplished, 
including, among other dungs, that: 

Consistent with the KCC5 pnor orders, \?e have terminated certain 
agreements and reversed cemn intercompany transactions that 
mght have prevented or impeded returnmg to being a stand-alone 
electnc utility 
We have sold a portion of our ONEOK stock and rawd $300 milhon, 
the net p m e d s  of whch we anticipate using to repurchase or 
prowde for the repayment of all of the 6 25% senior unsecured 
notes that have a final maturity of August 15,2018 and are putable 
and callable on August 15,2003 (the putabldcallable notes) and a 
portion of our 6 875% senior unsecured notes 
Our boaid of directors has established a dividend policy that 
reduced our quarterly common dimdend by 37% to a dividend rate 
of $0 19 pel share for the first quarter of 2003 5 
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In addition, the Debt Reduction Plan c ~ l l s  for 
The sale of Protection One Europe 
The sale of our interest in Protection One. 
The sale oC all of our remaining shares of ONEOK preferred stock 
(2 1.8 million shares) and common stock (4 7 million shares) We 
anticipate that all remaining ONEOK secunties wdl be liquidated 
by yearend 2004 

D The sale of other non-core and non-utility assets. We intend to 
drspose of these assets in an orderly fashion While not expected to 
be significant in the Debt Reduction Plan, net proceeds from these 
d s p u o n s  w~l l  also be used Cor debt reduction 

rn The potential issuance of equity secunties in the second half of 
2004, if needed to further reduce debt, followng the dlspontion of 
all material non-utility and non-core assets. 

February IO, 2003 KCC Order 
On February 10, 2003, the KCC issued an order granting limited 
reconsideration of its December 23,2002 order The KCC stayed the 
requirement of the December 23,2002 order that we form a utihty- 
only subsidmy The KCC also stated that the Debt Reduction Plan 
appears to make a good-faith effort to address the concerns expressed 
in the KCCs pnor orders and that the KCC needed additional time to 
mew the Debt kducuon Plan pnor to addressing other I S S U ~ ~  raised 
in our petiuon for reconsideration of the December 23,2002 order. 
The KCC staff and other parties to the KCC docket considenng the 
Debt Reduction Plan have filed comments on the Debt Reducuon 
Plan. The KCC has not yet establlshed a procedural schedule for 
considering the Debt Reduction Plan and the related commenk. We 
are unable to predict what action the KCC wll take wth  respect to 
the Debt Reduction Plan 

March I I ,  2003 KCC Order 
On March 11, 2003, the KCC lssued an order conditionally 
approving a partd supulauon entered into by us, Protection One and 
certain parties in the KCC docket considenng the Debt Reduction 
Plan The order, among other things. (a) authonzed us to make a 
payment to Protection One of approxlmately 620 million for the 
2002 tax year under the tax sharing agreement wth Protection One, 
(b) authorized Westar Industnes to extend the matunty date of the 
credit h&ty it p m d e s  to Protection One to January 5, 2005, (c) 
reduced the amount that may be advanced to Protection One under 
the credit facility to $228.4 million, (d) authonzed us to pay 
apprommately 61.0 million to Protection One as reimbursement for 
information technology S ~ M C ~ S  prowded to us, and related costs 
incurred, by a subsidiary of Protection One, and (e) authonzed us to 
pay appronmately $3.4 million to Protection One as reimbursement 
for avlation semces provtded by a subsidmy of Protection One and 
for the repurchase of the stock of the subsdiary The March 11,2003 
KCC order IS fled as Exhibit 990) to this Annual Report on Form 10-K 
and incorporated herein by reference. 
FERC Proceeding 
On September 6. 2002, we filed an application with the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) seeking authonzation to 

issue unsecured long-term debt secunties, on or before October 31, 
2004, in an amount not to exceed $650 million at any one time. On 
February 20, 2003, FERC approved our request subject to certain 
conditions and also issued genenc industry wde guidelines for future 
debt finanangs On March 14,2003, we informed FERC that we do 
not intend to issue any debt secunties pursuant to the authonty 
granted on February 20,2003. 

4. CHANGES IN ONEOK OWNERSHIP 

On January 9, 2003, we announced that Westar !ndustnes had 
entered into an agreement wth ONEOK to sell ONEOK a poruon of 
the sham of ONEOK Series A Convertible Preferred Stock held by 
Westar Industnes at the prevailing market price, less transaction 
costs, and to exchange W a r  Industries' remaining shares of Senes A 
Convertible Preferred Stock for new shares of ONEOK Series D Non- 
cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock. On February 5, 2003, 
ONEOK repurchased from Westar Industries 9,038,755 sham of ~ts 
Senes A Convertible Preferred Stock, which were convertible into 
18,077,511 shares of common stock. W received $300 mllion as a 
result of thls sale. 
Westar lndustnes also exchanged its remaining shares of Senes A 
Convertible Preferred Stock for 2 1,8 1 5,386 new shares of ONEOK5 
Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock. ONEOK has agreed to file a shelf 
regstration statement covenng the Senes D Convertible Preferred 
and common stock held by Westar Industries under the Securities , 
Act of 1933. Future sales wd1 be subject to conditions including the 
effectiveness of such registration, the required waiver or expiration 
of a 180-day lock-up period ending on July 22, 2003, and future 
market conditions As of March 14,2003. Westar Industries holds an 
approximate 27.5% ownership interest in ONEOK assuming 
conversion of the Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock. 
The Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock has substantially the same 
terms as the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, except that: 

The Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock has a fixed quarterly cash 
diwdend of 23.125 cents per share, as declared by ONEOKS board 
of directors; 
The Series D Convertible Preferred Stock 1s uansfemble to a h r d  
party as convertible preferred stock; 
The Senes D Converuble Preferred Stock IS redeemable by ONEOK 
at any time after August 1,2006 in the went that the closing pnce 
of ONEOK common stock exceeds 325 for 30 consecutive uadmg 
days after such date, at a per share redemption pnce of $20; 
Each share of Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock IS converuble 
into one share of ONEOK common stock, subject to adjustment for 
stock splits, stock diwdends, reverse stock splits or any transacuon 
with comparable effects; and 
Westar Industnes may not convert any shares of Senes D Converuble 
Preferred Stock held by it unless the annual per share diwdend for 
the ONEOK common stock for the prevlous year is greater than 
92 5 cents per share and such conversion would not subject us, 
Westar Industries nor ONEOK to the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 1935 
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We, Westar Industries and ONEOK also agreed to amend the terms of 
the existing Shareholder Agreement (Shareholder Agreement) and 
Registration Rights Agreement. Under the new agreements: 

B Westar lndustnes is prohibited from acquinng any additional 
securities of ONEOK. 
Westar Industries may make private sales of shares as long as each 
sale involves less than 5% of ONEOKS outstanding common shares 
(assuming conversion of the Senes D Convertible Preferred Stock 
to be sold) and is made to an owner of less than 5% of ONEOKS 
outstanding common shares. Westar lndustnes may make public 
sales in any broad underwritten offering under the shelf registrauon 
statement to be filed by ONEOK wthin 60 days of the agreement, 
and has piggy-back registration nghts. 

m Westar Industries has the nght to designate one ONEOK board 
member. Our designee'dl not have the nght to sit on any comrmttee 
of ONEOKS board of directors. We have also agreed to vote in favor 
of the election of all candidates for director nommated by ONEOKS 
board of directors. 
Westar Indusules IS not obligated to sell mto stock repurchases by 
ONEOK. 

m The new Shareholder Agreement wll tennmte if our or any affiliate3 
beneficial ownership falls below 10% of ONEOlCs outstanding 
common shares (assuming convefslm of the Senes D Convertible 
Preferred into ONEOK common stock). 

rn The top-up nghts, dilutive issuance nghts and buykll option 
provided for m the previous Shareholder Agreement were elrmrnated 
in the new agreement. 

In 2002 and prior periods, we accounted for our ONEOK common 
stock mvestment under the equity method of accounting. Dunng 
2003, we will account for our ONEOK common stock investment as 
an available-for-sale secunty under SFAS No 115, "Accounting for 
Certain Investments u1 Debt and Equity Secunties," and mark to 
market its hir value thmugh other comprehenslve income. Wk wll 
begin accounting for our ONEOK Senes D Convertible Preferred 
Stock investment under this method if and when a public market for 
these securines develops. 

in a revolving pool ot our accounts receivable arising from the sale of 
electnaty to a multi-seller conduit adrnmnistered by an independent 
financial instituuon through the use of a special purpose entity (SPE). 
W account for this transfer as a sale in accordance with SFAS No. 140, 
"Accounting for Transfers and Servicmg of Financial Assets and 
Extingu&tnent of hbilities." The apement was amended on July25, 
2002 and 1s annually renewable upon agreement by all parties. The 
amendment to the agreement extended the term until July 23,2003 
and limited the amount of the accounts receivable we had a right to 
sell during certain periods to $125 million. 
Under the terms of the agreement, Westar Energy and KGE may ' 

transfer accounts receivable to the bankruptcy-remote SPE, and the 
conduit must purchase from the SPE an undiwded ownership 
mterest of up to $125 million in those rexeivables. The SPE has berm 
structurrd to be legally separate from us, but it is wholly owned and 
consolidated. The percentage ownership interest in receivables 
purchased by the conduit may increase or decrease over ume, 
depending on the characteristics of the SPES receivables, includmg 
delinquency rates and debtor concenmhons. 
Under the terms of the agreement, the conduit pays the SPE the fixe 
amount of the undiyided interest at the time of purchase. Subsequent 
to the initial purchase, additional interests are sold and collections 
applied by the SPE to the conduit, resulting in an adjustment to the 
outstan- conduit interest. 
We record administratwe expense on the undivided mterest owned 
by the conduit, which was $2.9 million for the year ended 2002, 
$5 4 million for the year ended 2001 and $3.7 million for the year 
ended 2000. These expenses are included in other income (expense) 
in our consolidated statements of mcome. 
The outstanding balance of SPE receivables was $48.2 million at 
December 31,2002 and $43.3 million at December 31,2001, which 
is net of an undmded intenst of 3 1 10.0 million and 3 100.0 million, 
respectively, in receivables sold by the SPE to the conduit. Our 
retamed intenst in the SPES receivables IS reported at fair value and is 
subonhate to, and provides credit enhancement for, the conduits 
ownership interest in the SPES recetvables. Our retained inmest is 
available to the conduit to pay any fees or expenses due to the 
conduit and to absorb all a d i t  losses incumd on any of the SPES 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Our accounts receivable on our consolidated balance sheets are receivables. The retained interest is included in aao&ts -ia& 
comprised as follows: 
As of -31. too2 2001 

(In Thousands) 

Grods accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $180,410 $173,175 
Allowance for uncollectable accounts . . . . (19,868) (19,082) 
UnklledenergyrecePvaMes. . . . 
Accounts mewable sale program . . 
Accounts receivable, net .,. . . $ 94.747 5 96,824 

On July 28,2000, Westar Energy and KGE entered into an agreement 
under which we transfer an undiwded percentage ownershp intenst 

net, in our consolidated balance sheets. 
A ternination event will be triggered under the terms of the 
agreement if W t a r  Eneqzyk credit mnng ceases to be at least BB- by 
Standard & PoorS Ratings Group (WP) OT if the issuer credit rating 
for Westar Energy ceases to be at least Ba3 by MoodyS Investos 
Service (Moodyk). If a termination event were to occur, the 
administrative agent would be required to give notice to us at least 
live business days prior to a termination of the facility This notice 
provision allows for the adminmrative agent to waive the termination 
event by not gwng notice or, in the event notice is gwen, allows us to 
repay the facility. 
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ENERGY TRADING 
AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

Values of Financial Instruments 
The canylng values and estimated fair values of our financial 
instruments are as follows: 

AsofDcc#nkr31. 2000 2001 2002 a 1  

fixed-rate debt net of 

c s y i n g ~ ~  Fair Value 

(b, ‘Ihousands) 

c u m  mat& . . . $2,354,488 $2,323,935 $2,290,141 12,135,595 

redeemable sea&... 214,505 220,000 133,829 190,960 

b, Fair value IS estimated based on quoted market pncrsJor the same or similar S u e s  
or on the cunrnl rata ofledfor Instrummls ofthc same remaining molunhls and 

othermandaorily 

ndcmptlonprovisumr 

The recorded amounts of accounts receivable and other current 
financial instruments approximate fair value. Cash and cash 
equivalents, short-term borrowings and variable-rate debt are camed 
at cost, which approximates fair value and are not included in the 
table above. 
The fair value estimates presented herein are based on lnformatim 
available at December 31,2002 and 2001. These fair value estimates 
have not been comprehenslvely revalued for the purpose of these 
consolidated financial statements since that date and current 
estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts 
presented hemn. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedge Accounting 
Our operations are exposed to market risks from changes in 
commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices that could affect our results of operations and financial 
condiaon. Wk manage our exposure to these market mks through 
our regular operating and financing activities and, when deemed 
appropnate, hedge a portion of these nsks through the use of 
derivative financial instruments We use the term hedge to mean a 
strategy designed to manage risks of volatility in prices or rate 
movements on some assets, liabilities or anticipated transactions by 
creating a relationship in which gains or losses on denvauve 
instruments att expected to counterbalance the losses or gains on the 
assets, liabilities or antiapated transactions exposed to such market 
risks. We use derivative instruments as risk management tools 
consistent with our business plans and prudent business practices 
and for energy tradmg purposes. 
We use derivative financial and phpcal instruments pnmanly to 
manage risk as it relates to changes in the prices of commodiues 
including natural gas, oil, coal and electriaty and changes m interest 
rates. We also use denvative instruments for tradmg purposes in 
order to take advantage of favorable pnce movements and market 
timing actiwties in the wholesale power and fossil fuel markets. 
Derivauve instruments used to manage commodity pnce nsk 
inherent in fossll fuel and electnaty purchases and sales are classified 
as energy trading contracts on our consolidated balance sheets 
Energy trading contracts representing unrealized gain positions are 

1 

reported as assets; energy tradmg contracts representing unrealmd 
loss positions are reported as liabilities 

We engage in both frnanaal and physlcal trading to manage our 
commodity price risk. We trade electnaty, coal, ~ t u m l  gas and oil. 
We use a vanecy of h c i a l  instruments, mcludmg f d  con-, 
options and swaps and trade energy commodity contracts daily We 
also use hedging techniques to manage overall fuel expendituns. Wk 
procure physical product under f d  price agreements and spot 
market transactions. 

W i b  the trading portfolio, we take certam positions to hedge a 
portion of physical sale or purchase contracts and we take certain 
positions to take advantage of market trends and conditions. Changes 
KI value arr reflected in our consolidated statements of income. W 
believe financd instruments help us manage our contractual 
comtments, reduce our exposure to changes in cash market pnces 
and take advantage of selected market ~ p p ~ r t ~ n i t i e ~ .  We d e r  to 
these transactions as energy trading actimues. 
We are involved ln trading actiwties primarily to reduce risk from 
market fluctuations, cap~talize on our market knowledg! and enhance 
system rehability. Net open positions exst, or are established, due to 
the ongnation of new transactions and our assessment of, and 
response to, changng market conditions. To the extent we have open 
ponuons, we are exposed to the risk that changing market prices 
could have a material, adverse impact on our financial position or 
results of operanons. 
We have considered a number of risks and costs associated with the 
future contractual commitments included in our energy portfolio. 
These risk include credit risks associated with the financial 
condition of counterparties, product locanon (basis) differentiaJs and 
other risks. Declines in the creditworthiness of our counterparties 
could have a material adverse impact on our overail exposure to 
credit nsk. We maintain credit policies with regard to our 
counterparties that, in managements VIW, reduce overall mdit risk. 
We are also exposed to commodity pnce changes outside of tmdmg 

. activiues We use denvatives for non-tradmg puxposes and a mix of 
various fuel types pnmarily to reduce exposure relative to the 
volatility of market and commodity pnces. The wholesale power 
market is extremely volatile in price and supply This volatility 
impacts our costs of power purchased and our participation in pOwer 
trades. If we were unable to generate an adequate supply of elecuicity 
€or our native load customers, we would pu~~hase  power m the 
wholesale market to the extent it is available or economically feasible 
to do so andlor unplement curtailment or interruption procedures as 
allowed for in our tan& and terms and conditions of sewice. To the 
extent open posltions e m t  in our power marketmg portfolio, we are 
exposed to changing market pnces that may adversely impact our 
financial position and results of operations. The in-d expenses 
or loss of revenues assodated vvlth ths could be material and adverse 
to our consohdated results of operations and financial condition. Due 
to the volatility of power market and gas pnces, past pnces cannot be 
used to predict future pnces 

Energy Trading Activities 
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we use a mix of vanous f d l  fuel types, including coal, natural gas 
and oil, to operate our system, whch helps lessen our nsk associated 
with any one he1 type. A significant portion of our coal rrquirements 
are under long-term contract, whch removes most of the price risk 
associated with this commodiry type. Due to the volatility of natural 
gas prices, we have begun to increasingly utilw our abdity to switch 
to lower cost fuel types as the market allows. 

Additional factors that affect our commodity price exposure am the 
quantity and availability of fuel used for generation and the quantity 
of electricity cutomers will consum. Quantities of fossil fuel used 
for generation could vary dramatically year to year based on the 
particular fuelk availability, price, deliverability, unit outages and 

.nuclear refueling. Our customers' electricity usage could a k  vay 
dramatically year to year based on weather or other facto^. 
Alrhough we generally attempt to balance our physical and f inand 
contracts in terms of quantities and contract perfomnce, net open 
positions typically exist. We will at times create a net open position or 
allow a net open position to continue when we believe that future 
pria movements will in- the portfolioS value. To the extent we 

lgj have an open position, we are exposed to changmgma+t prices that 
rf m l d  have a mated  adverse impact on our financial p t i o n  or 

a The prices we use to value price risk management activities reflect 
f'9 our estimate of fair values considering various factors, including 
'-I closing exchange and over-the-counter quotations, time value 
'3 of money and pTice volatility factors underlymg the commitments. 

We adjust prices to reflect the potential impact of liquidating our a position in an orderly manner over a reasonable penod of time under 
pmmt market conditions. W consider a number of risks and costs 

t'V associated with the future contractual commitments included in our 
energy portfolio, includmg credit risks assodated with the financial 
condition of counterparties and the time value of money We 

go1 re5ultsofoperations. 

The effecave portion of the gam or loss on a derivative mtrument 
designated as a cash flow hedge is reported as a component of 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). This amount is 
reclassified into earnlngs in the period during which the hedged 
transaction affects earnings. Effectiveness is the degree to which gains 
and losses on the hedging ulsttuments offset the gains and losses on 
the hedged item. The ineffectwe portion of the hedging relationship is 
rexognized currently in earnings 
The fair values of denvatives used to hedge or modify our risks 
fluctuate over time. These fair value amounts should not be viewed in 
WhhOn, but rather m relation to the fair values or cash flows of the 
underlying hedged transactions and the overall reduction in OUT risk 
relating to adverse fluctuations in interest rates, comm0dic)- prices 
and other market ktors. In addition, the net income effect resulting 
from our denvative mtruments is rrcorded in the same line item 
within our consolidated statements of income as the underlying - 
exposure being hedged. We also formally assess, both at the inception 

that are used m hedging transactions are effective at okt t ing changes 
in either the fair value or cash flows of the related underlying 
exposures. Any ineffective portion of a h a i l  instrument5 change 
in fair value is immedntely recognized m net mpzne. 

During the third quarter of 2001, we entered into hedging 
relationships to manage commodity price risk associated with future 
natural gas purchases in order to pmtect us and our customers from 
adverse price fluctuations in the natural gas market. Initially we 
entered into futures and swap contracts wth terms extending 
throughJuly 2004 to hedge price risk for a portion of our anticipated 
natural gas fie1 requirements for our generation facilities. We have 
designated these hedgmg relationships as cash flow hedges in 
accordance wth SFAS No. 133. 

' 

and at least quarterly thereafter, whether the financial instrumen ts 

Hedging Activities \ 

continu- monitor the portfolio and value it dady based on p w  
market conditions. 
Futu~e changes rn our creditwoduness and the creditworthiness of 
our counteprtxs may change the value of our portfolio We adjust 
the value of contracts and set dollar limits with counterparties based 
on om assessment of their credit quality 

In 2002, due to the increased availability of our coal units and 
because we began burning more oil as use of oil became more 
economically favorable than gas, we did not bum our forecasted 
amount of natud gas. In September 2002, we determined that we had 
over-hedged apprommately 12,000,000 MMBtu for the remaining 
period of the hedge. As a result of the dscontmuance of this portion 
of the cash flow hedge, we recognized a gain m earnings of 

' 

W e  use derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to 
certain fluctuaaons in some commodity pnces, intens rates, and other 
market risks. When we enter into a f inand  instrument, we formally 

$4.0 milhon. we are & n d y  fom&ting thacwe need a notional 
volume of 7,000,000 MMBtu for the remainder of the hedged period 
through July 2004. 

designate and document the instrument as a hedge of a specific 
underlying exposure, as well as the nsk management objectives and 
strategies for undertakq the hedge traTlsaction Because of the high 
degree of correlation between the hedging instrument and the 
underlying exposure being hedged, fluctuations in the value of the 
derivmve lllsttlllnents are generally offset by changes in the value or 
cash flows of the underlymg exposures being hedged. 

Ektive October 4, 2001, we entered into a $500 million interest 
rate swap agmement wuh a term of two years. At that time, the effect 
of the swap agreement was to fix the annual interest rate on the tern 
loan at 6.18%. In June 2002, we refinanced the term loan associated 
with this swap, which increased the effecuve rate of the swap to 
6.43% At December 31 , 2002, the variable ratem effect for the term 
loan was 4.40%. Changes in the fair value of ths cash flow hedge are 

We record denvatives used for hedgmg commodity pnce risk in our 
consolidated balance sheets at fair value as energy tradmg contracts. 

due to fluctuations in the variable interest rate. 
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The foUowng table summarizes the effects our natural gas hedge and 
our interest rate swap had on our finanaal position and results of 
operations for the year ended December 31 , 2002. 

Total 
Natwdgas IntenStRate cash- 
HcascM snnp Heasa 

[DollarsmThouwrds) 
Fan value of dernratnre muments 

current. . . $ 4,198 $8,762 $12,960 
Long-term . . . . . . . .  1,476 - 1,476 

Total . .. . . .  $ 5,674 $ 8,762 514,436 

Change in amounts in accumulated 
othercomprehewnrem . . .  $25,571 5(6,106) 119,465 
Adjustment for losses mduded 

innetmume. .... 1,992 - 1,992 
Change in eshmated income 

taxexpense(beneflt) . . . .  (10.964) 2,428 ( 8 , s )  
NetComprehensNe(Gain)Loss .... $16,599 $(3,678) $12,921 

Antklpated fedamfiim to 
earmngsmthe md 12 monthsm . . . .  $ 4,198 $ 8,762 $12960 

Duration of hedge desgnatm 
asof December 31,2002 . . . . .  19 months 10 months 

")Natural gas hedge assets and liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as energy 
trading contracts Due to the vdatdity o/ga commodiry pnces. it is p m W e  thar 
gas pnns wiil incmsc urtd dcrreuse ovcr the remuinitag 19 months that thrv 
rrlotionships arr in place 

'%e actmi amounts thaf will b~ mc~asslfird to eurnings could vary materiaIIyJm 
ths estimated amount due to changes in market conditions. 

- 

Fairvalue of EnergyTrading Contracts 
The tables below show fair value of energy trading contracts 
outstanding for the year ended December 31,2002, their sources and 
matunty periods. 

OnThoraads) 

Net fair value of contracts outstanding at the beginning of the penod ....... 5 2.309 
~contractsreal~edorotherwaesettleddunngthepenod . . . .  17,144 

. 24,478 Plus fair value of new contracts entered into dunng the penod 
. . . . .  $9,643 F a  value of contracts outstanding at the end of the penod 
- - 

~ ~ 

These contracts were valued through market exchanges and, where 
necessary, broker quotes and mdustry pubhcations. The sources of 
the fair values of the financial mstruments related to these amtracts 
are summanzed in the following table: 

.I 

Fair Value of Cmtmtsat End of hrhd 

sources of Fab value 

Prices actnrely quoted (futures) 
PncesproMdedbyotherextemal 

sources (swaps and forwards) . 
Pnces based on the Black 

Option Pncing model 
(options and otherIw 

contracts outstanding 
Total fair value of 

bn'lhousands) 

$6,352 J(260) $6,612 $ - s -  
7,880 4,281 3,599 - - I 

(4,589) (3.216) (1.373) - - 

99,643 9 805 18,838 S - J -  
~~ ~ ~~ ~ ~ 

" n e  Black Ophon Pnang model IS a vananl oJthe Blach-Scholes Ophoii Pnang model 

Effects of Accounting Changes -Accounting 
for Energy Trading Contracts 
In October 2002, the FASB, through the Em issued lssue No. 02-03, 
which resanded Issue No. 98-10, "Accounting for Contracts 
lnvolved in Energy Trading and Rsk Management Activities." As a 
result, all new contracts that would othennse have been accuunted 
for under lssue No. 98-10 and that do not fall w i h  the scope of 
SFAS No. 133 can no longer be marked-tmnarket and recorded in 
eammgs as of October 25,2002 We are not affected by this change in 
accounting principle and are not required to reclassit) any of our 
contracts ElTF lssue No. 02-03 also requires that energy tradq 
contracts and derivatives, whether settled finanaaUy or physicalIy, be 
reported in the income statement on a net basis effective January 1, 
2003 W e  began to clasnfy our energy tradingcontracts on a net bas+ 
during the third quarter of 2002. 
On July 1 , 2002, we began reporting mark-to-markt gains and Iosses 
on energy trading contracts on a net basis, whether realized or 
unrealized, in our consolidated income statements. Prior to July 1, 
2002, we reported gains on these contracts in sales and losses in cost 
of sales in our consolidated mcome statements. The changes am 
reflected in our consohdated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2002. Prior periods shown in our consolidated 
financial statements have been reclassified to reflect the effect of this 
change and to be comparable as required by GAA€? As a d t  of the 
net presentation, we expect significant reductions in our energy 
revenues and expemss from those reported in prior periods, which 
will not affect gross profit or net income. A summary of the effects of 
this change for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000 
is as follows: 

Changes to Income Statements 
Yew Ended December 31, Mo1 *to After 

Reclapltiutknt R d a d k & ~  
form 3 Rercnbtkn 

onn#Mnd3 
Energysales . . . . . . . . . . .  : . .  51,798971 $1,422,899 

Energygmprofit . . . . . . . . .  $1,044,271 $1,044,271 
. . . . .  Energycastofsaks . . . . . . .  754,700 378,628 

Year Ended December 31,2001 

annll=fw 

Energysales ......................... $1,706,311 $1,307,177 

Energygrossprofit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 913,101 I 913,101 
Energy cost of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  793,210 394,076 

Year Ended December 31, Moo 

(In Thousands) 

Energysales . ' . .  .. ' $1,829,133 $1,359,522 

Energy gross profit $ 979,115 5 979,115 
Energy cost of sales 850,018 380,407 
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

The followng IS a summary of pr~perty, plant and equipment at 
December 31: 

2002 2001 

Llectnc'plant m sem . . 
Less -Accumulated depreclatron 

Constrticmn work in progress . . . . . . . .  
Nudear fuel, net . . . . . . . .  . . .  

Netuttlityplant . . .  . . . .  
NoMltllrtyplantmsemce . 
Less accumulated depreaatmn . . . . . . .  

Net property, plant and equipment 

.... 

. . . . .  

On nKwanQ) 

$6,414,231 $6.31 7,121 
2,522,164 2,404,479 
3,892,067 3,912,642 

4O,07 1 63,927 
2 1,694 33,883 

3,953,832 4,010,452 
8 108,493 116,274 

66,954 55,738 
$3,995,371 14,070,988 

Depreciation expense on property, plant and equipment for the yean 
ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000 was as follows 

zow 2m 2000 

On fhwsands) 

. utdny . . .  .... 5171,749 S185,156 $175,839 

Totaldepmattonexpense . . .  $186,617 $206,126 $205,327 
Non-utiliry .. . . . .  14,868 20,970 29,488 

8. JOINT OWNERSHIP OF UTILITY PLANTS 

Our Ownership at December 31,2002 

In-scrvkc Accumulated Net owmrrhip 
Dates lmestmntDepredationMw percent 

( 0 d l a r s m T h o ~  

LaCygnelm . . .  June 1973 $ 191,709 $116,658 3440 
Jeffrey 1" . July 1978 308,195 155,182 617.0 
Jeffrey 2@ . . . . . . .  h4ay 1980 310.164 132,600 6130 
leffreyp . May 1983 413,298 188,139 6250 
Jeffrey mnd 1' May 1999 875 142 0.6 
leffreywindp . . .  May 1999 874 141 06  
WCredrlb ..... Sept 1985 1,387,071 545,828 5480 
Stateti# . . . . . .  June 2001 107,735 6,397 200.0 

@]mtiy owned wtth Kansas Ci~y Power und Laght Company MCPU 
wJantb owned wlth Aquik, Inc. 
w]antly owned mth KCPL and Kansas Electm Power Chprahvc, Inc 
%nncIv owned wlih Ernpin lhstnct Elcctnc Cornpony 

50 
84 
84 
84 
84 
84 
47 
40 - 

~~ 

Amounts and capaury presented above represent our share Our share 
of operaung expenses of the plants in semce above, as well as such 
expenses for a 50% undiwded merest in LaCygne 2 (representmg 
337 megawatt (MW) capaaty) sold and leased back to KGE m 1987, 
are included in operaung expenses on our consolidated statements of 
income. Our share of other tmnsacnons associated wth the plants is 
included in the appropriate classification in our consolidated 
financial statements. 

9. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED 
FOR BY THE EQUITY METHOD 

A portion of our investment in ONEOK is presently accounted for by 
Lhe equity method. See Note 4 for a dwussion of changes in our 
ownership in ONEOK and a change in the method by which we 
account for our mvestmeent. , 

EqPwb* 
lnwrtmmt8t z c  Oe~e1nber31, beamber 31 

tool 2003 2001 zoo0 no2 2m 
(hrThasands) 

ONEOP ..... 45% $703,315 $695,744 $9.670 $4,721 $8,213 
__ -~ ~~ 

'" WC also nccivcd uppmrnatcly $40 mtllion oJpmJcnrd ond common divldrnds in 
2002,2001 and 2000. ONEOKequity earn~ngs/or2oOJ were k r  due to charges 
rewrdcdfor E n m  Corp cxposurc Major cenan regulatory issues ONEOK hod UI 
Ohlohoma 

The fohnng IS summanzed unaudited ONEOK financial infonnauon 
related to our invesunent in ONEOK: 

. 

As of December 31, 2m 2001 
~~ 

@Thousaw 
Balance Sheet' 

Current assets .................... S 1,626,648 $ 1,542,767 
Nonarrent assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,104,210 4,310,533 
Current Ilabil&es,. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,720,708 1,792,558 
Long-termdebt,net ..................... 1,511,118 1,498,012 

1 , 1 33,420 1,297,440 Other deferredcredlts and otherliabtl&s 
Equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,365,612 3,265,290 

. . . . .  
~~ 

, For the Year Ended oeamkr 31, 2002 2001 zaoa 
On liun6ands) 

Income statemens 
Rmws . . . .  . . $2,104,280 11,915,941 $1,996,179 
G m  profit . . . . . . . . . . .  975,660 826,375 745,652 
Income frumcont~numg operattons 

before curnuhue effect of a 
change in accounbng pnnople . . .  155,976 78,837 137,666 

Netrmrme . . . . . . . . . . . . .  166,624 101.565 145.607 

.. 

ONEOK eamg for 2001 include a pretax charge of $34.6 d o n  for 
unrecoveredgascostsfromthewin~of2oO0-2001 andaS37.4rnillim 
pretax charge related to the E m  Cop. (Enron) bankruptcy The 
charge for the outstanding gas costs is a result of the Oklahoma 
Corporation C o d o n  order denying ONEOK the right to collect 
a portion of gas co6ts lncuntd dunng the winter of 2000-2001. Gas 
pnces m c d  significantly rn this period due to high demand and a 
perceived supply shortage. The cha~es related to Enronk bankruptcy 
axt due to Emnk non-payment of both h d  and physical natural 
gas positions for November and December of 2001. 

Dunng 2001, we dsposed of 98% of our portfolio'of affordable 
houslng tax credit limited partnerships The net impact of our total 
investment in these partnerships on our eamns,  mcluding equity in 
eanungs, loss on dlsposal and generated tax credits was a benefit of 
$5 3 million. 
Dunng 2002, the net impact on our earnings from our remaining 
investments in affordable housing tax credit limited partnerships was 
an expense of $0 4 million 
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IO. MONITORED SERVICES' CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS 12. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Outstanding Debt 
Long-term debt outstandlng is as follows at December 31: 

The followng 1s a rollforward of the investment in customer accounts 
(at cost) of the monitored semces segment for the followng years: 
kofbccemkr31, 2002 2001 

Beginning customer accounts. net $786,839 $963,595 
Acqulsltm of customer accounts . 16,450 8,300 
A ~ o n o f c u s t M n e r a m n t s  . . . .  (83,301 ) (148,OO6) 
Saleofaccounts . . .  (738) (42,246) 

Purchase holdbacks and other . . . .  (2,289) 5.1% 

(Infhwsands) 

- Imprmentcharges(23) ..... .. (338,104) 

Ending customer accounts, net ... . . . .  $378,857 $786,839 

Westar Energy 
First mortgage bond series: 

7 1/4% due2002 . . 
77/8%due2007 . . . .  
8 1R% due 2022 . 
765%due2023 . . .  

s -  I 100,000 
365,000 - 
125,000 125,OOO 
100,m 10,m 
590,OOO 325,000 

.. 
.. 

. . .  
. .  

. .  
. .  

Pollutton control bond 5ene5' 
Vanable due 2032,1228% at December 31,2002 . . 
Vanable due 2032,1.20% at December 31,2002 . 
6% due 2033 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

4s,000 45,000 
30,500 30,500 
58,340 58,340 Accumulated amortuanon of the investment in customer accounts at 

December 31, 2002 was 6678.9 million and $614.5 million at 
December 31,2001. Customer account amortlzation expense was 
$83.3 million for 2002, $148.0 million for 2001, and $158.7 milhon 
for 2000. 
Dunng 2002, the monitored services segment had a net loss of 
62,656 customers or a 5.3% decrease in its customer base from 
January 1,2002. 

133.840 133840 

278,310 
387,000 
145,078 
27,396 

355,560 

150,Ooo 
28,104 * 

3 8 4 m  

- 

- 
591 ,ooo 
29,067 
4,567 

6 7/8% unsecured senmr notes due 2004 
9 314% unsecured senior notes due 2007 
7 1/8% unsecured senor notes due 2009 ........... 
6.80% unsecured senw notes due 2018 . . . . . .  
6 25% unsecured senior notes due 2018, 

Sennr secured term loan due 2005, vanable rate 

S m  secured temr loan due 2003, vanable rate 

Other long-term agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. 
. . .  

putablelcalbbk2003 . . . . . .  ... 
of44O%atDecember31,2OO2 . . . . . . . . . .  
of486%atDecember31,2001. . . . . .  

Capital leases" . . . . . . . .  

146,390 

584,OOO 

I I .  SHOKT-TERM DEBT 

G m m  banks p m d e  us a revolvlng credit facility on a committed 
basis totalii $150 million. The facility 1s secured by KGES first 
mortgage bonds and matures on June 6,2005, prowded that if we 
have not refinanced or provided for the payment of our putable/ 
callable notes due August 15,2003, or our 6.875% senior unsecured 
notes due August 1, 2004, at least 60 days pnor to either of the 
respective due dates, the maturity date is 60 days prior to either of the 
respective due dates As of December 31,2002, borrowings on the 
revolving credit facility were 31.0 million, leaving $149 million 
remaining capacity under this facilrty See Note 12 for a dscusion of 
covenants apphcable to our credit facilities. 

27,356 
4,352 

1,599,882 1,542.598 
KGE 
hrstmortgagebondseries 

7 60% due 2003w . . . . . . . . .  
6 1R% due 2005 . 
6.2096due2006 . . .  .. . .  

. . .  
135,000 135,ooO 
65,000 65,000 

lo0,Ooo 100,ooo 
300,000 300,000 

Pollutm control bond senes 
510%due2023 . . . . . .  . . . . .  
Vanable due 2027,131 % at December 31,2002 ..... 
7.0% due 2031 . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Vanable due 2032,1.199% at December 31,2002 . . .  
Variable due 2032,l 3% at December 31,2002 ..... 

13,493 13,493 
21,940 21,940 

327,u)o 327,500 
14,500 14,500 
1 08rn 1O8Ooo 

387,433 387,433 
d also had arrangements with cextain banks to provide uNecured 

short-term lines of credit on a committed bass totahng a p p m -  
mately 87.0 milhon through December 31, 2002. These hnes of 
credit were canceled on December 31,2002. 

Information regarding our short-term bommgs 1s as follows: 

Protectionone 
Convertible sen101 ~~borrlmated notes 

due 2003, f d  rate 6.75% . . 
Senior subordmated dacount notes 

due 2005, effectwe rate 11.8% 
Senm ullsecured notes due 2005, 

fdrate7.375% . . . . .  
Seruor subordinated notes due 2009, 

fiKd-8 125% . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

..... 

Capital leases* . . . . . . . . . . . .  

9,725 23,770 

. . . . .  

. . .  

.... 
. . . .  
. . . . . .  

31,033 33,520 
&or 31, 2000 2001 

WbnnThousanls) 

6orrow1ngs outstanding at year &d 
Creda agreement and a miscellaneous 

Weighted average interest rate on debt 
insurance finanang arrangement . . .  . . . . .  $ 2,763 $222,300 

outstanlng at year-end, exdudmg fees . 4 50% 3 38% 
Wetghted av~age Short-tm debt 

oubtandingdunngtheyear . . .  . . .  $168,078 $123,131 
Weighted dady averagf interest rates 

dunng the year, including fees 4 68% 6 58% 

164,285 203,650 

110.340 174,840 
67 321 

367 898 
315,817 436,999 

Protection One Europe 
Recourse financing agreements, 

average effectwe rate 14 31%m . . 
Unamortlzed debt premiumm . . 
Less 

Unamortued debt discountw 
Long-term debt due within one yearm 

long-term debt, net 

48,191 34.931 
~~ 

4,822 12,837 

4,926 6,555 
316,736 167,895 

$3,058,323 $2.999.1 88 
Out interest expense on short-term debt and other was $39 8 million 
in 2002, $40 6 million in 2001 and $63 1 million in 2000 

"'Funds have been irrevocably deposited with the bond r~ustee to providejor repayment 

'b'Agrecments maiure on various dates not exceedingfmri years 
"'Deb[ prcniitinls and discounts are being amomzed ovci the rcmaining lives ojeach ISSUE 

'"'Indudes cavitnl leases. which ait discussed in luithct detail in Notc 25 

of this obligation 

64 
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The amount of westar Energy3 first mortgage bonds authonzed by its 
Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated July 1,1939, as supplemented, IS 
unlunited. The amount of KGES first mortgage bonds authonzed by 
the KGE Mortgage and Deed of Tiust, dated Apnl 1,1940, as supple- 
mented, is limited to a maximum of $2 billion, unless amended. First 
mortgage bonds are secured by utility assets. Amounts of addiaonal 
bonds that maybe issued are subject to property, earnings and certain 
restnctwe provisions of each mortgage. As of December 31,2002, 
$70.4 million principal amount of additional first mortgage bonds 
could be lssued under the most restnctive provisions in Westar 
Energy's mortgage, except in connection wth refundings. As of 
December 31,2002, approximately $302.5 million pnnapal amount 
of additional KGE first mortgage bonds could be issued under the 
most rrstrictive provisions in the mortgage. 
Protection One Europe has recognized as a finanang transaction cash 
reeived through the sale of security equipment and future cash flows 
to be received under security equipment operating lease agreements 
with customem to a third-party financing company 
The indentures governing all of Protection One's debt secunties 
require that Protection One offer to repurchase the secunties in 
cemin circumstances followng a change of control. 

Debt Covenants 
Our debt financing agreements require, among other restnctions, that 
we saw certain financd covenants. These debt instruments contam 
restrictions based on EBITDA. The definition of EBITDA vanes 
among the various indentures. EBITDA is generally derived by 
adding to income (loss) before income taxes, the sum of interest 
expense and depreciation and amortizauon expense. However, under 
the varying defhhons of the mdentures, addinonal adjustments are 
required. A violauon of these restxicuons would result m an event of 
default that would allow the lenders to declare all amounts 
outstanding immediately due and payable. We are in compliance 
with these covenants. The most restrictive of these covenants in 
Westar EnergyS debt instruments are as follows: 
D Consolidated Leverage Ratio: Consolidated total debt to eammgs 

before intenst, taxes, depreciatlon and amortizauon (EBITDA) for 
the most recent four consecuuve quarteIs must be less than 6.00 to 
1 .OO at December 31,2002 and 5.75 to 1 .OO each quarter hereafter 
until June 2005 At December 31,2002, our ratio was 5.13. 
Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio: EBITDA to consolidated 
inte?ost expense for the most recent four consecutive quarten must be 
greater than 2.00 to 1.00. At December 31,2002, our ratlo was 2.54. 
Consolidated Debt toTotal Capital Ratio: Consolidated total debt 
to consolidated total capital for the most recent quarter must be less 
than 0 65 to 1 00 At December 31.2002, our ratio was 0 618. 

The indentures governing Protection One4 public indebtedness 
require i t  to stub certain finanaal covenants in order to borrow 
additional funds. At December 31, 2002, Protection 'One was in 
complmce wth the covenants under its debt instruments. The most 
restrictwe of these covenants in Protection Ones debt instruments are 
as fouows: 
D Total Debt to EBITDA Ratio: Total debt to annualized EBlTDA for 
the most recent quarter must be less than 6.0 to 1 .O. For the quarter 
ended December 31,2002, the ratio was 4.0 to 1 .O. 
EBITDA to Interest Expense Ratio: EBITDA to interest expew 
for the most recent quarter must be greater than 2.25 to 1 .O. FOT the 
quarter ended December 3 1,2002, the d o  was 3.1 to 1 .O. 
Senior Debt to EBITDA Ratio: Senlor debt to annualidEB1TDA 
for the most recent quarter must be less than 4.0 to 1.0. For the 
quarter ended kcember 3 1,2002, the ratio was 2.9 to 1.0. 

The indentures contaip other covenants that impose operational 
restnctions on Protection One that are not burdensome to 
Protection One as those lsted above, and none ambased on credit 
ranngs. A violation of the mdenture covenants would result in an 
event of default that would allow the lenders to declare all amounts 
outstandmg immediately due and payable. 
Followng a change of control of htection One, its rwolwng credit 
facility promded by Westar lndustnes becomes due in MI. The 
holders of htecnon Ones Senior subordinated dixount notes and 
convertible notes have an optional redemption at apprommately 
101% of par, and holders of protecnon Onek senior notes and senior 
subordinated notes have an optional redemption at 101% of par if a 
change in control is coupled with two ratings downgrades. 

Maturities 
Matunties of long-term debt as of December 3 1,2002 are as follows: 

# 

E 

~~~~ ~~ ~ ~ 

on- 
2003"" . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 316,736 
2oWm. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  302,132 
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ................. 858,964 
2006. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  110,676 
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  755,855 
Thereafter ...................................... 1,030,696 

$3,375,059 
~~ ~~~ 

wIncludcs $135 million in debtfor whuhfunds hove ken IITCV&~~ deposited wUh 

@"In addinon, we am q u i d  by a KCC ordcr to rcchtcc utility debt by at IUKC $1 00 
the bond tncstce LO pmvidcjor repayment of an obl~acion 

rnillum anndlv  in each of the next two vmrs 

Our interest expense on long-term debt was $229.5 mUion in 2002, 
$220 2 million in 2001 and $218.3 million in 2000. 
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13. DEBT FINANCINGS 

On May 10, 2002, we completed offerings for $365 million of our 
first mortgage bonds and $400 million of our unsecured senior notes, 
both of which will be due on May 1,2007. The first mortgage bonds 
bear interest at an annual rate of 7 7/8% and the unsecured senior notes 
bear intemt at an annual rate of 9 Y4% Interest on the first mortgage 
bonds and unsecured semor notes 1s payable semi-annually on May 1 
and November 1 of each year. The net proceeds from these offenngj 
were used to repay outstanding lndebtednes of $547 million under 
our exsting secured bank term loan, prowde for the repayment of 
$100 million of our 7.25% first mortgage bonds due August 15,2002 
together wth accrued interest, reduce the outstanding balance on our 
exmng secured revolving credit faality and pay fees and expenses of 
the transactions. In conpnction wth our May 10,2002 financing, we 
amended our secured revolving credit faality to reduce the total 
commipent under the facility to $400 million from $500 million 
and to release $100 rmllion of our first mortgage bonds from collateral 
On June 6, 2002, we entered into a secured credit agreement 
providing for a $585 million term loan and a $150 million revolving 
c d t  hdty each maturing on June 6,2005, pmded that lfwe have 
not refinanced or provided for the payment of our putabldcallable 
notes due August 15,2003, or our 6.875% m o r  ullsecured notes due 
August 1,2004, at least 60- pnor to a h o f  the respective due dates, 
the matunty date is the date 60 days prior to ather of the respective 
due dates. All loans under the crecLt agreement are secured by KGES 
first mortgage bonds. The proceeds of the term loan were used to retire 
an existing $400 million revolving a d i t  facihty with an outstanding 
pnnapal balance of $380 million, to prowde for the repayment at 
matunty of $135 million principal amount of KGE first mortgage 
bonds due December 15, 2003 together with accrued interest, to 
repurchase approximately $45 million of our outstandmg unsecured 
notes and to pay customary fees and expenses of the transactions. 
We wll continue to report as outstanding debt on our consolidated 
balance sheet the $135 million principal amount of KGE first 
mortgage bonds due December 15,2003, until the funds that have 
been irrevocably deposited wth the trustee are used to r em such 
bonds at maturity The cash d e p t e d  wth the trustee 1s included in 
our consolidated balance sheet as part of restricted cash and can only be 
used for the purpose of repaying h s  indebtedness and related interest. 

14. CALL OPTION 
In August 1998, we entered into a call option wth an investment 
bank related to the issuance of $400 million of our putabldcallable 
notes. This call option is required to be settled by August 2003 
through either a cash payment or a remarketing or refinancing of the 
putabldcallable notes. The ultimate value of the call option will be 
based on the difference between the 10-year United States ~ I W S U ~ ~  rate 
on August 12,2003 and 5 44% If the 10-year United States treasury 
rate on August 12,2003 IS less than 5.44%, we will have a liability to 
the uavestment bank at that time. At December 31 , 2002, our potential 
liability under the call option was $62.2 million. Based on the 10-year . 
forward treasury rate oil March 14,2003 of#3.91%, we would be 
obligated to make a cash payment of apprommately $69.1 million to 
settle the call opuon if we did not remarket or refinance the notes. 
The amount of our hahlity will increase or decrease approximately 
$5 million for every 10-basis point change in the lo-year forward 
treasury rate. If settled through a remarketing or refinancing, any 
liability related to the call option wll be amortized as a credit to 
interest expense over the term of the new debt. The invesrment bank 
will price the notes to yleld a market premium adequate to allow the 
investment bank to retain pmceeds equal to the fair value of the call 
option at settlement. 
At the time of issuance of the notes rn 1998, we were not required by 
GAAP to account separately for the call option. However, when we 
began retiring these notes as a part of our overall debt reduction 
strategy, the portion of the call option associated with the r e t i d  
notes became a freestanding option required to be treated as a 
derivauve instrument under SFAS No. 133. In addition, under SFAS 
No. 133, we a= required to mark to market changes m the antiapated 
amount of the liability related to the portion of the $400 milhon in 
notes that have been reured so-that our balance sheet reflects the 
cumnt fair value of the free standrng portion of the call opuon. For 
2002, we recognized a loss of $10.1 milhon, net of $6.7 million tax 
benefit, related to the fair value of the call option assomated unth the 
putabIe/callable notes at the time the notes were retired. This lass is 
included in our consolidated statements of income as part of the gain 
on extinguishment of debt line item of othm income. For 2002, we 
also recorded an addtional non-cash charge of $13.6 million, net of 
$9 0 million tax benefit, to reflect mark to market changes in the fair 
value of the call option asmated wth the retired notes. This chaxge 
IS reflected m the other lme item of other income tn our consolidated 
statements of income. In total, the loss recorded related to the fair 
value of the call option for the year ended December 31,2002 was 
$23.7 million, net of $15.7 million tax benefit. 
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Pension 
We maintain qualified noncontributory defined benefit pension plans 
covenng substantially all utility employees. Penson benefits are 
based on years of service and the employee3 compensation during 
the five highest paid consecutive years out of ten before retirement. 
Our policy is to fund penson costs accrued, subject to limitations set 
by the Employee Retirement Income Seamy Act of 1974 and the 
Internal Revenue Code. We also maintain a nonqualified Executive 
Salary Continuation P b  for the benefit of certain office=. 

Pod-retirement Benefits 
Wk accrue the cost of post-retirement benefits, primarily medical 
benefit costs, d u n g  the years an employee pvides  sewice. 

The follawing tables summarize the status of our pension and other 
post-retirement benefit plans ' 

December 31, 2001 ZOOI 2000 
~~ -~ 

components of Net PenodK (B##fit)cost. 
&Ma cod ........................ 
Interest coat .......................... 
Expededretwnonplanaoets.. ........ 
~ o f l , I n m g n l z e d  

translbon obligation, net .............. 
-ofUIlRU@d 

pnorsemaecaats ................ 
Amomman of (gam) b4 mt ........... 
ClNtailllU?ll&s&thlH6d 

spwal term benefii .............. 
Net periodoc (benefii UKt ........... 

$ 9,149 S 9,042 $ 7,972 
31,337 28,783 26,977 

(44,761 ) (43,001 (39,143) 

a (194) -34 34 

3,327 3.3 17 3,317 
(5,91 1) (8,327) (9,427) 

9 12.873 6.133 ' 

S 5.820 S(4.019) S(10.261) 

Decemk 31, 

I on- 

$ 1,414 S 1,477 $ 1,344 
7,739 7,344 7,157 

(52) (36) (24) 

3,989 3,987 3,988 

Componentsof Netperrodlc(Benefit)Cast: 
%Me a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Intemta&m ..................... 
Expected return on plan assets . ....... 
ArmWatnn of unmognked 

transltltm obllgabon. net ............. 
A m ~ m o f u n r e c ~  

pnor sennce costs ............... 
Amortization of (gain) laa. net .......... 
curtailments. se!tthents 
and speoal term benefits .......... 

. Netpenodk(benefit)cost ............. 

Change in Benefit Obliibow 
Benefit oblgaticm, 

Obligatmn for addmnal plans.. 
servlce cost . . . . . . . .  
lntwest cost ............ 

. beginningofyear . . . . .  

Pbnpartlclpants'#mtribolbons.. 
. Benefitspaid.. .......... 

Awmptmchanges ...... 
Actuanallooes@m) ..... 
Curtailments, settlements 

ancispedalternbenefits ... 
Benefit obligatum, end of year 

S 423,814 S 383,403 
3,308 - 
9,149 9,042 

31,337 * 28,783 

(30,8231 (23.982) 
23,581 39 
4,900 21,662 

- - 

S 108,630 S 102,530 

. 1,414 1,477 
7,739 7344 
1,742 1,189 

(9,399) (7,741) 
10,112 587 
8,732 2,697 

- - 

$13,615 $13.647 $12.4% 

In selecting an assumed discount pte, fixed income security yield 
rates for 30-year Treasury bonds and corporate high-grade bond 
yields are cormdered. The assumed rate of return on plan assets 1s 
based on long-term munu forecast for the of investments held 
by the plan. ' 

Pension plan assets are pnmanly made up of equity and fixed income 
investments. The market value of the plan assets has been affixted by 
declines in equity markets. At December 31,2002, the fair value of 
pension plan assets was $382.3 million. Actual return on plan assets 
declinedby approximately $2.1 million during 2001 and by approxi- 
mately $58.5 million during 2002. Absent a substantial movery in 
the equity markets, pension costs, cash funding requirements and the 
additional pension liabdity could substantially increase in futum years. 

For measurement purposes, an annual health care cost growth me of 
10% was assumed for 2002, demasing by 1% per year to 5% in 2007 
and thedter. The k l t h  care cost trend rate has a significant effect 
on the projected benefit obligation. Inmasing the vend rate by 1% 
each year would increase the present value of the accumulated 
pmjected benefit obligation by $2.2 million and the aggrepte of the 
service and interest cost components by $0.2 million. A 1% decrease 
m the trend rate would decrease the present value of the accumulated 
projected benefit obligation by $2.2 million and the aggregate of the 
semce and interest cost components by $0.2 million. 
Savings Plans 
We maintain savmgs plans in which substantially all employees 
partiapate, wth the exception of Protection One and Protection One 
Europe employees We match employecs'contnbutlons up to specified 
maximum limits Our contnbutions to the plans are deposited wth a 
tmstee and are invested in one or more funds, including the company 

12,873 4.867 - 547 
$478.139 $423.814 f 128,970 S 108,630 

Change in Phn kets .  
Fair value of plan assets, 
. beginningofyear . . . . .  $ 467,062 .$49O,173 $ 577 $ 394 
Actual return on pbn assets (58,463) (2,144) (740) 19 
Employercontribubon . . 4,524 3,015 20,449 6,716 

Benefitspald... . . . (30.823) (23,982) (9,399) (7,741) 
Fair value of plan assets, 

endofyear . . . . .  $382,300 $467,062 S 12,629 S 577 

Fundedstatus . . .  $ (95,839) S 43,248 $(116,341) $(lOS,OS3) 
I Unrecognwdnet(gain)loo . 71,877 (65.477) 31,772 - 14,447 

Unrecognd trambon 
obligatm, net . . . .  334 141 40,207 44,195 

Unrecognwd pnorsemcecc#t 21,631 24,071 (2,330) (2,797) 
Prepaid (acaued) post-retwement 

benefitcoats . . . . . . . . .  I (1.997) S 1,983 0 (46,692) f (52,208) 

Plan pamapants' contnbutms . I - 1,742 1,189 
J 

AmountsRecogmzedinthe 
Statement of Finanaal 
Positlon Constst Of. 
Repaid beneflt cost . 
Accrued benefn Iiabdity . 
Addibonal minimum liability 
Intangible asset 
Accumulated other 

Net amount recognized 
comprehensive income 

, Actuarial Assumptions 
Discount rate 
Expected rate of return 
Compensation increase rate 
Medical trend rate 

$ 20,993 S 19,687 $ NIA $ WA 
(23,057 ) ( 17,704 1 (46,692 1 (52,208) 

(9,068) (7,370) NIA NIA 
1,015 658 NIA UIA 

8.120 6.712 NIA NIA 
$ (1.997) 4 1.983 $ (46.692) $ (52.208) 

65-675% 725% 65-675% 725% 
9 0-9 25% 9 0-9 25% 9 0-9 25% 9 0-9 25% 
3 75-5 0% 4 0-5 0% 3 75-4 0% 4 0-5 0% - - 100% 525-60% 
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stock fund at the direction of plan participants Our contnbutions 
were $3.8 million for 2002, $4.4 million for 2001 and $3.9 million 
for 2000. 

Under our qualified employee stock purchase plan established in 
1999, full-time, non-union employees may purchase designated 
shares of our common stock at no more than a 15% discounted price. 
Our employees purchased 46,431 shares in 2002 at an average price 
of $8.43 per share. Employees puxhased 67-5 19 sham at an average 
price of $14.56 per s h a ~  in 2001 and employees purchased 249,050 
shares at an average price of $14.00 per share in 2000. A total of 
1,250,000 shares of common stock have been reserved for issuance 
under this program. 

Protection One also maintains a samngs plan. Contnbutions are 
allocated amongprtiapants based upon the respective contribuuons 
made by the participants through salary reductions during the year. 
htection Ones matching contributions may be made in Protection 
One common stock, in cash or m a combinauon of both stock and 
cash. Protection one5 matching cash contnbution to the plan was 
approximately $1.1 million for 2002, $1.1 million for 2001 and 
$0.7 million for 2000. 
Proternon One maintains a qualified employee stock purchase plan 
that allows eligible employees to acquire shares of Protection One 
common stock at no more than a 15% dscounted pnce. Employees 
purchased 151,244 shares in 2002 at an average price of $1.69 per 
share. Employees purchased 489,791 shares at an average price of 
$0.77 per share m 2001 and 145,523 sham at an average pnce of 
$0.69 per share in 2000. A total of 1,650,000 shares of common 
stock have been m d  for issuance under t)us program. 

Stock Based Compensation Plans 
We have a long-term lncentive and share award plan (LTISA Plan), 
whch is a stock-based compensauon plan in which utility employees 
are eligible for awards. The n S A  Plan was implemented as a means 
to attract, retain and motivate employees and board members ($an 
pamclpants). Under the LnSA Plan, we may grant awards in the form 
of stock options, divldend equivalents, share apprecmtion rights, 
restricted shes, RSUs, performance shares and performance share 
units to plan paniapants. Up to five million shares of common stock 
may be granted under the LII1sA Plan. Diwdend equivalents accrue 
on the awarded RSUs Dividend equivalents are the nght to m i v e  
cash equal to the value of dimdends paid on our common stock. 

Dunng 2002,584,165 RSUs were granted to a broad-based group of 
over 800 non-union employees. Each RSU represents a right to 
receive one share of our comrnon stock at the end of the restncted 
period assuming performance cnteria are met. In addition, RSUs 
linked to 783,400 shares of Protection One common stock and 
12,193 sham of Guaxdian Intemauonal, Inc. prefened stock held by 
us were granted to certain officers. During 2001,579,915 RSUs were 
granted. Also in 2000, non-union employees were offered the 
opportun~ty to exchange their stock options for RSUs of approxi- 
mately equal econormc value As a result, 2,246,865 stock opuons 
were canceled in ZOO0 in exchange for 614,741 RSUs The grant of 
RSUs is shown as a separate component of shareholders' equity 
Unearned compensauon IS bemg amonued to expense over the vestlng 
penod T ~ I S  compensauon expense 1s shown as a separate component 
of shareholders' equity 

Dunng the second quarter of 2002, active empldyees awarded RSUs UI 
pnor years weF allowed to exchange eligible RSUs for shares of 
common stock As a result, appmximately 145,000 RSUs were 
exchanBd for appmximately 105,000 &ES of our common stock. In 
addition, appmximately 317,000 RSUs held by c a i n  executive 
offims wete exchanged for qpmximately 12,500shares of Guardian 
International, Inc. preferred stockheld by us. Compensation expense 
associated with this exchange totaled approximately $9.0 million for 
2~2.Also,inseptember2002,formeremplayeghadtheopportlnrity 
to convert vested RSUs into common stock. As a result, 34,433 shares 
of our common stock we= issued in exchan& for 68,865 RSUs. 

Another component of the ,LnSA Plan is the Executive Stock for 
Compensation program, where m the past eligible employees were 
entitled to redm RSUs in lieu of current cash compensation. 'Ihe 
Execuuve Stock for Compensation pmgram was modified in 2001 to 
pay a portion of current compensation in the form of stock Although 
this plan was discontinued, dividends will continue to be paid to plan 
participants on their outstanding plan balance until distriitim. At 
the end of the deferral period, RSUs are paid in the Corn of st& In 
2002, plan participants were awarded 12,121 shares of common 
stock for dividends. In 2001, eligible employees we~e awarded 
31,881 shares of common stock representin%, $0.7 million of compen- 
sation. In 2000,95.000 RSUs were awarded in lieu of $1.3 miuion in 
~ c o m p e n s a t i o n . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ c o ~ o n s r o c k d i s t r i b u t i o n s  
of 40,097 shares in 2002 and 974 shares in 2001 and 2,978 shares 
in 2000. 
Stock options,under the LTlsA plan are as follaws: 

wdehsca 
s h r a f x e r m s s h a m s E x a d r e s h a r e $ ~  

:= Avanlle 
Wfm- 

ClhaSaQ) Rice Ohmndr) Rieb clhousam Rkb 
Outstanding, begming 

ofyear .. . .... 5523 $34.02 498.3 $34.46 2,1171 $34.21 
8142 1531 Granted . . . . . . . - - - - 

Exemsed .. ....... (2.6) 1871 (2.3) 1531 - - 
Forf&dA(Qmkd ... (317.1) 35.57 563 29.30 (2,4330) 29.08 
Outstanding, 

endofyear ....... 2324 32.08 552.3 34.02 4983 34.46 

fairvalueof awa~I~ 
granted during 

- - - 
- - - 

w-w 

theyear . ... I -  s -  214 

Stock options issued and outstanding at k e m k  31,2002 are as 
follows. 

Optlons-EXerdsable: ' 
2000 . 
1999 . ..... ... 
1998 . . . . . . . . . . . 
1997 . . . . . . . 
1996 . . .  

. . . . . . . . . 

Options - Not Exercisable 
2000 

$1 5.312s 
27.81 25-32.125 
38.625-43.125 

30 750 
29 250 

15 3125 

~ 

NW&U 
Issued 
ad 

-nfwJ 

7,599 
22,900 
55,890 
98,240 
44,095 

228,724 

3,914 

- 
- 

8 , $1531 
7 29 52 
6 41 15 
5 30 75 
4 29 25 

8 15 31 
232,638 - 
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RSUs under the LTISA plan are as follows: 

~- ~ 

Outstanding, beghirg 
ofyear ......... 1,902.9 322.87 1,607.4 $1890 301.5 $3370 

Exemsed.. . .  (291.8) 1881 (275.7) 19.08 (OS) 1563 
Granted ........... 584.2 13.28 579.9 40.05 1,325.1 15.61 

Forfded . . . . . .  (575.4) 28.70 (8.7) 1786 - (187) 2435 - - 
outstandm 

endofyear ..... 1,619.9 1808 1,902.9 2287 - 1,6074 18.90 - - 
RSUs issued and outstanding at December 31,2002 are as follows: 
~~~ ~ 

Range of Issued 
Fair Value at and 
GrantDate Outswlding 

Restricted share units. 
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $9 90-119 78 578,400 

2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  153125-19875 711,418 
1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  27 8125-32.125 64,000 

.................... 1,619,868 

An equal number of dividend equivalents was w e d  to reapients of 
stock options and RSUs. Recipients of RSUs receive divldend 
equivalents when dividends are paid on shares of company stock. 
The value of each dividend equivalent related to stock options IS 
calculated by ammulatmg diwdends that would have been paid or 
payable on a share of company common stock. The dimdend 
equivalents, with ~ ~ p e c t  to stock options, expire after mne years 
from date of grant. The weighted-average fau value at the grant-date 
of the diwdencl equivalents on stock options was $6.35 in 2002 and 
66.28 in 2001. 

The fair value of stock options and divldend equivalents were 
estimated on the date of grant umg  the Black-Scholes Option h a n g  
model. The model assumed the followtng at December 31, 2000. 
There were no options granted ~12002 or 2001. 

2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24 84-27.83 197.050 

...................... 38 625 69,000 1998 - Total outstandtng 

2000 

Dmdendyreld . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  632% 

Ask-freeinterestrate . . . . .  .. . . .  579% 
Expected stodcpncewlathty . . .  . . . . . . .  1642% 

Remaintngerrpectedopbanlife . . . . . .  . . .  Syears 

Protection One Stock Warrants and Options 
Protection One has outstanding stock wamnts and options that were 
considered reissued and a m b l e  upon our aquhaon of Protecuon 
One on November 24, 1997. The 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan 
(the LTIP), approved by the Protection One stockholders on 
November 24, 1997, provldes for the award of incentive stock 
options to directors, officers and key employees. Under the LTIP, 
4.2 million shares of Protection One are resewed for issuance, subject 
to such adjustment as may be necessary to reflect changes in the 
number or kinds of shares of common stock or other secunties of 
Protection One The LTlP provldes for the granting of options that 
qualify as incentive stock options under the lntemal Revenue Code 
and options that do not so qualify 
Options issued since 1997 have a term of 10 years and vest ratably 
over 3 years The purchase pnce of the shares issuable pursuant to the 
options is equal to (or greater than) the fair market value ol the 
common stock at the date of the option grant 

A summary of warrant and option activity for Protection One 
common stock from December 31, 2000 through December 31, 
2002 is as follows: 

Outstanding, 
beginningofyear . 5,670.1 $4.840 4,664.5 $6.294 4,048.1 $7.426 

Granted . . .  797.5 2.201 2,0455 1.329 922.5 1.437 
Ex& . . . . . .  (60.6) 1422 (65.6) 1.438 (5.4) 3.890 
Forfated . . . .  (1,441 1) 10.063 (9743) 4.658 (300.7) 6.670 

endofyear ..... 5,262.9 3.344 5,670 1 4840 4,664.5 6.294 

- - - 
0 u tsta nd I g , - - - 
Stock options and warrants of Protection One issued and outstanding 
at December 31,2002 are as follows: 

Exerasable 
1995. . . . . . .  
1996 . . .  . .  
1997 . . . .  
1998. .... . . .  
1999 . . . . . . . .  
2000 . . . . . . . . . .  
2001 . . . . . . . . . . .  
1993Warrank. . 
1995 Note Warrants . . 

T o t a l . . .  . . .  
Not Exemsable. 

2o0oopbons . 
2001 OptIoM 
2 0 0 2 ~ .  . . . .  

Total . . .  
' Totaloutstanding . 

$6 375-16 500 
8.000-1 5.OOO 
9 5oQ.15 OOO 

11.Ooo 
5 250-8 9275 

14375 
0.875-1.48 

0 167 
3890 

hkanber 
IsSuQd 
and 

Outsturdi 

46,800 
1 30,000 
75,000 

348,OOo 
41 4.41 4 
270,232 
621,850 
428,400 
780,837 

-~ ~~~ 

$ 6.4872 
9.8865 

10 4167 
11.oooo 

- 84780 
14375 
13284 
0 1670 
38900 

3,115,533 

11 4375 102,796 7 $14375 
0 875-1 48 1,247,024 8 1.3272 
2 07-2 75 797,500 9 2.2007 

2,147,320 
5,262,853 - 

On April 16,2001, Protection One granted an option to purchase an 
aggregate of 875,000 sham of its common stock to its chief executive 
officer as part of his employment agreement with protection One. The 
optlon has a tern of ten years and vests ratably over t h x  years. The 
purchase pnce of the shares issuable pursuant to the option is $132 
per share while the fair market value of the common stock at the date 
of the option grant was $1.79 per share resulting in $0.4 million 
in deferred compensation expense amortized over three years. The 
expense amounts were 30.1 million and SO. 1 million, reqxctivdy, for 
2002 and 2001. 

The weighted average fair value of options for Protection One s t d  
granted by Protection One estimated on the date of grant was S 1.95 
dunng 2002, $0 98 dunng 2001 and $1.13 during 2000. The fair 
value was calculated using the followmg assumphons: 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

Year Ended December 31, 2002 UIOl 2ooo 

Expected stock pnce volatility 91 30% 83.92% 92.97% 
Risk free interest rate 5 12% 4 95% 4 88% 
Expected option life 7 years 7 years 6 years 

On Apnl 16,2001. Protection One granted an option to purchase an 
aggregate of 250,000 shares of its common stock to Guardian 
lnternational, lnc (Guardian), in connection with the hinng of 
Protection One5 chief executive officer, who was formerly the chief 
executive officer of Guardian The option has a term of ten years and 
vests ratably over three years The purchase price of the shares 
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issuable pursuant to the option is 81.32 per share while the fair 
market value of the common stock at the date of the option grant was 
31.79 per share resulting in $0.4 million expense in 2001. On 
December 31, 2001, all shares were outstanding and none were 
exemsable. On December 3 1 , 2002 all shares were outstanding and 
83,334 shares are exercisable. The shares issued to Guardian are not 
included in the outstanding options listed m the above tables. 

Split Dollar Life Insurance Program 
In 1998, we established a split dollar life insurance program for our 
benefit and the benefit of certain of our executive officers. Under the 
program, we purchased life insurance poliaes, which p m d e  the 
beneficiary a death benefit in an amount equal to the face amount of 
the policy reduced by the greater of (1) all premiums paid by the 
company or (ii) the cash surrender value of the policyD which amount, 
at the death of the executive, will be returned to us. We retam an 
equity interest in the death benefit and cash surrender value of the 
policy to secure his repayment obligation 
Subject to certain conditions, executive officers may transfer to us 
their interest in the death benefit based on a predetermined formula. 
The liability associated with this program was $12.0 million as of 
December 31,2002 and $18.6 mihon as of December 31,2001. The 
obligations under ths program can increase and decrease based on 
our total return to shareholders and payments to plan partiapants. 
This liability decreased approximately $6.6 million in 2002 due to 
payments to plan participants, $0.5 million in 2001 due to balance 
adjustments, and $12.8 million in 2000 due pnmanly to payments to 
plan participants. 

I 6. INCOME TAXES 

Income tax expense (benefit) IS composed of the following 
components at December 31: 

current income taxes. 
Federal . . . . . .  
state ....... .. 

Federal . . . . . . . .  
state . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Dmntinwdoperatmns . . . .  
Cumulatnre effects of 

Total income tax (benefit) expeMe . f( 157,6051 568.344) $72,349 

Deferredlncometwes: 

hntementtaxaeditamortuatum. 

LeSStaXeSdaSvfiediW 

accountingchanges . . . .  (72,335) 12,347 (1,097) 

f( 1 53,43 1 ) $( 2 1,942) f 39,747 
(4,432 1 (186) 10,131 

. . (77,040) (28,363) 18,060 

. . .  8,933 1,180 9.585 

. . .  (4,793) (6,646) (6,0451 
I . (230,763) (55,957) 71,478 

(823 1 40 226 

Temporary ddrerences related to defemd tax assets and defemd tax 
liabilities are summanzed in the followmg tables. 
December 31, 

Deferred tax assets 
Deferred gain on sakleaseback 
Customer accounts 
General business credit carryfonnrardW 
Accrued liabilities 
Disallowed plant cats 
long-term energy contracts 
Goodw ll 
Other 

Total deferred tax assets 

2003 -1 

OnThousands) 

I 71,609 f 76,806 
146,094 60,023 
28,469 28,494 
22,314 23,511 
15,587 16,650 
12,814 13,538 
76,680 374 

152.989 97,799 
J 526,556 J 317,195 

December 31, Moz 2001 

onThaa9Kh) Deferred tax Iiabhta 
Accelerated depreaabon . . . f 676,856 f 617,682 

.. 259,162 267,161 Acquiwtion premium 
Deferredfutureincometaxes . . .  198,866 222,071 
lmfestmenttaxcredlts. . . . . .  .. 79,584 84,900 
other . . . . . . . . . . . .  126.965 123,090 

. . . .  

Total deferred tax llabilltres . . 
~ ~~~~~ 

$1 ,341,433 3 1,314,9O4 

Deferred tax assets and lubilities are reflected on our consolidated 
balance sheets as follows 
December 31, no2 2ml 

Current deferred tax assets, net . . . . . . . . . .  
CunecltdeSenedtaxhabi~,ne~ . . .  
Non-current deferred tax babilits, net 
Net deferred tax Imbibes . . . . . . . . .  

. . 
.. f - 3 23,284 . 2,998 - 
. . 811,879 1,020,993 

. $814.877 3 997,709 

In accordance wth various rate orders, we have not yet collected 
through ram certam accelerated tax deductions, which have been 
passed on to customers. We believe it is probable that the net future 
increases in income taxes payable will be recovered from customem. 
We have recorded a regulatory asset for these amounts. These assets 
are also a temporary difference for which deferred income tax 
liabilities have been provided. This liability is classified above as 
defemd future income taxes. , 

The effective income tax rates set forth below are computed by 
dividmg total federal and state income taxes by the sum of such taxes 
and net income. The difference between the effective tax rates and the 
federal statutory income tax rates IS as follows: 

. 

Effectrveincometaxrate . . 
Effect of. 
State income taxes . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amort~zam of lnwstment 

taxaedlts. . . . . . . .  
Corporateawned life 

insurance polides . . . . . . . . .  
Affordable houwg tax aedns ....... 
Accelerated depreaat~on flow 

throughandamortizabon . . . . .  
D ~ d e n d s ~ d d e d u c t r o n  
Anmrtimon of goodwill . . . . . . . .  
settlement of Outstanding 

state income tax loue . . . . . . . . .  
Pmtechon One Europe 

Minomy mterest in 

Other . . . . . . . .  

goodvvlllimpairment . . . . . .  
subsd~fyinvestment. . .  . . .  

Statutory federal income tax rate . 

(4871% (64.01% 339% 

1 5  6 3  2.8 

3 6  12.8 5.4 
0 1  9 1  5.0 

(1 5)  (0.1 1 (1.8) 
3 0  9.6 ’ 4.6 - (14.2) (8.3) 

(11.0) - 
11 9 4.0 1 0  
0.6 0.8 I (1.6) 

(35.0)% (35.01% 35.0% 

~~ 

“Balance reptesenu unutilized fax credits genet cued Jtom aJJotdnble housing 
partnerships in which we sold IJV rnnjonfy oJ oio inieiesrs In 2001 These crcdiu 
expire begnmng 201 9 through 2022 
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17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

City of Wichita Franchise 
KGES franchise wth the City of Wichita to provlde retail electnc 
service is effective through December 1, 2003 We are currently 
negotiating with the City of Wichita for a long-term franchise 
agreement. mere can be no assurance that we can successfully 
renegotlate the f h c h w  with terms similar, or as favorable, as those 
in the current franchise. Under Kansas law, KGE will continue to have 
the nght to sem the customers in Wichita followng the expiration of 
the franchise. Customers wthin the Wichita metropolitan area 
account for apprommately 2 1% of our total energy sales volumes 

Purchase Orders atnd Contracts 
As part of our ongomg operations and construction program, we have 
purchase orders and contracts, excluding fuel (which is d-d 
below under "- Fuel Commitments:) that have an unexpended 
balance of apprommately 8153.1 million at December 31,2002, of 
which $32.2 million has been committed. The $32.2 million 
commitment relates to purchase obligations s u e d  and outstanding 
at yearend, as well as a contract tanff for telecommunication seMces. 

The aggregate amount of required payments at December 3 1,2002 IS 
as follows: 

comllted 
Amount 

~~ ~~ ~ 

(In Thousands) 

2003 . . . . . .. - . . $24,475 
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,469 
2005 . . 270 

11 2006 . 
S 32,225 
- 

Clean Air Act 
We must comply wth  the provlsions of The Clean Air Act 
Amendments of 1990 that requm a two-phase reduction in certain 
emissons. We have installed continuous monitonng and reportrng 
equipment to meet the acid rain requirements. Material capital 
expenditures have not been required to meet Phase I1 sulfur &omde 
and nitrogen oxide requirements We may purchase SOz allowances 
as necessary to meet these requiremenu. 

Manufactured Gas Sites 
We have been associated wth 15 former 'manufactured gas sites 
located in Kansas that may contain coal tar and other potentlally 
harmful matenals. We and the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment (KDHE) entered into a consent apement goveming.aU 
futuxe work at these ates. The terms of the consent agreement wll 
allow us to investigate these sites and set remediation pnonties based 
on the results of the mvestigations and nsk analyss At December 31, 
2002, the costs incumd for preliminary slte investigation and risk 
assessment have been mimmal. In accordance wth the terms of the 
strategc alllance wth ONEOK, ownership of twelve of these sites and 
the responnbility for clean up of these sites were transferred to 
ONEOK The ONEOK agreement limits our future liability 
associated wth these sites to an immatenal amount Our investment 
earnings from ONEOK c d d  be impacted by these costs 

EPA New Source Review 
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is conducting an 
enforcement initiative at a number of coal-fired power plants in an 
effort to de t eme  whether modifications at those fadties were sum 
to New Source h e w  requirements or New Source Performanp 
Standads under the Clean h r  Act. The ERA has requested infoxmation 
from us under Section 1 Ma) of the Clkn Air Act (Section 114). A 
Section 114 information request requires us to provide responses to 
spenfic EPA questions regarding certain projects and mamtenance 
activities that the EPA believes may have violated the New Sou= 
Performance Standard and New Source M e w  requirements of the 
Clean Air Act. The EPA contends that power plants are required to 
update emisson controls at the time of major maintenance or capital 
activity We believe that maintenance and capital actiwties performed 
at our power plants are generally routine in nature and are typical for 
the industry W are complying with thii information request, but 
cannot predict the outcome of t h i  investigation at this time. Should 
the EPA detmme to'take action, the resulting additional costs to 
comply could be material. Wk would expect to seek recovery through 
rates of any settlement amounts. 
The EPA has initiated civil ,enforcement actions against other 
unafiliated utilities as part of its inituuve. Settlement agreements 
entered into in connecuon wth some of these actions have provided 
for expenditures to be made ove; extended time periods. 

Solid Waste Landfills 
We have operating solid waste landfills at Jeffrey Energy Center, 
Tetumseh Energy Center and lavrence Energy Center (LEC) for the 
single purpose of disposing of coal combustion waste material. 
Additionally, there is one retired landfill at both LEC and Neosho 
Energy Center. All landfills are permitted by the KDHE and meet all 
applicable requirements The operatmg landfill at E C  is projected to 
be Full by 2007 xequinng us to pemt  and construct a new landfill at 
this site. It is anticipated that the lead time for pemutting a new landfill 
may be agnificant, whch wll require t h ~ ~  acuvity to b e p  m 2003. 

Superfund Sites 
In December 1999, we were identified as one of more than 1,OOO 
potentially responsible pmes at an EPA Superfund ste m Kansas 
City, Kansas (Kansas City me). Based upon previous experience and 
the limited M~UE of our buslness transactions with the previous 
owners of the site, our obligauon, if an3 at the Kansas City site is not 
expected to have a mated  impact on our fmncial position or results 
of operations. 

Nuclear Decommissioning 
Decommissioning is a nuclear industry term for the permanent 
shutdown of a nuclear power plant and the removal of radioacuve 
components in accordance with Nuclear Regulatory Cornmion 
(NRC) mquirements. The NRC will tenninate a plantk license and 
lease the property for unnstncted use when a company has Educed 
the residual radioactiwty of a nuclear plant to a level mandated by the 
NRC The NRC requires companies wth nuclear plants to prepare 
formal financlal plans to fund decommissioning These plans are 
designed so that funds quired for decommissiomng w11 ?x accumu- 
lated pnor to the termination of the license of the related nuclear 
power plant 
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\Ve accrue decommissioning costs over the expected life of the Wolf 
Creek generating facility The accrual is based on estimated unrecov- 

fund earnings accumulate in the fund balance and increase the 
' recorded decornrnlssioning Iiabhty. 

ered &commi&ioning costs, which consider inflation over the 
remaining estimated life of the generating facility and are net of 
expected earnings on amounts recovered from customers and 
deposited in an esternal trust fund 
The KCC rwiews our decommssioning fund financlal plans in two ' 
phases Phase one IS the approval of the decommissloning study, the 
current year dollar amount and the future year dollar amount. Phase 
two is the filing of a armding schedule" & the owner of the nuclear 
facility detailing its plans of how to fund the future year dollar 
amount for the pro rata share of the plant. 
On February 25,2002, we filed an application with the KCC to modlfy , 

the funding schedule to reflect an assumed life of Wolf Creek thmugh 
2045 (see Note 3). Thu modificahon ,was granted on March 8,2002. 
The filmg reflects the cumnt estimate III 1999 dollars of $221 million, 
but a future estimate in 2045 through 2054 of $1.28 bdlion. An 
updated decommissioning and dismantlement cost estimate was 
filed wth the KCC on August 30,2002. costs outlmed by this study 
were developed to decommssim Wolf Creek follovmg a shutdown. 
The analyses relied upon the sitespecific, technical information 
developed in 1999, updated to dlect cumnt plant conditions and 
operanng assumpnons. Based on this study, our share of Wlf Creeks 
decommissioning costs, under the immediate dismantlement 
method, is estimated to be approxlmately $220 million in 2002 
dollars. These costs include decontamination, dlsmantling and 
site restoration and are not inflated, escalated, or discounted over 
the period of expenditure. We antiapate a KCC order on the August 
2002 decommissioning study in the second quarter of 2003. 
The actual decomrmssioning costs may vary from the estimates 
because of changes in technology and changes in costs for labor, 
matenals and equipment. 
Wk will file a funding schedule to reflect the KCCS order on the 
August 2002 decommssioning study by the end of the second 
quarter of 2003 and anticlpate a KCC order on the fundng schedule 
in the third quarter of 2003 

Decommssioning costs are currently being charged to operating 
expense in accordance wth the July 25,2001 KCC rate order as 
modified by the KCCk approval of the March 8, 2002 funding 
schedule. Electric rates charged to customers promde for recovery of 
these decommissioning costs over the hfe of Wolf Creek as 
determined by the KCC through 2045. The Nuclear Regulatory 
Commsim (NRC) requires that funds to meet its decomrmssioning 
funding assurance requirement be in our decommissioning fund by 
the time our license expires in 2025. We believe that the KCC 
approved funding level will be sufficient to meet the NRC minimum 
financial assurance requirement. 
Amounts expensed appmumated $3 85 million in 2002 and will 
remain unchanged through 2044, subject to the August 2002 
decommissloning cost rewew and rewsed funding schedule to be 
filed in the second quarter of 2003 These amounts are deposited in 
an external trust fund The average after-tax expected return on trust 
assets IS 5 56% 

Our investment in the decommissioning fund is recorded at fair 
value, including reinvested earnings. 1 t approxlmated $63.5 million 
at December 31,2002 and $66 6 million at December 3 1.2001 The 
balance in the trust fund decreased from 2001 to 2002 due to the 
decline in the market value of equity secunties held in the trust T ~ S I  

Asset Retirement Obligations 
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset 
Retirement Obligations." SFAS No. 143 provides accounting require- 
ments for the recognition and measurement of llabilities associated 
with the mirement of tangible long-lived assets. Under the standard, 
these liabilities wll be recognued at fair value as incurred and 
captalized and depreciated over the appropate period as part of the 
cost of the related tangible long-lived assets. The adoption of SFAS 
No. 143 wdl not impact income Any income effects are ofkt by a 
regulatory asset created pursuant to SFAS No. 71. Retirement 
obligations associated with long-hved assets included within the 
scope of SFAS No. 143 are those for which a legal obligation exists 
under enacted laws, statutes, written or oral contracts, including 
obligations arislng under the doctnne of promissory estoppel. 
We adopted SFAS No. 143 on Janw 1,2003, whch required us to 
recognize and estimate the liabdity for our 47% share of the estimated 
cost to decommission Wolf Creek. SFAS No. 143 requires the 
recogninon of the present value of the asset retirement obligation we 
incurred at the time Wlf Creek was placed into sewice in 1985. 
On January 1,2003, we recorded an asset rearema obligation of 
$74 7 mdhon. In addition, we increased our property and equipment 
balance, net of accumulated depreciation, by $10.7 million. k 
amounts were estimated based on the calculation guidelines of SFAS 
No. 143. W also established a regulatory asset for $64.0 milhon, 
which represents the a m u o n  of the liability since 1985 and the 
increased depxeciauon expense associated wth the increase in plant. 
Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel 
Under the Nuclear waste Policy Act of 1982, the Department of 
Energy (DOE) IS responsible for the permanent disposal of spent 
nuclear fuel. Wlf Creek pays the DOE a quarterly fee of one-tenth of 
a cent for each kilowatt-hour of net nuclear generation praduced for 
the future disposal of spent nuclear fuel. These -1 costs are 
charged to cost of sales. 
A permanent disposal site wll not be available for the nuclear 
industry until 2010 or later. Under current DOE policy, once a 
permanent site is available, the DOE will accept spent nuclear fuel on. 
a priority basis. The owners of the oldest spent fuel wdl be given the 
highest priority As a result, disposal senrjces for Wlf creek will not 
be available prior to 2016. Wolf Creek has on-site temporary storage 
for spent nuclear fuel. In early 2000, Wolf Creek completed 
replacement of spent fuel storage racks to in- its on-site storage 
capacity for all spent fuei expected to be generated by Wlf creek 
thmugh the end of its licensed life in 2025. 

On February 14, 2002, the Secretary of Energy submitted to the 
President a recommendanon for approval of the hcxa Mountain site 
in Nevada for the development of a nuclear waste repository for the 
dqmsal of spent nuclear fuel and hgh level nuclear waste from the 
nation5 defense activtnes. In July 2002, the President signed a resolu- 
tion approwng the Yucca Mountain me after receiwng the approval of 
this site from the US Senate and House of Representatives T ~ I S  
action allows the DOE to apply to the NRC to license the project. The 
DOE expects that this facility w11 open in 2010 However, the 
opening of the Yucca Mountain site could be delayed due to litigation 
and other issues related to the site as a permanent repository for spent 
nuclear fuel 
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Nuclear Insurance 
We maintain nuclear insurance for Wolf Creek m four areas liability, 
worker radiation, property and accidental outage. These policies 
contain certain industry standard exclusions, including, but not 
limited to, ordinar)) wear and tear, and war. Temnst acts are not 
excluded from the property and accidental outage poliaes, but are 
covered as a common Occumnce under the Non-Terronsm Risk 
lnsurance Act. The term common occurrence means that if temnst 
acts occur against one or more commercial nuclear power plants 
insured by our insumce company within a 12-month penod, all of 
these terrorist acts wll be treated as one event and the ownets of the 
plants wll share one full limit of each type of policy, which is 
currently $3.24 billion plus any reinsurance recoverable by Nuclear 
Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), our insurance pronder. Currently 
there is $1 billion of reinsurance purchased by NEIL. Claims that 
anse from temnst acts are also covered by our nuclear liability and 
worker radiation policies. These pohaes are subject to one industry 
aggregate limit for such acts, currently $300 million for the risk of 
terrorism. Unlike the property and accidental outage poliaes, an 
industry-wde retrospective assessment program (discussed below) 
applies once the nuclear liability a,nd worker radlation policies have 
been exhausted. 

Nuclear Liability Insurance 
Pursuant to the Pnce-Anderson Act, we are required to insure against 
public liability claims resulting from nuclear incidents to the full h i t  
of public liability, whch IS currently approxnnately $9.5 billion. This 
limit of liability conssts of the maximum available commemal 
insurance of $300 d i o n ,  and the remairung $9.2 billion is pmhded 
through mandatory parucipation in an industry-wde retrospective 
assessment program Under thE retrospective assessment program, 
we can be assessed up to $88.1 million per inadent at any commerclal 
reactor in the country payable at no more than $10 million per 
incident per year. This assessment is subject to an inflation 
adjustment based on the Consumer Pnce Index and applicable 
premium taxes Thu assessment also applies in excess of our worker 
radiation claims insurance. In addition, the U.S. Congress could 
impose additional revenue-raising measures to pay claims If the 
$9.5 billion liability limitation is insuficient, the U.S. Congress will 
consider taking whatever action IS necessary to compensate the 
public for valid claims. 
The Pxice-Anderson Act expired in August 2002 In late 2002, a 
renewal act was approved by Congress to be part of an energy bill to 
extend the Act for 15 yeam from August 1,2002. The mnewal act 
would have increased the annual retrospective premium limit from 
$10 million to $15 million per wactor per inadent and increased the 
-mum potenual assessment from $88.1 million to $98 7 million 
per reactor per incident Although the renewal act was approved by 
Congress, the energy bill was never signed by the President However, 
in February 2003, the Act was extended to December 31,2003 with 
no changes except for its expiration date. We expect that the Act wll 
be renewed, but we are unable to predict whether the Act wll be 
modified as proposed in 2002 

The owners cany decontamimuon habilit): premature decommissioning 
liability and property damage insurance for Wolf Cieek totaling 

Nuclear Property Insurance 

approximately $2.75 billion ($1 3 billion our share). Ths insurance 
is prowded by NEIL In the event of an accident, insurance proceeds 
must first be used for reactor stabilization and slte decontamination 
in accordance wth a plan mandated by the NRC Our share of any 
remaining p m e d s  can be used to pay for pr~perty damage or decon- 
tamination expenses or, d certain requirements are met including 
decommissioning the plant, towad a shodall m the decommissioning 
'trust fund. 

Accidental Nuclear Outage Insurance 
The owners also any additional insurance Hnth NEIL to cover costs 
of replacement power and other extra expenses incurred during a 
prolonged outage resulting from accidental property damage at Wolf 
Creek. lf significant losses were incurred at any of the nuclear plants 
insured under the NEIL poliaes, we may be subject to retrospective 
assessments under the current policies of appro$mately $24.5 million 
($1 1.5 million our share). 
Although we maintain various insurance poliaes to provide coverage 
for potential losses and liabilities resulting from an accident or an 
extended outage, our insurance coverage may not be adequate to 
cover the costs that could result from a catastrophic accident or 
extended outage at Wblf Creek. Any substantial losses not covered by 
insurance, to the extent not recoverable through rates, would have a 
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Fuel Commitments 
To supply a portion of the'fuel requirements for our generating 
plants, we have entered into various commitments to obtain nuclear 
fuel and coal. Some of these contracts c o m n  provisions for pnce 
escalation and minimum purchase commitments. At December 3 1 , 
2002, our share of WCNOC> nuclear fuel commitments were 
approximately $5.0 million for uranium concentrates expinng in 
2003, $0.6 million for conversion expiring in 2003, $21.5 million for 
enrichment expiring at various hmes through 2006 and $57.5 &on 
for fabrication through 2025. 

At December 31, 2002, our coal and coal transportation contract 
commitments in 2002 dollars under the remaining terms of the 
contracts were approximately $2.0 billion. The largest contract 
expires 111 2020, with the remaining contracts expinng at various 
times through 2013. 

At December 31,2002, our natuml gas transportation commitments 
in 2002 dollars under the remaining terms of the contracts were 
approximately $56.2 million. The natural gas tran3portation 
contracts provide firm service to several of our gas burning facilities 
and expire at various times through 2010, except for one contract 
that expires in 2016. 

Energy Act 
As part of the 1992 Energy Policy Act, a s p e d  assessment is being 
collected from utihues for a uranium ennchment deconlarmnation 
and decomnussiomng Fund. Our portion of the assessment for Wolf 
Creek is approxlmately $8.1 mdlion. To date, we have paid approxl- 
mately $6 8 million, wth the remainder payable over the next bur 
years Such costs are recovered through thc ratc-making process 
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requesting infomiion conceming the use of aimft  and our annual 
shareholder meetings Since that date, the United States Attomeyk 
Office has served additional subpoenas on us and certain of our 
employees requesting further information concerning the use of 
aircraft; executive compensation arrangements with Mr. Wittig, Mr. 
Lake and other former and present offikers; the proposed rights 
offenng of Westar Industries stock; and the company in general. W 

. , 
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18. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

We, Westar lndustnes, Protection One, its subsidmy Protection One 
Alarm Monitoring, Inc. (Monitoring) and certain present and former 
officers and directors of Protection One were defendants in a 
purported class action litigation in the U.S. Distnct Court for the 
Central District of California, 'Alec Garbini, et a1 v Protection One, 
lnc , et al: No. CV 99-3755 DT (RCx). On Auwt 20, 2002, the 
parties filed a Stipulation of Settlement which prowded for, among 
other things, no finding of wngdomg on the part of any of the 
defendants, or any other finding that the claims alleged had merit, 
and a $7.5 million payment to the plaint&, whch has been fully 
funded by Protection One5 emsting insurance. On November 4, 
2002, the dlstnct court approved the settlement and entered an 
Order and Final Judgment. The court certified a class for settlement 
purposes conssting of all pemns and entities who purchased or 
otherwise acquired the common stock of Protection One dunng the 
time period beginning and including February 10, 1998 through 
February 2, 2001. The Order and Final Judgment prowdes for, 
among other things, dim-1 with prejudice and release of all Class 
members' claims against us, Westar Industries, Protection One, 
Monitoring, and the present and former officers and directors of 
Protection One. 
We and the Public Service Company of New Mexico settled the 
litigation between us on September 24, 2002. Each side agreed to 
release all of its claims and potential claims in connection with 
the transaction. 
Wk and certain of our present and former oflicers are defendants in 
five purported class action lawsuits filed during January and 
February 2003 in US District Court in Topeka, Kansas. All of the 
lawsuits allege securities law vrolations resulting from power 
marketing transactions wth Ueco Corporation (Cleco) and the first 
and second quarter 2002 restatements related to the revised goodwill 
impairment charge and the mark to market charge on our 
putabldcallable notes. We intend to wgorously defend against. these 
actions. We are unable to predict the ultimate impact of this matter on 
our financial postion, results of operations and cash flows. 

We and certam of our present and former officers are defendants in 
purported class action lawsuits filed during March 2003 in U.S 
District Court in Topeka, Kansas on behalf of partiapants in and 
beneficiaries of our Employees, 401(k) Saviqgs Plan. All of the 
lawsuits allege vlolations of the Employee 'Retirement Income 
Security k t  arislng from the conduct of certain present and former 
officers who served or are semng as fidumnes for the plan. The 
conduct 1s related to the matters alleged as a bass for secunties law 
vlolations in the class action lawsuits disclosed in the preceding 
paragraph We intend to vigorously defend against these actions. W 
are unable to predict the ultimate impact of this matter on our 
financlal position, results of operations and cash flows 
We and our subsidianes are involved in various other legal, 
envlronmental and regulatory proceedings We believe that adequate 
prowsions have been made and accordingly believe that the ultimate 
disposition of such matters wll not have a matenal adverse effect 
upon our overall financial position or results of operations 
See also Notes 3, 19 and 35 for discussion of KCC regulatory 
proceedings and a FERC proceeding, an investigation by the United 
States Attorney's Office, an inquiry by the Secunties and Exchange 
Commission (SEC), an mvesrigaiion by FERC of certain ol our 
power transactions and potential liabiliiies to Dawd C Wittig and 
Douglas T Lake 

I 
19. ONGOING INVESTIGATIONS 
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20. COMMON STOCK, PREFERRED STOCK AND 
OTHER MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE SECURITIES 

Our Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended, provlde for 
150,000,000 authonzed shares of common stock At December 31, 
2002,72,840,217 shares were issued and 71,506,953 shares were 
outstanding. 
We have a Direct Stock Purchase Plan (DSPP). Shares issued under 
the DSPP may be either original issue shares or shares purchased in 
the open market. During 2002, a total of 7,087,125 shares were 
purchased from the company through the lssuance of 6,936,289 
original issue shares and 150,836 through the reissuance of treasury 
shares. Of the total shares purchased from us in 2002, 5,253,502 
were acquired by Westar Industries and the balance of the shares 
were for the DSPP, ESPP. 401(k) match and other stock based plans 
operated under the 1996 Long-Term Incentive and Share Award Plan. 
At December 31,2002, 1,855,808 shares were available under the 
DSPP registration statement. 
The November 8, 2002 KCC order directed us to reverse all 
transactions in 2002 recorded as equity investments by us in Westar 
Industries. In compliance with that order, on December 9, 2002, 
Westar Industries transferred to US 20,301,489 shares of our 
common stock that had been previously lssued to Westar Industnes. 

T i u r y  Stock 
At December 31,2002, we had a trea~ury stock balance of 1,333,264 
shares. W t a r  Industries did not own any of our common stock and 
Protection One owned 850,000 shares of our common stock. At 
December 31,2001, all of our treasury stock was owned by Westar 
Industnes, except for 50,000 shares owned by Protection One. 
See Note 34 for dormation regarding our purchase during the first 
quarter of 2003 of sham of our common stock held by Protecnon One. 

Preferred Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption 
W t a r  Energyk cumulative preferred stock is redeemable in whole or 
in pari on 30 to 60 days notice at our option. 

~~ ~~ 

Total 
Rinripal caa Amount 

(DdbrrhThaaands) 

Rate outrtanding Ricc Remiurn to RedeeIn 

4500% S 13.354 10800% $1,068 $ 14,422 
4.250% 4,304 101 50% 65 4,369 

3,854 5OOO% - 76 - 3.778 102.00% - 
$21,436 - $22,645 - s 1.209 - 

The provisions of Westar Energyb Restated Articles of Incorporation, 
as amended, contain restrictions on the payment of dividends or the 
making of other distributions on our common stock while any 
preferred shares remain outstanding unless certain capitalization 
ratios and other conditions are met. If the ratio of the capital 
represented by our preferred stock and common stock (together, 
Subordinated Stock) (including pmmiums on capital stock) and its 
surplus accounts. to its total capital and its surplus accounts at the 
end of the second month immediately preceding the date of the 
proposed payment, adjusted to reflect the proposed payment 
(Capitalization Ratio), w11 be less than 20%, then the payment of the 
dividends on Subordinated Stock shall not exceed 5096 of net income 

ava;lable for dimdends for the 12-month p e d  ending with and 
including the date of the proposed payment. If the Capitaluation 
Ratio is 20% or more but less than 25%. then the payment of 
dividends on the subordinated Stock, including the proposed 
payment, then the payments shall not exceed 75% of its net income 
available for diwdends for such 12-month period. #Except to the 
extent permitted above, no payment or other distribution may be 
made that would reduce the Capitalization Ratio to less than 25%. At 
December 31,2002, the capitalization ratio was greater than 25%. 

So long as there are any outstanding shares of Westar Energy 
prefed.stock, Westar Energy shall not without the consent of a 
majonty of the shares of prefened stock or if more than one-thid of 
the outstanding shares of preferred stock vote negatively and without 
the consent of a percentage of any and all classes required by law and 
Westar Energy5 Articles of Incorporation, declare or pay any 
diwdends (other than stock dividends or dividends applied by the 
recipient to the purchase of additional shams) or make any other 
drstnbution upon Subordinated Stock unless, immediately after such 
distribution or, payment the sum of Westar Energy’s capital 
represented by the outstanding Subordinated Stock and our e a d  
and any capital surplus shall not be less than $10.5 million plus an 
amount equal to tw~ce the annual dividend requirement on all the 
then outstanding shares of preferred stock. 

Other Mandatorily Redeemable Securities 
On December 14, 1995, Western Resources Capital I, a wholly 
owned trust, lssued $100 million of 7 7/8% Cumulauve Quarterly 
Income Preferred Securities, Senes A, of which $98.8 million were 
outstanding at December 31,2002. The securities are redeemable at 
the option of \hkstern Resources Capital 1 on or after December 11, 
2000, at $25 per security plus accrued interest and unpaid dividends. 
Holders of the securities are entitled to receive distributions at an 
annual rate of 7 7/8% of the liquidation value of $25. Diribuuons 
are payable quarterly and are tax deductible by us. These dmi-  
butions are recorded as interest expense. The sole asset of the trust is 
$103 million pnncipal amount of W t a r  Energy 7 7/8% Deferrable 
Interest Subordinated Debentures, Series A due December 11,2025. 
On July 31, 1996, Western Resources Capital 11, a wholly owned 
trust, s u e d  $120 million of 8 1R% Cumulative Quarterly Income 
Preferred Securities, Series B, of which $1 15.7 million were outstand- 
ing at Decemkr 31,2002. The secunues are redemable at the option 
of M e m  RJXJUKXS Capital 11, on or after July 31,2001, at $25 per 
p re fed  security plus accumulated and unpaid distributions. Holders 
of the securities are entitled to receive dmnbutions at an annual rate 
of 8 vZ% of the liquidation value of $25. Distribuuons are payable 
quarterly and are tax deductible by us These distributions are recorded 
as interest expense. The sole asset of the trust is $124 million 
pnncipal amount of Westar Energy 8 1R% Deferrable Interest 
Subordinated Debentures, Senes B due July 31,2036. 
In addinon to Westar Energyb obligations under the Subordinated 
Debentures discussed above, Westar Energy has guaranteed, on a 
subordinated basis, payment of distributions on the preferred 
secunties These undertakings constitute a full and unconditional 
guarantee by Westar Energy of the trust’s obligations under the 
preferred secunties 
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2 I. MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

Dunng the last three years, we sold substantially all of our 
investments in marketable secunties. These secunties were classified 
as available-for-sale. Realized gains and losses are included in 
earnings and were denved using the speafic identification method. 
The followng table summarizes our marketable secunty sales for the 
yeas ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000: 

Onllunmdd 

salesprooeeds . . : . .. . . . f - $2,829 $218,609 
~ahwdgams'd .. . .. . . . ... .. - - 1 15,987 
Redaedlosse5 . .  .. ... - , 1,861 1,039 

"Dunng 2000, we sdd our cqulty investment in a gas compression company and 
naked a pn-tux gain a/ $91 I rnrllwn. 

In February 2000, one of the pagmg companies we held an mterest in 
made an announcement that significantly increased the market value 
of paging company secunties in general During the first quarter 
of 2000, we sold the remainder of these securities for a gain of 
$24.9 million. - 

h n n g  2001, we wrote down the cost basis of certain secunties to 
their estimated fair value. The fair value of these equity secunties had 
declined below our cost basis, and we determined that the decline 
was other than temporary. The amount of the wnte down totaled 
$1 1.1 million, of which $9.6 million related to an investment. The 
write down. included in other mcome (expense). 
See Note 4 for information regarding the classification of our ONEOK 
investment. 

22. MONITORED SERVICES DISPOSITIONS 

In 2001, Protection One and Protection One Europe disposed of 
certain monitored security operatms for approximately $48 0 million 
and we recorded a pre-tax loss of $13.1 million. 

d 

b 

23. IMPAIRMENT CHARGES 

Effective January 1,2002, we adopted SFM No. 142 and SFAS No 
144. SFAS No. 142 establishes new standards lor accounting for 
goodwill. SFAS No. 142 continues to require the recognition of 
goodvvll as an asset, but dscontmues amortuation of goodwll. In 
addition, annual impairment tests must be performed using a fair- 
value based approach as opposed to an undiscounted cash flow 
approach required under pnor standards. The completion of the 
impairment tests, based upon a valuation performed by an 
independent apptaisal firm, as of January 1,2002. indicated that the 
canying values of goodwill at Protection One and Protection One 
Europe had been impaired and impairment charges were recorded as , 

discussed below 
hother impairment test of Protection Ones goodwill and customef 
accounts was completed as of July 1, 2002 (the date selected Cor 
Protection Ones annual impairment test), with the independent 
appraisal firm pmdmg the valuation of the estimated fair value of 
Proteaon Ones repo- units, and no impairment was indmted 
Protection Oneb stock price dechned after regulatory orders were 
sued  (see Note 3 1, includmg the KCC5 December 23,2002, order. 
As a result, Proteaon One retained the independent appraisal firm to 
perform an additional valuation of Protection One5 reporting units so 
it could pedonn an impairment test as of December 3 1 , 2002, which 
resulted m the addinonal impairment charge discussed below 
SFAS No. 144 establdd a new approach to determirung whether 
our customer account aset is impaired. The approach no longer 
pemts us to evaluate our customer account asset for impairment 
based on the net undiscounted cash flow stream obtained over the 
remaining life of goodwill associated with the customer accounts 
being dua ted .  Rather, the cash flow stream used under SFAS No. 
144 u limited to future estimated undisrounted cash flows from 
assets in the asset group, which include customer accounts, the 
primary asset of the reporting unit, plus an emmated amount lor the 
sale of the remaining assets within the asset group (including 
goodwill). If the undiscounted cash flow stream from the asset group 
1s less than the combined book value of the asset group, then we are 
required to mark the customer account asset down to fair value, by 
recording an impairment, to the extent fair value is less than our book 
value. To the extent net book value is less than fair value, no impair- 
ment would be recorded. 
The new rule substanually reduces the net undiscounted cash flows 
for customer account impairment evaluation purposes as compared 
to the pmvious accountmg rules. The undiscounted cash flow stream 
has been reduced from the 16 year reLnaining life of the goodwill to 
the iune year mmaining lie of customer accounts for unpaiment 
evaluation purposes. Using these new guidelines, we determined that 
there was an indicabon of impairment of the carrying,value of the 
customer accounts and an impairment charge was recorded as 
- d d  below. 
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To implement the new standards, an independent appraisal firm was 
engaged to help management estimate the fair values of Protecuon 
One5 and Protection One EuropeS goodvvll and customer accounts. 
Based on this analyss, we recorded a charge in the first quarter of 
2002 of approximately $749.3 million (net of tax benefit and 
minority interests), of which $555.4 million was related to goodwill 
and $193.9 million was related to customer accounts. 
The impainnent charge for goodwill recorded in the first quarter of 
2002 IS reflected in our consolidated statement of income as a 
cumulative effect of a change in accounting pnnciple. The impair- 
ment charge for customer accounts is reflected in our consolidated 
statement of income as an operating expense. These impairment 
charges reduce the recorded value of these assets to their estunated 
fair values at Januaty 1,2002. 

Protection One completed an addihonal impament test of goodvvll 
as of December 31,2002. We recorded an impairment charge o l  
$79.7 milhon, net of tax benefit and mority meres ,  rn the fourth 
quarter of 2002 to nflect the impaitment of all remaining goodwill of 
Protection One5 North Amenca segment, which is reflected in our 
consolidated statement of mcome as an operating expense. 
We soliated and received indications of value for Protection One 
Euro+ from potential buyen. These indications of value are withm a 
range we would be willing to accept They indicated the ncorded 
goodwll of Protection One Europe had no value. Accordin& we 
recorded a $36 million impairment charge m the fourth quarter of 
2002 to reflect the impainnent of all remaining goodwll at Protection 
One Europe, which IS reflected in our consolidated statement of 
income as an operating expense. W are willing to accept offers in the 
mdicated range due to our ability to use the tax loss on this sale to 
offset the taxes that would o h m  be due from our sale of other 
investments. We will recognize a $58 million tax benefit m the f i s t  
quarter of 2003 when Protection One Europe IS classified as a 
dlsconunued operation. 
These charges for the year ended December 31 , 2002, are detailed 
as follows: 

On Thousands) 

ProtechonOne. . .. . . $719,885 $339,974 $1,059,859 
ProtecbnOneEurope . . . 116,154 - 116,154 
Total pretax impairment . $836,039 $339.974 1;176,013 

Income tax benefit 
Minontyintered . .. . - 
Netcharge . . . . .  

(203,958) 
( 107.1 72) 

$ 864,883 - 
We no longer amortlre goodwll to expense because of the adopuon 
of SFAS No. 142 The followng table shows our results for the year 
ended December 31, 2002, compared to our results for the year 
ended December 31, 2001, calculated using the new accounting 
standard for goodwll, adjusted for minonty interest 

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 zoo0 

On Thusan& bceptw Share Amants) 
Reporled mugs (loss) available 

forcommonstodr... .. ..... ... . $(793,400) $(21,?71) $135,352 
AddWCoodwillamortuatm . - %  50.437 51.394 

~ ~~ ~ ~~ 

Adjusted earmngs available 
forcommonstock.. . .. .. . . $4793,400) 128,666 '$186,746 

Basic earnings per rhaw. 
Reported earnings (loss) available I 

forcommonstock .. . .. f.. (1106) S (0.31) S 1.96 
Add bade. Gobdmll anwtizam . ... - 0.72 0.75 
Adjusted earnings avabble 

formmonstodt .... .. .. . . S (11.06) f 0.41 S 2.71 

Diluted earnings per share: 
Reported earnings (loss) available 

forcommonstock ......... ...... . S (11.06) b (0.31) f 1.95 
Add badc Goodwill amOrtaabOn.. . . . . - 0.72 0.73 
Adjusted eamgs available 

forcommonstock. . ..... .... . . $ (11.06) f 0.41 $ 2.68 
I 

The investment at cost in customer accounu at December 31,2002 
was $1 1 billion and at December 31, 2001 was approximately 
$1.4 billion. Accumulated amortization of the investment in 
customer accounts at December 31,2002 was $678.9 mihon and at . 
December 31,2001 was $614.5 million. W recorded appmximately 
$83.3 million of customer account amortization expense dunng the 
year ended December 31,2002, $148.0 million during the same 
penod of 2001 and $158.7 million dunng the year ended December 
31, 2000. Customer account amortization expense IS reduced 
primanly as a result of the impairment charge that reduced our 
customer account balance. The table below reflects the estimated 
aggregate customer account amortization expense for 2003 and each 
of the four succeeding fiscal years. 

onmoraands) 
Estimated amortaabon 

expense .. . $83,389 $83.282 $66,998 $66,641 $60,320 

We are required to perform impairment tests for long-lived assets 
prospectively for our monitored services segment as long as it 
continues to incur recurring losses or for other matters that may 
negatively impact its businesses. Goodwill will be required to be 
tested upon certain triggenng events, which include recurring 
operating losses, adverse business conditions, ,adverse regulatory 
rulings, declines in. market values and other matters that negatively 
impact d u e .  Given the potentially negahve impkations from the 
KCCb December 23, 2002 order, and the subsequent decline in 
Protection Onek stock pnce, Protection One tested its g o o d d  for 
impairment at December 31,2002, which resulted in the additional 
impairment charge discussed above. If future impairment tests for 
either goodwll or customer accounts indicate fair value is less than 
book value, we will be required to recognize additional impairment 
charges on these assets in the future Any such impairment charges 
could be rnatenal. 
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24. CHANGE IN ESTIMATE OF CUSTOMER LIFE 

Dunng the first quarter of 2002, Protection One evaluated the 
estimated life and amortization rates for customer accounts, based on 
the results of a hfing study performed by a third party appraisal firm 
in the first quarter of 2002. The report showed Protection One's 
North Amenca customer pool can expect a declining revenue stream 
over the next 30 years with an estimated average remaining life of 
9 years. Protection Ones Multifamily pool can expect a declining 
revenue stream over the next 30 years wth an estimated average 
remainmg life of 10 years. Talung into account the results of the lifing 
study and the inherent expected declining revenue streams for its 
North America and Multifamily customer pools, in particular the first 
five years, Protection One adjusted the rate of amortization on 
customer acxounts for its North Amenca and Multifamily customer 
pools to better match the rate and penod of amortlzation expense 
with the expected decline in revenues. In the first quarter of 2002, 
Protection One changed its amomtion rate for its North America 
pool to a leyear 135% declining balance method from a 10-year 
130% declining balance method. For the Multifamily pool, Protection 
One wll continue to amortize on a straight-line basis utilizing a 

=honer nine year life. Protection One accounted for these amoru- 
mation changes prospectively beginning January 1,2002, as a change 
min estimate. These changes in estimates increased amortization 
aexpem for the year ended December 31, 2002 by appmmmately 
-d$O 8 million, net of $0.5 malion tax. 

$25. LEASES 

8 Operating ~easeo 
e%r The company leases office building, computer equipment, vehicles, 

railcars and other property and equipment wth vanous terms and 
expiration dates from 1 to 16 years. Rental payments for operanng 
leases and estimated rental comrmtmmtj are as follows 

Year Ended kcember 31, Lease* 

I rJ 

Total 
Lacwnez cW&w 

On Thwsands) 
a Rentalpaymela 

2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  $ 34,598 3 72,904 
2001 . . . . . . . .  34,598 74,564 . . . . . . . . .  
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  34,598 62,500 

2003 . . . . . . .  . . . .  I 39,420 I 61,484 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 1,970 200s 38,013 
2006. . . .  . 42,287 53.253 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  87,669 2007 '. 78,268 
Thereaftet ................. 344,049 387,147 
Totalfuturecommitments . . . .  $576,635 S692.605 

Futurecommments 

2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  34,598 51,082 

"hCygnc 2 lease amounts am included in total operating leases 

In 1987, KGE sold and leased back its 50% undivlded interest in the 
LaCygne 2 generating unit. The LaCygne 2 lease has an initial term of 
29 yean, wth winous options to renew the lease or repurchase the 
50% undiwded interest. KGE remains responsible for its share of 
operation and maintenance costs and other related operating costs of 
IaCygne 2. The lease E an operating lease for financial reporting 
purposes We recognlzed a gain on the sale, which was deferred and 
is being amortized over the lease term. 

Capital Leases 
k t s  recorded under capital leases are llsted below: , I 

Decemkr 31, Mop 2001 

Un Thaawdu) 
Vehldes . . .  . I .. $41,930 $44,098 
Computer systems and software - ..... 7,264 6,145 

20,855 Less. Accumulated amOttlzahOn . . . . . . . . . . .  21,771 

3 27.423 f 29.388 
~~ 

Minimum annual rental payments, excluding admimtrative costs 
such as property taxes, insurance and maintenance, under capital 
leases as of December 31,2002 are listed below. Some capital leases 
am subject to covenants, which require us to maintain certain credit 
ratings 

Year Ended December 31, 

2003 .. 
2004 . . . . . . . . . .  
2005 . . . . . .  
2006 .. 
2007 ....... 
Thereafter . . . .  

.. . . . . . .  .. . .  
. . .  ...... . .  
. .  . . .  

. . . . . .  
. .  ... 

. . .  . . . . .  
Less amounts representing imputed mtemt . . . . . . . . . .  

Present value of net mimum lease payments under capltal leases . . 

$ 5,581 
5,513 
5,336 
5,093 
5,093 
4,017 

30,633 
3,2 10 

S 27,423 
- - 

26. GAIN ON DEBT RETlREMENTS 

Protection One's and our debt secunties were repurchased in the 
open market and gains were recognized on the reurement of these 
debt secunties. Prior to July 1, 2002, these were recognized as 
eXtEiOrdiMry gains. 
Effective July 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 145. This standard I 

limits the income statement classification of gains and losses from 
extinguishment of debt as extraordinary to those transactions 
meeting the cnteria of APB Opinion No. 30, uReportmg the Results of 
Operations - Reporting the Effects of Dlsposal of a Segment of a 
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and lnfrequently Occurring 
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t 

Events and Ttansactions.” SFAS No 145 prohibits treating gains and 
losses associated wth extinguishments resulting from a companyb 
risk management strategy as efiraordinay Under SFAS No. 145, 
current gam and losses from the extingulshment of debt are reponed 
as other income Gains or losses in pnor penods that were prewously 
classified as extraordinary that do not meet the APB Opinion No. 30 
cntena have been reclassified to other income The adoption of t h ~  
standard did not impact our net income or finanml condition 

27. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

Dunng the second quarter of 2002, Protection One entered into 
negotiations for the sale of its Canadian business, which was included 
m our monitored seMces segment. The sale was consummated on 
July 9, 2002. Protection One recorded an impairment loss of 
apprommately $1.3 milhon, net of $0.7 million tax benefit, in the 
second quarter of 2002 as a result of the sale. 
The net operating losses of these operations are included in the 
consolidated statements of income under discontinued operations. 
The net operating loss for the year ended December 31, 2002, of 
$1 6 million, includes an impairment loss on customer accounts of 
apprommately $1.9 million. An impairment charge of $2.3 million 
relating to the Canadian operations’ goodwll 1s reflected in the 
consolidated statement of mome for the year ended December 31, 
2002, as a cumulauve effect of accounting change from discontinued 
operations. Revenues from these operations were $4.2 million for the 
year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $8.2 million for the 
year ended December 3 1 , 200 1. ’ 

Protection One sold all assets and liabilities of the Canadian 
operations. The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Canadian 
operations at December 3 1,2001 were as follows: 

December 31,2001 

Assets 
Current assets. 
Property, plant and equipment, net . 
Customer accounts, net . . . . .  
G ~ I I  . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . .  

Total assets . .  

. .  

. . . .  

(h Thousands) 

f 478 
57 1 

. 16,992 
4,842 

55 

bablim 
Current liablihes . . . . . . .  

S 22.938 - 
f 1,364 - 

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Below, we describe significant transactions between us and Westar 
Industnes and some of our other subsidiaries and related parties We 
have disclosed these significant transactions even if they,have been 
eliminated in the preparation of our consolidated results and financial 
position 

ONEOK Shared Services Agreement 
We and ONEOK have shared services agreements in which we 
prowde and bill one another for facilities, utility field work, 
information technology, customer support, meter reading and bill 
processmg. payments for these sewices are based on various hourly 
charges, negotiated fees and out-of-pocket expenses. 

’’ Onlhwsaa 

Charges to ONKlK . . . . . . . . . . .  $8,357 $8.202 sa,- 
ChargafromONEOK ................ 3,324 3,279 3,420 

outstanding at December 31 ............ 1,457 1,424 1205 
NetrecenraMefmmONEOK, 

ONEOK gave us notice of termmtion effective December 2003 of 
thls shared services agreement. We expect termination of this 
agreement will increase our annual costs to provide these s e M a  by 
appmximately $1 1 million to $ 13 million. 

Mk provide administrative services to Protection One pursuant to 
semces agreements, including accounting, tax, audit, human 
resoums, legal, purchasing, facilities and technology seMces. Fees 
for these services are based upon various hourly charges, negotiated 
fees and out-of-pocket expenses. Protection One incurred charges of 
$3.9 million in 2002, $8.1 million in 2001 and $7.3 million in 2000. 
These intercompany charges have been eliminated in consolidation. 
W t a r  Energy and Protection One have entered into an amended 
S ~ M C ~  agreement that stipulates that if W t a r  Energy sells its interest 
in Protection One, Westar Energy and Protection One will negotiate, 
in good-faith, the terms and conditions for continuation of the 
semces dunng an agreed-upon transitmn period. Tlus agreement is 
subject to KCC approval, which has not yet been received. 

Transactions Between Westar Industries and Subsidiaries 
Protection One C d i t  Fucfllty 

Westar Industries is the lender under Protection Ones senior credit 
facility. ‘fhe senior credit faality was amended to increase the 
capacity from $155 million to $280 million during the year ended 
December 31,2002. On August 26, 2002, the senior c d i t  k h t y  
was further amended to extend the maturity date to January 5,2004. 
On March 11,2003, the KCC limited the amount of the credit fad* 
to $228.4 million, authonzed us to fund the facility and extend the 
term of the hcility to January 5,2005 and required the facility to be 
paid in full and terminated upon the disposition of all or part of our 
investment in Protection One. Wk are in discussions wth protectian 
One about the extension of the facdity and we intend to mew the 
facility through January 5,2005, should such renewal be necessary 
to provide Protection One wth continued liquidity. For further 
information, see Note 34. I 

Protection One Shared Services AgEement 
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As of December 3 1 , 2002 , $2 1 5 5 million was drawn under the faality 
The mmalning availability under th3s faality as of December 3 1,2002 
was $64 5 million. At March 14, 2003, Protection One had out- 
standing bomwngs of $2 15 5 million and $12 9 mllion of remaining 
capaaty Amounts outstanding, accrued interest and facility fees have 
been eliminated in our consolidated hnanaal statements. 

Purchases of Securities 
Westar Industries, Protectlon One and we have purchased our and 
Protection Ones debt secunties and preferred stock in the open 
market These repurchases have been accounted for as retirements on 
a consolidated basis The table below summarizes these transacnons 
for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000. 
D d  31, 2m 2001 Moo 

Westar Energy 
Bonds: 
Face value . . . 
Gainonpurchase . . . .. . 
LCKS on mark to market at retirement@ 
Tax(benef~t)expe~e .. .. 

Total (loss) gain, net of tax . 
Mandatonly redeemaMe preferred secuntles 

Facevalue . ... . . .... . 
Gainonpurchase .. 
%xeqn?me ... I . . .  
Total gain, net of tax 

Preferred stock. 
Facevalue . . . . 
Gainonpurchaae . . 
Taxexpense . .. . .  

Totalgan,netoftax . .. 
Protection One 
Bonds 

FacevaluewM . 
Gain on purchase 
Taxexpense .. . 

Total gain, net of tax . 

$333.082 $30,140 $ - 
13,514 1,395 
16,835 - - 
(1.321 1 555 - 

s 5,495 s - s -  
1,780 - - 

$ 1,072 $ - 0 -  

- - 708 I 

S 2,500 $ 921 $ - 
991 3139 - 
394 155 . -  

s 597 P 234 J - 

$119,510 $90,204 $200,489 
19,832 34,332 75.755 
6.941 12.016 26.514 

I 12.891 122.316 1 49.241 

("'Represcna thelair value o/a cull option associated with our putablc/calIde notes 
bee Note 19) 

@In 2001, $37.9 million a/ these bonds rvcrc purchased by Westar Industnu and 
$276 million ojthesc wcrc transJcnd to Protection One in cxchangeJor cash 
In 2000, $1 70 0 million OJ that bonds wen purchased by Wrslor Industncr and 
$103 9 million ojthesl were cranslerrrd to Pmtechon One in exchangelor cash and 
the settlcmcnr of certain intercompany payablcs and n c a d a  

See Note 26 for information about a change in accounting treatment 
that quires that gains and losses arising from the purchases and 
sales of these secuntzes be recorded as other income rather than as an 
extraordinary item See Note 34 for information regarding purchases 

, of secunties that have occurred dunng 2003. 

Tax Shoring Agreement 
We have a tax sharing agreement wth Pmtection One. Thls pro rata ' 

tax sharing agreement allows Protection One to be reimbursed for 
current tax benefits utilrred in our consolidated tax return. W and 
Protection One are eligrble to file on a consolidated basis for tax 
purposes so long as we maintain an 80% ownership interest m 
Protection One. W reimbursed Protection One $13.5 million for tax 
year 2001 and $7.4 million for tax year 2000. On March 11,2003, 
the KCC issued an order that allows us to make a cash payment to 
Protection One of approxlmately $20 million for tax year 2002. 

Protection One entered mto an agreement pursuant to whch it paid a 
quarterly fee to Westar Industries for financial a d w r y  semces equal 
to 0.125% of its consolidated total assets at the end of each quarter. 
This agreement was approved by the independent members of 
Protection Ones board of d~rectors. Protection One maned approxr- 
mately $3 6 million of such fees during the year ended December 31, 
2002 These amounts have been eliminated in our consolidated 
financd statements. This agreement was terminated effective 
September 30,2002. 

Dunng 2001 and 2002, we extended loans to our offcers for the 
purpose of purchasing shares of our common stock. The officers are 
pasonally liable for the repayment of the loans, which are unsecured 
and bear interest, payable quarterly at a variable rate equal to our 
short-term bomwing rate. The loans mature on December 4,2004. 
The aggregate balance outstanding at December 31, 2002 was 
approximately $1.8 mdlion, which is classified as a reduction to 
shareholders' equity in the accompanying 'consolidated balance 
sheets. For the year ended December 31,2002, we recorded appnno- 
mately $97,000 in interest income on these loans. No additiod 
loans will be made as a result of federal legdation that became 
effective July 30,2002. 

We perform KGES cash management function, including cash 
receipts and dlsbursements An intercompany account is used to 
record net receipts and dlsbursements between us and KGE. KGEb 
net amount payable from affillates appronmated $24.1 .million at 
December 31,2002, and the net amount receivable from affiliates 
appronmated $17.3 million at December 31, 2001. These inter- 
company charges have been eliminated in consolidation. 
We prowde all employees utilized by KGE. We allocate certain 
operating expenses to KGE. These expenses are allocated, dependq 
on the nature of the expense, based on allocation studies, net 
investment, number of customers, and/or other appropriate factom. 
We believe such allocatlon procedures are reasonable. 

Financial Advisory Services 

Loans to Officers 

Transactions Between Westar Energy and KGE 
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Transactions with Protection One 
During the fourth quarter of 2001, KGE entered into an opuon 
awement to sell an offim building located in downtown Wichita, 
Kansas, to Protection One for appmxlmately $0.5 million. The sales 
pnce was detemned by management based on three independent 
appraisers' findings. This transaction was completed dunng June 
2002. W recogtuzed a loss of $2.6 million on ths transaction, and 
we expected to realize annual operating cost sawngs of appmximately 
$0.9 million. The cost'saving will be treated as a regulatory lubility 
in accordance with a Match 26,2002, KCC order. For the year ended 
December 31,2002, we recoded $0.5 million UI cost saving as a 
regulatory liabihty. 

On February 29,2000, Wessar Indusmes purchased the Europ~m 
operations of Protection One, and certain investments held by a 
subsidiary of Protection One, for an aggregate purchase pnce of 
$244 million. W m r  lndustnes paid approximately $183 dl ion  in 
cash and transferxed htecbon One debt securities with a market 
value of approxtmately $61 million to Proternon One. Cash proceeds 
from the transaction were used to reduce the outstanding balance 
owed to Westar Industries on Protection Onek revolving credit 
facility No gain or loss was recorded on this intercompany 
transaction, and the net book value of the assets was unaffected. 

Protection One Europe 

29.WORK FORCE REDUCTIONS 

In late 2001 , we reduced our utdity work force by apprommately 200 
employees through involuntary separations and recorded a 
severance-related net charge of approximately $14.3 million. In 
2001, Protection One also reduced its work force by approximately 
500 employees m connection wth fadty consolidations and recorded 
a severance-related net charge of approximately $3.1 million. 
During 2002, we further reduced our utility work force by approxi- 
mately 400 employees through a voluntary separation program W 
nxorded a net charge of approximately $2 1.7 million UI 2002 related 
to ths program. We have replaced and may continue to replace some 
of these empIoyees. 

30. ICE STORM 

In late January 2002, a severe ice storm swept through our utility 
setvice area causing extenslve damage and loss of power to numerous 
custome~. Through December 31,2002, we incurred $19.3 million 
for restoration costs, a portmn of which was capitalized. We have 
deferred and recorded as a regulatory asset on our December 31, 
2002 consolidated balance sheet restoration costs of approximately 
$15.0 million. We have mived an accounting authority order from 
the KCC that allows \fs to accumulate and defer for potential future 
recovery all operanng and canymg costs related to storm restoration. 

3 I .  POTENTIAL SALE OF UTILITY ASSETS 

On October 14,2002, we announced an agreement wth Midwest 
Energy, Inc. (Midwest Energy) for the sale to Midwest Energy of a 
portion of our transmission and distribution asshts and rights to 
provide sewice to Customers in an area of central Kansas. The sale will 
affect about l0,OOO customers, or about 1.5% of our total customers, 
over 895 square miles. The area, which mcludes 42 towns, is on the 
west edge of our service territory and is largely surrounded by 
Midwest EnergyS &ng territory. The proposed sale is contingent 
upon approval by the KCC and FERC. KCC hearings have been 
scheduled to begin on May 20,2003. Wk can give no assurance as to 
when or if this transaction will occur. 

I 

32. SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS 

Our business is segmented based on differences in products and 
services, production proclesses and management qmnsibilq. W 
have idended three reportable segments; Electric Utility, Monitored 
Services and O e r .  
rn Electric Utility consists of our intepted elecuic utility opemt~om, 

including the generation, transmission and distributmn of power to 
our retail customers in Kansas and to wholesale customers, and our 
power marketing activities. 
Monitored Services, including the net effect of minority interests, IS 
composed of our security slam monitoring businesses in the 
United States and Europe. 
'other includes our approximate 45% ownelship interest m ONEOK 
at Jkember 31,2002, and other investments m the aggregate not 
material to our business or results of operations. 

We manage our business segments' performance based on their 
earnings (losses) before mtetxst and taxes @BIT) because EBIT is the 
primary measurement used our management to evaluate segment 
performance. Our buslness managers have direct conml over the 
items that affect the EBIT of their segments and we themfore believe 
EBIT is an appropnate measure of segment performance. EBIT does 
not represent cash flow from operations as defined by W, should 
not be construed as an alternative to operating income and IS 
indicative neither of operating performance nor cash flows adable  
to fund our cash needs. Items excluded from EBIT are s igdant  
components in understanding and assessing our financial perfor- 
mance. Interest expense, income taxes, discontinued operations, 
cumulative effects of accounting changes and preferred dividends are 
items that are excluded from the calculation of EBIT. Our compu- 
tation of EBIT may not be comparable to other similarly titled 
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measures of other companies. We have no srngle external customer 
from which we receive 10% or more of our revenues. 

E l d  
Utilityu Year E+ December 31, 2W 

S d e s  3 1,422,899 
Oepreciatm and 

amOrbzanOn 171,749 
Earnings (loss) before 

interest and taxes .. 246,993 
Interest expense 
Earn- 0 before 

Inannetaxes . .  

onThouswdr3 
$ 347,967 $ 252 $1,771,118 

98,111 58 269,918 

(369,848) 68,491 (54,364) 
269,283 

(323,647) 

Addibons to property, 

Customer account 

As of December 31,2002 

135,370 

acqmttons. . - 43,391 - 43,391 

Goodw~D . .. .. ... - 41,847 - 41,847 
ldentrfiable assets . . . . . . 5,033,329 638,936 770,834 6,443,099 

plant and equipment 126,763 8,607 - 

Electric Monhond 
YearEndedDetenbr31.2001 U b w  %vices Othw- ‘Totd 

sales . . . ... $1,307,177 $ 408,330 $ 1,359 $1,716,866 
Depreciation and 

amortnatton . . . 185,156 225,133 364 410,653 
Earnings (loss) before 

interestandtaxes .. 207,057 (77,074) 23,936 153,919 
Interestexpense . . 260,795 
Earnings (loss) before 

Addittons to property, 

Customer account 

As of December 31,2001 

(In TholaanQ) 

incometaxes . ( 106,876) 

plant and equipment . 226,996 8,051 235,047 

acquimns - 23,084 23,084 

coodwill... . . . - 879,602 324 879,926 
ldentmableassets . . 4,932,447 1,883,786 816,919 7,633,152 

El& M o n W  
YearEndedDecember31.tOOO UbTW Sedca Other- Total 

(In’lhorqandr) 

sales . . $1,359,522 $ 529,584 I 1,484 
Depreciation and 

amortQatm . . 175,839 245,297 2,116 
Earnings (loss) before 

interest and taxes 331,330 (5,678) 169,211 
Interestexpense . . . 
Earmngs 0 before 

A d d ~ t ~ o n s t o ~ r o ~ e ~ ,  
Income taxes 

$ 1,890,590 

423,252 

4*,863 
281,487 

21 3,376 

. . I- 

plantandequipment . . 285,431 21,998 - : 307,429 
Customer account acqumtms - 45,708 - 45,708 
As of December 31,2000 

Goodwill .. . . ! - 970,274 347 970,621 
Identifmble assets 4,961.240 2,175,706 664,774 7,801,720 

“EBIT includes a $22 9 million mcrvcJor potential liabilities to Mr Wittig and Mr 
Luke and a $22 6 million charge rccordcdJor marking to market changes in thelair 
value oJthe call opmn oJthc putable/callablc notes 

*’EBlT includes $338 1 million irnpairmenr OJcumniet accounts and $140 0 million 
impait mrnt oJgoodrulll 

(”EBIT includes invesrrniwt eatiiings 0\$65 6 million 
Salts und goodivill a t e  Jtom u wholly ownrd subsidiaty of Wvttai Indii\fr-ics 
ptoviding puging sct  viccs, which w m  sold dut ins r h c j i i u  quatfri of2002 

€BIT inrllrdes cat n i t i p  o t i  invtslinetif\ of $38 4 million and IOU on exringiitshmenf 
ofdzhr o[$J73 million 

“’E617 inrfudcr th t  gain ot1 t l ic safe 111 niii itivtsfmctir i n  (I gat rompitsston company 
d $9 1 1 million and die gain nn rhc safe oforliei maikcrabfc stcuntizs of824 9 million 

111) 

c 1 

Geographic Information 

Our sales and property, plant and equipment by geographic area are 
as follows. 
For the Ytar Ended Decembw 31, 2002 2001 zoo0 

(InThaaandr) 

Sales 
United States operatons . $1,714,702 $1,641,382 $1,756,591 
lnternationaloperatm . . 56,416 75,484 133,999 

Total ... . . . $1,771,118 $1,716,866 $1,890,590 

As of December 31, Mop 2001 zoo0 
MThOraands) 

Property, plant and equipment net 
$3,991,875 $4,067,355 $4,002,623 United States operatmns . . 

Internabonal operatmm . . . . . . . . 3,496 3,633 8,107 
Total. . . . .. - . .. ... . . . $3,995,371 $4,070,988 * $4,010,730 
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33. QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED) 

The amounts UI the table are unaudited but, M the opinion of management, contain all adjustments (conssong only of nonnal recumng 
adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of the results of such periods Our electric bustness IS seasonal in nature and, in our opinion, 
compnsons between the quarters of a year do not gwe a true indication or overall trends and changes in opktions. 

Fina secard TMrd Fourth 

UnThaaanQ. Except Per $hareAmants) 

2002 
saks . . . . . .  
Grc#sprofn . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  
Net income (loss) from mbnnung opepabons before accounting change . . . .  
Net i n m  (lon) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  

. . .  . .  . . . . .  $404,901 $419,945 
287.544 299,892 
(121,141) 10,618 

. (746,526) ' 9,275 

f 529,115 
386.248 

' 43.775 
43,567 

5 417,157 
290.61 2. 
(99,294) 
(99,3 1 7 1 

Earnings (loss) per share available from conmuing operatm for 
common stock before accounting change 
Bavc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  . S (1 69) 5 0.15 5 061 5 (139) 

Cash hdend per common share . .  .c . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 030 $ 030 $ 0.30 $ 030 
Market pnce per common share. 

Diluted . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  I (169) 5 015 I 061 I (1.39) 

Htgh . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  . f 18.00 f 1780 f 1600 5 12.02 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .... I 850 Low $ 1579 f 1425 I 944 I 

. . . . .  

2001 
sales. .. 
Grossproht . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  
Net income (lass) from conbnuing opefaurn before accoumng change . . . . . . . . .  
Netmcolnefloa) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Earrungs (loss) per share available from amhnuing operat10m for 

. . .  

common stock before accounting change 
. . .  . . . . .  . .  Baac ...... . .  

Diluted . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . .  
Cash dnndend per common share . . .  . . . .  
Market pnce per common share 

. . .  . .  Hlgh . . . . .  . . . . .  

. . . . . .  a .  L o w . .  . . .  . . . . .  
I 

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Proposed Dispositions 
The Debt Reduction Plan contemplates the sale of our interests in 
Pmtectlon One Europe wth a targeted closlng of rmd-2003 and the 
sale of our interest in Protection One wth a taqeted closing by late 
2003 or early 2004. Consstent with the Debt Reduction Plan, on 
January 13, 2003, we announced that our board of directors 
authonzed management to explore alternatives for disposing of our 
investments in Protection One and Protection One Europe, and we 
have retained financial advlson to a s s t  wth the possible sales. A 
special committee compnsed of independent directols of Protection 
One5 board of directors has been formed, and the committee has also 
retained a financial admsor. As a result of these deaaons, these 
operations were classified as dlxontinued operations dunng the first 
quarter of 2003 pursuant to the pro\mons of SFAS No. 144 
As discontinued operations, we w11 be required to determine the fair 
value of our investment. which w l l  be the net amount we expect to 
realize from the sale of the investment The investment must be 
reponed at the lesser of our recorded basis or the estimated fair value 
1I the fair value is less thm our recorded basis, we wdl be required io 
record an expense equal io the amount by which our basis esceeds 
the esiiinatecl fair value. \\ hich could be mateiial 

S 422,515 
289,819 

4,450 
(14,061 ) 

f (020) 
f (0.20) 
f 030 

f 25875 
s 21800 

$ 410,802 
284.162 
(30,134 1 
(30,188) 

f (0.43) 
S (043) 
f 030 

I 25.820 
I 20.000 

$513,490 
355.802 
36,144 
35,976 

$ 051 
f 051 
I 030 

f 22900 
I 15620 

9 370,059 
252,700 
(30,481 
(31,114) 

s (044) 
s (0.44) 
f 030 

, f17.Wl 
S 16.000 

We soliated and received indications of value for htection One 
Europe from potential buyers. These indications of value are within a 
range we would be willing to accept. They indicated the recorded 
goodwill for Protection One Europe had no value. Accordingly. we 
recorded a $36 million impairment charge in the fourth quarter of 
ZOO2 to reflect the impairment ol all remaining goodun11 at 
Protection One Europe. We are willing to accept offers in the 
indicated range due to our ability to use the tax loss on this sale to 
offset the taxes that would othennnse be due from our sale of other 
investments. We will ~.ecognize a $58 million tax benefit in the first 
quarter of 2003 when Protection One Europe is classified as a 
dwontinued operation. 

On March 21, 2003, we paid approximately 81.0 million to 
Protection One as reimbursement lor information technology 
servlces provlded to us, and related costs iiicurred. by a subsidiary of 
Protection One On Maich 21, 2003, we also paid approximately 
$3 6 million to Protection One as reimbursemeiit for aviation 
services provided by J subsidiary of Protcction Onc and for die 
repurcharc of the stock 01 thc subsidinry These pnynients weie 
authorized by the KCC in dn orclci issucd M i d i  1 I ,  2003, which is 
described in Note 3 

Payments to Protection One 

E 
__ 

a 
1; 
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Purchase of Stock from Protection One 
On February 14, 2003, we purchased 850,000 shares ,of our 
common stock and approximately 34,000 shares of our preferred 
stock from Protection One for approxlmately $1 I 6 million. This 
transaction was approved by the KCC. The shares of common stock 
are being held as treasury stock and the sham of preferred stock have 
been retired. This transaction had no effect on the consolidated 
financial statements 

Purchases of Debt Securities 
From January 1, 2003 through March 34, 2003 we purchased 
$35 3 million face value of our putabldcallable notes and $43 0 million 
face value of our 6.875% senior unsecured notes in the open market 

During March 2003, we terminated the lease of an airplane and 
incurred an expense of $5 9 million related to thls tennmtion 

Termination of Plane base ’ 

35. POTENTIAL LIABILITIES TO DAVID C.WITTIG 
, AND DOUGLAST. LAKE 

Davld C. Wittig, our former chaixman of the board, president and 
chief executive officer, resigned from all of hg positions wth us and 
our affiliates on November 22,2002. Douglas T. Lake, our executive 
vice presldent and chief strategic officer, was placed on admmistrative 
leave from all of his posit~ons with us and our amUtes on December 6, 
2002. In connecuon with these amons, we reserved all nghts and 
claims we may have against Mr. Whug and Mr. Lake ansmg under 
theu employment agreements, any other agreements wth us, or any 
plan, program or policy III which they participated. In their respective 
resignation and leave letters, Mr. Wttig and Mr. Lake stated that they 
resewed all rights and claims they may have agamst us. 
During their active employment with us, we accrued liabilities 
totaling approximately $27.4 mikon for compensation not yet p d  
to Mr. Wittig and Mr. Lake under vanous plans. The cornpensanon 
includes restricted share unit awards, deferred vested shares, deferred 
restncted share unit awards, deferred vested stock for compensation, 
execuuve salary continuation plan benefits and, in the case of Mr. 
Wittig, benefits amng from a spht dollar life insurance apmen t .  

Additionally, as required by GAAP, we have made provisions in 
our financial statements for an additional amount of appmmmately 
$22 9 million should it later be determined that we are obligated to 
pay Mr Wittig and Mr. Lake any amounts under their employment 
agreements. We do not concede, however, that any amounts are owed 
to Mr. Wittig or Mr. Lake, and we believe that we may have potential 
claims and defenses against Mr. Witug and Mr. Lake..The compen- 
sation could include a pro rata portion of their unpaid bonuses for the 
year in which temunation occurred, unused vaqation, accumulated 
sick leave, severance, restncted share unit awards and related 
dividend equivalents, and increased executive salary continuation 
plan benefits. We believe the amount reserved adequately provides 
for potenual obligations to Mr. Wittig and Mr. Lake. 
In addiuon to these amounts, we could ako be obhgated to 
addtional expense each year in whch payments are made to Mr. 
Wittig and Mr. Lake pursuant to the executlve salary Continuation 
plan. Assuming an expected payout period of 35 years, the aggregate 
nominal amount of these expenses would be approximately 
$17.9 milhon for Mr. Wittig and $9.0 million for Mr. Lake. Also, if 
stock performance requimnp for some rrstricted share unit awards 
were to be satsfied, we would be required to record additional 
compensauon expense of approximately $4.4 million to Mr. Wittig and 
Mr. Lake. 
As of March 31,2003, neither Mr. Wittig nor Mr. Lake lys &md 
any nghts or claims against us for any of the amounts described 
above. We are unable to predict whether they wll assen any rights or 
claims in the future. If they did so, we will vigmusly defend against 
such claims and potentially assert counterclaims; however, the 
ultimate resoluuon of these matters is outside our control. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS 
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING 
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

Effective May 30, 2002, the Audit and Finance Committee of our 
board of directors decided not to engage Arthur Andersen LLP 
(Andersen) as our public accountants and engaged Deloitte & 
Touche Up (Deloitte &Touche) to serve as our principal accountants 
for fiscal year 2002 This matter was previously reported by us on our 
Form 8-K dated May 30,2002 filed wth the SEC. 
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PART 111 

ITEM IO. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OFTHE REGISTRANT 

The infomauon relating to our directors required by hem 10 IS set forth in our definitive proxy statement to be filed w t h  *e SEC for our 2003 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 16,2003 Such information is incorporated herein by reference to the material appeanng 
under the caplion "Election of Directors" in the proxy statement to be filed by us with the SEC. 
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OFTHE COMPANY 
Name Age PresentMike other offices or positions ~ e l d  During'the part ~ n n  vean 

James S. Haines. Jr 56 Director. Chief Executive Officer The University of Texas at El Pas0 - 
and President (since December 2002) Adjunct Professor and Skov Pd-r ol Buslness E h c s  

(January 2002 to Present) 
El Pas0 Electric Company - 

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer. 
(May 1996 to November 2001) 

~~~ 

William B Moon 50 Executive Vice President and Chief Saber Partners, LLC - 
Operating Oflicer (since December 2002) Senior Managng Dmctor and Senior Advisor 

(October 2000 to December 2002) 
. Wesiar Energy - 

Executive Vice President and Chiel Financial Offer, 

Acting Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, 

Chairman of the Board. KGE, and Preadent 

Treasurer (May 1999 to August 2000) 

Treasurer (Ociober 1998do May 1999) 

(June 1995 to October 1998) 

MarkA Ruelle 4 1 Executive Vice President and Sierra Pacific Resources, Inc. - 
(June 2001 IO May 2002) 

(March 1997 to Msy 2001) 

Chief Financial Officer (since January 2003) President, Nevada Power Company 

Senior Vice President, Chief Financml OlTicer 

~ 

Rchard A Dixon 59 Senior Vice President, Operations Strategy Westar Energy, Inc. - 
(since March 2003) Senior Vice President, Customer Operations 

(October 2001 to March 2003) 
Vice President, Transmission Servlces 

(May 2000 to October 2001) 
Execuuve Director. System Operations 

(January 1999 to Apnl2000) 
Executive Director, Transmission Servlces 

(September 1996 to December 1998) 

I I Douglas R Sterbenz 39 Senior Vice President. Generation and Marketing Westar Energy, Inc. - 
! (since October 2001) Senior Director, Bulk Power Marketing 

(January 1999 to October 2001) 
Manager, Bulk Power Marketing 

(August 1998 to December 1998) 
Energy Trader (May 1997 to July 1998) I 

I 
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I 

ITEM I I. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The infomiation I-cquired by Item 1 1 wll bc set fonh in our definitive proxy statement to be filed wth the SEC for our 2003 Annual Meeting of. 
Shareholdcrs to be held on Junc 16.2003 Such information is incorporated herein by reference to the inatenal appeanng under the captions 
“lnformation Concerning the Board of Directors,” “Executive Compensation: “Compensation Plans” and “Human Resources Committee Repon” 
in the proxy statemciit to be filed by us wth the SEC 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The information required by Item 12 wll be set fonh in our definitive proxy statement to be filed wth the SEC for our 2003 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held on June 16,2003. Such information E incorporated herein by reference to the rnatenal appearing under the captions 
“Beneficial Ownership of Voting Securities” and uEquity Compensation Plan lnformation” in the proxy statement to be filed by us wth the SEC. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

, 

The information required by Item 13 wll be set forth in OUT definitive proxy statement to be filed wth the SEC for our 2003 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held on June 16,2003 Such information is incorporated herein by reference to the matenal appeanng under the caption 
“Certain Relationships and Related Tmnsactions” in the proxy statement to be filed by us wth the SEC. 

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Within the 90-day penod pnor to the filing date of this report, an evaluation was camed out, under the supemsion and with the 
participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and 
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Based upon that 
evaluation, our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective, 
in all matenal respects, w t h  respect to the recording, processing, summarizing and reporting, wthin the time penods specified in the SECb 
mles and forms. of infomation required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act. 

There have been no significant changes in our internal controls or ‘m other factors that could significantly affect internal controls 
subsequent to the date of the evaluation descnbed above. I ,  

PART IV 
N 

ITEM IS. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPOMS ON FORM 8-K 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INCLUDED HEREIN 

Report of Independent Public Accountants 
I Consolidated Balance Sheets, December 31,2002 and 2001 J 

Consolidated Statements of lncome for the years ended December 3 1,2002,200 1 and 2000 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000 

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

bt 



- 
I 

2 0 0 1  W E S T A R  E N E R G Y  e 
t 

SCHEDULES 

Schedules omitted as not applicable or not required under the Rules of Regulation S-X- 1,111, IV, and V ' 

9 

REPORTS ON FORM 8-K FILED DURING THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 3 I ,  2002: 

i- 
s 

Form 8-K filed October 1,2002 - Clanficauon of the amount of a charge expected to be included in third quarter 2002 results 
resulting from marking to market the amount of a liability arising from a call option related to 
our 6 25% senior unsecured notes issued in August 1998. 

- Announcement that our board of directors modified the Special Committee membership 
appointed to investigate certain matters relating to a grand JUV investigation and subpoenas 
served by the United States Attorney's Office in Topeka, Kansas. 

5 

Form 8-K filed October 4,2002 

Form 8-K filed November 1,2002 - Announcement that we will restate OUT first and second quarter 2002 financial statements to 
reflect an additional impairment at Protection One, Inc. pursuant to the application 'of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Nos. 142 and 144, and to reflect a previously 
reported non-cash charge related to marking to market the amount of a potenlial liability 
ansing from a call option related to our 6,25% senior unsecured notes lssued in August 1998. 

, Form 8-K filed November 8,2002 - Announcement of the indictment of Dawd C. Wittig, our fomer chairman of the board, 
president and chief executive officer, by a federal grand jury in Topeka, Kansas, making 
allegations relating to Mr Wittig's personal dealings and that Mr. Wittig had been placed on 
administrative leave. * 

Form 8-K filed November 15,2002 - Announcement that John C Dicus retired from our board of directors. 

Form 8-K filed November 25,2002 - Announcement that we accepted the resignation of David C. Wlttig on November 22,2002 

- Announcement that James S Haines, Jr. was appointed to our board of directors and as our 

from all of his postions w t h  us and our subsidlanes or affiliates. 

chief executive officer and president, effective December 9,2002. 

- Announcement that on December 6, 2002, Douglas T. Lake resigned as our director, as 
chairman of the board of Protection One, and' as a director of all of our other subsidiaries and 
affiliates for which he serves as director. In addition, we accepted MY. Lake's,request to be 
placed on leave from his position as our executive vice'president and chief strategic officer, 
wthout pay 

Form 8-K filed December 27,2002 - Announcement that on December 23, 2002, the KCC issued an order modifying an order 
issued on November 8,2002 addressing our financial plan. 

- Announcement that on December 16, 2002, we received a subpoena from FERC seeking 
details on power trades with Cleco and its afiiliates, documents concerning power transactions 
between our system and our marketing operations and information on power trades in which 
we or other trading companies acted'as intermedianes 

Form 8-K filed December 9,2002 ' 
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SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13 or of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this repon to 
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authonzed. 

WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

Date. Apnl11,2003 By: /s/ MARK A RUELLE 

Mark A Ruelle, 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, this repon has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 
of the regstrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated: 

/s/ JAMES S. HAINS, JR. 
(James S. Haines, Jr.1 

- Director, Chief Executive Officer and President Apnl 1 1 , 2003 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

/s/ MARK A RUELLE 
(Mark A. Ruelle) 

Execuuve Vice President and Chief Financlal Officer 
(Pnncipal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

Apnl 1 1 , 2003 

/s/ CHARLES Q. CHANDLER 1V 
(Charles Q Chandler IV) 

Chairman of the Board 

/s/ FRANK 1. BECKER Director 
(Frank J Becker) 

/s/ GENE A. BUDIG Director 
(Gene A. Budig) 

/s/ R. A. EDWARDS 111 
(R A. Edwards Ill) 

Director 

/s/ LARRY D. IRlCK Director 
(Larry D. hick) 

/s/ JOHN C NETTELS, JR. 
John C. Nettels, Jr. 

Director 

April 11,2003 

April 11,2003 

April 11,2003 

Apnl 1 1 , 2003 

April 11,2003 

Apnl 1 1,2003 
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INFORMATION & ASSISTANCE 

Westar Energy Shareholder Services 
department offers personalized 
service to the companyb individual 
shareholders. We are the transfer 
agent for Westar Energy common 
and preferred stock. Shareholder 
Services provides information and 
assistance to shareholders regarding: 

Dividend payments 

Historically paid on the first 
busmess day of January, April, July 
and October 

Direct deposit of dividends 

Tiansfer of shares 

Lost stock certificates assistance 

Direct stock purchase plan assistance 

nvidend reinvestment 
purchase additional shares by 
making optional cash payments 
by check or monthly electronic 
withdrawal from your bank account 

Deposit your stock certificates into 
the plan for safekeeping 

sellshares 
Please contact LIS in writing to request 
ehrmnation of duplicate mailings because 
of stock regstered in more than one 
way Mailing of annual reports can be 
eliminated by marking your proxy cad to 
consent to accessing reports electronically 
on the Internet. 

Please visit our Web site at www.wr.com. 
Registered shanholders can easily access 
their account information online by going 
to Financial lnfo and clickmg on 
My Shareholder Information. 

CONTACTING SHAREHOLDER SERVICES 

TEEPHONE 
Toll- free: (800) 527-2495 
In the Topeka area. (785) 575-6394 
Fa :  (785) 575-1796 

ADDRESS 
Westar Energy, Inc. 
Shareholder Semces 
PO. Box 750320 
Topeka, KS 66675-0320 

sharsvcs@wr.com 
Please mclude a dayume telephone 
number in all correspondence. 

E-MAILADDRES 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

CORPOkWE ADDRESS 

WestarEnergy,Inc. , , 

818 South Kansas Avenue 
Topeka, KS 66612-1203 

www.w.com 
(785) 575-6300 

COMMON STOCK LISTING 

Ticker Symbol (NYSE): W R  
Daily Stock Table Listiq. 

WestarEngy 

CO-TRANSFER AGENT 

Contmental Stock Tmnsfer 
& Tiust Company 
17 Battery Place, 8th Floor 
New York, NY 10004 

CONTACTING INVESTOR 
RELATIONS 

Telephone: (785) 575-1898 

Address: 
Investor Relations 
Westar Energy, lnc. 
PO Box889 
Topeka, KS 66601-0889 

E-mail Address: investrel@wr.com 

Wu Stolhand. dimibudon system 
opentor, left, Pnd Phil Sadler. senlor 
manager, distribution system opendonr. 
urdc a storm as it enten the- 
Energy service - at the Whim 
System Control Center. 

Copies of the Form 10-K Annual 
Repon to the Securities and Exchange 
Comrnssion and other published 
reporu can be obtained without charge 
by contacting Investor Relations at the 
above address or by accessing the 
company5 home page on the Internet 
at www.wr.com. 

TRUSTEE FOR BONDS 

Pnncipal Trustee, Paymg Agenr 
and Reptrar 

T h e  Bank of New YorL 
2 North LaSalic Streei Suiic 1020 
Chicago 11. 6060; 3802 
(800) 548 5075 
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XVIII. 

Corporate Political Activity I 

In the course of our investigation, we learned facts showing that certain of the 

Company's executives, including Messrs. Wittig, Koupal and Lawrence, engaged in 

organized efforts to provide political contributions to candidates for state and federal 

ofice who were perceived to support issues of interest to the Company. While 

individuals may fieely engage in such political activity, corporations are prohibited by 

federal law from contributing directly or indirectly to the campaigns of candidates for 

federal office. The activities of these corporate executives, therefore, present the 

question of whether, while engaged in these political activities, they were acting in their 

corporate capacity and on behalf of the Company or in their individual capacity. 

The political contributions by Company executives -and related activities 

described in this section of our report were not a primary focus of o w  investigation. As. a 

result, the analysis contained in this section of the report is based upon limited and 

possibly incomplete information. Nevertheless, based upon the record developed to date, 

we have learned sufficient facts to understand certain apparently recurring political 

contribution-related activities by senior executives that we believe warrant further 

scrutiny by the Company. 

A. The Underlying Political Activity. 

During the course of intebiews and document review, we learned that Mr. Wittig, 

with advice and assistance from Messrs. Koupal and Lawrence. the Company's vice 

president TOI public affairs. ( I )  advocated the electi~n of particular candidates in local- 
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state, and federal elections; &) “budgeted” for individual oflicer contributions Without 

any input from those oficers; (Ili) requested specific contributions from individual 

officers; and (iv) collected the contributions to be forwarded to specific candidates. 

Documents obtained during our investigation reveal that members of management 

repeatedly asked other corporate executives to support candidates for elective ofice and 

solicited contributions for those candidates. See, e.g., [Exhibit 236 (May 20,2002 e-mail 

fiom Mr. Lawrence to Mr. Lake explaining why Mr. Lake should contribute funds to 

Congressman DeLay’s campaign); Exhibit 237 (May 17,2002 memorandum from 

Mr. Lawrence regarding campaign contributions); Exhibit 238 (September 20,2000 

memorandum from Mr. Koupal to Mr. Lake suggesting political ,contributions to specific 

federal and state candidates); Exhibit 239 (spreadsheet showing proposed 2000 campaign 

contributions).] According to our interviews with Compan’y executives, members of 

management had a practice of soliciting individual officers for recommended political 

contributions earmarked for particular candidates. According to these interviews and a 

small sampling of documents, the process worked as follows: 

0 Mr. Wittig, with advice fiom other officers, would decide on which candidates the 
Company would support. Mr. Wittig would adjust the list periodically. 

0 Mr. Wittig, again with the advice of others - principally Mr. Koupal and 
Mr. Lawrence - would develop a list of suggested contribution amounts from 
Company officials. 

On the basis of this list, a member of management would request via company 
e-mail, memoranda, or verbally, the contribution amounts specified for each of 
the officers. Until his departure in October 2001. Mr. Koupal had primact 
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responsibility for soliciting contributions in this manner.’50 Mer Mr. Koupal left, 
the responsibility for soliciting contributions was assumed by Mr. Lawrence. 

0 Until his departure, Mr. Koupal had responsibility for gathering the checks fiom 
the listed officers and forwarding them to the candidates. M e r  Mr. Koupal’s 
departure, this task also fell to Mr. Lawrence. Mr. Lawrence said that he 
collected the contributions and usually placed them in a single envelope to hand 
to the cabdidate or a staff member. 

These types of activities go back at least to September 2000. A chart fiom that 

time lists six executive council officers on one axis and eight candidates on the other, and 

provides suggested contributions from each officer for each candidate. [Exhibit 239.1 By 

May 2002, the list of officers fiom whom contributions were solicited appears to have 

been expanded, encompassing a total of 13. [Exhibit 237.1 Around November 2001, 

Mr. Wittig had developed a donation schedule for the officers that provided for a 

budgeted contribution per S 1000 of contribution needs. The budgeted contributions 

ranged fkom $300 per thousand for Mr. Wittig and $200 per thousand for Mr. Lake to $30 I 

per thousand for Mr. Lawrence and six other officers. [Exhibits 237 and 240.1 

. -  

Checks from Mr. Lake provide evidence that at least some of the Company’s 

officers adhered to these proposed contribution amounts. A series of Mr. Lake’s checks 

dated September 26,2000 are to the same candidates and in precisely the amount 

requested of him in Mr. Koupal’s September 20,2000 memorandum soliciting the 

contributions. Compare Exhibit 241 with Exhibits 238 and 239. Similarly, a series of 

Mr. Lake’s checks dated May 22,2002 are to the same candidates and in precisely the 

Mr. Koupal claimed in his interview that he did not report the results of his 
solicitation efforts to Mr. W i t t i ~ g  

?43 



same amount requested of him in Mr. Lawrence’s May 20,2002 e-mail. Compare 

Exhibit 242 with Exhibit 236. 

Several employees indicated in interviews that they could r e h e  to make 

contributions to a particular candidate. In that event, however, they said they would be 

given a different candidate to whom they could contribute. None of the officers we spoke 

to reported having been told that his or her job would be in jeopardy or that there would 

be any other form of retribution if he or she did not contribute. But’at least some officers 

felt pressured to contribute, and were of the view that Mr. Wittig had let it be bown that 

he wanted oficers to contribute when Mr. Koupal came to ask. Even so, at least one 

declined to contribute at all,’5’ and others refbsed to contribute to specific candidates. 

B. Assessment of this Activity. 

Under the Federal Election Campaign Act (“FECA”), a corporation is prohibited 

fkom making any “contribution or expenditure in connection with a federal election.” 

2 U.S.C. 6 441b(a); see also 11 C.F.R. 0 114.2(b). For these purposes, contributions 

include both “direct and indirect payment[s] . . . , or gift[s] of money, or any services, or 

anythmg of value.” 1 1 C.F.R. 6 114.l(a)( 1). 

Consistent with this broad prohibition, a corporation may not “facilitate” the 

making of a contribution by a member of its “restricted class” - ie., the corporation’s 

executive or administrative personnel and their families. 11 C.F.R. 0 1 14.2(f)(4)(ii). A 

corporation “facilitates” the makin? of a contribution when it provides materials for the 

15’ We note. howe\lei. that this refusal occurred in the fall of 2002. 

’ a 
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purpose of transmitting or delivering the contributions, i.e. stamps, addressed envelopes, 

or any other similar item that would assist in the delivering of contributions. 11 C.F.R. 

6 1 14.2(0(2)(5). A corporate employee nevertheless may use the facilities of the ’ 

corporation to engage in “individual volunteer activity” in connection with a federal 

election, so long as the employee either (iJ uses those facilities only on an occasional, 

isolated or incidental basis and reimburses the company for the overhead or operating 

costs of such occasional use; or (iiJ makes more than occasional use of the company’s 

facilities, but reimburses the corporation within a commercially reasonable time for the 

nonnal rental charge of the facilities. 11 C.F.R. 0 114.9(a)(l). If such reimbursement 

does not occur, a prohibited corporate contribution could result. See Federal Election 

Commission, Advisory Opinion (“AO”) 1999-1 7. Use of corporate facilities is per se 

occasional, isolated or incidental when it does not exceed one how per week or four 

hours per month. 11 C.F.R. 5 114.9(a)(l)(iii). A corporation also improperly facilitates 

contributions if it uses coercion, including threats of detrimental job action or financial 

reprisal, to persuade an individual to make a contribution to a candidate. 11 C.F.R. 

$1 14.2(f)(2)(iv). 

A corporation also may not act as a “conduit” for the making of political 

contributions. 11 C.F.R. 0 1 10.6(b)(2)(ii); A 0  1997-22 (Nov. 13, 1997). A corporation 

acts as a “conduit” if it receives and fonvards an earmarked Contribution to a candidate or 

the candidate’s authorized committee. 11 C.F.R. 1 10.6@)(2). An individual, in contrast. 

may pemissibl~ act as a “conduit.“ provided that he or she files a repon providing details 

of such acti~wies 10 the Federal Election Con~mission I I C.F R & 1 IO W C )  
: 



Despite these broad prohibitions on corporate political contributions, a 

corporation may make ‘‘communications on any subject, including communications 

containing express advocacy, to their restricted class or any part of that class.” 11 C.F.R. 

0 114.3(a)(l). These communications can even suggest that the members of the restricted 

class make a personal contribution to a particulk candidate. 

Based upon our limited investigation of this issue, many aspects of the efforts 

undertaken by executives of the Company to solicit and encourage political contributions 

appear entirely proper under FECA and the relevant Federal Election Commission 

regulations. The contribution solicitations themselves appear to be permitted under the 

regulations and also appear to be directed appropriately towards a subset of the restricted 

class consisting of the Comp&y’s most senior executives. Nevertheless, several aspects 

of the actions of Messrs. Wittig, Koupal and Lawrence raise troubling questions , 

concerning possible facilitation of contributions by the Company and suggest that the 

Company -# or at least some of its senior officials - may have acted as a conduit. 

First, the limited information we learned strongly suggests that part of 

Mr. Koupal’s, and later Mr. Lawrence’s, job was to advocate for certain candidates and to 

suggest that specific executive officers of the Company make predetermined 

contributions to candidates chosen by the Company’s chief executive. Mr. Koupal 

appeared to use corporate stationery for this purpose [Exhibit 238.1 and Mr. Lawrence 

appeared to use the company’s e-mail system for such activity [Exhibit 236.1. Their 

actwjties appeared to be organized and coordinated ,with the wishes of the Company’s 

chief executive Messrs Koupal and Lawrence also do  no1 appear IO h a w  been ensaged 



in “individual voluntary activity,” but to have been performing their job functions. As a 

result, the activities of Messrs. Koupal and Lawrence appear to have been designed to 

facilitate the making of contributions and should be considered suspect. Nevertheless, 

based upon the information available to us - establishing two episodes of such political 

activity fiom 2000 to 2002 - we remain uncertain whether such activity was more than 

the “occasional, isolated and incidental” activity that may be permitted by the regulations. 

Second, at least one employee complained to us in interviews that employees felt 

coerced and intimidated into making requested contributions by Mr. Wittig. The limited 

record we developed, however, does not reflect any explicit threats or overt coercive 

behavior. And employees said they felt they could decline to contribute to particular 

candidates and one declined to contribute at all. 

Third, in soliciting contributions, Mr. Koupal asked contributors to “retum these 

checks and we’ll deliver them tomorrow.” Similarly, in his solicitation, Mr. Lawrence 

asked contributors to “forward your personal check as soon as possible to my attention.” 

Several employees said that checks were in fact collected by both of these individuals to 

be forwarded to candidates. We believe there is a strong possibility that Mr. Koupal and 

Mr. Lawrence may have become “conduits” for the contribution checks they collected 

and passed on to candidates. Moreover, since they appear to have been acting in their 

capacities as employees, such behavior likely was prohibited by Federal Election 

Commission regulations. See 1 1 C.F.R. 5 106.2(ij) (“[alny person who is prohibited fiom 

malong contributions. . . shall 

MY Koupal and -Mi Lawrencc L 

be prohibited fiom acting as a conduit”). Even if 

were acting stnctl? in theii individual capacities. we h a w  

34 i 



seen nothing to suggest that they submitted a conduit report, as required by the 

regulations. 

During the course of our interview, Mr. Koupal told us that he thought the 

Company’s political Contribution practices had been reviewed by counsel, although he 

had no fisthand knowledge. Mr. Temll said that although election counsel reviewed the 

Company’s Political Action Committee, he did not recall counsel reviewing the 

Company’s practice of soliciting political contributions. We have not seen any records 

that reflect consultation with counsel on contribution-related issues prior to the 

commencement of our investigation. 

The Federal Election Commission is authorized to enforce FECA by pursuing 

either civil or criminal penalties for violations. In general, the Commission is authorized 

to seek a civil penalty not to exceed the higher of $5,000 or the amount of any improper 

contribution. 2 U.S.C. 0 437g(a)(5)(A). If the violation is knowing or willful, the 

Commission may seek a civil penalty not to exceed the higher of $10,000 or double the 

amount of the improper contribution. 2 U.S.C. 0 437g(a)(S)(B). The Commission also 

may seek a criminal referral for a knowing and willfbl violation involving the making, 

receiving or reporting of more than $2,000 in contributions during a calendar year. In 

such a case, the Commission may seek to impose a prison sentence of up to one year or 

may seek a fine of up to $25,000, three times the amount of the contribution, or both. 

2 U.S.C. 5 437g(d)( 1)(A). 

In light of the incompleteness of the record resultinp from our limited review of 

the facts. we recommend that the Company retain counsel who specializ,e in election law 
I 



matters to conduct a more thorough review of the propriety of these past activities, to 

advise the Company on proper steps to take in light of the conclusions reached as a result 

of that review, and to assist the Company in establishing any needed policies or practices 

that would help the Cornpiny to avoid possible fbture problems with respect to political 

contributions . 

I 
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Doua Lake 

Carl Koupa A 
TO. 

FFiOM: 

D A E  September 20,2000 

SUBJECT: ConWbuttone 

I N E R N N  
CORRESPONDENCE 

C C  

Below are the names of the committees for the wntrlbutions. 

Please return these checks and we'll deliver them together. You'll note one addition of a 
Topeka Clty Coundl person. 

T'mhrt for Congress 

I Ryun for Congress 

Jerry M o m  for Congmss 

Dennk  MOO^ for: congress d 
Annle Keuther for State Representative 

Lynn Jenkins for Senate Campaign 

Toelkes for Sate Representative 

Gordon for State Representative 

Vanessa Hili for Council ($1 00) 
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October 6, IS87 

Federal Election Commission 
999 E Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20463 

Ret PAC Organization 

Dear FEC: I 

Please 
let me know if you need any additional information to register 
us as a federal PAC. 

Enclosed is our initial Statement of Organization, 

Very truly yours, 

Richard Dm Kready 0 
RDK: l a x  

cc: T.A.  Mindrup 
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KPL Gas Service P.O. Box 089 
(aka: The Kansas P o w e r  and 'Topeka, Karrsas 66601 

Light Company) 

connected .. 

Richard D. K r e a C y  P . O .  Box 889 PAC Treasurer 
Topeka, Kansas 66601 -- 

9 Banlu or 0lh.r DopodIorkr: L a  all bnnb or other depoaionos in why ithe comrmnea Wwts tu-. hoUs acaumls. 
bares c' mainrains knb, 

8a)mtydlpOdl 

-~BuJr.mor)(#y,ak M8llkrg AMnUn M d  DP Ca& 

C o m m e r c e  Bank 6 Trust P . O .  Box 5049 
Topeka, Kansas 66605-5049 
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c \. - 

STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION 
(See reverse side for lnslnrctlons) I 

1. WlNAM€O F COMMlTlEE IN FULL (Check 11 nama h chsngedd) 2. DATE 
KPL cas S e r v i c e  Employees Political Action C o m m i t t e e  October 15,  1990 ---. 

[bl N\iniber and Street Addresr 

IC) Clly. Slsle snd ZIP Code 

0 (Check I addrsrs Is chmnged) 3. FEC I D E M I F l C b f I Q Q ~ ~ ~ R  [,i{-'Ti: ;;! 

4. IS THIS STATEMENT AN AMENDM€k?q 
COO218040 

--I-- 

P * O *  13OX 8 8 9  

Topeka, Kansas 66601  YES ON0 

--I---. - 

5. TYPE OF COMMITTEE (Chock one) 

(a) Thls committee Is a prlncipel campaign committee, (Complele lhe candidale Information blow.) 

[j (b) This commlnee Is an authorized commlnee, and Is NOT a prlnclpal carnpalgn committee. (Complete Iho candidate lnforrnaticn below.) 

-------- 
Candldale Party Aff illation Office Sought I StaWDislrlcl I I 

m m e  of Candidalo 

and is NOT an authorized commiitee. . . -. 
' - (d) This commitlee is a committee o! the Party 

- -.- (c) Thls commitlee supportslopposes only one candidate 
(name of candidale) 

(National. State or subordinale) . (Democrabc. Republican. etc.) -. - 
-- 
. (e) This commlttee IS a separate segregated fund. 
. .  

(I) This commitlee suppo~s~opposos more lhan one Federal candldate and is NOT a separate segregaled fund or a party committee 

Meillng Address end 
ZIP Code Re t atlonshlp 

6. Name o! Any Connected 
Organlraflon or Affllleted Commltlee 

-----.. ----.---- - I ._- --- .-------I-- - ------ -- -- .. .- - L ___-.-,- - 
Type 01 Connected Organization 
I Corporation __ CorpOration w'o Capital Stock - Labor Organization -Membership Organizatlon 

i Cuslodlan of Records: Identify by name. address (phone number -= optional) and posllion Of the person In possession of committee books and 
records 

- I- .- - 
Trade Association --Cooperatwe 

Full Name Milling Address Tltle or Poslllon 

8 Treasurer: List the name and aCCress (phone number -- opbonai) of the treasurer of the committee. and tho ham0 and address of any designated 
agent l e  g . a5ststant treasurer1 

Full Name Malling Addre99 Title or Posltlon 

Bradlcy  0. Dixon 2460 P c r s h i c g  Road Treasurer 

- .  GQ108 __-___.___... . . - -..-- - 
Kansas City, Wissouri 

0 Banks or Other Depositories: List ail Sanb 0' other depositories in which the commitlee deposits lunds holds accounts, rents sale;y ceDcs1t 
k \ e s  or rain:ains funds 

Name of Bank, Depository, etc. Malllng Address and ZIP Code 

FEC (revlsec FORM 4 t - 



Ktmsas Gas and Electric CaTpmy 
M a l  Political Action Cami t tee  
(KGE FED PAC) 
p s a s  a and Electxic Carpany 
State Political Action Carmittee 

120 Em F i r s t  
Wichita, Kmsas 67202 

Aff iliatad 

1 Affiliated 

I 
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, _  F.E.C. IMAGE 93038501258(ge 1 of 3) 
\ 

July 18.1 

s '  
-2:. 

"lua. .I . 

m 

Page 1 of 1 

Please find attached FEC FORM 1, Statement of manlzatlon, for thfj Western ResoufWS 
m p b p  Political Action committee. This is a r v r t  d n m e  change onb. The fMrr~er 
name was KPL Gas Servioe Employees PoWcal ACtlMl Committsem The Treasurer frk Ihe 
committee remains the seme. 
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$eptember 14,1996 I 

. .  

, i  



.I ee * Of 3, 
' F.E.C. IMAGE 96030792 197 

Page 1 of 1 
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l'hewing Group, L i m i t e d  Co. PAC 

I '  L 

---- 
FE6ANOS3 FEC FORM 1 

(revlsec! Mr) 
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July 18,1997 

. . - -  

Federal Election Cammission 
g$9 E Street, N, W. 
Washingtan, D C- 20463 

Please find enclosed FEC Form 1, Statement of Oqan’nation, fbr the Western 
Resources Employee Political Actlan Committee. Th!s is a report of Ghange in 
Custodian of Records and Tmasumr. 

Sincerely, 9 w  Bradley 0- Dimn 

Chairperson 
Western R~SOUEBS Employees 
Political Action Committee 

Enclosure 

-. - .  I- 
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1991-92 COflflITT REPORT (K-INDEX) 
ACTIVITY BEGINNING JANUARY I, 1991 - ---  - - .-.- - 

KPL GAS SERVICE POLITICAL ACTION COHtlIlTEE 
COO218040 NON-PARTY QUALIFIED KS CORPORATE 

TOTAL RECEIPTS: 16925 
TRANS FROfl AUTH: 2879 
INDIVIDUAL CONTR.: 14045 
OTHER CHTE CONTRIB: 0 
OTHER LOANS: 0 
NON-FED TRANSFERS: 0 

TRANS TO AUTH: 0 
CONTRIB TO OTHER CflTES: 18950 
INDEPENDENT EXPEND: 0 
COORDINATED EXPEND: 0 
INDIVIDUAL REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER CflTE REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER LOANS REPAY: 0 
NON-FED EXPENDITURES: 0 

TOTAL D I  SBURSEflENTS : 18950 

BEGINNING CASH ON HAND: 11 858 
LATEST CASH ON HAND: 9837 
DEBTS OWED BY: 0 

THROUGH : 1 2 / 31 / I 992 



:.1993-94 COMM EE SUMMARY REPORT 10/09/2003 
. ACTIVITY BEGINNING JANUARY 1 , -1 993- -.----.-.- - .---.. ---- - -- 

WESTERN RESOURCES EMPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE I 

COO218040 NON-PARTY QUALIFIED KS CORPORATE 
TOTAL RECEIPTS: 12436 

TRANS FROM AUTH: 0 
INDIV IDUAL CONTR.: 12436 
OTHER CMTE CONTRIB: 0 

. OTHER LOANS: 0 
I NON-FED TRANSFERS: 0 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS: 20995 
TRANS TO AUTH: 0 
CONTRIB TO OTHER CMTES: 20950 
INDEPENDENT EXPEND: 0 
COORDINATED EXPEND: . 0 
INDIV IDUAL REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER CMTE REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER LOANS REPAY: 0 
NON-FED EXPENDITURES: 0 

BEGINNING CASH ON HAND: 9837 
LATEST CASH ON HAND: 1281 
DEBTS OWED BY: 0 d 

03 
csrr 
(3 THROUGH : 12 I31  I 1994 
fiyilil 

=I ENTER COMMITTEE ID# :  
"J 

I';r 

(3 
bs'r 
t'J 



I 

$:995-96 -COM SUMMARY REPORT 10/09/2003 

WESTERN RESOURCES EMPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE 
COO218040 NON-PARTY QUALIFIED KS CORPORATE 

TOTAL RECEIPTS : 15696 
TRANS FROM AUTH: 0 
I N D I V I D U A L  CONTR. : 15696 
OTHER CMTE CONTRIB: 0 
OTHER LOANS: 0 
NON-FED TRANSFERS: 0 

TRANS TO AUTH: 0 
CONTRIB TO OTHER CMTES: 14133 
INDEPENDENT EXPEND: 0 
COORDINATED EXPEND: 0 
I N D I V I D U A L  REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER CMTE REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER LOANS REPAY: 0 
NON-FED EXPENDITURES: 0 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS: 141 33 

BEGINNING CASH ON HAND: 1281 
LATEST CASH ON HAND: 2848 
DEBTS OWED BY: 0 

THROUGH: 12/31 / I996 

ENTER COMMITTEE I D # :  
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1997-98 COMM 9 TEE 
ACTIV ITY 

J :  

.I 

SUMMARY REPORT (K- INDEX) 10/09/2003 
-...-. . .. . BEGINNI-HG JANUARY-I-; -1997  - I._ - 

WESTERN RESOURCES EMPLOYEE POLIT ICAL  ACTION COMMITTEE 

TOTAL RECEIPTS: 7191 
COO218040 NON-PARTY QUALIFIED KS CORPORATE 

TRANS FROM AUTH: 0 
I N D I V I D U A L  CONTR.: 71 91 
OTHER CMTE CONTRIB: 0 
OTHER LOANS: 0 
NON-FED TRANSFERS: 0 

TRANS TO AUTH: 0 
CONTRIP TO OTHER CMTES: 8240 
INDEPENDENT EXPEND: 0 
COORDINATED EXPEND: 0 
I N D I V I D U A L  REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER CMTE REFUNDS: 0 
OTHER LOANS REPAY: 0 
NON-FED EXPENDITURES: 0 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS: 8240 

BEGINNING CASH ON HAND: 2848 
q LATEST CASH ON HAND: 1801 
co DEBTS OWED BY: 0 
m 
t:l THROUGH: 12/31/1998 
f'Y 
F B I  

Tf 
Yr 

bo7 
fY 

ENTER COMMITTEE ID# :  
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@8 1 SEL L I S T  OF RECEIPTS 8 EXPENDITURES (G) (199 
a FEDERAL ELECTION COHHISSION DATE 090CT2003 

PAGE 1 
SECTION V - CANDIDATESlPOLITICAL COMHIhEES 

CONTRIBUTOR/LENDER/TRANSFERRER STREET ADDRESS . CITY STATE Z I P  TYPE OF FILER 
REPORTING ENTITY REPORT TYPE ELECTION AHOUNT 

IHAGE LOCATION TRANSACTION TYPE DATE 

ASHCROFT 2000 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 

98FEC/259/1155 #0284060 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

I K E  SKELTON FOR CONGRESS COHHITTEE 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 

98FECI 293/0797 #0583784 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

JXW RYUN FOR CONGRESS 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 

97FEC122613970 #0211336 CONTRIBUTION flADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

JIM RYUN FOR CONGRESS 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 

98F99/002/0864 #0733348 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

KAREN HCCARTHY FOR CONGRESS 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 

97FEC/226/3970 #0211334 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

L$OORE FOR CONGRESS 

'* 
CP 
UHORAN FOR CONGRESS 
f'd WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHI l lEE 

>iHoRAN FOR CONGRESS 

WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 
99F99/001/0900 #1279753 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

P D ~  97FEC/226/3970 #0211335 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE gD 
N S A H  BROWNBACK FOR U S SENATE 

98F99100216557 #lo926980 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 
98FEC/259/1155 #0284059 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

SAM BROWNBACK FOR U S SENATE 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 

98F99 /002 I6557 #0926979 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON -AFFILIATED 

SNOWBARGER FOR CONGRESS 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COHHITTEE 

97FEC/226/3970 #0211337 CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

COO31 9285 SENATE 
YEAR - END GENERAL 

16SEP97 

COO025973 HOUSE 
APRIL QUARTERLY PRIHARY 

2HAR98 

COO320077 HOUSE 
HID-YEAR REPORT GENERAL 

8HAY 97 

COO320077 HOUSE 
JULY QUARTERLY PRI  HARY 

27APR98 

COO288654 HOUSE 
HID-YEAR REPORT GENERAL 

17HAR97 

COO331 066 HOUSE 
YEAR-END GENERAL 

3DEC98 

COO31 2090 HOUSE 
HID-YEAR REPORT GENERAL 

1 HAY 97 

COO31 2090 HOUSE 
OCTOBER QUARTERLY GENERAL 

22SEP98 

COO320051 SENATE 
YEAR-END GENERAL 

26AUG97 

COO320051 SENATE 
OCTOBER QUARTERLY GENERAL 

22SEP98 

COO308569 HOUSE 
GENERAL HID-YEAR REPORT' 

6JUN97 

250 

500 

500 

500 

500 

500 

500 

500 

250 

750 

500 
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II) FEDERAL ELECTION COHHISSION 
SELE L I S T  OF RECEIPTS & EXPENDITURES (G) 

CONTRI BUTORI LENDERITRANSFERRER STREET ADDRESS 
REPORTING ENTITY 

IHAGE LOCATION TRANSACTION TYPE 

SECTION v - CANDIDATESIPOLITICAL COHHITTEES 
DATE 090CT2003 

PAGE 2 

CITY STATE Z I P  TYPE OF F ILER 
REPORT TYPE ELECTION AHOUNT 

DATE 

SNOWBARGER FOR CONGRESS 
UESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION 

98FECI293 I0797 10583785 CONTRIBUTION HADE 

SNOWBARGER FOR CONGRESS 
WESTERN RESOURCES EMPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION 

98F99 I002 I6557 #0926978 CONTRI BUTION HADE 

TODD TIAHRT FOR CONGRESS 
WESTERN RESOURCES EHPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION 

97FEC1226I3970 #0211333 CONTRIBUTION HADE 

I 

COO308569 HOUSE 
COHHIlTEE APRIL QUARTERLY 
TO NON - AFFI  L I  ATED 26HAR98 

COHHITTEE 
TO NON -AFFILIATED 

COHH I l l E E  
TO NON - AFFI  L I  ATED 

COO308569 HOUSE 
OCTOBER QUARTERLY 

9JUL98 

COO295592 HOUSE 
HID-YEAR REPORT 

25FEB97 

PRIMARY 250 

PRIMARY 250 

GENERAL 1,000 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

SELECTED LIST OF RECEIPTS 8 EXPENDITURES (G) (1997-1998) 

DATE 090CT2003 

PAGE 3 

COO21 8040 WESTERN RESOURCES EMPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION COMHIllEE NON-PARTY QUALIFIED 

CONTRIBUTION HADE TO NON-AFFILIATED 

TOTAL 

14 6 750 

14 6 750 



FEC Committee Summary R ID COO218040 
r 

Page 1 of 1 

Presented by the Federal Election Commission - 1999-2000 Cycle 
I ’  

WESTERN RESOURCES EMPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION 
COMMITTEE 

COO2 1 8040 Non-Party Qualified Kansas 

Total Receipts: $6,3 19 
Transfers From Authorized: $0 
I ndivi dual Contributions: $6,3 19 
Other Committee Contributions: $0 
Other Loans: $0 
Non-Federal Transfers: $0 

Total Disbursements: 
Transfers To Authorized: 
Contributions To Other Committees: 
Independent Expenditures: 
Coordinated Expenditures: 
Individual Refunds: 
Other Committee Refunds: 
Other Loan Repayments: 
Non-Federal Expenditures: 

$8,122 
$0 ’ 

$8,122 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

* $0 

Beginning Cash: $1,801 
Latest Cash On Hand: $0 , 

Debts Owed By: $0 

Through: 1213 1/2000 

TRY A: NEW SEARCH RETURN TO: FEC HOME PAGE 
\ 

10/8/2003 



. FEC Disclosure Report Searc esults @ 

, 

Page 1 of2 

BROWNBACK, SAM 
VIA SAM BROWNBACK FOR U S SENATE 
KLINE. PHILL D 
VIA FRIENDS OF PHILL 
KLINE. PHILL D 
VIA FRIENDS OF PHILL 
KLINE. PHILL D 
VIA FRIENDS OF PHILL 
MOORE. DENNIS 
VIA MOORE FOR CONGRESS 
MOORE. DENNIS 
VIA MOORE FOR CONGRESS 
MORAN. JERRY 
VIA MORAN FOR KANSAS 
ROBERTS. PAT 
VIA PAT ROBERTS FOR SENATE 
ROBERTS. PAT 
VGAT ROBERTS FOR SENATE 

171A JIM R’fm FOR COYGRESS 

RYL-B, JJM R 
\’]A JJM-RYLW ~ O R . . C @ ~ - G R ~ S E ;  ‘ 

, RYUT\I” JIM R 

Presented by the Federal Election Commission 

Committees And Candidates Supported/Opposed 

WESTERN RESOURCES EMPLOYEE POLITICAL ACTION 
COMMITTEE 
Party: No Associated Party 

PO BOX 889 
TOPEKA, Kansas 66601 

Recipient’s Name I(DateIIAmount(l Image Number 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

0 1 /14/2000 

09/19/2000 

0911 9/2000 

09/19/2000 

I 111 412000 

05/09/2000 



yrUlts . FEC Disclosure Report Search 

W. TODD TIAHRT 
VIA TIAHRT FOR CONGRESS 

Page 2 of 2 

20990 16 1075 11 
I: I .  :I 
W. TODD TIAHRT II VIA TIAHRT FOR CONGRESS 

TRY A: NEW OUERY 

RETURN TO: FEC HOME PAGE 

1109/19/2000~~ 1 OOO.OO() 2099022 1262 I 

I 
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ATTACHMENT 8 



. . 8 . . 
.F 

Page 1 of 1 _ _  - - .. - 
I -  e .- 

F.E:C. IMAGE 21037003794 (Page 1 of 2) 

Thursday, March 29,2001 

Federal Election Commission 
999 E Street, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20483 

b -- . --. - -. . -  . .. 
Please accept this notification to you that the Western Resourns 

Employee Potitical Action Committee was termlnated December 31 I 2000. All 
funds were dispersed and thus, a zero balance remalns, a5 indicated on our 
year end iilrng rapart. 

If you have any qlcetions Dr need additional information, please let me 
)tnow. I can be reached at (785)!575-6Q57. 

Slnce rely. 

+'s* 
Tarnie S. Hdlar 
Treasurer 

TSH:mkv 

cc: Secretary of Sate, Kansas . - . . -  

Imp //hemdon I cdidc can~/c~i-bin!feclm~li~O/COO~ 180402 103005794/2 103700~794!104 10/8:200? 



ATTACHMENT 9 



ATTACHMENT 9 HAS BEEN DELETED 
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ATTACHMENT 10 



("' 

. 

Doug take 

Carl Koupa A 
TO. 

FROM: 

DATE: September 20,2000 

SUBJECT: Contn'butlons 

cc: 

Please mtum sese checks and we'll d e b r  them together. You'll note one adddon of 8 
Topelea City Coundl person. 

Tiehrt far Congress . a  

Ryun for Congress 

Jew M o m  for Congress 

Annie Keuber for Sbte Represents- 

Lynn Jenkins for Senate Campaign 

Toelkes for State Repmsentatlve 

Gordon for State Representative 

Vanessa Hill for Coundl ($1 00) 



ATTACHMENT 11 



a 

ATTACHMENT 11 HAS BEEN DELETED 



ATTACHMENT 12 



May 13,2002 

@ ., * D T L N y  



e -  

Total Budget 
Soft Money (Corporate) 

Dwld WWg 
Doug Lske 
Doug Skbcnz 
Paul Gdsc 
Dick D h  
Jo Hunt 
Doug Lawrence 
Lee Wages 
Bruce Akin 
Lary I* 
PessVLoYd 
Caraline w t l l i i  
Kelly Harrison 



' .. 

, 



,,c- 
: I  '.. ' 

. 

David W ~ g  
Ip3500.00 
SI.Oo0.M) 

Dong W 
s23300.M) 

Doug SmImaz 
t1300.00 

Paul Ga'ut 
s40Q-00 
$350.00 
s2s0.00 

S650.00 

s400.00 
s160.00 

DoPgLa- 
s300.00 
820.00 

Lte wag4s 
s300.00 
sso.00 

B N c e A b  
s300.00 

. -  E50.00 
LanyIlidr 

DiclcDixan 

Jo Hunt 

s300.00 
sso.00 

S300.00 
ss0.00 

C a r o l i n e ~  
S300.00 

Kelly H d m  
s300~00 

Peggy LON 

@ '  - m  

Northup fm Conpse 
Tam Young for Conpits 

Volunteers fix ShiJnb 



ATTACHMENT 13 

I 



ATTACHMENT 13 HAS BEEN DELETED 
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ATTACHMENT 14 



I, Mary K. Lewis (Kathy), being duly sworn depose and say: 

1. I am currently employed by Westar Energy, Inc. I was previously known by the 

name of Kathy Volpert. I now go by Kathy Lewis. 

2. My position at Westar was as the Administrative Clerk, PublidGovernment 

Affairs. I performed these duties fiom May 1998 until the present. 

3. In this position, I was asked from time to time to help collect political 

contribution checks fiom Westar executives for members of Congress or for members of the 

Kansas legislature. 

4. In 2002, I assisted the then Vice President for Governmental Affairs, Doug 

Lawrence in collecting campaign contribution checks fiom a number of the top executives of 

the company. After I collected these checks, I would send them by Federal Express to our 

Washington lobbyist Richard Bornemann. I did this on approximately three occasions to the 

best of my recollection. The total charge for these three shipments would have been about 

$40.00. These shipments were billed to a Westar corporate account. 

5. I spent a total of about 2 hours in 2002 in connection with the collection and 

processing of these checks. 

6. I did have contact with 

Doug Lawrence about how much money I was collecting or the source of the 

contributions. 

Subscribed and sworn to before 
me this 20th da! of MvembeI. 2003 

n -- 

Mary K. (KatEy) Lewis 

NO1 A R Y  PUB1 IC 
S U T l  Of KANSAS 



ATTACHMENT 15 



ATTACHMENT 15 HAS BEEN DELETED 



ATTACHMENT 16 



r STATEMENT OF 
ORGANIZATION FEC 

FORM 'l 

1 
:003 OCT - 3  P 1: 3b 

Office Use Only 

[&SI I616i6101t 1 - 1 '  I I I 1 is changed) 
, 17;brSI&IKIAl I I I I I I I I I I I I 

COMMllTEES FAX NUMBER 

M U  D V  Y Y Y !  

2. DATE 

3. FEC IDENTIFICATION NUMBER b C 

4 IS THIS STATEMENT K NEW (N) OR AMENDED(A) ' 

/ certify that I have examined this Statement and to the best of my knowledge and belief it IS true. correct and complete 

Type or Print Name of Treasurer 

Signature of Treasurer Dale h f  5 d 300 3 
V Y Y Y  

NOTE Submission of lake erroneous or incomplete information may subjecl the person sianinF this Statement to the penaltles of 2 U s c 94379 

ANY CHANG! IN INFORMATION SHOULD BF RFPORTED WITHIN 10 DAYS 



r 1 
FEC Form 1 (Revised 02/2003) Page 2 

5. TYPE OF COMMIlTEE (Check One) 

(a) I 

(b) 

This committee is a principal campaign committee (Complete the candidate information below.) 

This committee is an authorized committee, and is N M  a principal campaign committee. (Complete the candidate 
information below.) 

. 3 

Candidate Office State 
Party Affiliation Sought- House Senate President 

District 

(c) This committee supports/opposes only one candidate. and is NOT an authorized committee. 

This committee is a (dl 
(National, State 
or subordinate) committee of the 

(Democratic. 
Republican, etc) Party 

(e) x This committee is a separate segregated fund 

This committee supportslopposes more than one Federal candidate, and is NOT a separate segregated fund or party 
committee. 

(9 

6. Name of Any Connected Organization or Affiliated Committee 

Type of Connected Organization 

' % Corporation 

Membership Organizalion 

Corporation wlo Capital Stock 

lrade Association 

Labor Organization I 

Cooperalive 

J 



FEC Form 1 (Revised 02/20031 
r 

Paae 3 
1 

Write or TVpe Committee Name 

U6)LL Cbwd*e= 
7 Custodian of Records: ldenbh by name,' add& (phone number - optional) and position of the person in possession of committee 

books and records 

Title or PositionV CITY A STATE A ZIP CODE A 

8 Treasurer. List the name and address (phone number - optional) of the treasurer of the committee; and the name and address Of 
any designated agent (e.g , assistant treasurer). 

Title or Position V CITY A STATE A ZIP CODE A 



FEC Form 1 (Rwked 02/2003) 
r 

Paae 4 
1 

9. Banks or Other Depositories: List all banks or other depositones in which the committee deposits funds, holds accounts, rents 
safely deposit boxes or maintains funds. 

Name of Bank, Depository. etc. 

Mailing Address ~3lar3ls IS1 blUi5Nl IT OI?lEIL~I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

CITY A STATE A ZIP CODE A 

Name of Bank, Depository, etc. 

Mailing Address 

J 



INSTRUCTIONS FOR FEC FORM 1 

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
Instructions for Statement of Organization (FEC FORM 1) 

When to File 
New political committees must file 

this form to register the committee once 
they exceed the applicable threshold, as 
described below: ’ 

*Principal campaign committees must 
file this form no later than 10 days af- 
ter the candidate designates the com- 
mittee on the Statement of Candidacy 
(FEC FORM 2). Other authorized 
committees file this form with the prin- 
cipal campaign committee, which in 
tun must file this form with the ap- 
propriate filing offices. 

*Committees sponsored by corporatio11s, 
labor organizations or trade associa- 
tions (Le., separate segregated funds) 
must file this form no later than 10 days 
after their establishment . 

*Local political party committees must 
file this form no later than 10 days af- 
ter exceeding one of the following 
thresholds during a calendar year: (1) 
receiving contributions in connection 
with a federal election aggregating in 
excess of $5,000; (2) making exempt 
payments under 11 CFR 100.80, 
100.87, 100.89, 100.140, 100.147 or 
100.149 aggregating in excess of 
$5,000; or (3) making contributions or 
expenditures in connection with a fed- 
eral election aggregating in excess of 
$1,000. 

*All other political committees must file 
this form no later than 10 days after 
receiving contributions or making ex- 
penditures in connection with a federal 
election aggregating in excess of 
$1,000 during a calendar year. 

Note: Political Committees (except 
for committees required to file with the 
Secretary of the Senate) must file reports 
in an electronic form under 1 1  CFR 
104.1 8 If they have either received con- 
tributions or made expenditures in ex- 
cess of $50.000 dunng a calendar year. 
or I f  they have reason to expeci that they 
wiff exceed eithei of those thresholds 
during the calendar veal I f  your corn- 
mmee has leached this level of acti\’ii!. 
you mucl filc rhis form in an clcctronic 
for in a 1 

FEJkNOCi PD 

A political committee is considered 
to have reason to expect it will exceed 
the electronic filing threshold for the 
next two calendar years after the d e n -  
dar year in which it exceeds $50,000 in 
contributions or expenditures. Excep- 
tion: This does not apply to an autho- 
rized committee with $50,000 or less in 
net debts outstanding on January 1 of 
the year following the general election 
that anticipates terminating prior to 
Janua~y 1 of the next election year, as 
long as the candidate has not qualified 
under 2 U.S.C. 8432 as a candidate in 
the next election and does not intend to 
become a federal candidate in the next 
election. 

A new committee with no previous 
contributions or expenditures is consid- 
ered to have reason to expect it will ex- 
ceed the electronic filing threshold if it 
exceeds $12,500 in contributions or ex- 
penditures during the first calendar quar- 
ter of the calendar year, or $25,000 in 
contributions or expenditures in the first 
half of the calendar year. 

Contact the FEC for more informa- 
tion on filing electronically. 

Line-by-Line Instructions 

LINE 1. Print or type full name and 
mailing address of the committee. The 
name of a principal campaign commit- 
tee or other authorized committee must 
include the name of the candidate who 
authorized the committee. A political 
committee which is not an authorized 
committee can not include the name of 
any candidate in its name, except that a 
delegate committee must include the 
word “delegate(s)” in its name and may 
also include the name of the Presiden- 
tial candidate which it supports. A po- 
litical committee established solely 10 
draft an individual or to encourage an 
ind~\~ldual IO become a candidate ma! 
include thc name of the individua1i.n the 
name o j  ihe cornnilnee provided the 

it is a draft committee. The name of a 
separate segregated h d  must include 
the full name of its connected organiza- 
tion. Any abbreviation or acronym used 
by the fund must also be reported. List 
the Internet address (URL) of the 
committee’s official Web site, if such a 
Web site exists. If the committee is re- 
quired to file electronically, or is a prin- 
cipal campaign committee of a candi- 
date for the Senate or House of Repre- 
sentatives, also list an electronic mail 
address. Finally, if the committee is a 
principal campaign committee or an au- 
thorized committee, list the committee’s 
fax number. 
LDE 2. State the date the group or or- 
ganization became a political commit- 
tee. If this filing is an amendment, note 
the date of the change in information. 

LINE 3. Only committees that have pre- 
viously filed a Statement of Organiza- 
tion should fill in this block with the 
number that was originally assigned to 
the committee. All new Committees will 
be assigned identification numbers when 
the completed statement has been re- 
ceived. 
LINE 4. All political committees regis- 
tering for the first time check the box 
labeled ‘WEW.” Committees that have 
previously filed FEC FORM 1 and are 
now submitting changes or corrections 
check the box labeled “AMENDED.” If 
“AMENDED” is checked, complete 
Lines 1 through 4. With respect to Lines 
5 - 9 include only the change(s) in in- 
formation previously submitted. Corn- 
mittees are reminded that any change or 
correction in the infomation previously 
filed in the Statement of Organization 
shall be reported no later than 10 days 
following the date of the change or cor- 
rection Committees that are required 
to filc electromcally are also required to 
file amendments 10 the Statemeni of 
Orpanization In an electronic formal 



I 

. 
-- 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FEC FORM 1 

LINE 5. Check and fill out ONE of the 
six sections as follows: 

(a) All principal campaign committees 
check (a) and fill in the corresponding 
information for the candidate under (b). 

(b) All other authorized committees 
check @) and fill in the corresponding 
information for the candidate. In the 
boxes for candidatelparty affiliation, list 
the abbreviation of the party (e.g., for 
Democratic party, list “DEM,” for Re- 
publican party, list “REP,” for Reform 
party, list “REF,” for Green party, list 
“GRE” or for Independent, list “IND.”) 
Consult the Commission’s Web site at 
www.fec.gov if unsure of the proper ab- 
breviation to use. I 

(c) A committee supporting/opposing a 
single federal candidate which is not 
authorized by a candidate checks (c), and 
includes the candidate’s name on the line 
provided. Delegate and draft committees 
must check (c), and provide the name of 
the candidate supported. 
(d) All national, State and subordinate 
committees of a political party check (d) 
and fill in whether the party is the na- 
tional party (use code NAT), state party 
(use code STA) or subordinate commit- 
tee (use code SUB). In the boxes for can- 
didate/party affiliation, list the abbrevia- 
tion of the party (e.g., for Democratic 
party, list “DEM,” for Republican party, 
list “REP,” for Reform party, list “REF,” 
for Green party, list “GRE” or for Inde- 
pendent, list “IND.”) Consult the 
Commission’s Web site at www.fec.gov 
if unsure of the proper abbreviation to 
use. 
(e) All separate segregated funds check 
(e). A separate segregated fund is a po- 
litical committee established, financed, 
maintained or controlled by a corpora- 
tion, labor organization, membership 
organization, cooperative or trade asso- 
ciation 
( f )  A cornminee supporting/opposin~ 
more than one lederal candidate and 
wliicli 1‘ not a ceparate sepregated fund 
01 a pol~tical part! coninmcc chech 
box (fj  All joint jundiaisinp represen- 
tative> check (f)  4 comniiticc estab- 
Iished 10 dC1 a. a loll11 liindra~sinp Iep- 
rcwitativc I &  2 polilical cc)iiiiii~itcc cc 

lected or established by joint fundraising 
participants as the committee respon- 
sible for keeping joint fundraising 
records, allocating proceeds and ex- 
penses among participants and report- 
ing the overall financial activity of the 
fundraiser. 
LINE 6. Political committees must list 
all affiliated committees and connected 
organizations (defmed below) as fol- 
lows. Do not leave this line blank. If 
there are no affiliated committees as 
described below, enter “None” on this 
line. 
*Principal campaign committees list all 

other committees authorized by the 
same candidate. Under “Relationship,” 
enter “affiliated.” 

.Political committees authorized by the 
same candidate (other than the princi- 
pal campaign committee) list the prin- 
cipal campaign committee authorized 
by the same candidate. Under “Rela- 
tionship,” enter “afliliated.” 

.Political committees which have been 
established, financed, maintained or 
controlled by the highest level parent 
organization (i.e., the corporation, la- 
bor organization, membership organi- 
zation, cooperative or trade associa- 
tion) list: 

.The name of the parent organization. 
Under “Relationship,” enter “con- 
nected” AND 

.The name of any other political 
committee@) established, financed, 
maintained or controlled by the same 
parent organization or by a subsidiary, 
branch or State, local, or other subor- 
dinate unit of the same parent organi- 
zation. Under “Relationship,” enter 
“affiliated.” 

Political committees which have been 
established, financed, maintained or con- 
trolled by a subsidiary, branch or State, 
local, or other subordinate unit of an 
organization list: 
*The name of the subsidiary. branch or 

State. local. or other subordmate unit  
and the name of the parent organiza- 
tion of which ii is a pan Lindei “Rela- 
tionship * entei “connected” AND 

*The name of the hiphesi level political 
cornminee sponsored b! the parent01 - 
ganization bidel “Relationship cn- 
rei ”affiliated . 

,State party committees list any subor- 
dinate committees (i.e., any county, 
district or local committee) under the 
control or direction of the State com- 
mittee. Under “Relationship,” enter 
“affiliated.” (See 11 CFR 110.3(b).) 

.Subordinate State party committees list 
the State party committee. Under “Re 
lationship,” enter “affiliated.” (See 11 
CFR 110.3@).) 

.Joint fundraising representatives list all 
the political committees participating 
in the joint hdraising effort. Under 
‘‘Relationship? enter “joint hdraising 
participant.” 

.Joint fundraising participants list the 
committee established to act as the joint 
fundraising representative. Under “Re- 
lationship,’’ enter “joint fbndraising 
representative .” 

Separate segregated funds must check 
the most appropriate box for the type of 
“connected organization.” Note: The 
term “connected organization” means 
any organization which is not a political 
committee but which directly or indi- 
rectly establishes, administers or finan- 
cially supports a political committee. A 
connected organization may be a corpo- 
ration (including a corporation without 
capital stock), a labor organization, a 
membership organization, a cooperative 
or a trade association. The definition of 
“affiliated committee” is contained at 1 1 
CFR 100.5(g). 

LINE 7. Enter the name, address and 
committee position or the title of custo- 
dian of the committee’s books and 
records on Line 7. The telephone num- 
ber is optional, but is helpfbl in expedi- 
tiously resolving potential filing prob- 
lems. If the treasurer is the custodian of 
records, the term “treasurer” is sufficient 
for Line 7. 

LINE 8. Enter the name and address of 
the committee’s treasurer on Line 8. The 
name and address of any designated 
agent (e.g., assistant treasurer) must also 
be mcluded on Line 8. Every po~ibcal 
committee must have 8 treasure] and 
ma! designate an assistant treasure1 who 
shall assume the duties and responsib~li- 
ties of thc treasure1 in the event the trea- 
sure1 I C  unavailable The C o n i ~ i ~ i s ~ i o n  



recommends that each political commit- 
tee designate an assistant treasurer be- 
cause no contribution or expenditure 
may be accepted or made by or on be- 
half of a political committee at a time 
when there is a vacancy in the office of 
the treasurer. No expenditure may be 
made for or on behalf of a political com- 
mittee without the authorization of its 
treasurer or another agent authorized 
orally or in writing by the treasurer. 

LINE 9. The committee must provide 
the name and mailing address of any 
bank, repository, or depository where the 
committee holds funds. Each political 
committee must have a checking account 
or transaction account at one of its de- 
positories. All receipts of a political 
committee must be deposited into a des- 
ignated campaign depository. All dis- 
bursements must be made by check or 
similar drafts drawn on an account at a 
designated campaign depository, except 
for expenditures of $100 or less made 
fiom a petty cash fund. 

Submit any additional information 
required for any Line on separate con- 
tinuation sheets appropriately labeled 
and attached to the Statement of Orga- 
nization. Indicate in the appropriate sec- 
tion when information is continued on 
separate page(@. 

Treasurer’s Responsibilities 
The treasurer of the political commit- 

tee must preserve a copy of the Statement 
of Organization and each amendment for 
a period of not less than 3 years after the 
date of filing. The treasurer of the politi- 
cal committee is personally responsible 
for the timely and complete filing of this 
Statement and for the accuracy of any in- 
formation contained in it. 

Where to File 
The original Statement of Organiza- 

tion (FEC FORM 1) and all amendments 
must be filed with the appropriate of- 
fice as follows 
-The principal campaign comminee of 

a candida~r for the House ofRepresen- 
tatives and political committees which 
suppon 01 oppose only candidates for 
thc Houw file with thc Federal Elec- 
tion Conmission 999 li Street. N 14 
\ba < h I n p  I on DC 2 04 (1 

*The principal campaign committee of 
a candidate for the Senate and politi- 
cal committees which support or op- 
pose only candidates for the Senate file 
with the Secretary of the Senate, Of- 
fice of Public Records, 232 Hart Sen- 
ate Office Building, Washington, DC 
20510-71 16. Mail addressed to the 
Secretary of the Senate should read 
“Ofice of Public Records, PO. BOX 
5109, Alexandria, VA 22301-0109. ” 

*An authorized committee which is not 
the principal campaign committee of 
a candidate files with the principal’ 
campaign committee which must for- 
ward a copy to the appropriate office 
listed herein. 

*All other committees, including the 
principal campaign committee of a 
candidate for the office of President or 
Vice President, file with the Federal 
Election Commission, 999 E Street, 
N.W., Washington, DC 20463. 

Principal campaign committees of 
House and Senate candidates must file 
a copy of this form with the state in 
which the office is sought, with the ex- 
ception of committees of candidates in 
states that have qualified for the 
Commission’s state filing waiver pro- 
gram. Principal campaign committees of 
Presidential candidates must file a copy 
of this form in each state in which they 
have made expenditures, with the excep- 
tion of those states that have qualified 
for the Commission’s state filing waiver 
program. A list of qualified states is 
available from the Federal Election 
Commission. 

Unauthorized political committees 
must continue to file copies of this form 
with the states in which they have their 
headquarters, with the exception of com- 
mittees that are located in states that have 
qualified for the state waiver program. 

The Treasurer must sign the State- 
ment of Organization. 

, 

I-cacral Elecrtor C ommiwon (Rcwsec 2’2002 1 P.lpi 



STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION 

FOR POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEES AND PARTY COMMITTEES 
’ (See Reverse Side For Instructions) 

This is a (check one) 

This is an (check one) Initial Statement Amended Statement 

0 Party Committee Political Action Committee 

30MMITTEE (PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT) 

Westar Energy Employees Political Action Committee 
~ ~~ ~~ 

vlailing Address (Street, City, State, Zip Code) 
81 8 South Kansas Avenue, Topeka, KS 66601 - 

ZHAIRPERSON 
Yame 

Don Hill ‘ 

Mailing Address (Street, City, State, Zip Code) 
1101 E. Main, Independence, KS 67301 

TREASURER 
Name 

Mailing Address (Street, City, State, Zip Code) 
225 Seth Child Road, Manhattan, KS 66502 

Jeff Martin 

AFFILlATED OR CONNECTED ORGANIZATIONS 
Name 

Mailing Address (Street, City, State, Zip Code) 
818 South Kansas Avenue, Topeka, KS 66601 

Westar Energy 

f not connected or affiliated with an organization, identi@ the trade, profession, or primary interest of the contributors. 

SIGNATURE: 
‘‘I declare that this statement has been examined by me and to the best of my knowledge and 
belief IS true. c o m c ~  and complete. 1 
0 1  intention all^ filing 2 false 

9 -  vi- o s  
f Dare) 



KANSAS GOVERNMENTAL ETHICS COMMISSION 

Name Westar Energy Employees Political Action Committee 1 

POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE IREGISTRATION STATEMENT 

This is an (Check one) Fl Initial Statement r[ Amended Statement 

- 
Street 81 8 South Kansas Avenue 

Topeka State KS 'Ode 66601 

COMMITTEE (Please Type or P h t )  

$20 Fee Our political committee anticipates receiving contributions of $500 or less in this 
calendar year. 

CHAIRPERSON & Mailing Address 

'Ireet 1101 E. Main 

Independence State KS Code 67301 
- 

TREASURER & Mailing Address 
- 

Name Jeff Martin - 

street 225 Seth Child Road 

Manhattan , State KS zip 66502 

REGISTRATION FEE (Cbeck One) 

$35 Fee Our political committee anticipates receiving contributions of more thans$500 I but less than $2,501 in this calendar year. 

-- 

Fl $240 Fee I Our political committee anticipates receiving $2,501 or more in this calendar ye; 

The appropriate fee must accompany your Political Action Committee Registration statement Please mi 
check payable to the Governmental Ethics Commission. 

Sqjnature of 'Chairperson 01 ']-reasuret 



e 
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TO: Doug Lake 

Carl Koupa FROM: 

DATE: September 20,2000 
A 

SUBJECT: Contributions 

INTERNAL 
CORRESPONDENCE 

CC 
-- c -  

Below are the neme~ of the committees for the contribukns. 

Pleese return these checks and we'll deliver them together. You'll note one addition of a 
Topeka Clty Coundl person. 

Timhrt for Congress 

Ryun far Congress 

Jerry Momn for Congress 

brink MOO^ for Congress d 
Annle Keuther for State Representative 

- -  - Lynn Jenkins foiSenete Campaign 

Toelkes for State Representative 

Gordon for State Representative 

Vanessa Hill; for Council ($1 00) 
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CODE OF 

BUSINESS CONDUCT 

AND ETHICS 

I .  
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WESTAR ENERGY, DiCm 

1 

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 
Adopted July 16,2003 

1. Introduction 

This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (“Code”) flows out of our core 
values of safety, integrity, and accountability. This Code has been adopted by our 
board of directors and summarizes the standards that must guide our actions. While 
covering a wide range of business practices and procedures, these standards cannot 
and do not cover every issue that may arise, or every situation where ethical 
decisions must be made, but rather set forth key guiding principles that represent 
Company policies and establish conditions for employment at the Company. 

We must strive to foster a culture of honesty and accountability. Our 
commitment to the highest level of ethical conduct should be reflected in all of the 
Company’s business activities including, but not limited to, relationships with 
employees, customers, suppliers, competitors, the government and the public, 
including our investors. All of our employees, oficers and directors must conduct 
themselves according to the language and spirit of this Code and seek to avoid even 
the appearance of improper behavior. Even well-intentioned actions that violate the 
law or this Code may result in negative consequences for the Company and for the 
individuals involved. 

Our Company’s goal is to be a model of corporate governance. We are 
committed to achieving a superior reputation for integrity, professionalism and 
fairness. We should all recognize that our actions are the foundation of our 
reputation, and adhering to this Code and applicable law is imperative. 

2. Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations 

We are strongly committed to conducting our business affairs with honesty 
band integrity and in f i l l  compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
No employee, officer or director of the Company shall commit an illegal or 
unethical act, or instruct others to do so, for any reason. 

If you believe that any practice raises questions as to compliance with this 
Code or applicable law, rule or regulation, or if you otherwise have questions 
regarding any law, rule or regulation, please contact the corporate compliance 
officer directly or call the Company’s integrity hotline. The Company will hold 
information and training sessions to promote compliance with the laws, rules and 
regulations that affect our business. 

1 



3. Trading on Inside Information 

Using non-public information to trade in &curities, or providing a family 
member, friend or any other person with a “tip”, is illegal. All non-public 
infomation should be considered inside infomation and should never be used for 
personal gain or the personal gain of others. You are required to familiarize yourself 
and comply with the Company’s policy against insider trading, copies of which are 
distributed to all employees, officers and directors and are available fiom the 
corporate compliance officer. You should contact the corporate compliance officer . 
with any questions about your ability to buy or sell securities. 

4. Protection of Confidential Proprietary Information 

Confidential proprietary information generated and gathered in our business 
is a valuable Company asset. Protecting this information plays a vital role in our 
continued growth and ability to compete, and all proprietary information should be 
maintained in strict confidence, except when disclosure is authorized by the 
Company or required by law. 

Proprietary information includes all non-public information that might be 
usefid to competitors or others that could be harmfbl to the Company or its 
customers if disclosed. Intellectual property such as trade secrets, patents, 
trademarks and copyrights, as well as business research and new product plans, 
objectives and strategies, records, databases, salary and benefits data, employee 
medical infomation, customer, employee and suppliers lists and any unpublished 
financial or pricing information must also be protected. 

Unauthorized use or distribution of proprietary in’formation violates 
Company policy and could be illegal. Such use or distribution could result in 
negative consequences for both the Company and the individuals involved, 
including potential legal and disciplinary actions. We respect the property rights of 
other companies and their .proprietary information and require our employees, 
officers and directors to observe such rights. 

Your obligation to protect the Company’s proprietary and confidential 
information continues even after you leave the Company. You must return all 
proprietary and confidential information in your possession upon leaving the 
Company. 

5. Conflicts of Interest 

Our employees, officers and directors have an obligation to act in the best 
interest of the Company. All employees, officers and directors should endeavor to 
avoid situations that present a potential or actual conflict between their interest and 
the interesi of the Company. 

? 



A “conflict of interest” occurs when a person’s private interest interferes in 
any way, or even appears to interfere, with the interest of the Company, including its 
subsidiaries and affiliates. A conflict of interest can arise when an employee, officer 
or director takes an action or has an interest that may make it difficult for him or her 
to perform his or her work objectively and effectively. Conflicts of interest may also 
arise when an employee, officer or director (or someone with a close relationship to 
him or her) receives improper personal benefits as a result of the employee’s, 
officer’s or director’s position in the Company. 

Although it would not be possible to describe every situation in which a 
conflict of interest may arise, the following are examples of situations that may 
constitute a conflict of interest: 

e Working, in any capacity, for a competitor, customer or supplier 
while employed by the Company. 

e Accepting gifts of more than modest value or receiving personal 
discounts or other benefits as a result of your position in the 
Company fiom a competitor, customer or supplier. 

e Competing with the Company for the purchase or sale of property, 
services or other interests. 

0 , Having an interest in a transaction involving the Company, a 
customer or supplier (other than as an employee, officer or director of 
the Company and not including routine investments in publicly 
traded companies). 

Receiving a loan or guarantee of an obligation as a result of your 
position with the Company. 

0 Directing business to a supplier owned or managed by, or which 
employs, a relative or fiiend. 

Situations involving a conflict of interest may not always be obvious or easy 
to resolve. You should report actions that may involve a conflict of interest to the 
corporate com p1 iance off? cer. 

In order to avoid conflicts of interests, each,oficer and director must disclose 
to the corporate compliance officer any material transaction or relationship that 
reasonably could be expected to give rise to such a conflict, and the corporate 

- compliance officer shall notify the nominating and corporate governance committee 
of the board of directors of any such disclosure. Conflicts of interests involving the 
corporate compliance oficer shall be disclosed to the nominating and corporate 
governance committee 

c 



60 Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets 

Protecting Company assets against loss, theft or other misuse is the 
responsibility of every employee, officer and director. Loss, theft and misuse of 
Company assets directly impact our profitability. Any suspected loss, misuse or 
theft should be reported to your supervisor and the corporate compliance officer. 

The sole purpose of the Company’s equipment, vehicles and supplies is the 
conduct of our business. They may only be used for Company business consistent 
with Company guidelines. 

7. Corporate Opportunities 

Employees, officers and directors are prohibited from taking for themselves 
business opportunities that arise through the use of corporate property, information 
or position. No employee, officer or director may use corporate property, 
infomation or position for personal gain, and no employee, officer or director may 
compete with the Company. Competing with the Company may involve engaging 
in the same line of business as the Company, or any situation where the employee, 
officer or director takes away from the Company opportunities for sales or purchases 
of products, services or interests. 

80 Fair Dealing 

Each employee, oficer and director of the Company should endeavor to deal 
fairly with customers, suppliers, competitors, the public and one another at all times 
and in accordance with ethical business practices. No one should take unfair 
advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged 
information, misrepresentation of material facts or any other unfair dealing practice. 
No payment in any form (kickbacks) shall be made directly or indirectly to an 
employee, officer, or director, for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business or 
obtaining any other favorable action. The Company and the employee, officer or 
director involved may be subject to disciplinary action as well as potential civil or 
criminal liability for violation of this policy. 

Occasional business gifts to and entertainment of non-government 
employees in connection with business discussions or the development of business 
relationships are generally deemed appropriate in the conduct of Company business, 
subject to the Company’s employee expense travel & entertainment policy. 
However, these gifts should be given infiequently and their value should be modest. 
Gifts or entertainment in any form that would likely result in a’ feeling or expectation 
of personal obligation should not be extended or accepted. 

Practices that are acceptable in commercial business environments may be 
against the law or the policies governing federal. state or local government 
employees. Therefore. no gifts or business entertainment of an? kind ma! be given 
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to any government employee without the prior approval of the corporate compliance 
oflicer. 

Except in certain limited circumstances, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act 
(“FCPA”) prohibits giving anything of value directly or indirectly to any “foreign 
oficial” for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. When in doubt as to 
whether a contemplated payment or gift may violate the FCPA, contact the corporate 
compliance officer before taking any action. 

9. Quality of Public Disclosures 

The Company has a responsibility to communicate effectively with 
shareholders so that they are provided with full and accurate information, in all 
material respects, about the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. 
Our reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and our other public communications shall include full, fair, accurate, 
timely and understandable disclosure. The Company has established a disclosure 
committee consisting of senior management to assist in monitoring such disclosures. . 

10. Compliance with This Code and Reporting of Any Illegal or Unethical 
Bebavior 

All employees, directors and officers are expected to comply with all of the 
provisions of this Code. The Code will be strictly enforced throughout the Company 
and violations will be dealt with immediately, including subjecting persons to 
corrective and/or disciplinary action such as dismissal or removal from ofice. 
Violations of the Code that involve illegal behavior will be reported to the 
appropriate authorities. 

Situations that may involve a violation of ethics, laws or this Code may,not 
always be clear and may require difficult judgment. Employees should report any 
concerns or questions about violations of laws, rules, regulations or this Code to 
department management and the corporate compliance officer. Reporting of such 
violations may also be done anonymously through the Company’s integrity hotline. 
An anonymous report should provide enough information about the incident or 
situation to allow the Company to investigate properly. If concerns or complaints 
require confidentiality, including keeping an identity anonymous, the Company will 
endeavor to protect this confidentiality, subject to applicable law, regulation or legal 
proceedings. All accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, will 
be reported to the audit committee of the board of directors. Interested parties may 
also communicate directly with the Company’s non-management directors through 
contact information located in the company’s annual proxy statement. 

Any concerns about violations of laws, rules: regulations or this Code by any ’ 

oficer or director should be reponed promptly to the corporate compliance officer. 
and the corporate compliance officer shall notifi the nominating and corporate 
governance cornminee of an? violation. Any such concerns involwnp the corporate 
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compliance oficer should be reported to the general counsel. The general counsel 
will notifjl the nominating and corporate governance committee. The Company 
encourages all employees, officers and directors to report any suspected violations 
promptly and intends to thoroughly investigate any good faith reports of violations. 
The Company will not tolerate any kind of retaliation for reports or complaints 
regarding misconduct that were made in good faith. Open communication of issues 
and concerns by all employees without fear of retribution or retaliation is vital to the 
successfbl implementation of this Code. You are required to cooperate in internal 
investigations of misconduct and unethical behavior. 

! 

The Company recognizes the need for this Code to be applied equally to 
everyone it covers. The corporate compliance officer of the Company will have 
primary authority and responsibility for the enforcement of this Code, subject to the 
supervision of the nominating and corporate governance committee, or, in the case 
of accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, the audit committee, 
of the board of directors, and the Company will devote the necessary resources to 
enable the corporate compliance officer to establish such procedures as may be 
reasonably necessary to create a culture of accountability and facilitate compliance 
with the Code. Questions concerning this Code should be directed to the corporate 
compliance officer. 

11. Waivers and Amendments 

Any waivers of the provisions in this Code for officers or directors may only 
be granted by the board of directors and will be promptly disclosed to the 
Company’s investors. Any waivers of this Code for other employees may only be 
granted by the corporate compliance officer in consultation with the CEO. 
Amendments to this Code must be approved by the board of directors, and 
amendments of the provisions in this Code applicable to the CEO and CFO will also 
be promptly disclosed to the Company’s investors. 

12. Equal Opportunity, Non-Discrimination and Fair Employment 

The Company’s policies for recruitment, advancement and retention of 
employees forbid discrimination on the basis of any criteria prohibited by law, 
including but not limited to race, sex and age. Our policies are designed to ensure 
that employees are treated, and treat each other, fairly and with respect and dignity. 
In keeping with this objective, conduct involving discrimination or harassment of 
others will not be tolerated. All employees are required to comply with the 
Company’s policy on equal opportunity, non-discrimination and fair employment, 
copies of which were distributed and are available from the human resources 
department. 

, 

13. Compliance with Antitrust Laws 

The antitrust laws prohibit agreements among competitors on such rnaners as 
prices. terms of sale to customers and allocating markets 01 customers Antitrust 
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laws can be very complex, and violations may subject the Company and its 
employees to criminal sanctions, including fines, incarceration and civil liability. If 
you have any questions, consult the legal department. 

14. Political Contributions and Activities 

Any political contributions made by or on behalf of the Company and any 
solicitations for political contributions of any kind must be lawful and in compliance 
with Company policies. This policy applies solely to the use of Company assets and 
is not intended to discourage or prevent individual employees, officers or directors 
fiom making political contributions or engaging in political activities on their own 
behalf. No one shall be reimbursed directly or indirectly by the Company for 
personal political contributions. 

15. Environment, Health and Safety 

The Company is committed to conducting its business in compliance with all 
applicable environmental and workplace health and safety laws and regulations. 
The Company strives to provide a safe and'healthy work environment for our 
employees and to avoid adverse impact and injury to the environment and 
communities in which we conduct our business. Achieving this goal is the 

! 

responsibility of all officers, directors and employees. 

7 



POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION POLICY 

RESOLVED, that the Political Campaign Contribution Policy in the form 
presented to the Board at the meeting is hereby approved; and further 

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Company are hereby authorized to 
take such actions as they may deem necessary or appropriate to carry out the 
foregoing re solution . 
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INTEGRITY 



LorPorate-Governance 

Corporate Governance 
Economic 
Development 

Family of 
Corn panies 

Corporate Governance 

Employment 
Opportunities 

Westar Energy is committed to fair and ethical business practices and to 
strict compliance with laws governing our business activities To help ensure 
our business is conducted with honesty and integrity, and to provide 
employees direction and allow employees a safe outlet to voice concerns, 
we have instituted the Westar Energy Integrity Hotline and the Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics 

The Integrity Hotline 
The Integrity Hotline is a confidential outlet for employees, vendors and 
others to express concerns regarding possible problems The toll-free 
hotline number is 1-877-248-1 184 The hotline fields calls concerning 

Questionable accounting or auditing matters 
0 Dishonest or improper conduct 

Other possible infractions or violations of law 

The Westar Energy Code of Business Conduct and Ethics clearly 
outlines business practices focusing on honest business practices with 
customers, shareholders, employees and vendors 
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POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION POLICY 

I 

I 

! 

RESOLVED, that the Political Campaign Contribution Policy in the form 
presented to the Board at the meeting is hereby approved; and further 

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Company are hereby authorized to 
take such actions as they may deem necessary or appropriate to carry out the 
fore going re sol ut ion. 

! 
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Political Fundraising 

Board Resolution: 1. Management is directed to retain outside counsel to assist the 
Company in adopting a formal policy with respect to political fundraising. 
Management shall report to the Board in 90 days on the implementation of such 
policy. 2. Management is directed to periodically consult with counsel to review the 
policy to ensure that it continues to accurately reflect developments in the law. 

Westar Energy holds a right and responsibility to participate in the political process. The 
Company will protect and advance its interests in lawful, ethical, and proper ways. 

Officers may occasionally be encouraged by peer officers to contribute to political 
candidates; the decision to contribute is strictly voluntary and refusal to contribute shall 
not affect an officer’s terms of employment. Under no circumstances will corporate 
facilities or administrative personnel be used in connection with any such efforts. 

Westar Energy shall not make corporate contributions to candidates for ‘federal or state 
office, even where state law may pennit such contributions. 

Westar Energy employees are in the process of re-establishing state and federal political 
action committees (PACs). 

An executive committee selected by fellow employees shall govern the.PACs. 
Members of the executive committee will serve on a voluntary basis. 

Westar officers may not serve on the PACs’ executive committee. 

The executive c o d t t e e  shall make all decisions regarding PAC contributions to 
candidates. The executive committee shall coordinate and conduct political 
fundraising solicitations for the PACs. 

The executive committee shall govern the PACs, establish PAC by-laws and 
recruit members from among salaried employees. Outside counsel will provide 
advice to assure the PACs are in strict compliance with laws and regulations. 

Westar’s lobbyist (manager of government affairs) shall serve as a non-voting 
advisor to the executive committee. 

Employee participation and contributions shall be strictly voluntary. Terms of 
employment shall not be influenced by one’s decision whether or not to 
participate in the employee PACs. When PAC solicitations or information is 
disseminated, employees shall be notified that participation and contributions are 
strict I y vol u n tary . 



. 

1 

. To the extent allowed by law, Westar Energy may provide the establishment and 
administration support for the PACs (egs, allow use of company materials and 
resources to publish PAC newsletters, use of facilities for PAC executive 
committee meetings, sponsoring of PAC membership drives and activities such as 
meetings, dinners, refreshments, etc). Expert counsel is advising as to the limits 
‘of corporate support for PAC operating costs. 

9 In the short term, Westar Energy may make an initial “seed-money” contribution 
to the employee state PAC to encourage employee participation and effect a 
transition from state corporate contributions to state PAC contributions. Corporate 
contributions to the federal PAC are not allowed by law. 

Westar Energy shall periodically consult expert counsel in campaign election law to 
review changes in state and federal election law and to advise the company and the 
employee PACs on compliance. The Company has recently retained Tim Jenkins of 
O’Connor & Hannan as expert counsel to investigate special committee issues relating to 
political contributions and to advise regarding political contributions in the future. 
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 
OF 

WESTAR ENERGY EMPLOYEES 
‘ POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE 

’ ARTICLE I 

Organization 

Section A, The name of this Association shall be Westar Energy Employees 
Political Action Committee and may be known as “Westar Energy PAC.” 

Section B. The Association shall be voluntary, nonprofit, nonpartisan, and 
unincorporated and shall not be affiliated with any specific candidate for public 
office, specific political group, or other person or persons except as may be 
provided herein. 

Section C. Westar Energy, a Kansas corporation with its principal office at 
818 S. Kansas Avenue, Topeka, Kansas, 66612, shall be deemed to be the only 
connected organization of the PAC. Establishment and solicitation expenses for 
Westar Energy may be paid by Westar Energy as provided for in applicable federal 
and state laws. 

Section D, The Association shall be domiciled within Shawnee County, 
Kansas. 

ARTICLE I1 

Purposes 

The purposes of this Association are: 

1. to promote good citizenship through the personal and financial participation 

2. to protect ,and preserve a sound investor-owned utility industry by 
of its members in the election of public officials, and; 

supporting federal and stat.e candidates, regardless of party affiliation. who 
have been supponive of the investor-owned utility industry andlor are 
positioned IO impact upon OUI- industry. 



ARTICLE 111 

Powers 

Section A. In order to effectuate the foregoing purposes, but not in 
limitation thereof, the Association is empowered to: 

1. solicit voluntary individual personal contributions to the Association for 
distribution by it to hrther the candidacies of selected candidates for elective 
public office; 

2. expend monies and make contributions to hrther the candidacies of selected 
candidates for elective public office; and 

3. do all things necessary and desirable consistent with applicable laws, rules, 
and regulations. 

Section B. The Association is not authorized to borrow finds or incur debts 
other than accounts payable in the ordinary course of business. 

ARTICLE IV 

Participation 

Participation is voluntary and shall be open to eligible Westar Energy 
employees who meet the minimum requirements as established under applicable 
federal and state law and such additional requirements as may be established by the 
Association's Board of Directors. 

' ARTICLE V 

Contributions To The Association 

Section A. Contributions to the Association will be collected for the 
purpose of contributing to federal candidates for seats in the United States House 
of Representatives and Senate and for the Presidency and to candidates for state 
elective offices as approved by the Board of Directors. 

Section B. N o  contribution shall be accepted which is earmarked for any 
political committee 01- candidate. 



Section C. No contribution will be accepted from individuals who are not 
citizens or permanent legal residents of the United States. 

Section Do Contributions to the Association shall be wholly voluntary and 
no direct or indirect pressure or coercion shall be exerted on any person to induce 
or compel a contribution. 

Section E. Contributions which exceed the limits set by applicable law will 
not be accepted. The Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer shall return to the 
appropriate donor any contribution which exceeds the legal limit or which is 
otherwise prohibited by law. 

Section F. Association finds shall not be commingled with those of'any 
individual or other organization. 

ARTICLE VI 

Contributions Bv The Association 

Section A. The Association may make contributions to candidates for seats 
in the United States House of Representatives and Senate and for the Presidency 
and to candidates for state elective offices as approved by the Board of Directors. 

Section B. The Board of Directors of the Association, shall, in its 
discretion, determine how hnds shall be distributed. Notwithstanding this 
discretionary authority, the Board of Directors shall, on a bipartisan basis, consider 
whether the proposed recipient is a candidate that shares positions consistent with 
the purposes of the Committee as stated in Article 11. 

Section C. Contributions shall be on checks or bank draRs bearing the name 
of the Association and shall be executed by the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer. 

ARTICLE VI1 

Officers and Board of Directors 

Section A. The Officers of the Association shall be the Chairperson. the 
Secret.ary. and the Treasurer. 



Section B, The initial Officers shall be: 
Chairperson: 
Secretary : 
Treasurer: 

Section C. The Chairperson and the Secretary shall serve a term of two 
years or until a successor assumes the position. 8 .  

Section D. The Board of Directors shall be comprised of the officers and six 
other individuals appointed by the officers to serve as directors-at-large. The 
directors-at-large shall serve a term of two years or until a successor assumes the 
position, except that three of the initial directors-at-large shall serve an initial term 
of three years or until a successor assumes the position. 

Section E, The Board of Directors shall meet periodically to consider issues 
relating to the management of the Association, including, but not limited to: 

1, detennining how finds shall be distributed; 
2, determining which employees will be solicited; and 
3, detexmining which lawfbl solicitation methods shall be utilized. 

ARTICLE VIII 

Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer 

Section A, The Board of Directors shall appoint an Assistant Treasurer 
from the directors-at-large. The Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer will keep the 
financial and other records of the Association, shall comply with all applicable 
legal requirements, and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned by the 
Board of Directors. The specific duties of the Treasurer shall include, but are not 
necessarily limited to the following: 

1, advising the Board of Directprs of the total amount of finds held by the 
Association and such other information as may be appropriate under the 
circumstances; 

2. maintaining all required records regarding contributions and expenditures 
and filing all necessary reports with appropriate federal. state and local 
authorities; 

3. establishing and maintaining one or more bank accounts for the deposit of 
a1 1 con1 ri bu t i on s received : 
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4. keeping a detailed account of all contributions, the name and mailing 
address of every person making a contribution in excess 'of $50.00 and all 
expenditures made by or on behalf of the Association; and 

5. disbursing finds as directed by the Board of Directors. 

Section B. If the Treasurer is unable to perform such duties, the Assistant 
Treasurer shall assume the duties of the Treasurer. The Treasurer may also 
delegate to the Assistant Treasurer, on a discretionary basis, the duties of the 
Treasurer. 

Section C. The Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer are the only personnel 
empowered to disburse the Association's finds. 

Section D. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, 
contributors to the Association shall be kept confidential by the Treasurer and 
Assistant Treasurer unless their identity is required to be disclosed under 
applicable laws and regulations. 

, Section E. The Treasurer shall maintain the following records for the ready 
availability of all current contributors to the Association: 0 

1. the Articles ofAssociation of the PAC; 
2. all other records required by applicable laws and regulations to be filed and 

made available to the public. 

, Current contributors include those who have made or pledged a contribution 
during the calendar year in which the request for document disclosure is made. 

Section F. The Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer shall serve indefinite 
terms. They can be replaced by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. 



ARTICLE IX 

Separate Funds 

The Association may establish separate finds for the primary purpose of 
receiving contributions and other monies and making contributions and other 
disbursements for candidates for state elective office in Kansas and for federal 
candidates. The separate hnds will be administered in accordance with applicable 
laws and regulations. If permitted by law, transfers between funds of the 
Association may be authorized by a majority of the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE X 

Amendments 

These bylaws may be amended, repealed or altered, in whole or in part, by a 
majority vote of the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XI 

Dissolution 

Section A. The Association may be dissolved by a unanimous vote of the 
Board of Directors. 

Section B. In the case of dissolution, the Treasurer shall return 
undistributed finds to the contributors readily identifiable, and any hnds, which 
are not identifiable, may, prior to dissolution of the Association, be disbursed by 
the Association to candidates for election to federal and state office in accordance 
with these Bylaws. 


